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10 \ Man h. 1 A 180, 385
n h H { N W
Ot h. 57, ne 628
V., (Ont, 1011 h, 12 (8]
h 1912 158 224, 225
Om ¢l 170 170, 171
Om h 247 171
Ont 1012 h. 40 n "
Ont h. 55 |
Halifax Charter NS
Halifax Charter NS 20
Halifax Charter (N.S.), sec. 300
Halifux Charter (NS ‘ 01
Halifax Charter NS -t (K1)
Halifax Charter (NS < 150

Tmmigration Aet (Can, 19101, 9 and 10 Edw. VIL ch
Immigration Act, 9 and 10 Edw, VIL (Can. 1910), ch. 27, see, 33, 611

Industrial Establishments Aet (Que.),
Insurance A R.S.CLI886, ch 27
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DOMINION LAW REPORTS

SOUTHWELL v. WILLIAMS AND SCHANK,

British Columbia Court of Appeal, Macdonald, C.J.A., Irving, and
{ Galliher, JJ.A. June 25, 1912

I Courts (§1 B 3—28)—RIGHT OF VENDOR TO FORFEIT CONTRACT—BREACH
VACATION OF REGISTRATIONS
A decree or judgment for rescission of a contract for the sale of
land upon non-payment of the purchase money, may direet that all
N registered instruments  depending  thereon e vacated unless all
arrearages are paid within a time limited by the judgment

VENDOR AND PURCHASER (§ 11139 RIGHTS OF ASSIGNEE OF PURCHASER
—FORFEITURE OF CONTRACT—PAYMENTS MADE MY ASSIGNEE 10
VENDEE—RECOVERY BACK

If, upon the failure of the vende

tract for the sale of land, within t

to pay the amount due on a con
ime limited by the Court there
for, payment is made by one to whom the vendee
in the contract, and who paid to the vendee or hi
under the contract as they came due, the a nee will be given
judgment agninst the vendee therefor, together with interest thereon
and the costs he is compelled to pay

ned his interest
it all payments

ASSIGNMENT  (§ [11—33)—ASSIGNEE OF VENDEE—RECOVERY BACK  OF
PAYMENTS MADE TO VENDEE NOT APPLIED ON PURCHASE

Upon the forfeiture of a contraet for the sale of land, and the
vacation of all instruments depending thereon, on account of the
default of the vendee to pay the amount due within the time decreed
by the Court therefor, th igne f the vendee's interest in the con
tract will be given judgment against the latter forgthe amount the
assignee had paid under the contract to the vendee or his agent, which
had not been applied in satisfaction thereof.

Appean by plaintiff from the judgment of Grant, Co.J., in
an action for forfeiture under an agreement for sale of land.
Defendant Williams entered into an agreement to purchase the
land in question from plaintiff. He assigned the agreement to
the defendant Schank, who continued the payments to one Moss,
agent of Williams, according to the allegation of Schank., Wil-
liams denied the ageney of Moss, who failed to account for the
moneys received. Grant, Co.J., gave judgment against Williams
for $750 and costs, dismissed the action for foreclosure and also
dismissed the action against Schank with costs. The Court of
Appeal reserved judgment merely as to the form of the decree
which should be made in favour of the plaintiff, but intimated
that if plaintiff, Williams, was inclined to do right he would
protect Schank against the necessity of having to pay twice for
the land.

The appeal was allowed.

U. B. O’De¢ll, for appellant.

A. Henderson, K.C., for respondent Williams,

J. 8. Jamieson, for respondent Schank,

s A e Y R e

Statement
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B.C. Macponarp, CJ A I coneur with judgment of Galliher,

a2 i

1012

SOUTHWELL

IrRvING, J. A\, concurs

! Gavuiner, J A, :—There should be a deeree reseinding the
wirians  contract and vacating registration of the agreement between the
| AND plaintiff and the defendant Williams, and any other registered
SCHANE: instruments depending thereon unless all arrears of purchase
Gallier, LA, money and interest payable under the agreement between the
plaintiff and defendant Williams, due up to and including the
date following, be paid to the registrar of this Court, at Van-
couver, for and on account of the plaintiff, on or before the 30th .
September, 1912, before the honr of 12 o’clock noon, by the
defendants or one of them. And in case the parties cannot
agree, the amount shall be settled by the registrar.

The plaintifi to have judgment for his costs of the action
and appeal and reference (if any) against both defendants
whether said money be paid or not.

The judgment pronounced below shall be vacated.

In case the defendant Williams fails to pay the ahove moneys
on the date above mentioned, together with the costs above
mentioned, and in the event of the defendant Schank paying
the said moneys and costs, there shall be judgment in favour of
Schank against Williams for all such sums for prineipal, inter-
est and costs as he Schank shall be obliged to pay by reason of
Williams' default under the agreement

Should the contract be rescinded and the registration of the
agreement and other instruments dependent thereon be vacated
by reason of default in payment as hereinbefore provided, the
defendant Schank shall have judgment against the defendant
Williams for all sums paid by him to the defendant Williams,
or his agent Moss for principal and interest, together with
interest thereon at 7 per cent. per annum from the dates of such
payments

The defendant Schank is to have judgment against the de-
fendant Williams in any event for his (defendant Schank)
costs of defence of the action, and of appeal, and reference as
aforesaid. In the event of reseission, the plaintiff to retain the
moneys already paid as liqguidation damages.

Leave to apply for further directions to the County Court.

Appeal allowed.
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RE GORDON.
Ontario High Court, Riddell, J. June 20, 1912,

I. EXBCUTORS AND ADMINISTRATORS (§ 111 A—69) —APPLICATION FOR AD
VICE OF COURT—ADVISABILITY OF CLATMING LAND ADVERSELY HELD
—RuLe (O~T.) 938,

Upon an application under Con, Rule 938, as amended 1904, by Rule
1269, the Court will decline to advise or direct an executor as to
whether he should follow the opinion of his solicitor and lay claim,
as part of the estate, to land held adversely thereto, such an appliea
tion made summarily not being within the terms of Ont. C.R. 938
and 126

[Suffolk v. Lawrence (1884), 32 W.R. 809, specially referred to.]

MorioN by the exeentors of the will of Isaae Gordon the
elder, deceased, for the opinion, adviee, or direction of the Court,
under see. 65 of the Trustee Aet and Con. Rule 1269(938),

A. A, Craag, for the exeeutor.

. W, Plarton, for tenants under a lease made by Henry
Gordon.

Riopery, J.:—Isaae Gordon the elder devised certain lands
to his son Henry, ‘‘for himself during his natural life, sub-
jeet to the payment of’’ certain legacies, “‘but in case of my
son Henry Gordon’s death without issue or without leaving any
child or children then it is my wish that the real estate be sold
and the proceeds divided equally between my surviving sons
and daughters share and share alike . Henry, in
1909, made a lease of the land to C. and A. for a term of five
years; and died, without issue, in June, 1911, The executor
of Isaac Gordon the elder demanded possession of the land,
and the tenants refused, asserting that the lease was good for
the term mentioned in it. The executor was advised by his
solicitor and believes that the lease was voided by the death of
IHenry, and that it is his duty to sell the farm as exeentor,

Instead of taking proceedings to obtain possession of the
land, he served upon the tenants a notice of motion ‘‘for the
opinion, advice, or direction of the Judge, pursuant to see.
65 of the Trustee Act and Rule 1269 of the Consolidated Rules
of Practice.”” The notice is somewhat ambiguous, but I accept
the interpretation which counsel for the motion says was in-
tended, viz., that opinion, advice, or direction is sought in two
matters: (1) the course to be pursued by the executor with
respect to the lease; (2) the validity of the lease.

Objection being taken to the practice by counsel for the
tenants, I gave effect to his objection; and, as he refused to
consent to the motion being turned into any other form of
motion, I dismissed the second branch of the application, with
costs, fixed at $5, following Re Rally (1912), 25 O.L.R. 112,
and also Re Twraer, 3 O.W.N, 1438,

ONT

H.C..T
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June 20

Statemo

Riddell, J,
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Statement
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The portion of Con, Rule 1269 (938) which, it is contended,
covers the former branch of the application, is (e), by which
an application may be made for an order *‘directing the execu
tors or administrators or trustees to do or abstain from doing
any particular act in their character as such executors or trus
tees.”” But this means any act in or about the estate of which
they are executors or trustees. As it is put in Suffolk v. Law-

rence (1884), 32 W.R. 899, ““this only relates to the doing or

abstaining from doing by trustees of some act within the scope
of their trusts.”” The seetion was not intended to cover the case
of an executor who was in doubt as to whether he should fol-
low his solicitor’s opinion so far as to claim as part of the
estate land claimed adversely to the estate. Executors must
use their business sense, and not ask the Court to exonerate them
in advance: the general duties of exccutors are so well known
that the Court should not be ecalled upon to lay them down on
every occasion of apparent diffieulty.
This part of the application is also refused.

Declaration accordingly

CONN v. HAWES, and GOWAN, Claimant.

Manitoba Court of Appeal, Howell, CJ. M., Richards, Perduc, Cameron,
Haggart, JJ. A, June 24, 1912,

1. RECORDS AND REGISTRY LAWS (§ 111 C=21)—EFFecT oF FAILURE TO RE
GISTER — SALE OF GOODS=—UHANGE OF POSsEssioN -~ RSM. 1002, cn,
11, sec. 3.

A sale of a stack of hay is invalid against an exeeution creditor
under sec. 3 of the Bills of Sale and Chattel Mortgage Act, RS.)M,
1902, ch. 11, providing that every unregistered sale must be accom
panied by an immediate delivery followed by an actual and continual
change of possession, where the sale was made by the owner of the hay
giving it and some eash in payment of an overdue note of his, held by
the buyer. who permitted the hay to remain on the premises occupied
by the seller where it was seized on execution by the ereditor under
a judgment obtained after the sale

[Jackson v. Bank of Norva Seotia, % Man, R. 75: Brown v. Peace, 11
Man. R. 409: Parkes v. St. rge, 10 AR, (Ont.) 496, and Hyman v
Cuthbertson, 10 OR. 443, specially referred to.]

AN appeal by the execution ereditor, Conn, from the judg-
ment of Ryan, J., on the trial of an interpleader issue.

The appeal was allowed.

On November 23rd, 1910, the claimant bought a stack of
hay situate on section 36, township 12, range 16, west, the
property of Mrs. Huneston, the mother-in-law of the defendant
Hawes, who gave $5 in cash and the stack of hay in question
to the claimant in payment of an over-due note of defendant.
At the time of the sale, the plaintiff had no judgment against
the defendant. Judgment was not obtained until March 14th,

4
a
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1911.  On December 22nd, 1910, the bailiff of the Court acting MAN,
under a writ of attachment seized the hay in question, the writ CA
having been issued on the same date. Subsequently the claimant 1912

claimed the hay, and the bailiff interpleaded

The case was tried before Judge Ryan who gave judgment :
for the claimant, deciding that there was not evidence to hold Hawes axo
that the sale of the hay was made with intent to hinder, delay — Gowax
or prejudice ereditors under seetion 38 of the Assignments Act; g, wme
and holding that the issue of a writ of attachment or seizing

Coxn

thereunder was not an ““action” or proceeding had or taken to
impeach or set aside the sale. The interpleader summons issued
f by the bailiff did not issue until April 22nd, 1911, more than
sixty days after the sale of the hay to the plaintiff’
Plaintift appealed.
H. k. Hooper, for the plaintiff
No one appeared for the claimant, Gowan, although duly

served
The judgment of the Court was | livered by

Hacaarr, J.\.:—On the trial of an interpleader issne the HWagsart, J.A
County Court Judge decided in favour of the elaimant Gowan,
and against the execution ereditors Robert Conn & Son, who
appeal on two grounds; the first heing that the sale was void as
against the execution ereditors under section 3 of the Bills of
Sale and Chattel Mortgage Aet, and the second that the trans-
fer was preferential and void under the Assignments Aet.

The eclaimants’ version of the trausaction is that being the
holder of a promissory note made by the execution debtor for
6.50, it was agreed between them that the note should be
given up to the execution debtor for the stack of hay in question,
and $5 in cash. The stack was on the premises occupied by

the exeeution debtor Ilawes, where it continued to remain.
Hawes in two or three days thereafter vacated the premises.
Gowan the claimant says he asked the consent of the son of the
owner of the land to allow the hay to remain where it was and
the son consented. This happened in November, 1910, and
within a month thereafter the execution creditor issued a writ
§ of attachment and in due ecourse obtained judgment and execu-
tion
I think that with all deference and respect for the finding
of the learned trial Judge the sale or transaction under which
Gowan elaims title to the hay in question was not accompanied
by an immediate delivery followed by an actual and continued
change of possession, and that it is void as against the execution
creditor under the Bills of Sale and Chattel Mortgage Act:
Jackson v. Bank of Nova Scotia, 9 Man. R. 75: Brown v. Peace,
11 Man. R. 409; Parkes v. St. George, 10 A.R. (Ont.) 496;
Hyman v. Cuthbertson, 10 O.R. 443,
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MAN. As the execution ecreditor succeeds on this ground it is not
C.A necessary to consider the other questions raised on the appeal.

1912 The appeal should be allowed with costs.
- Judgment in the Court below will be set aside and judgment
entered for the execution ereditor Conn for $25 and costs.

CoxN
r.
HAWES AND
GOWAN Appeal allowed.

SASK. Re MATERI Estate.

4 Saskatchewan Supreme Court, Wetmore, CJl., in Chambers. May 11, 1912,
8 C b

1912 1. Wirts (§ 11T K—I187)—DEVISE 0F LAND SUBJECT TO A MORTGAGE—LI1A- %
BILITY OF DEVISE}
May 11 One to whom land encumbered with a mortg
primarily liable for the payment thereof,
[In re Carley, 18 W.L.R. 695, specially referred to.]

was devised, is

2, EXECUTORS AND ADMINISTRATORS (§ 11 A 2—440)—RIGHT TO MORTGAGE
LAND AFTER CONVEYANCE TO DEVISEE—SASK, Rures or Covrr 624,

SECS. 7 AND 8.

After land has been transferred and conveyed by executors to the
one to whom it was devised, the former cannot be authorized, nndey
paragraphs 7 and 8 of Saskatchewan Rule 624, to execute a mortgage

thereon

Statement Tuis was an ex parte application on behalf of one Anton
Deis, under paragraphs 7 and 8 of Rule 624 of the Rules of
Court* for a direction that he be authorized to execute a mort-
gage on the north-west quarter of section 24, township 16, range
16, west of the 2nd meridian.

*Section 624 of the Sask. Rules of Court (1911), is as follows

624, The executors or administrators of a deceased person, or the
sureties for administrators, and the trustees under any deed or instrument
or any of them, and any person claiming to be interested in the relief
sought as creditor, devisee, legatee, next of kin, or heir-at)aw of a deceased
person, or as cestuis que trust under the trust of any deed or instrument,
or as claimi by assignment, or otherwise. under such creditor or other
person as aforesaid, may obtain an originating summons returnable before
a Judge in Chambers, at such time as he may appoint. for such relief of
the nature or kind following as may by the summons be specified, and as
the circumstances of the ease may require, of any of the following questions
or matters

3 1

The administration of the estate of the deceased;

The administration of the trust;

Any question affecting the rights or interests of the person claiming
itee, next of kin, or heiratlaw, or

to be creditor, devisee,
cestui que trust;

. The ascertainment of any class of ereditors, legatees, devisees, next
of kin, or others:

. The furnishing and vouching of any particular account hy execntors,
administrators or trustees;

. The payment into Court of any money in the hands of the exeentors,
administrators or fruste

7. Directing the executors, administrators or trustees te do or abstain
from doing any particular act in their character as executors, ad
ministrators or trustees;

. The approval of any sale, purchase, compromise or other transaction;

®
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The motion was refused.

A. D. Dickson, for applicant

Wersorg, C.J.:—It appears by the material on which this
application is based that the deccased Phillip Materi, who died
on the 30th January, 1904, mortgaged the quarter section to
the Home Investment and Savings Association on the 2nd
March, 1903, to secure %600, Materi made a will dated 19th
December, 1903, and appointed his wife, Anna, his son Jacob,
and the above-named Anton Deis, executrix and executors there-
of. This will was proved on the 16th March, 1904, and letters
testamentary issued to the three persons named above. The
mortgagee pressing for the money, the executrix and executors
borrowed %900 from one John Fetseh, to pay the company, and
executed a mortgage to Fetsch upon the same land on the 13th
June, 1908, The deceased left to each of his sons, Jacob, Anton
and George, a separate portion of his real estate, charged with
certain payments in each case in favour of three daughters. He
devised to his son George, the north half of section 24 (on the
west half of which, namely the north-west quarter of the whole
section, was the mortgage in question) charged with the sum of
six hundred dollars to be divided equally share and share alike
between his three daughters Odelia, Josephina and Letwina
Anna Materi, the exeeutrix, died on the 19th August, 1909, and
the executor, Jacob Materi, has left this country and is supposed
to be residing at Wales, in North Dakota. The affidavit states
that the shares of the adult heirs of the deceased have been
transferred and conveyed to them respectively, and that the
only persons who now have any interest in the estate are the
two infant children of the deceased. 1t is not disclosed who
these infants are. 1 conjecture they are two of the daughters
named. George took the half section devised to him subject to
the mortgage, and is primarily liable to pay it. I refer to In
re Carley, 18 W.L.R., 695, at p. 698. T am not prepared to say,
however, that the executors would not be authorized to take up
the mortgage in order to protect the interests of the daughters
in respect to the charge on the land in their favour. The diffi

9. The determination of any question arising in the administration of
the estate or trust;

10. An order that no action be brought, or that all actions and pro
ceedings pending against trustees, executors, or
stayed for such period, as to the Court or a Judge may seem neces
sary or expedient, in order that sufficient time be allowed to such
trustee, excentor or administrator for the performance of the trusts
imposed upon him;

Provided, however, that any creditor or other person interested in such
estate may apply, before the expiration of such time, for an order dis
continuing such stay;

Provided that the proceedings under this rule shall not interfere with,
or control, any power or discretion vested in any executor, administrator
or trustee, except so far as such interference or control may necessarily
be involved in the particular relief sought.

nistrators be
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SASK culty 1 have about warranting my considering is that the affi-
1 davit states that the shares of the adult heirs have been trans-

8¢ . :
1912 ferred and conveyed to them. 1 assume, therefore, that George
Materi’s interest in this half section has been transferred to him
ot 'i'm by the executors. If so, they cannot give a mortgage on the
A i

land, and 1 cannot authorize them to do so. Moreover, in any
Wetmore, €0, ¢ase it must be stated who these infants are who have not had
their share of the estate. It will also be a matter for considera-
tion whether, if an authority to mortgage is given, Jacob should
not join in the mortgage. On the present material 1 cannot
order an originating summons.

Motion refused.

B.C. WATTSBURG LUMBER CO. v. COOK LUMBER CO,

British Columbia Court of Appeal, Macdonald, C.J.A., Irving, and
Galliher, JJA. April 2, 1012

I Towace (§T—=1)—LIABILITY OF TUG OWNER NOT ENGAGED IN TOWAGE
April 2 WORK—MOVING BOOM
The owner of a tug not engaged in the towage business, who, by
1 friendly arrangement with a person from whom he had requested
the loan of certain implements use in his business undertakes to
move a hoom for the latter, does not thereby enter into an ordinary
contract of towage by which he is bound to use a tug of sufficient
strength and equipment safely to do the work and to face unfavour-
able weather conditions, and he is not liable for the loss of the boom
throngh the breaking of the tow line in a gale, when using to the best
advantage the equipment he had
[Wattsburg Lumber Co. v. Cook Lumber Co, 16 B.C.R. 154, 17
W.LR. 129, reversed.]

2. Evmexce (§TV R—483) —ADMISSIRILITY OF PLAN OR SKETCH—NEGLI
GENCE-—POSITION OF TUG AND TOW

A plan or
duced to wity

h of the locns in quo will be excluded on being pro-
es being examined as to the position and movements
of a tug and its tow in a negligence action, if the sketch purports to
shew on its face the relative position of the tug and tow at different
points in their course, and such positions are involved in the questions

At issue
[Beamon v, Ellice, 4 Car. & P. 585, applied.]
Statement Arrean hy defendant from judgment of Morrison, J., Watfs-
hurg Lumber Co, v, Cook Lumber (o, 16 B.C.R. 154, 17 W.LL.R
129
The appeal was allowed.
W. A, Macdonald, K.C., for appellant.
S, 8. Taylor, K (., for respondent.

Macdonald, MacooNawp, (L A T think that the fundamental error in
S the reasons for judgment below is to be found in the assnmp-
tion that the defendant entered into the ordinary contract of

towage with the plaintifi, that the contractor was bound to

use a tug of sufficient strength and equipment to safely do

the work and to assume the risk of weather conditions. In my
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view of the ease, what was in the contemplation of hoth parties
was that that tug with its then equipment, and on the morn
ing in question, and under, at least, the partial direction, and
with the assistance of the plaintiff’s servants, was to move the
boom in question. The defendant wished to borrow some
hoom sticks from the plaintiff, and the plaintiff asked the de
fendant to move the boom around to his jack ladder. It was
a friendly arrangement altogether outside the scope of the
business of towage, in which defendant was not engaged. While
1 agree that Yates had authority and did make this arrange-
ment, I do not think that either party had any notion that it
was other than the lending of assistance hy the defendant to
the plaintiff for the mutual benefit of hoth, and with the ap-
pliances that they had at hand. The learned Judge helow
secemed to think that the defendant would be responsible for
anything which happened to the boom between the time he
attached his line to it and its safe arrival at the jack ladder;
that the defendant’s servants had sole control and were respon
sible if they ventured out with it when the weather conditions
were not favourable. I am unable to take this view of the
transaction. I think the defendants could only be held respon
sible for negligenee or unskilf alness in the handling of the
tng where such negligence or unskilfulness caused the loss of
the boom.

Now, it cannot be suggested that there was any negligenee
or unskilfulness up to the time when the plaintiff’s yard fore
man, Williams, and his other employee, Sewell, who were as
sisting in the moving of the hoom, tied it up to what is known
as the first dolphin, and ealled to Captain Johnston of the tug
to let go his line. 1f there any negligenee up to this point,
it was the negligenee of Williams in not fastening the hoom
to the dolphin with a stronger rope or steel cable. On this
point the evidence of West is of importance. But, however
that may be, there is no question that up to this point there
was no negligence or unskilfulness on the part of those handling
the tug. When Williams ealled to the eaptain to let go his
line, and back away, Williams says they were through with the
tug, after that they proposed to guide the boom down with the
rope in the current to its place of destination. The erucial
point of the case, as I view it, turns on whether or not as
Williams and Sewell say the captain of the tug ran his boat over
this line, which fastened the boom to the dolphin, and broke it.
I do not think the defendant ean be held responsible for any-
thing that happened after the breaking of the line because
what the persons in charge of the tug did was done at the
direction of Williams and on account of signals made by the
plaintiff himself. Taking the view I have above expressed,
the plaintiff can only succeed if he has satisfied the Court
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that the rope was broken in the manner Williams and Sewell
say it was. Now, unfortunately, as | think, the learned Judge
makes no finding on this point. Ilis judgment is based upon
entirely different grounds, and such as, with respeet, 1 am
unable to adopt

There is a direct confliect between Williams and Sewell on
the one side and Johnston and E. J. Cook on the other as
to whether or not the tug did, as Willinms and Sewell say, run
over this line and break it.  The only other witness who throws
any light on this erueial point in dispute is C. I Houle, who

wias at the time in plaintiff’s employ, wund was in the neigh

bourhood of the jack ladder where he could see the position
of the boom and the tug at the time in question. His evid
ence, as far as it goes, corroborates that of Johnston and (‘ook.
As | have already said, Williams and Sewell say that the tug
ran over the line instead of backing out and away from the
line. Captain Johnston, who was at the wheel, and Cook who
was handling the tow rope, say that they were never at any
time nearer than about seventy feet of this line. They attribute
the breaking of the line to its insufficiency for the purpose,
having regard to a gale of wind which sprang up shortly be
fore, blowing off-shore, and which put such a strain upon the
rope that it broke and allowed the boom to eseape. [ think
the evidence sufficiently establishes that there was such a gale, in
fact the learned Judge, inferentially, at least, finds so when
he considers that the defendant’s servants in charge of the

tug were reckless and ignorant in going out with the hoom in
such weather

I do not agree that they were reckless in doing this, but 1 ad
vert to this finding as shewing that we may take it as proved
that there was a gale about the time the boom reached the
first dolphin and was tied up with the rope by Williams. Houle's
evidence also in that the tug was never at any time near the
rope in question, and while the learned Judge eriticises this
witness, when giving his evidenee, a perusal of the evidence it
self shews that the learned Judge was under an unfortunate
misapprehension which brought about this eriticism, In view
of the conflict of evidenee it will be useful to look at the eir
cumstances, and endeavour to judge of the probabilities of the
two stories. Williams and Sewell say that the tug was using
its bow line and had no stern line; at all events, none that they
could see. The importance of this, as 1 view it, is that if the tug
were using its bow line, it would be heading towards the rope
in question, and if it kept on going ahead, would come against
the rope, and thus lend colour to the story of these two wit
nesses.  On the other hand, the captain and Cook, who was in
charge of the line with which the work was being done, say
that they were using the stern or tow line, and heading the
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other way. The evidence on this point is not very definite on
either side; we should have been much assisted had the evid
ence clearly shewn in which direction the tug “*was rolling ™’
the boom, there is some evidence, but it is vague. IHowever,
it is not probable, in faet it is highly improbable, that those in
charge of the boat, knowing that the boom was fastened to
the dolphin by the line in question, and the importance of
that, and that the line was some distance above the water,
plainly in view should run the tug over it. It is much more
likely that the story of Johnston, Cook and Iloule is correct

I have already adverted to West's evidence,  West says
that the line used to fasten the boom to the dolphin should have
been a steel cable. He was an experienced man, not only on
the lake, but at this very s he never used a rope
alone, but always a eable or both. It is also to be noted that
both Williams and Sewell attempt to minimise the faet that
a strong wind was blowing, The impression they try to
ereate is that there was no wind of any consequence at all.
In the absence thercfore of a finding by the learned Judge, and
it appearing that he had not direeted his mind to this phase
of the question, the onus which was upon the plaintiff, if my
view of the arrangements under which the boom was to be

place, and sa)

moved is right, to prove negligence or unskilfulness, 1 think the
plaintiff has not made out his case.

It was objected by the appellant that a sketeh of the local-
ity purporting to shew the boom at different points in its
course, and the position of the tug, and the relation of the
boom to the dolphin, and other matters of that kind, ought not
to have been admitted: and Beamon v. Ellice (1831), 4 Car, &
P, 585, was cited to us as authority against its admission. |
agree that the sketeh was inadmissible, but in view of the con
clusion to which I have come this ceases to be of importance,

I would allow the appeal, and dismiss the action.

IgvinG, J.A.:—The point in dispute was the defendants’
negligence in breaking the plaintiffs’ rope, or was the rope
broken owing to the wind, or other causes

There were four witnesses who were in a position to testify
as to the proximity of the boat to the rope, namely, Williams,
the defendants’ foreman, and Sewell, his assistant, for the
plaintiff ; and Johnston, the master of the tug, and Cook

The learned Judge took the view that Johnston was reck-
less or incompetent, and basing his opinion on Johnston’s con-
dition at the trial, suggested that possibly Johnston was drunk.
Now, there was no su tior ‘o or by any of the witnes:
that Johnston on that day ha en drinking, or exhibited any
recklessness,

The result was that having discounted Johnston'’s evid
ence in this way, he found in favour of the plaintifi’’s contention,
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Now, in connection with the weight to be attached to the
cause of the breaking of the rope, must be considered the evid-
ence of Houle, but the learned Judge misunderstood what Houle
had said, and in that way he rejected his testimony. The total
result, in my opinion, brought about a mistrial.
I would order a new trial.

Gavumier, J.A - —Whether the finding of the learned trial
Judge that the moving of the logs was the consideration for
the loan of the boom sticks and chains is borne out by the evid-
ence may be doubtful, in any event the defendants under-
took to move them, and would be required to use such care
and skill in so doing as a man would use in carrying on the
operation in his own business.

Be that as it may, the whole case, in my opinion, narrows
down to the manner in which the rope was broken which allowed
the logs to drift away from the dolphin to which they were
moored.,

Williams, the plaintiff’’s witnes: s when the tug brought
the boom of logs round and he fastened them with the rope
to the dolphin, they were through with the tug, anrd he gave
orders to the eaptain to throw off his line and back away.

If as Williams and Sewell swear on behalf of the plain-
tiff, that the tug instead of backing out, steamed forward over
the rope and broke it, then the defendants would be liable,
but if, on the other hand, as Cook and Johnston on behalf of
the defendants assert, the tug did not steam towards, but away
from the rope, and was at no time near it, and it was the foree
of a high wind which had arisen, and the current bringing
such a severe strain upon the rope that it broke, then the de
fendants eould not be held liable on the plaintiff’s own admis-
sion that their work was done when the logs were moored to the
dolphin,

I have read the learned trial Judge's judgment carefully
to see if he had made any finding on this point, but I am un-
able to find that he direeted his mind to it.  Had he done so, |
should have felt the greatest hesitation in interfering with
that finding, but as he has not, it devolves upon us to con
sider and weigh that evidence without the advantage of seeing
the witnesses in the box.

I think the preponderance of evidence is that there was a
considerable squall at that point at the time in question. 1 at-
tach considerable importanee to the evidence of young West,
He was born and raised on the lake, and has been working on
boats on it ever since he left school, and knows the loecality
thoroughly, and the conditions attaching to winds there. That
is a feature to be taken into consideration in determining the
probability as to which story is true.
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Two other features seems to me to weaken the probability
of the truth of the plaintiff’s version,

One is that it seems unaccountable that the captain of a
boat would deliberately steam up against or upon a taut rope
which was the only thing holding the logs in place when the
course was clear for him to pull out without going near the
rope; and the other is, how he would get the tug over this
taut rope—he might break it by running against it, but both
plaintiff’'s witnesses swear he ran over it,

The trial Judge makes reference to the condition of Captain
Jolmston at the trial, but there is no suggestion by the plaintiff
f anything of that nature on the day in question.

It is not an easy task to decide where there is a conflict of
evidence such as here without an opportunity of seeing the
witnesses, but I do not think any useful purpose would be
served by sending the ease back for a new trial

Considering the evidenee in all its aspeets, and the condi
tions us they existed at the time, my conclusion is that the
plaintiff’s version of the breaking of the rope is not the rea
sonable one,

As to what took place afterwards in trying to shove the
boom across to the bay after it had broken loose, I do not con
sider it, for what was done was, 1 think, at the instance of and
under the directions of the plaintiff, and against what the cap-
tain of the boat considered the best methods to pursue.

Mr. Macdonald, counsel for the defendants, raised a point
as to the admissibility of a plan or sketeh, and I quite agree
with his contention that it should not have been admitted

I would allow the appeal.

Appeal allowed

Annotation—Towage (§1--1)- Duties and liabilities of tug owner.

The ordinary contract of towage has been defined to be aid in the

propulsion of one vessel by the employn

of another vessel having
within her the motive power which is used to expedite the voyage of the
first mentioned vessel which requires the aceeleration of her prog
through the water: The “Princess Alice,” 3 W. Rob. 138, An amplified

illustration of this definition s given in The “Mervimae,” 2 Sawy

where it was stated that the contract to tow a barge, and her cargo. is one
in the line of carriage, or transportation for compensation; and is there
fore a bailment of the Kkind denominated locatio operis  mercium
vehendarum, in which the master of the tug is bailee, and responsible for
ordinary skill and diligence; and that the tug is responsible for the
navigation of both vessels; and her duties as tower are those of an
ordinary earrier for hire; just as if she had the tow on her deek instead of
astern at the end of the tow-line, And so when a tug negligently places

a tow in peril, and she is thereby lost or damaged, it is no excuse on the

part of the tug to allege that the tow might have been saved from such
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Annotation (continued)—Towage (§1—1)—Duties and liabilities of tug
owner,

loss or damage but for a mistake of, or want of skill in, the erew of the
tow: The Montreal Transportation Company v. The Ship “Buckeye State,”
12 Can. Exch, R. 419

tug engages to tow a ves it is her duty to use due diligence
and care in regard to it; and if the vessel suffers or is damaged in conse-

quence of neglig

* on the part of the tug, the tug will be liable. On the

other hand, it is also the duty of the vessel being towed to use care and
diligence and if the tug is injured in consequence of the negligence of the
vessel, the vessel itself will be liable to the tug: Read v. The Tug “Lillie,”
11 Can, Exch, R, 274

When a boat engages to tow a vessel for a remuneration the legal
prineiple to be applied is that such boat will use its best endeavours for
that purpose and will bring to the task competent skill and such a crew
and equipment as are reasonably to be expected in boats of such class,
but there is no warranty that the towing will be done under all eircum
stances and at all hazards: The “William,” 4 Que, LR, 306

When a contract of tow is made, the law implies an engagement
that each vessel, tug and tow, will perform its duty in completing it; that
proper skill and diligence will be used on board of each; and that neither
ssury risk to the other,
If, in the

ent happen

vessel, by neglect or misconduct, will ereate unnec

or increase any risk incidental to the serviee undertaken

course of the performance of this contract, any inevitable ae
to the one, without any default on the part of the other, no cause of

action will arise; such an accident is one of the nece v risks of the

engagement to which each party is subject, and creates no liability on

the part of the other. 1f, on the other hand, the wrongful act of either

o m any, damage to the other, such wrongiul act cre

)

tes a responsibility

imve not, by any misconduct
or unskilfulness on her part, contributed to the accident: Bland v. Ross
14 Moore PO, 210, sub nwom, The “Julia,” Lush. 231.

When a tuyg

one point to another, she does not warrant that she will be able to do <o

on the party committing it, if the sufferer

ow a vessel for a certain remuneration from

gages to

and will do so under all cirenmstances and at all hazards; but she does

engage that she will use her best endeavours for that purpose, and will

o the task competent skill, and such a erew, tackle, and equipments
as are reasonably to be expected in a vessel of her class, She may he
prevented from fulfilling her contract by vis major, by accidor's which were
not contemplated and which may render the fulfilment of her contract
impossible; and in such case, by the general rule of law, she is relioved
ws not become yelieved from her obliga

from her obligations. But she

tions becanse unforeseen difficulties occur in the completion of her task
because the performance of the task is interrupted, or cannot be completed
in the mode in which it was originally intended, as by the breaking of the
ship's hawser. But if in the discharge of this task, by sudden violence of
wind or waves, or other accidents, the ship in tow is placed in danger. and
the towing-vessel incurs risks and performs duties which were not within
the
tion for additional services if the ship be saved, and may claim as a

of her original engagement, she is entitled to litional remunera

salvor instead of being restricted to the sum stipulated to be paid for mere
towage: Ward v. W'Corkill, 15 Moore P.C.C. 133, at p. 153, sub nom, The
“Minnchaha,” Tush, 335,
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Annotation (continued)-—Towage (§1--1)—Duties and liabilities of tug
owner.

In a contract of towage th

owners of the tug mnst be taken to have
contracted that the tug should be eflicient, and that her erew, tackle, and

equipment should be equal t

the work to be accomplished in weather and
mable skill, eare,

energy, and diligence should be exercised in the accomplishment of the

umstances reasonably t cted

ind that re

work. On the other hand, they do not warrant that the work will be done
under all eirenmstances and at all hazards, and the failure to accomplish
it will be excused if due to vis major or to accidents not eontemplated. and
which rendered the doing of the work impossible: The “Warechal Suchet,”
[1911] P. 1, at p. 12

In The “West Cock™ (1011, P. 208, Farwell, L.I, at p

that the rule stated by Lindley, J.. as to a contract of carria

, declared

in Hyman

v. Nwe, 6 QRD. 685, at p. 687, was applicable to a contract of towage

ind procecded to quote such rule by altering it =0 as to apply

tug
owner: His duty is to supply a tug as fit for the purpose for which it is

ws care and skill can make it, and if while the tug is being properly

for such purpose it breaks down it becomes encumbent upon the
person who has let it out to shew that the breakdown was in the proper
sense  of the word an accident not
)

preventable by any care or skill, and

as between him and the hirer the risk of de

s in the tug, so far as ear
ind skill ean avoid them, onght to be rown on the owner of the tug
For all purposes of their joint navigation, a tug and tow are one ship
in contemplation of law: The “Niobe,” [1801] AU 101, ecg., for the
purposes of the regulations: The “Cleadon” (1860), 14 Moo, P.C. 92, 07
15 E.R. 240, though there are exceptions: The “Lord Bangor,” [1806] P

28, e.0., not stopping at onece under art, 18. The tug is in the service of the

tow; and the tow

answerable for the negligence of her servant, and
i« for some purposes identified with her: The “American™ v. The “Syria”
(I1874), L.LR. 6 P.C. 127; The “Englishman and Australia,” [1804]) P, 230
245, The tug may, besides supplying the motive power, also direet the

course, if no directions are given by the tow; but generally the tug, though

it is the motive power, is under the control of the master or pilot of the
. LLR. 5 P.C. 313; The “lIsca”

(1886), 12 P.D. 34. Under an ordinary towage contract, the tow is therefore

tow: Smith v. 8t. Lawrence T. Co. (]

liable to third parties for damage caunsed by the defective equipment of
the tug: The “Belgic” (1875), 2 P.D. 57, or its wrongful act, unless done so
suddenly that the tow cannot control it: The “Niobe” (1888), 13 P.D. 55
But if the tug is the governing as well as the motive power, the tow is
not liable: The “American” v. The “Syria” (1874), L.R. 6 P.C. 127; The
“Stormoock™ (1885), 5 Asp. 470; The “Quickstep” (1890), 15 P.D. 196, But
in all such cases the real question is whether or not the relation of master
and servant exists between the owners of the tow and the persons in
charge of the navigation of the tug. Unless that relation exists, considera
tions of expediency cannot avail to impose liability on the owners of the
tow: Butt, J.,, The “Quickstep,” ubi. cit. sup., at p. 199. Though the tug
is generally the servant of the tow, yet the tow can recover against the
tug what she has had to pay for her negiigence: The “Stormeock,” ubi,
oit. sup., at p. 472, In every contract of towage there is an implied obli
gation that the tug shall be efficient and fully equipped for the service
The “Undaunted” (1886), 11 P.D. 46. The tug is bound to use proper
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Annotation (continued)- Towage (§1--1) Duties and liabilities of tug
owner,

skill and diligence, and is liable for damage done by her wrongful act or
default, unless the towage contract exempts her from liability: 7The
“United Service” (1883), 8 P.D. 56 and 9 ibid. 3; and a provision in the con-
tract that the tug owners will not be responsible for the default of the
master (ibid.) or that the master and crew of the tug become for the
time being the servants of the tow: The “Ratata,” [1897] P. 118, will not
release the tug owners from this obligation: 14 Encye. Laws of England,
143, 144,

Although the policy of the law has not imposed on owners of boats

engaged in the business of towage the obligations resting upon a common
earrier, it does require in the management of such boats the exercise of
T

onable care, caution, and maritime skill, and if these are neglected by
those in charge of a towing boat and disaster occurs, its owner is liable
for the consequences: The Steamer “Syracuse,” 12 Wall, (US.) 167,

A tug is not a common ecarrier and the law of that relation has no
application to a contract of towage. Such a vessel is not an insurer. The
highest possible skill and care are not required of her. She is bound, how-
ever, to bring to the performance of the duty she assumes reasonable skill
and care and to exercise them in everything relating to the work until it
is accomplished. The want of such skill or eare in such s
fault and the offender is liable to the extent of the full ¥
consequences: The “Margaret,” 94 US, 404,

A tug is neither a common earrier nor an insurer, and hence the highest

s is a4 gross

asure of the

possible degree of skill and care is not required of her. On the contrary,
the owners of a tug are mer

¢ bailees for hire, and, as such, are bound to

exe

cise reasonable skill, care, and diligence in everything relating to the
work until it is accomplished; that degree of caution and skill which pru-
dent navigators usually employ in similar serviees. A tug owner impliedly
undertakes to furnish a seaworthy vessel, of sufficient capacity and power,
and properly equipped with the necessary fitting and appliances including
a proper supply of coal. The tug must also be provided with a sufficient
and competent crew, familiar with the channel, its shoals and currents,
the state of the tides, the proper time of entering upon the service, and,
generally, all conditions which are essential to the safe performance of
the undertaking. If the tug is derelict in any of these respects, it is sub
ject to an imputation of negligence, and liable for any resulting damage:
38 Cye. 5 H67.

The following cases offer some illustrations of the application by the
Canadian Courts of the principles of law above discussed, to contracts of
towage, us far as the parties thereto are themselves concerned.

A towage company entered into a contract to tow a ship to a certain
place where the ship was to be loaded with coal, and, when so loaded, to
tow her back to sea, and after the ship was towed to such place and
loaded, a tug sent by the agent of the towing company to complete the
contract did not have suflicient power to tow the ship, and the agent
supplemented that power by sending another towing steamer, belonging to
another company, to assist in the towing, and the two tugs together pro-
ceeded to tow the ship out to sea, and while being so towed the ship was
dragged on a reef and became a complete wreck. The ship had no pilot
and those abroad her were strangers to the coast as those in charge of

.
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Annotation (continued)--Towage (§1-—1)- Duties and liabilities of tug
owner,

th» tugs knew. The night of the accident was light and clear, the tugs

did not steer according to the course preseribed by the charts and sailing

directions, and there were, on the other side of the course they were steer

ing, many miles of open sea, free from all danger of navigation, and the

ship was lost at a spot plainly indicated by the sailing directions, al

though there was evidence that the reef was unkunown, It was held, in an

action for damages for negligently towing the ship and so causing her

destruction, that, as the tugs had not observed those proper and reasonable

precantions in adopting and keeping the courses to be steered which a pru
dent navigator would have observed, and as the accident was the result
of their omission to do so, the owners of the tugs were jointly and sev
erally liable: Sewell v, British Columbia Towing and Transportation Co
9 Can, S.C.R. 527, In reply to the contention that as the owners of the
assisting tug had no contract with the plaintitfs the latter had no right of
action against them, Mr, Justice Strong, said, that, while it was true
there was no privity of contract between them, yet the law implied a “duty,
in cases like the present, on the part of those who undertake to perform ser
v

s which involves the personal property of others being placed in their
power and control, that they will execute their employment with due and
reasonable care”

I'he owners of a barge brought an action in personam against . tow
ing company for a breach of a contract of towage resulting in damage to
the barge, and, in the same action, brought proceedings in rem for the same
damage aguinst the tug which did the towing, though it did not belong to
the towage company but to a third person from whom the towing company
secured it for the purpose of towing the plaintifl’s barge. The trial Judge
le,
upon the principle that, if the tow was damaged by the unskilful naviga

gave judgment against the tug, but held the towing company not |

tion of the tug, the relation between tug and tow “is not so much that
which arises directly from the contract of towage, but rather that which

iuposes a duty on the part of the tug towards the barge, to observe such
ordinary care and <kill in the towage as will avoid any possible damage
or injury:" The Montreal Transportation Company, Limited v. The Ship
“Buckeye State,” 12 Can. Ex, Rep. 419. Upon appeal Mr, Justice Cassels
d

causes of action—in personam and in rem—against separate parties, and

lared that he could find no authority justifying the joinder of the two

enunciated what he deemed the true rule in the following language: “The
proper course would have been to complete the proceedings in rem, and if
it appeared that the amount of the damages fixed by the judgment was
not recovered : gainst the tug, then, if the Montreal Transportation Com-

pany are legaliy liable, an action against them in personam for the differ-

ence between the amount recovered, and the damages as fixed by the judg-
ment,” citing The “Ovient,” LR, 3 P.C. 696, and The “Zephyr,” 11 LT.
351, The learned justice in conclusion stated that, inasmuch as no ob-
je
to give eflect to any objection on that ground at the stage the case had

tion was taken to the misjoinder of the parties, it would be unjust

then reached, but that the judgment should be varied by r

erving, among
other things, the question of the liability of the towing company until it
could be ascertained if the amount of the damages fixed by the judgment

2—4 D.L.R.
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Annotation (confinued) Towage (§1--1) -Duties and liabilities of tug
owner.

hetow had heen realized against the tug: The Atlantic Coast Steamship
Company . The Montreal Transportation Company, 12 Can. Ex. R. 429,
A tug was held liable for an injury to her tow resulting from the lat-

ter's collision with another vessel, where it appeared that after the tug

had gone ahead at full speed in accordance with the order of the master
of the tow, it was discovered on the tug that the tow line had been thrown
over the wrong post and the tug slackened her speed to allow it to be
shifted to the right one, resulting in the tow drifting against another
vessel, causing the damage for which the suit was brought: The “William,”
1 Que. LR, 306,

Under a contract to tow a barque to Quebee thence to Montreal and
hack to Quebee the owners of the tug after having towed the barque to
Montreal eannot transfer the contract to another person to complete it
with an inferior tug which was also to tow two additional tugs, the tug
being inadequate for the work: The “Euelid,” 7 Que. L.R. 351,

It is no defence to an action for failure to perform a towage contract
that the tow boat was frozen in the ice where the defendant fails to shew
that his hoat was at the time necessarily at the place where it was frozen
in: Dorland v. Bonter, 5 U.C.Q.B. 583.

Recovery was denied the owners of a vessel in an action by them for
damages thereto happening while the defendants were towing it, where it
appeared that while proceeding up a river the pilot of the tug and the
pilot of the tow were both at fault in not having the course changed after
a certain point in the river, though the pilot of the tow afterwards dis-
covered the mistake and gave notice to the tug to change the course by
executing the proper maneuvre for that purpose, but not until it was too
late to avoid an accident which befell the tow: The “Prince Arthur” v, The
“Florence,” 5 Can. Exch. R. 218,

The owners of a tug cannot be held liable for injury to the tow due
to an inevitable accident such as being struck by a sudden squall of wind
and forced on shore while making a sudden turn at a erivieal point in a
river, where the tug was sufliciently powerful for the work and was pro-
perly managed by its erew: Atwood v. Cann, 40 NS.R. 136,

A tug has the right to east off her tow, in stress of weather, when,
owing 1o the strength of the wind and the amount of sail the tow was

earrying, it was overrnnning the tug which was therefore in danger of
being run into and damaged by the tow, and in such case the tug will not
resulting from a subsequent collision of the tow with
itions required of a ship in full sail not
v, The “Challenger,” 14 Que.

be liable for damag
another vessel, all the pre
having been taken by the tow: The “Loyal”
L.R. 135.

Where a mate of a ship, which, though . was in a very leaky
condition from having been stranded, contracted, without authority, with
the master of a tug to have the ship towed, under a belief on the latter's
part that the mate was the captain of the ship, and the mate by his eon-
duet confirmed this belief, and also concealed the dangerous condition of
the ship from the tug master when the contract of towage was made, the
agreement is void and the owner of the tug is entitled to recover on a
quantum meruit for extraordinary towage services: Dunsmuir v. The
“Harold,” 4 Can. Exch. R, 222,

g
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Annotation (continned)--Towage (§1- 1) Duties and liabilities of tug
owner.

It was held to be a towage and not a sulvage service where it appeared

it the request of the captain of a steam vessel whose fires had been

extinguished for the purpose of permitting her eng r to make repairs

to her boiler, made necessary by a slight accident thereto, such vessel was

towed by another ship for a period of thirty hours in the ordinary channel
of navigation at a time whep the sea was calm and the weather fine, and
neither ship was in a position of danger at any time during the towing,
and the crew of the towing vessel were at no time in peril by reason of the
services rendered the disabled ship: Hine v, The “Thomas J. Scully,” 6
Can, Exch, R. 318

Attention should be called to a case in which recovery was allowed
in the Yukon 1

being towed by a steamer which had been previously eng

ritorial Court for the loss of a scow and its cargo while

1l in carrying

gers and freight, on the ground that the defendants were common

passeng

carriers It appeared that when the contract of towage was entered into
the steamer was on her way to winter quarters in charge of the engineer
and that he, at the request of the owners of the scow, agreed to tow it

for a specified remuneration.  Upon appe

L, a new trial was granted be
cause, apparently, of the lack of evidence of the authority of the engineer
to enter into tow
8 B.C.R. 33

ontracts: Courtenay v, Canadian Development Co,,

SARNIA GAS AND ELECTRIC LIGHT CO. v. SARNIA
Ontario High Court, Riddell, .J June 20, 1012

1. EMINENT DOMAIN §1 D52 RIGHT OF MUNICIPALITIES 10 FXPRO
PRIATE FLECTRIC LIGHT AND GAS works—Tur Musicrear Acer

Ox7 1903, 3 Eow. VIL cn. 19
The Municipal Aet of 1903, 3 Edw. VIL eh. 19, as amended, does

not eonfer power upon

town to acquire t invitum™ by arbitration

nd expropriation proe

ings o plant owned by a company organized

for the manufacture 1« and electricity

2. Costs (8§ 1-—190 COSTS OF A SPECIAL STATED CASE FOR OPINION
DISProsanL ny JUDGE STATING THE CAS)
Where a special ease is stated in a pending action for the opinion
of the Court on a preliminary question of law arising therein, the
dis
wised of by the judgment in the action and not at the hearing of the

practice is for the costs of the hearing of the special case to

stated ease unless the question of costs was also veferred and ordered

to be then disposed of
[Atty.tien, v, Toronto General Trusts Corporation (1903, 5 O LR
607, referred to.]

\ sPECIAL ease stated for the opinion of the Conrt

The plaintiffs had their origin in a deelaration filed in 1878,
under R.S.0. 1877 ¢h. 157, whereby they became, under sec. 5, a
body ecorporate for twenty years, under the name of ‘‘The
Sarnia Gas Company,’” with the ohjeet of supplying the town of
Sarnia and its suburbs with gas for illuminating purposes. In
that year a by-law was passed by the town council permitting
the company to lay down pipes, ete

19
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Riddell, J,

DominioN Law Rerorrs, (4 DLR.

In 1880, there was a further incorporation for fifty years,
under the same Act.  Under that the company were to supply
electricity, as well as gas,

Various by-laws and statutes affecting the ecompany were
passed in snecessive years. See 44 Viet. ch. 56; 53 Viet. eh, 133;
2 Edw. VIL ch. 61; 3 Edw. VIL ch. 80,

The statute 56 Viet. eh, 105 changed the name of the com-
pany to “‘The Sarnia Gas and Electric Light Company.”

Sinee the 1st January, 1910, the plaintif's had wholly dis-
continued the manufacture and supply of artificial gas.

On the 21st August, 1911, a hy-law was passed by the town
council providing that $125,000 should be offered to the plain-
tiffs for their works and property. The plaintiffs refused this;
and proceedings were taken for an arbitration. The plaintiffs
objected to the proceedings; and brought this action on the 2nd
February, 1912. The case was stated in the action.

L. F. Hellmuth, K.C., W..J. Hanna, K.C., and R. V. Le¢ Sueur,
for the plaintiffs,

E. F. B. Johnston, K.C., and J. Cowan, K.C., for the de-
fendants.

RmpeLy, J. (after setting out the facts and referring to the
statutes and hy-laws) :—The main question in the case is,
whether, even if an award be made under the Municipal Aect,
the town can take the works and property of the company. If
this be answered in the negative, there is, 1 am informed, no
need of answering any further.

The statute is the Municipal Act of 1903, 3 Edw. VIL ch.
19, see, 566, sub-secs. 3, 4. Before the Aet of 1899, 2 Viet. (2)
ch. 26, see. 35, which introduced what are known as the Conmee
clauses, sec. 566, sub-sec. 4, read thus: ‘““‘By the councils of
cities and towns:—For constructing gas and water works and
for levying an annual special rate to defray the yearly interest
of the expenditure therefor, and to form an equal yearly sinking
fund and for the payment of the prineipal within a time not ex-
ceeding 30 years, nor less than 5 years.”” Then followed (a),
providing for the case of a water company incorporated for the
municipality, and that the council should not levy water rates
before offering the company a price for the works or stock of
the company, ete., ete, No provision was made for the case of
a gas company.

This was amended by 62 Viet. (2) ch. 26, see. 35, giving
power to cities, towns, and villages to construct gas, eleetrie
light, or water works, and introducing the provision, “‘in case
there is any gas, electric light or water company incorporated
for or in the municipality,”” to be fonnd in the present Act. The
amendments of 63 Viet. ch. 33, see. 29, and 2 Edw. VIL ch. 29,
see. 20, T pass over as immaterial on the present inquiry.
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The defendants contend that they have the power under the
statute, upon an arbitration being had and the price paid or
secured, to take the works and property of the company, or
some of it: see, 566, sub-secs. 4, (ad).

It is argued for the plaintiff's that they are not “‘a gas, elee-
tric light, or water company incorporated for or in the muni-
cipality.” I do not proceed upon that ground, but upon the
reneral ground that nowhere is there given to the municipality a
right of expropriation.

From personal knowledge, I am able to say that the inten-
tion, of some at least of those who were interested in the passing
of the Aet of 1899, was solely to protect the companies already in
operation. It was thought unjust for a municipality to start
opposition with a private enterprise without giving the owners
of the enterprise an opportunity of *‘getting from under’’—it
was not intended to give the municipalities a power they had not
theretofore had of taking away the business direetly from its
owners.

Of course we must determine the meaning of the legislation
not by what we may know or surmise of the meaning and inten
tion of the legislators, or some of them, but by the meaning of
the language which is employed.

It is trite law that a man’s property is not to be taken from
him except by legislation of the clearest character. Ilere there
is no legislation at all indicating that the property can be taken
in invitum.  What is provided for is, that no rate shall be
struck or works constructed by the municipality until the com-
pany has had a chance of getting out with 10 per cent. over and
above the value of their works and property as they stand: sec
566, sub-sees. 4, (a2), (ad).

The only penalty upon the company is, that the municipality
may go on and run a competing business—if the shareholders
are ratepayers, they will know that their own money is being
used to build up a business competitor,

The question of costs is not left to me, and the practice is not
for the Judge hearing the ‘‘special case’’ to decide as to eosts—
that may be done in the action: Attorney-General v. Toronto
General Trusts Corporation (1903), 5 O.L.R. 607.

I do not deal with the many other questions raised, more or
less interesting, more or less important.

Judgment accordingly
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DOMINION Law Rerorrs,

ONTARIO ASPHALT BLOCK CO. v. COOK.
Ontarvio High Court, Middleton, J. May 18, 1912,
Lo Evinexcr (811 L—=343)—PAYMENT A8 A DEFENCE,

The fact of payment is and always has been a matter of defence,
the onus of proving which is upon the defendant.

2. Evipexcr (8§11 L—351)—0xUS OF PROVING RECEIPT OF MONEY OTHER
THAN THAT ACCOUNTED FOR.

Apart from the fact that no surcharge was filed by the defendant as
the Rules require, the onus rests upon him of shewing that the plain
tifl, a ereditor, who was suing for a balance due him, and who had
taken over and completed a contract the defendant had with a town,
had received more money therefrom than he had accounted for.

AN appeal by the defendants from the report of the Master at
Welland, to whom, by the judgment of Larcurokp, J., it was
referred to ascertain the state of gecounts between the plaintiffs
and the defendant B. A. Cook, and between the plaintiffs and
the firm of Langley & Cook or the agent or agents of that
firm.

The appeal was dismissed.

F. W. Griffiths, for the defendants.

D. L. McCarthy, K.C., for the plaintiffs,

MippLETON, J. :—The pleadings are not before me; but from
what was said, I infer that the action is one to set aside certain
conveyances; and the reference is for the purpose of ascertain-
ing whether the plaintifis were ereditors, and, if so, the amount
of the indebtedness to them. The judgment provides that the
trial shall stand adjourned until after the Master shall have
made his report.

Pursuant to this judgment, the partics went before the
Master, and the plaintifis brought in accounts based upon a
number of different transactions or contracts, in pursuance
of which they had supplied the firm of Langley & Cook with
asphalt block and other materials, an’ giving eredit for various
sums of money received on account. ese accounts were veri-
fied by the affidavit of one Carson, ti wkkeeper in charge of
the plaintiffs’ accounts during the period in question. Mr.
(arson was not cross-examined upon this affidavit, and no sur-
charge or falsification was filed; but a document called *‘requi-
sitions”’ appears to have been lodged in the Master’s office.
This document states shortly the defendants’ contention with
respect to the different accounts. With reference to one par-
tieular section of the account—that called ‘‘St. Boniface Job
No. 2"'—the statement is made that the plaintiffs themselves
took over and completed this contract, and must give a complete
account of all moneys received and paid out in connection
therewith.

Upon return of an appointment to hear and determine, Mr.
Fleming, the secretary-treasurer of the company, was called,

o R St e
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and it was made to appear that a judgment had been recovered
against Langley & Cook for some $4,000; and it was stated that
this covered only a portion of the indebtedness, which, as shewn
by the accounts, amounted to upwards of 000, Counsel for
the defendants then ero imined Mr, Fleming at length
as to different items in the account; and, when the St. Boniface
transaction was reached, it appeared that an assignment had
been made by Langley & Cook to the plaintiffs of the money

supposed to be due by the Corporation of the Town of St H..nl
face, and that the work done by Langley & Cook was not in
accordance with the contract, and that the plaintifis had re

ceived from the town corporation as much as they were willing
to pay, and had given eredit for the money received. One
Bangham, formerly in the employ of the plaintiff's, had assisted
Langley & Cook in the second contract with the municipality,
and appears to have had some contractual relationship with
Langley & Cook: but the agreement between him and that
firm was not fled

After this, Carson, the bookkeeper, was sent to St. Boni
face to assist in the adjustment of the accounts with the muni
cipality. The town corporation required wages to be paid, as
Langley & Cook had deserted the contract; and it is suggested
that part of the moneys passed through Carson’s hands. It is
not made to appear that he received any more money than was
transmitted to the plaintiff's, for which eredit is given. It is
suggested that the municipal accounts shew that he received
some larger amount, and out of it paid the wages: but this is
mere suggestion; it is not proved. See questions 154 to 157.
(Carson is not now available, and the defendants have tendered
no evidence whatever going to shew that Carson received a

dollar more than the amount for which eredit is given.

The defendants now appeal upon several grounds, but be-
fore me only argued that relating to the moneys said to have
been received and disbursed by Carson; counsel for the defend-
ants stating that the onus was not upon him to attack the
account

In this I think he is entirely in error. I think that the onus
is upon him to shew that the plaintiffs have received more than
the amounts for which eredit has heen given. Payment is and
always has been a defence; and the onus is upon the defend-
ants; this quite apart from the fact that no surcharge has been
filed, as required by the Rules; and possibly, according to striet
practice, this issue was not open before the Master. No applica-
tion is now made for indulgence: the defendants being con-
tent to base the appeal entirely on what they concede to he
their striet rights.

The appeal is dismissed with costs,

Appeal dismisscd
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McLAWS v. WELLBAND.
Wanitoba King's Bench, Prendergast, J. April 1, 1912

Wanitoba Cowrt of Appeal, Howell, CJ M., Richards, Perdue,
Haggart, JJ.A. May 9, 1912,

Cameron, and

1 Sontcrrors (811 B=29) RELATION TO CLIENT—AUTHORITY TO PAY OF)
REGISTERED JUDGMENTS —REIMBURSEMENT
Where the plaintiff was acting as solicitor for the defendant and in

the conrse of doing the latte gal business paid certain registered

judgments against his client, in « l!|~| to enable him to transfer certs

property that he desired to sell, the solicitor is entitled to be reim

bursed for the money paid by him to discharge the judgments on
proof of instruetions to pay the judgments,

Action for reimbursement of money alleged to have been
paid for defendant at his request,

In June, 1908, MecLaws, who was acting solicitor for
T. R. Wellband, paid two judgments, one for $500 and another
for $805, which had been recovered by the Colonial Investment
Company and William Smith against T. R. Wellband, and he
registered discharges of the judgments,

The plaintiff elaimed he made these payments under the im-
plied authority of doing all legal business for the defendant,
and also under a request made in correspondence between the
parties.  Certificates of these judgments had been registered,
and they were paid off so as to enable Wellband to transfer
properties which he desired to do.

Plaintift had received $450 on account of the payments made,
and the defendant denied his liability for the balance on the
ground that the plaintiff had no authority to pay the judgments
m question

A. Elliott, and M. . Macneil, for plaintiff.
. P. Fullerton, K.C., and J. P. Foley, for the defendant.

PRENDERGAST, o Considering the general course of deal
ngs between the parties; the correspondence between them, the
Jdate of the discharges and of the transfer of the Beverley Street
property, 1 have come to the conelusion that there was authority
on the plaintiff’s part to pay the judgments in question.

There will be judgment for plaintiff as claimed, with costs

May 9, 1912, Tue Covrr or Areear dismissed with costs an
ippeal from the above decision

Judgment for plaintiff.
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TOAL v. RYAN.
Ontario High Court, Riddell, J. May 14, 1912,
1. Evinexce (§ITE5—172) ~TESTAM NTARY CAPACITY —STATEMENTS OF
TESTATOR IN HIS LD ETIMY
Statements made by a testator in his lifetime were admitted on the
contest of a will, as they Ix or might hear on the question of his
capacity to make a will and of its due execution.
[Suller v, Naddler, 3 C.RN.S, 87, 99, referred to.]

2 Wines (§ 1 D—36)—DEGREE 0F MENTAL CAPACITY
One who knew and appreciated that he was making a will, t
thereof, the property possessed by him, and how he disposed
well as those who had claims upon him, was competent to make a testa
mentary disposition thereof

, a8

3. Wines (§1 B—26)-~EXECUTION OF WILL—PRESENCE OF PARTIFS—SIGNA
TURE OF ATTESTING WITNESSES

Where a will was drawn according to the suggestions of a testator,
who was mentally competent and not unduly influenced in making it,
and was signed by him in the presence of two witnesses, and by them

sigmed in the presence of the testator and in the presence of each other,
it was legally exeented under Ontario law

1. Cosrs (§ 1=16a)—PLEAS SURBMITTING RIGHTS T COURT-—COSTS AGAINST
UNSUCCESSIUL PLAINTIFE

Where an action for the revoeation of the probate of a will raised the
1
s with the executor filed pleas merely submitting their
rights to the Court, they will properly be refused their costs against
the unsue sful plaintiff if, notwithstanding their formal pleading
they made common canse with the plaintifll at the trial

question of testamentary eapacity and certain of the next of Kin joir

Acmion for a declaration that a will made by Susan Ryan,
deceased, was invalid and for revocation of the letters probate
thereof

The action was dismissed

T. . Meredith, K.C',, for the plaintiffs

E. Mervedith, K.C., and W, K. Meredith, for the defendant
Ryan

N. P. Graydon, for the defendants D. J. Toal and Mrs
Fisher

F. P. Betts, K.C., for the infants

Riovery, Susan Toal had married one Me(',, and he
had left her a farm, ete., when he died in 1885, She married the
defendant Ryan in 1889, In 1910, being then a woman of 58
or 59, and suffering from arterial selerosis, she was, in September
or November, taken violently ill with convulsions. She re
covered, but not completely or lastingly ; and, in July, 1911, took
to her bed. The disease, sclerosis, was, of course, quite inenr
able, as she knew. In September, 1911, her father thought and
said that she should make a will; and Richard Code. an unlicensed
conveyancer (the best friend of the solicitor), was sent for. He
drew up a will, which was signed by Susan Ryan, and was ad-
mitted to probate by the Surrogate Court of the County of Mid
dlesex on the 17th October, 1911
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The father and one of the nephews of the testatrix bring this
action, alleging want of testamentary capacity, undue and
improper influence by William Ryan, the husband, and non
execution in the manner preseribed by law-—and they ask that
the will be declared of none effect and probate revoked

The defendants are the hushand, against whom the attack is
made, and the next of kin, ete., who submit their rights to the
Court (in form), but who really take part with the plaintiff,

The will leaves everything to the husband except small
legacies to certain relatives

No evidence was given of anything approaching undue in
fluence, and that was not pressed in argument. The two matters
are, (1) capacity, and (2) execution,

Much evidence was given of statements made by the de
ceased.  These were objected to, but I admitted them (subjeet
to the ohjection), as they bore or might bear upon the question
of capacity and the factum of the will: Sutton v. Saddler, 3
C.B.N.S. 87, 99,

Whether these statements be admitted or not is, in the pre-
sent case, immaterial. I am perfectly satisfied that the testatrix
was competent to make a will, and so find

And while, on the evidence of Code, it might be doubtful how
far it was established that all due formality was observed in
the making of the will, that doubt is removed by the evidence
of the nurse, Miss Hoy-—whose evidence at the trial is to he fully
eredited. I do not find that any of the witnesses was not trying
to tell the truth: Code was confused and ““mixed’ upon eross
examination; and the plaintiff’s witnesses were anxions and
rather extreme, But Miss Hoy's evidence at the trial was most
satisfactory, notwithstanding the doeument she gave Mrs
Fisher previously

I find that the deceased knew that she was making a will, knew
its effect, and knew what property she had, and how she was
disposing of it, knew those who had elaims on her, and appre
ciated all these. The will was drawn according to her instrue
tions and as she wished it; it was signed by her in the presence
of the two witnesses as her will, and by them in her presence and
in the presence of each other at the same time, ete.; also that
there was no undue influence

All due formalities being observed, the testatrix being eom
petent, and no undue influence being used, the will is valid.

The action will be dismissed with costs payable by the plain
tiff to the defendant Ryan and the Official Guardian. The costs
of the other defendants T do not order to be paid by the plain
tiffs—they are in common case. If the Official Guardian eannot
make his costs out of the plaintiffs, he may receive them from
the legacy to the mother of the infants
Action dismissed.
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LoWies (81 D—36)—MENTAL  CAPACITY—EXECUTION  BY  FEEBLE  OLD
MAN—DPROCEEDINGS IN LUNACY

Where the evidence does not shew that the testator when makir

his will was under any insane delusion nor that he had sueh weakn

ot intelleet amd mental (v as Lo destroy testamentary capacity, the

will should not be refu probate on the wind of incapacity, becans

ator was a feeble old man, 79 years of

v it appears that the te

wits found a few months later to be suffering from senil
and was declared incompetent in lunacy proceedings taken for the

Messes, A, E. McPhillips, K.C., and .. D. Crease, for re
spondents

3 purpose of placing some one in withority to provide necessary vare
4 and nursing for him.
f AN appeal by the plaintiff from the judgment of Clement J,, Statement
r Forman v. Ryan, 19 W.L.R. 212, in an action to establish a will
1 The trial Judge held that the testator was not mentally com
! 1 petent to make a will and dismissed the action
: i The appeal was allowed.
. ; A, E. Bodwell, K.C., for appellant
:

Macponatp, Co) A :—This action was brought to propound  Maedonag
an alleged will made by James Boyd, who died in April, 1910 Gd.a
at the age of about eighty years, leaving an estate then valued
at about $16,000. Probate was resisted on twe grounds, that
the testator lacked mental capacity to make the will, and that
the will was obtained by undue influence by the prineipal bene
ficiary, Mrs, Cook. There is to my mind no evidence at all of

undue influence.  The real issue, therefore, in this appe

S

to the mental condition of the deceased at the time he made the
will in September, 1909, The learned Judge gave very eareful
attention to the case, and came to a conclusion against the sound
= ness of mind of the testator.  As 1 have come to a contrary con
clusion, 1 feel 1T ought to state my reasons.  As the evidenee is
very voluminous I shall not attempt to do more than refer to
what I regard as the most salicot facts
The ease is somewhat complicated by proceedings taken
Iunacy in January, 19100 Two of the most important witnesses
in support of the will were Dr, Nelson, who was the medical
attendant of the testator for at least a year before his death
saw him very frequently indeed, and gave evidence at the trial
that the deceased was sound in mind up to at least December
1909, three months after the making of the will, and the exeeutor
thereof, James Forman. who was his finaneial agent, who dn
the will and was therefore able to speak of the testator’s con
dition at the time of its execution. These witnesses made affi
davits in the lunaey proceedings, which are to some extent at
least in confliet with their evidence at the trial. It therefore
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becomes necessary to consider under what circumstances the
evidence was given in cach case. The lunaey proceedings were
referred to during the argument as **a friendly conspiraey,’” and
I am inclined to think that that term very aptly deseribes them.
It may be useful to state briefly how matters stood when these
proceedings were commenced,

Witnesses on both sides agree that James Boyd was always
miserly and penurious, and as one witness deseribed him *‘can-
tankerous.”  Up to July, 1905, it is not disputed that he was
of sound mind. Ledingham, one of the witnesses against the
will, says that it was in July of that year that he noticed a
change in him, physically and mentally. The illness of 1905,
referred to by the learned Judge, left the deceased physically
more feeble and less active, particularly on his feet, than he had
heen hefore, but he was able to take care of himself, living alone
as he was, and preparing his own meals, until August, 1908,
when he requested Mrs, Ledingham, a next door neighbour, to
bring him his meals. In November of that year, he had another
illness and Dr. Nelson was ealled in to attend him. The prin
cipal trouble was dysentery and a hernia, and the doetor thought
that he was threatened with paralysis. It was about this time
that the heneficiary under his will, Mrs, Cook, first took charge
of him. It was she who called in Dr. Nelson, and attended to
his wants until he had somewhat recovered from the severity
of his disorder in February, 1909. Tu the latter month Boyd
went to live with an old friend, James Smith, no relative of the
family or connection of defendant Smith. e remained at
Smith's house until about 20th March, when he quarrelled with
Smith, apparently because the Smiths had been persistently
urging him to make a will in which I infer they expected to he
beneficiaries. Tle was from there taken to St, Joseph's Hospital,
but either wounld not stay there or the hospital authorities wonld
not keep him. I infer that he made it so unpleasant, and it was
so apparent that he was not an hospital patient in the ordinary
sense, that he was sent away, e was then indueed to enter the
Old Men's Home, but becoming displeased with the manner in
which he was treated, he was sent away. The superintendent of
the institution, very harshly as it seems to me, sent him to the
poliee station to get rid of him. e was then taken home, and
Mrs. Cook undertook the care of him from that time until
November, when she herself was taken ill.  During this period
between March and November, 1909, Mrs. Cook attended him
daily at his own honse, and saw that his wants were supplied ;
and during that time while receiving proper eare and nourish-
ment, he appears to have been in about the eondition of mind
one would expect in a man of his age and feeble physical health.
He conld go about with Mrs. Cook, call on neighbours, chat with
friends, and talk intelligently about municipal politics in which
he had always been very much interested.
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The period of time with which I am principally concerned
is therefore from July, 1908, to Boyd's death in April, 1910. In
the beginning of 1909, Boyd sent for R. T. Elliott, K.C"., for the
purpose of discussing with him his worldly affairs.  Mr. Elliott
had known Boyd about ten years previously, but had forgotten
him.  Boyd, however, remembered Mr, Elliott and remarked
upon the fact that he had grown stouter sinee he had previously
known him. At that time Boyd was ill, but Dr. Nelson says his
mind was quite sound, Mr. Elliott entered into conversation
with him, and found that he wanted to be advised as to the law
governing the disposition of properiy by will. He spoke of hav-
ing relatives in Ireland, but said they were not dependent upon
him. He wanted to know if he could give his property without
recognizing his relatives: he had some notion of giving bequests
to charity, and stated that he wished to remember Mrs. Cook, who
had been very kind to him, and also indieated without mention
ing any names that he might remember the Ledinghams.  Mr
Elliott found him quite intelligent. and could deteet no symp
toms of unsoundness of mind, although he says he relied a good
deal upon the assurance of Boyd’s medieal attendant that he was
in a fit condition mentally and physically to diseuss matters o’
husiness.  Prior to that time Boyd had disenssed making a will
with his old friend Alexander Wilson, whose evidence T shall
refer to more particularly hereafter, and asked Wilson to he
his exeentor.  Wilson says Boyd had told him he had no rela
tives, in fact had insisted on it, and it is suggested to ns that
this was an insane delusion. T think that is met by the evidence
of Mr. Elliott and other witnesses, which shews that he was
under no delusion at all with regard to his relatives, but simply
vished to put them aside. Mr. Elliott was not asked then to
prepare a will, but in April, Boyd went to his office for the
purpose of having his will made. Te said to Mr. Elliott that
he had come to see him again abont the will. and wanted him
to write it.  Of this oceasion Mr, Elliott said in evidence:

He kept strietly to the matter in hand from the talk I had at the
house. He did not vary a hair’s bhreadth. Of course he was sick and

an old man, but he saw what he wanted to do with his property.

On Boyd's instructions Mr. Elliott drew his will giving all
he had to Mrs. Cook. After it was read over to him he said he
would like to take it away and give it further consideration,
which he did. This will was never execented

I would like to remark here that a good deal of argument
was directed to the lack of discussion between Boyd and Mr
Elliott on this oceasion with regard to how he should dispose of
his proper It seems to me that that circumstance was not at
all significant bearing in mind the previous interview and dis
enssion. Tt was in April that this will was deawn by Mr. Elliott,
and nothing more was done by Boyd until September, when he
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went to Mr. Forman, whose firm had attended to Boyd's busi
ness for a number of years, to have his will made. Mr. Forman
questioned him as to what he wished to do with his property.
and to whom he wished to leave it.  Boyd mentioned Mrs. Cook.
He was asked if he had any relatives, and he said that his relatives
were nothing to him. e mentioned his sister.  Mr, Forman
asked him if he would like to leave something to her, and he
agreed” to leave her $1,000,  The will was not drawn on that
day, Boyd saying he was not ready to sign it, but wonld eome
back the next day. He came back, and Mr. Forman says he
further pursued the conversation with him of the day before, and
asked him further if he did not want to leave something to
charity.  He does not remember his answer, but savs he agreed
to leave something to the Protestant Orphans’ Home and the
Jubilee Hospital.  When asked if Boyd himself named these
charities, Mr. Forman said:

[ do know that he mentioned the orphanage in connection with the

late Mr. Taylor, apparently a friend of his,

and it was Boyd himself who named the sum he would give to
his sister.

Mr. Forman had known Boyd for years, and he says he was
not at the time of the exeeution of the will mentally different
from what he had ever been; he was very feeble, physically more
feeble than usual.  Before execnuting the will Boyd went to the
two banks in which liis moneys were deposited, to ascertain the
balanee at his eredit, and after its exeention, but on Forman's
siuggestion, deposited the will with one of his bankers, telling him
what it was and to take good care of it. There is no question
about all this, beeause the bank manager and clerks who gave
him the information were called,

There is considerable other evidence of independent persons
having no interest in the vesnlt to shew that he was quite eapable
of recognizing and talking sensibly with his friends.  In one
case, that of Cameron, whom he had not seen for a number of
vears, in faet, sinee he was a boy, and who had been in the Yukon
for several years, when told who he was, Boyd recolleeted cir
cumstances of the man’s youth elearly and distinetly, spoke of
retting on in the north

his father, and inquired how he was

Some stress was laid upon the fact that small cheques sent
to Boyd by Mr, Forman for rents in the early part of 1909 had
not heen deposited hy him, but kept in his possession, and that
upon Forman ealling his attention to the faet, all cheques were
given back to Forman, and an arrangement made that ehegues
should not he sent thereafter, and that Boyd should get money
from Forman when he wanted it.  This was relied upon as evi
denee that he was unable to teansact his business and look after
his property, but when his physical condition is remembered, 1
do not see that that circumstance is of much importance, A
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man in his condition conld not safely wo about the down-town
streets,

About t e end of November, 1909, Mrs, (‘ook became so ill as
to be unable to attend to Boyd, and Dr, Nelson procured a male
nurse, Orton,  Boyd soon quarvelled with him, and acensed him
of ill-treating him.  While I do not wish to retleet unduly upon
Orton, T think there is some evidenee, even in Orton’s own tes
timony, that he used him harshly, and without that gentleness
and consideration that the age and feebleness of Boyd required
of him. At this time Dr. Nelson and Mr. Forman were in a
quandary to know what to do. Neither the hospital nor the Old
Men's Home, a home for destitute old men, wi snitable place
for him. e objected to Orton being in his house

to take care

of him, and as it was apparent that he was nearing his end,
something had to be done, so that his money conld he legally
expended for his care, and the expedient was adopted of taking
proceedings in lunaey to have a guardian appointed, 1 there
fore come back to the conflict which I mentioned in the beginning
between the statements made in the affidavits in lunacy and at
the trial by Dr. Nelson and Mr. Forman,  The only statement
* to in the affidavits of Nelson and
Forman is that Boyd ““has been for some months past feehl
both in mind and body and is afflicted with senile dementin

I think it necessary to

whizh is gradually becoming more acute.”  In these procecd
mes Bovd was examined by two other physicians —Fraser and
Hall——who both state that Boyd was then (in the month of
Jannary, 19100 suffering from senile dementia.  The examina
tions made by them were, T think, somewhat perfunetory. Neither
of them was able to rsmember at the trial what questions he
asked and what answers he received, but they concluded that
the man was in the condition I have mentioned.  Dr, Hall
expressed at the trial no settled opinion as to whether or not
the disease existed in September,  Dr. Fraser was of the opinion
that it had existed for some time, but he fixed no time, hut says
that it was a progressive disease, and that he thought Boyd
wis in the intermediate stage in January Neither of these

witnesses are specialists in mental diseases.  Their evidenee is

of no great assistance otherwise than as shewing that senile
dementia was present in January, 1910, Senile dementia is an
ienrable disease, we are told, and its duration is different in
different patients,  Had Boyd died of this disease, perhaps it
could be assumed that its duration in his case was longer than
from December to April; but he died of progressive paralysis
and old age, and while senile dementia may also have been
present and contributed to death, still there is nothing shewn in
evidence which entitles me to say that deceased had any mental
disease prior to December. Dr. Nelson was confronted at the
trial with his affidavit affirming the statement above quoted, and




1

1912
FORMAN
r.
Ryan.

Macdonald,
C.J.A.

Domixiox Law Reponrrs, |4 DLR.

containing the words ‘“‘for some months past’’ and asked to
harmonise it with his statement at the trial that there were no
symptoms of senile dementia before December. 1 think his
explanation is one which I ought to aceept, bearing in mind the
circumstances in which the affidavit was made. The doctor says
he did not notice the significance of the phraseology and did not
intend to state that that condition existed for some months past.

As supporting the contention that the lunacy proceedings
were taken for what was really an indirect purpose, 1 would
point out that they were entirely irregular, Boyd not having
been served with a copy of the petition nor examined by the
Judge, as the Aet requires.  As between statements made in
that inquiry and evidence given at the trial of this action, tested
by eross-examination and founded upon most careful considera-
tion and knowledge, I have no doubt which T ought to aceept
There is no question of the competeney of Dr. Nelson to speak
of the condition of Boyd's mind. not only in December and
January, but also for more than a year prior thereto, in fact,
for the whole period during which it was contended that Boyd
was wanting in testamentary capacity. Now, there is no sugges
tion that Dr. Nelson is not a reputable medical practitioner of
good standing in the community, and the same is true in his
business of Mr. Forman. Am I, therefore, to reject as not worthy
of eredit the well-considered evidenee of these witnesses at the
trial because carvelessly or inadvertently or good naturedly, or
without thoroughly understanding the affidavits, they made
statements in the lunacy proceedings somewhat inconsistent with
their evidence at the trial? 1 think not

The other witnesses called in support of the testator’s capa-
city appear to me to have appreciated the obligations they were
under to give evidenee thonghtfully and without prejudic Mrs
Cook’s evidence impresses e most favourably, notwithstanding
her very great interest in the result of the litigation. 1 am
unable to come to any other conclusion on the evidence in sup
port of the will, if believed, and it cannot be suggested that it
should not be believed except as affected in Mrs. Cook's and
her daughter’s case by self-interest, and in Mr. Forman and Dr,
Nelson's by their affidavits in the lunacy proceedings, than that
the testator, though feeble in body, was of sound and disposing
mind, memory and understanding in September when the will
was made,

Turning now to the evidenee given on behalf of those con
testing the will.  First, we have James Smith, a very old friend
and acquaintance of the testator, and who was very kind to

him during his illness in 1905, and again in the beginning of
1908, when he took him to his house to live, Smith says that on
one oceasion the deceased said, “‘This is my house’” (referring
to Smith's house). But it is manifest from Smith's own testi-
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mony that there was no insane delusion here. Then we come to
the evidence of Alexander Wilson, We have here a witness who
is entitled to the highest eredit, A very old friend and acqnaint
ance; a man who had no motives of self-interest to serve, and
who states what took place between himself and the deceased
within a year before his death in a natnral and straightforward
manner. e was called by the contestants, but his evidence, |

think, really supports the will. e says that Boyd spoke to him
1

sions about making a will, and asked him if he

on many oe
would aet as executor, That he sent for him on some oceasions
to diseuss the question of settling up his affairs before his death
Wilson considered him of sonnd mind. The only things he
could speak of which might throw doubt upon that was, first, the
testator’s habit of putting off making his will,  Wilson considered

this childish, but it is a kind of childishness, if T may say so
common to many men with respect to the making of their wills
That was the only circumstance which Wilson could relate
fleeting on Boyd’s soundness of mind hefore December, 1900
with possibly this other, that Boyd, when asked about his rela
tives, said he had none: but T gather from Wilson's evidenece
that he was simply reluctant to speak about his relatives. Tt
appears that his relatives, none of whom resided in Canada, paid
little attention to him for thirty or forty yvears, nor until he had
acquired some property. The other matter which this witness
thought might indicate feebleness of mind was his denial in
December that he had made a will, hut this is not hard to account
for.  Several of his neighbours had been pestering the old man
to make a will in their favour, and he might very naturally he
desirons that the fact that he had made a will should not
herome known to them and subject him to further persecutions
I'hese people were the principal witnesses against the will, Tt
fact, too, that after September, in which month
the will was made, the deceased no longer continued to as

is a significant

Wilson to be his executor

Then there is the evidence of Mr, and Mrs, Ledingham. They
shewed him some kindness in the way of bringing him meals
when he was unable to cook his own, and T think they expeeted
a will to be made in their favour. There is a general note of
exageeration running through their evidenee which greatly de
tracts in my opinion from its value. The incident of the fire in
the mattress is a good illustration. The eross-examination of
Ledingham, T think, shews that the old man did not wish the
mattress to be thrown out, beeause he wanted it saved. [ have
at diffieulty in understanding the evidence regarding this

fire Ledingham speaks of two such fires, but deseribes only
one, which he says was in April or May, 1909: but when Boyd
was sent to the Old Men’s Home in March, 1909, we find the

3—4 p.L.
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witness Mackintosh referring to a mattress which had been par-
tially burned being sent with him; and Williams speaks of being
at Boyd’s house in the evening of the fire in the mattress, which
he says was in the summer of 1909, But assuming that this
matiress was injured by fire earlier than April, 1909, it was
clearly not in the hopelessly burned eondition which the evidenee
of Ledingham would lead us to believe it was in. Boyd was

physically unable to do more than look on while the mattress
assuming they

was being carried out, and his alleged remarks
were made—only indicate that he was deprecating the serious
ness of the danger. Ledingham, while professing to think that
Boyd was unfit to do husiness, nevertheless attempted to buy his
property at a date later than the will, and as nearly as 1 can
make out, in December. e very naively says that he wanted
to buy it, but would rather get it without buying it. Evidently
this witness did not think Boyd was mentally incapable of doing
business, even in December,

needs only to be read to be

Shepherd’s evidenee, T thinl
Mackintosh

rejected. and the same is true of the evidence of
Boyd’s conduet in the police station was that of a sane old man
furionsly angry at the indignity to which he had been sub-
jeeted, and at the Home he resented having another person in
Apart from the reckless tone of Shepherd’s evidence,
liction between paragraphs 1 and 2 of his
1 his evidenee at the

his room.
we have the contr:

affidavit made in the lunaey proceedings a
trinl.  From said paragraphs T gather that within six months
of that affidavit, or at all events within
than a year, he had had the conversa
ywd mentioned in paragraph 2. He
these statements at the trial, but on

of the date of the maki
a period of not greater
tions on the streets with |

did not venture to rvepeat
the contrary, in the examination-in-chief he stated that he had

not spoken to Boyd on the streets for a year before that time,
and did not want to

Then there is the evidenee of Miss Partridge. Those inei
dents which she relates in a nataral manner as they osenrred,
without any embellishment of her own, rather confirm than other
wise the soundness of mind of the testator. For instance, his
coming to her father’s house early one morning for his break
fast and saving that Mr. Greandy wanted him taken to the hos-
pital, and his aversion to going, ave quite rational.  When a mes
sage came from Mrs. Cook that a carriage would be sent to take
ted the situation thoroughly and

him to the hospital, he appre
wished to go home at onee to avoid, as 1 think, going to the
hospital, and objeeted to Mr, Partridge accompanying him, All
this is rational and shows a keen appreciation of his eirenm-
ms and things. The date of this is

stances and memory of pe
not fixed, but the weather was cold, so it must have been late in
the year (1909) or beginning of 1910. And again, when Miss

s et
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Partridge visited him at Mrs, Addington’s shortly before his
death, he recognized her and seemed quite rational, as indicated
by his astute remark when she said good-bye that it was not
cood-hye.  This witness kept a record of Mres, Cook’s movements

vhich, when asked to explain, she said was ““to protect my-*

self.”  How she needed proteetion T am unable to conceive,
unless, as was snggested, she expected deceased to make a will
in her or her father’s favour, and anticipated that Mrs. Cook
wonld make elaim against the estate for her services, If she ex-
peeted this, it had apparently not heen present to her mind at
that time that the testator was mentally unsonund

Maedowell's evidenee is of little importance, and does not,
to my mind, indieate unsoundness of mind of the testator

Williams was at the time of the trial very sure that the
deceased had been mentally unbalaneed for at least three years
before his death, which is econtrary to the evidence on both
sides. A story which he says the deceased told him about an
old friend handling his papers, is the e¢hief factor in his behalf,

Then it is said that the will is inofficions, and this is relied
upon as evidence of lack of testamentary capacity in the tes
tator, Nothing was given to James Smith, to whom T have
already referred; but Smith and the testator were not on speak
ing terms for year before his death,  Smith is making a elaim

iinst the

ay ite for his serviees to the testator which he valaes

£1.000. The Ledinghams also were not remembered in the will

They were merely neighbours, and what they did for him was

under an arrangement hy which they were entitled to elaim for
services rendered at his request.  They, too, have made a elaim

nst the estate for these serviees, That the testator had

carefully considered the c¢laims of his relatives in ITreland is
clearly established by the evidence of Elliott and others.  As
they were in no way dependent upon him, and had paid him
little enough attention, he apparently did not consider that
they had any elaims upon him.  For more than a year before

his death the testator had given considerable attention to the
disposition which he ought to make of his property at his death.
It is quite apparent that he found it difficult to make up his
mind. It appeared to him to be a choice between charity and
those who had been most kind to him during his d

It is, therefore, not surprising that in September, 1909, after he

clining years

had experienced what he believed to be unkindness from several
of his old friends, and had for a year been carefully carved for,
ind his wishes understood by a person who had shewn him the
affeetion and kindness which Mrs, Cook undoubtedly did, he
should have decided to leave his property to her. 1 do not attach
much importance to the contention that the bequests to his
sister and to the two charities were suggested by others. It is
quite clear that he had considered the elaiws of his relatives, and
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had put them aside, and that he had also considered doing some-
thing for charity long before the will was made, but assuming
that he would not have made these bequests had they not been
suggested to him by Forman, though I do not think such an
assumption would be quite justified, still his making them only
shews his willingness to receive and capability to aet upon
advice,

The testator was under no insane delusion, even if we believe
all the evidence, apart from mere expressions of opinion given
by the witnesses against the will,

Sir J. Nicholl, 3 Add. 90, gives a much quoted definition of
insanity :—

Where the patient conceives something extravagant to exist which
has stiil no existence, whatever, but in his own heated imagination,
and where ot the same time having once so conceived he is ineapable
of being or at least of being permanently reasoned out of that con-
ception, such a patient is said to be under a delusion,

None of the so-called delusions of Boyd were of this nature.
Apart from insane delusions, there may be such weakness of
intellect or mental decay as to destroy testamentary ecapacity,
but T think that was not shewn to exist here, certainly not
earlier than December, 1909,

I think, therefore, the appeal shonld be allowed, and the
will admitted to probate, As I think there was some justifica-
tion furnished by the lunacy proceedings for contesting the will,
all parties should have their costs of the action and of the appeal
out of the estate,

TrvinG, J.A.:—I do not see how the judgment can be sup-
ported.

If we remember the will was made on the 18th day of
September, 1910, we have the following positive testimony that
the man was perfectly sane and capable of making a will :—

1. Dr. Nelson, who had him in eharge from Febrnary, 1909,
and saw him frequently.

2. Mr. Elliott, who drew a will for him in April.

3. Mr. Forman, who saw him twice in September with ref-
erence to the will not in question.

4. Rev. Mr. Grundy, who visited him daily and who fixes the
period of the change in December, 1909,

There are others, Mr. Heisterman, whose evidence shews that
he paid but little attention to the man; Mr. Doig, Mr, MeConcon,
and Mr. McKay, testify to the same effeet; but the four I have
mentioned seem to me from their association with the deceased
the best able, with the exception of Mrs. Cook, whose evidence
I leave out of the question, to testify as to the man’s capacity
at and before the critical time.

It must be conceded that Dr. Nelson and Mr. Forman, by
their efforts in January, 1910, did much to damage the case they
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now support, but the evidence of Mr. Elliott and Mr. Grundy
stands unattacked.

I would allow the appeal.

GALLIHER, J.A. I have had the opportunity of reading the
Judgment of my learned brother the Chief Justice, with whom
I agree, and would have nothing to add, hut out of respect for
the views of the learned trial Judge, with whom I differ. T wish
to emphasize one or two of what appear to me salient features
in the issue.

If T read the learned trial Judge's judgment aright, T think
he practically fonnd that there was no undue influence, This,
however, is disputed by Mr, )lt'l'hi“i]n. counsel for the respond-
ent, Sarah Ryan, and as he strennously argues that there was
undue influence, T will deal with that point,

Mr. MePhillips starts out by urging upon the Court the fact
that Mrs. Cook, from the moment she took charge of the de-
ceased, did so with the set purpose of so influencing him that
he would make a will in her favour, and speaks of her as a clever
and designing woman, who had the deceased completely under
her control; he depicts how careful she was to hide her designs
from others, and cites as an instance of her cleverness and eun-
ning how she, knowing if all his property were left to her i*
might ereate suspicion, and to avoid this, and as part of a well-
laid plan, she suggested to the deceased that he leave some of
his property to his sister,

Now all this is very well in theory, but unfortunately for
Mr, MePhillips’ contention, he introduces the evidence of a male
nurse, who, during the latter period of the illness of the deceased
was in charge of him for a time, The evidence of this man is
that Mrs. Cook, when she would call to see deceased, would
throw her arms around him and kiss him, and make much of
him, Now, if this evidence is to be believed, and this was the
clever, designing woman, alert at all times to hide from strangers
the faet that she was trying to gain influence over the deceased,
this act, repeated time and again in the presence of a male
stranger, seems to me would be the most foolish act she could
commit,

I discard that evidence, but Mr. McPhillips maintains it
should be given full eredit, and if so, it answers his own con-
tention,

It is admitted by all that Mrs. Cook was very kind to the
deceased, and he was more amenable to her than to any of the
others. This fact is urged upon us and against Mrs. Cook.

Mrs, Cook had known the deceased (who was her father’s
friend) since she was a child, and when she took charge of him
she found him in a very filthy condition, due, no doubt, to ill-
ness and physical weakness,
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It is noticeable that all the time she had charge of the de-
ceased, and was able to look after him, the old man improved
in health, was always kept clean, was taken out for drives and
walks, and the best of ecare taken of him under the cireum-
stances,

Is it unreasonable then that he should have been more de-
sirous of vielding to her wishes in respect of his own convenience
than to that of others, nay, is it not the most natural thing that
he should, and yet all this is urged against Mrs. Cook.

I can only say on this point that in my opinion the evidence
falls far short of proving any such contention.

It would bé unfortunate indeed if acts of care and kindness
bestowed upon those needing it should be regarded as emanating
from sinister motives, unless the evidence points elearly to that.

The only other point upon which T wish to touch briefly,
and wherein in my opinion lies the germ which has developed
all this controversy, i.e., the proceedings taken in lunaey, This
was some months after the making of the will, and whatever may
be said as to the wisdom or otherwise of these proceedings, a
full perusal of the evidence leads me to the conelusion that they
were taken with the view of placing some one in authority for
the purpose of providing ereature comforts for the deceased, and
whether he was mentally capable at that time, he certainly was
physically incapable of doing so himself.

Of course we cannot overlook the testimony given in these
proceedings; to do so might in many cases lead to very serious
results, but taking these proceedings as a basis to start from,
let us earry our mind back to the nceurrences adduced in evi-
dence prior to this time, and upon which the contestants base
their contention of testamentary incapacity,

My learned brother has gone very fully into these, and as
I agree with him, it would be only repetition for me to go over
the same ground, but I wish to point out this, that having in
mind the proceedings that had been taken, a witness going back
to events that oceurred previously might in all honesty regard
those events as strange or peculiar, and as acts of one not alto-
gether responsible when such acts at the time left no such impres-
sion on his mind,

I must say that T was impressed by the fair and able manner
in which Mr. Crease, counsel for some of the econtestants,
marshalled the facts, indeed the counsel on both sides argued
the matter very ably before us.

The case is one largely of fact, and I have therefore been
at pains to give it my best consideration.

Appeal allowed.
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CLARK v. LOFTUS.
Ontario Court of Appeal, Moss, U..0,, Garrow, Maclaren, Meredith, and
Magee, JJ.A.  April 15, 1912,

1. INSURANCE (§ IV B—170)—CHANGE OF BENEFICIARY—CAPACITY TO MAKE
~—NECESSITY OF SUPPLYING INDEPENDENT LEGAL ADVICE
A daughter being neither trustee, guardian nor agent for her
father, who lived with her, at and for some time prior to his death,
whom the father, while so living with her, makes sole beneficiary
the moneys payable under a poliey of insurance issued on his 'ife,
is not bound to supply her father with independent legal advice at the
time he nominates her as sole beneficiary under the poliey, the father
being at the time compos mentis and there being an entire absence of
fraud or undue intluence,
[Nobel's Explosives Co. v. Jones (1881), 17 Ch. D. 721, 739, referred
to.]

2, INSURANCE (§ IV B—170)—STATUS OF INSURED IN KESPECT TO BENEFI-
CIARY.

In the absence of agreement to make one the beneficiary, the
insured is in no sense a trustee for the beneficiary from time to time
named in a poliey of insurance containing a clause giving power to
the assured to change the beneficiary named.

3. INSURANCE (§ IV B—170)—CHANGE OF BENEFICIARY—GIFT INTER VIVOS.
Where an insured by virtue of the rights aceruing to him under an
insurance poliey changes the beneficiary, this is a gift infer vivos and
not a testamentary disposition.
[Fulton v. Andrew, LR, 7 H.L. 448, distinguished.]

Arpearn by the defendant from the judgment of a Divisional
Court, Clark v. Loftus, 24 O.LL.R. 174, affirming the judgment
of Middleton, J., on the trial of an issue to determine whether
the plaintiffs or the defendant were entitled to the proceeds of a
life insurance benefit certificate of the Independent Order of
Foresters which had been paid into Court.

The appeal was allowed, Garrow, J.A., dissenting.

H. Watson, K.C'., and J. T. Loftus, for the defendant.
As to the alleged agreement between the husband and wife
that the apportionment should not be changed, it is submitted that
no binding agreement has been proved; and, in any event, it could
not be given effect to, having in view the amendment of see. 151
(3) of the Insurance Act, R.S.0. 1897, ch. 203, by 1 Edw. VIL
ch. 21, sec. 2 (5), which provision must be considered to be retro-
active. This states that no one can be a bencficiary for value
unless expressly so designated in the certificate. To revive the
references to the sections of the Act, reference is made to R.8.0
1807, ch. 203, sec. 80, amended by 3 l".llw. VIL. ch. 15, sec. 3 (2);
R.8.0. 1897, ch. 203, sec. 151 (3), (4), sec. . 160 (1),
(2). Sub-section 3 of sec. 151 of R.S.0. 18‘)7 ch. 203, is amended,
as has been stated, by 1 Edw. VIL ch. 21, sec. 2 (5). Then
sub-see. 6 of sec. 2 of the last-mentioned Act amended sub-sec. 2
of see. 160 of R.8.0. 1897, ch. 203. Thus these two sub-sections
introduce into sees. 151 and 160 of the Insurance Act the same
words. Then 3 Edw. VIL ch. 15, sec. 3 (2), amends sec. 80 of
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the Insurance Act, giving the beneficiary the right to sue in his
own name. So that the defendant has an absolute statutory
right to sue to recover these moneys. The plaintifis failed to
prove want of mental eapacity on the part of the deceased to
make the change of beneficiaries in question, or that there was any
fraud or undue influence exercised by the defendant, or that the
defendant stood in a fiduciary position towards her father. Nor
has there been any finding on any of these points. There was at
most only vague suspicion of fraud or undue influence. The
learned trial Judge erred in treating the document of transfer
as a will, and applying to it certain rules applicable in some cases
to testamentary dispositions. The document was not a testa-
mentary disposition, and the rule invoked had no application to it.
The learned trial Judge erroneously held that there was an onus
cast upon the appellant herein: Low v. Guthrie, [1909] A.C. 278,
which modifies T'yrrell v. Painton, [1894] P. 151. The case of
Boolk: v. Book (1900-01), 32 O.R. 206, 1 O.L.R. 86, rather went
off on the ground that the beneficiary did not take as wife but as
secured creditor., Desides, see. 151 (3) was not in foree at that
time. The onus was upon the plaintifis to prove their case,
and in this they have failed. The affirmative is not proved merely
because the witness for the negative is not wholly believed: Nobel's
Ezxplosives Co. v. Jones (1881), 17 Ch.D. 721, at p. 739. There
was no duty cast upon the defendant to advise her father as to
the nature and effect of his action in altering the apportionment.
The Court has nothing to do with the fairness or unfairness of the
transaction, though that consideration seems to have influenced
one of the learned Judges below in his placing this case within
the principle of Fullon v. Andrew (1875), L.R. 7 H.L. 348. The
change which was made was Clark’s act and deed, and that is all
which it is necessary to shew.

J. B. Clarke, K.C., and E. J. Hearn, K.C., for the plaintiffs.
At the time he signed the instrument of transfer, Clark lacked
the mental capacity to comprehend the nature of the instrument
or the effect of what he was doing, and the defendant, taking
advantage of his mental condition, and by the exercise of fraud
and undue influence, induced him to sign the transfer. Even if
competent, he was precluded from altering the original nomina-
tion of beneficiaries, by reason of the agreement between himself
and the plaintiff Jane Clark that he would not make any change
in the beneficiaries. This agreement was made before the passing
of the amendment to the Insurance Act (1 Edw. VIIL. ch, 21, sec.
2 (5).) This amendment is not retrospective, and does not apply
to this case. In any event, the agreement is not within the pro-
visions of the Act. In the circumstances of this case, the onus
was upon the defendant to shew that the deceased thoroughly
understood what he was doing, or at least that he had been pro-
tected by independent advice: Phillips v. Mullings (1871), L.R.
7 Ch. 244; McCaffrey v. McCaffrey (1891), 18 AR, 599. In view
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of the facts found by the learned trial Judge, the document relied
upon as making a change of beneficiaries ought not to stand: Fulton
v, Andrew, L.R, 7 H.L. 448, at p. 471; Tyrrell v. Painton, [1894]
P. 151; Adams v. McBeath (1897), 27 8.C.R. 13; Collins v. Kilroy
(1901), 1 O.L.R. 503; Low v. Guthrie, [1909] A.C. 278; Malcolm
v. Ferguson (1909), 14 O.W.R. 737, | OOW.N. 77; Kreh v. Moses
(1892), 22 O.R. 307; In re Jansen (1906), 12 O.L.R. 63; Milroy
v. Lord (1862), 4 DeG. F. & J. 264, From the time of making
the agreement, Clark was a trustee of the poliey for the beneficiaries
named therein, and the appellant, having knowledge of the agree-
ment and taking the benefit of it, is bound by its terms, and is not
entitled to take any further benefit arising from a breach of the
trust which she actively assisted in bringing about, and prepared
and witnessed herself: Allen v. Wentzell (1909), 7 E.L.R. 575.
The certificate, or policy, was subject to the rules of the Order
in respect to the change of beneficiaries. See rule 150. We also
rely on the reasons given in the judgments below.

Watson, in reply. There is the right to transfer without
reference to the rules and conditions. See rule 147; also Mingeaud
v. Packer (1801), 21 O.R. 267, affirmed in (1892), 19 A.R. 290;
Neilson v. Trusts Corporation of Ontario (1894), 24 O.R. 517;
Re Harrison (1899), 31 O.R. 314. The other side rests its case
on suggestions, suspicions, and equities. There was no fiduciary
relationship, and so the doctrine as to necessity of independent
advice has no application: Wallis v. Andrews (1869), 16 Gr. 624,
at p. 641; McEwan v. Milne (1884), 5 O.R. 100; Trusts and
Guarantee Co. v. Hart (1901), 2 O.L.R. 251, affirmed in (1902),
32 8.C.R. 553; Fisher v. Fisher (1902), 1 O.W.R. 442; Vandusen
v. Young (1902), 1 O.W.R. 55; Christian v. Poulin (1902), 1
O.W.R. 275; Thorndyke v. Thorndyke (1902), 1 O.W.R. 11,
The effect of the statute since its amendment has been considered
in several cases. See Re Murray (1904), 4 O.W.R. 281; Lints v.
Lints (1903), 6 O.L.R. 100; Cartwright v. Cartwright (1906), 12
O.L.R. 272; In re Cochrane (1908), 16 O.L.R. 328.

April 15, 1912, Moss, C.J.0.:—One James E. Clark, a member
of the Independent Order of Foresters, and the holder of an en-
dowment certificate issued by the Order, and dated the 6th March,
1803, for the sum of $3,000, payable as in the certificate set forth,
died on the 16th February, 1910. Thereupon a dispute arose
between the parties hereto as to the right to receive payment from
the Order of the $3,000 in question. The amount, less expenses,
was paid into Court by the Order. Pursuant to an order of Court,
these proceedings were instituted for the determination of the
question as to which of the parties was entitled to the moneys,
and, if more than one was entitled, the proportions in which they
were to share.

In the certificate all three were named as beneficiaries; but,
by an instrument signed by him and dated the 20th November,
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1009, Clark designated the defendant Florence Loftus as the sole
beneficiary, reserving to himself the right of revoeation and sub-
stitution of other beneficiaries in accordance with the constitution
and laws of the Order. This instrument remained unrevoked
at the date of his death.

The question for trial, therefore, was as to the validity of this
instrument. It was not admitted by the plaintiffs, but at the
trial it was clearly proved, that the signature attached to the in-
strument was Clark’s; and it is not open to question that, as
executed by him, it is in form and substance sufficient to effect
the desired change of beneficiaries,

But the plaintiffs alleged that, at the time he signed the in-
strument, Clark was in such a mental condition as to be unable to
comprehend the nature of the instrument or the effect of what
he was doing, and that the defendant, taking advantage of his
mental condition, and by the exercise of fraud and undue influence,
indueed him to sign the instrument. They further alleged that,
even if competent, he was precluded from altering the original
nomination of beneficiaries, by reason of an agreement between
him and the plaintiffi Jane Clark that he would not make any
change in the beneficiaries,

The learned trial Judge held the instrument of the 209th No-
vember, 1909, to be invalid and ineffective, but chiefly on his
view as to Clark’s mental condition when he signed it and as to
the duty which he considered was cast upon the defendant of
satisfying the Court that Clark properly understood and appre-
ciated the effect of his act.  He also expressed the opinion that an
agreement was in fact made between Clark and the plaintiff Jane
Clark; but, in view of the amendments made to sees. 151 and 160
of the Ontario Insurance Aet, he rested his judgment principally
upon the other branches of the case. In the Divisional Court
the judgment was affirmed upon the latter grounds.  Mr. Justice
Clute, by whom the principal judgment was delivered, held that,
in view of the amendments, effect could not be given to the agree-
ment. The Chief Justice of the Common Pleas reserved his
opinion as to the effect of the amendments, Mr. Justice Teetzel
agreed in the result, So far, therefore, as expressed opinions are
concerned, it may be taken that, while it has been found that there
was an agreement in fact, it could not avail to preclude Clark
from making the change of beneficiaries. As I have reached the
conclusion that an agreement in fact has not been proved, it is
not necessary to consider the effect of the statute as amended.
As to what is said to have taken place between Clark and the
plaintiff Jane Clark on this point, there is no conflict of testimony
—the proof resting upon what was deposed to by the two plaintiffs,
taken in the light of subsequent conduct and events. Upon the
testimony, 1 am, with deference, of the opinion that no agreement
is shewn. 1 think that, at the time in the year 1900 when it said
the agreement was come to, there was no bargaining and no
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intention to bargain about the matter. It happened that Clark,
through losses in his business and inability owing to poor health
to earn any considerable income, concluded that he was unable
to keep up the payments called for by the certificate.

The matter appears to have come up in conversation between
him and the plaintifi Jane Clark, who had separate means. In
her testimony in chief she thus stated what took place: “Q. When
he failed in business did he say anything to you about this insur-
ance? A, Yes, he came and told me that it was to my benefit
and to the benefit of the children to keep that policy up. Q.
What else did he say? A. He said that we were—as we were
beneficiaries for value—Q. He said that you were to pay the
usual assessments? A, Yes. Q. And if you did not, what
would happen? A, He said it would be a loss to me and to the
children. Q. How would it be a loss to you and the children?
A. Simply because 1 was paying on it, and of course he said he
had no means to pay it. . . . Q. Then he said it was for the
benefit of you and the children? A. Yes. Q. What children?
A. We never made any difference between Florrie and my own,
We were all very agreeable. Q. You were to pay the usual
assessments for the benefit of yourself and the children? A, Yes,
Q. Did you pay the dues and assessments after that? A, T did.”
On cross-examination she was asked: “Q. What happened in
relation to the insurance? A, Well, he had no money to pay on
it, and I paid it. Q. That was all? A, Yes; I paidit. Q. Was
there anything said?  A. Yes; he told me it was a benefit for me
and my children to keep that policy paid, and I did so out of my
ownmeans. . . . Q. But he did not make an agreement with
you or anything of that kind? A, Yes; he told me that me and
my daughters were beneficiaries, and that it was to my benefit
to keep the policy paid-up and for the benefit of the children.
His Lordship: Q. Your children included? A, Yes. Mr. Loftus
(counsel for the defendant): Q. Why didn’t you state that before?
A. This is the first time I have had anything to do with any-
thing like this. That's right, and Mrs. Loftus knows it -
Q. That is all that was said? A. That is all; he said it was to
our benefit.”

The testimony of the other plaintiff, though varying slightly
in terms, does not carry the matter further. It is true that
to the question “Was there anything said about it?"” she
answered: “Yes; my father told my mother in my presence
that he had no means since he failed, and that it was to her benefit,
my sister’s and my own, to pay that insurance; and as he had
no money to do it, that she should do so out of her own money,
and that she should be benefited by it hereafter, and that it would
be hers.” But, in her answer to the next question, she shews
that it was not her understanding that it was to be her mother's
any more than any of the others. Asked, “Were you to get any
benefit of it?"’ she answered, “Yes; the understanding was that

43

ONT.

C.A.
1912

(U LARK
I

Lorrus,

Moss, C.J.0,




o

g A

e

Crang

r,
Lorrus,

Moss, C.1.0,

DoyiNioN Law Reports, |4 D.LR.

we were to share and share alike.” Now, making all proper
allowance for the suggested inexperience as a witness of the
plaintiff Jane Clark, which may be considered as very fairly
offset by the assistance rendered by her counsel in the form of
leading questions, I am unable to find in this testimony the in-
gredients of an agreement such as has been found. Clark stated
what was very probably true, that he was unable to pay, and said
what was obviously true, that it would be to the benefit of the
beneficiaries to keep the certificate on foot. He put it before his
wife as a matter for her consideration, but he made no request
that she should pay or any stipulation as to what he would do or
would not do if she continued the payments. That matter was
never considered or discussed by them. She was left free to act
on his suggestion or advice or not at her pleasure. Whether as
a matter of fact some of his means were not employed in making
some of the subsequent payments is by no means clear. It is
shewn that he turned over his earnings to his wife, and there was
a common fund. As shewing that she knew that she was not
bound to continue the payments herself, she admits that she made
application to the defendant to contribute. Payments were
continued to be made by or through her up to the 30th September,
1908, when she ceased making them—and, but for the subsequent
payments being continued by the defendant, the certificate would,
in all probability, have lapsed. So far as the plaintiffs were con-
cerned, they had abandoned all intention or desire to keep it on
foot any longer.

The element of agreement should, I think, be entirely elimin-
ated from the case,

Upon the other branches I am also unable to agree to the con-
clusions reached by the trial Judge and the Divisional Court.
These conclusions appear to me to be based upon a misappre-
hension as to the duties and obligations of the defendant under
the circumstances disclosed by the testimony and as to the onus
of proof at the trial. No doubt, the burden may shift from time
to time during the progress of the trial, and it may be assumed that
in the course of this trial the onus varied from time to time as in
other cases. The question is, upon whom was it resting, having
regard to the testimony given, at the time when the evidence
closed?

It having—as before mentioned—been shewn beyond question
that the instrument impeached was signed by Clark, it is scarcely
necessary to say that the onus of shewing that it was for some rea-
son or reasons invalid and ineffectual was cast upon the plaintiffs.

Clark had the right by law to change the nomination of bene-
ficiaries within the scope of the certificate, and in order to avoid
his act it was incumbent upon those impeaching its effect to shew
mental incapacity unfitting him to execute the instrument with
knowledge and appreciation of its effect, or that he was induced to
execute it through fraud or undue influence, or that the defendant,
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in whose favour the nomination was made, stood in a fidueiary
relationship towards her father, that is, that she occupied such a
position of trust and confidence in regard to him as necessarily
to lead to the conelusion that she possessed a controlling influence
over his mind and actions. If the latter case were established
then the onus might be east upon her to support the transaction,
and the question whether she had satisfactorily shewn all that
was required would arise, but only in that case,

It was not alleged nor was it proved or found that the de-
fendant stood in a fiduciary position towards her father, She was
his daughter, but she was neither his trustee, guardian, or agent.
There is no evidence that at any time during his life had he re-
posed any special trust or confidence in her. There existed be-
tween them nothing but the natural affection of father and
daughter; no relationship that called upon the daughter to justify
or explain her father's action. suming capacity and the absence
of fraud or undue influence, the act was one within his right,
however unreasonable or unjust towards others it may appear.
Apart from agreement, with which I have already dealt, Clark
was in no manner a trustee of the certificate or for any of the
parties named as benefic <; and his act is binding and con-
clusive, unless the plaintiffs have proved a case of mental in-
capacity or fraud or undue influence.

I have given careful attention to the evidence, as well as to
the adverse comments of the learned trial Judge upon the tes-
timony of some of the witnesses; and, after making every allow-
ance for the advantage which is necessarily enjoyed by the trial
Judge from having seen the witnesses and noticed their demeanour,
I am unable to adopt the conclusions arrived at. It may be that,
if I shared the views of the Courts below as to the burden of proof,
I should not disagree with their findings. But if, as appears to
me, it lay upon the plaintiffs to prove their case, then, I think,
they failed to discharge the onus.

It has been said more than once that it is a fallacy to suppose
that the affirmative is proved because the witness for the negative
is not wholly and entirely to be believed. The affirmative must
be proved; and to say that & witness for the negative is not
wholly to be believed is, in no sense of the word, to prove the
affirmative: Nobel's Explosives Co. v. Jones, 17 Ch.D. 721, at p.
730.

The learned trial Judge was disposed to deal with the question
of capacity as upon the same footing as if the act was a testamen-
tary act. As the instrument was intended to take effect in Clark’s
lifetime, it was probably more in the nature of, though not in all
respects similar to, a gift infer vivos. It differed from the latter
in that it was not absolute in effect, because of the reservation
of a power of revocation.

But, however regarded, the evidence fails, in my judgment,
to establish a want of capacity to understand the nature of the
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transaction or to appreciate its effeet. Clark was, no doubt, in
poor health and had been so from the time when he suffered from
an attack of paralysis in January, 1909, According to the tes-
timony of the plaintiff Jane Clark, he was then in the hospital
for about three weeks, after which he returned home. In April
he was sufficiently recovered to go to visit an old friend, the
witness Crompton, at his farm near St. Catharines, where he re-
mained until some time in June, a period of about eight weeks,
He appears to have been considered as of sufficiently good health
and capacity to take care of himself to be allowed by the plaintifis
to make the journey each way unattended. The evidence fails
to shew any material failure in health or mind between his return
in June and the signing of the instrument on the 29th November.
He appears to have suffered pains in his head produced by a blow
from a trap-door in his factory falling upon him, and which in-
duced the first paralytic condition. But he went about the
streets conversing with his neighbours and calling upon his daugh-
ter the defendant, without it oceurring to any one that he should
be attended. The trivial incidents related by the plaintiffs as
indicating mental weakness are wholly insufficient to establish
want of capacity, or inability to understand what he was doing
when he signed the instrument, 1t was a single and simple trans-
action in conneetion with a certificate with the purport and effect
of which he was quite familiar, for he had considered and discussed
it on more than one oceasion. His signature appended to the
instrument compares quite favourably with that appended to the
agreement concerning the additional rates made with the Order
in September, 1908, and presents every appearance of having
been written by one quite eapable of controlling his faculties.
And it is to be noted that the learned trial Judge says that he is
not satisfied that €Lk had not testamentary capacity.

Beyond vag <picion, there is really no evidence of fraud
or undue influe sueh as is required to be shewn in order to
invalidate such an act as that here impeached. It is important
to bear in mind that there was no seerecy about the matter; no
retaining the instrument so as to prevent scrutiny and inquiry.
It was sent on to the Order immediately, and the plaintifis were
afforded opportunities not only of secing the instrument, but
Clark was shewn to have visited the plaintiffs from time to time
afterwards, and they had every opportunity of ascertaining whether
or not any improper suggestions had been made to him or his
mind otherwise unduly influenced. But, beyond endeavouring
to induee the Order to refrain from recognising the instrument,
nothing was done or attempted.

The defendant had paid the arrears due in respect of the cer-
tificate after the plaintifis had abandoned making payments,
and she kept it on foot from that time onwards. Otherwise it
would have lapsed and have been of no benefit to anybody.
Having done so, there was no reason why her father should not,
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if he chose, put her in the position of sole heneficiary, In doing
s0 he was not bestowing upon her an extravagant sum, and he
may very justly have considered that, his wife having considerable
property of her own and having shewn no disposition to keep the
certificate on foot, his daughter by his first marriage, through
whose payments it had been kept on foot, might without unfairness
receive the full benefit of it.

I would allow the appeal and declare the defendant entitled
to the moneys in Court, subject, however, to repayment to the
plaintiff Jane Clark of the sums paid by her in respect of dues and
assessments as offered and agreed to by the defendant’s counsel,

As to the costs, the defendant is entitled to her general costs
of the interpleader proceedings, of the issue, and of the appeal to
the Divisional Court and to this Court.

Mereorri, J.A.:—The dominating factor in the conclusions
reached in this case hitherto was that which was considered great
unfairness in the result of the transaction which is in question
in this action; had that result been the opposite of that which it
was, that is, had it changed the beneficiaries from the one only
to the three, no one ean doubt that it would have been unhesitat-
ingly and firmly upheld, It was its want of “‘righteousness”
that eaused its downfall,

Mvr. Justice Clute seems to me to have put that very plainly,
for himself and as to the trial Judge. After quoting the oft-
quoted words expressed by Lord Hatherley in the ease of Fulton
v. Andrew, LLR. 7 H.L. 448, at p. 472: “But there is a further
onus upon those who take for their own benefit, alter being in-
strumental in preparing or obtaining a will.  They have thrown
upon them the onus of shewing the righteousness of the trans-
action;” he goes on to say: “The rule appears to me to be applic-
able to a case of this kind, which closely resembles the ease of a
will.  Ro far from the evidence removing the suspicious nature of
the transaction and shewing the same to be a righteous transaction,
quite the reverse is the case. The learned trial Judge largely
diseredited the evidence of the defence, and considered the trans-
action a most unrighteous one.”

So that two things seem to me to be evident: (1) that there
has been a grave misunderstanding of the meaning which Lord
Hatherley intended to convey by the word ‘“‘righteousness;”
and (2) that this case is not at all like that with which he was
dealing, or such cases as Barry v. Butlin (1838), 2 Moo. P.C. 480,
or Tyrrell v. Painton, [1894] P. 151.

“Righteousness,” as applied to proof in such cases, means
no more than that the document propounded is really the will of
the testator; that it is the duty of those asking the Court to
pronounce in favour of the will, to prove affirmatively that the
testator knew and approved of its contents: to import into the
word any such meaning as that it must be proved that the will
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is a fair or just one, or such as a reasonable man ought to make,
is, of course, entirely wrong: a testator may be as unreasonable,
unjust, or capricious as he pleases, without the Court having
any power to control him; the character of the will may, of course,
afford evidence upon the question whether the paper propounded
is really the testator’s will; but some care must be taken fairly
to treat such things only as evidence; that we do not make them
an excuse for finding ngainst the validity of the will really because
we do not approve of its contents,  The man or wornan who makes
a will is, it may be, the only one who knows what is just and fair;
and, in the absence of such knowledge as he or she could impart,
one should be very careful of condemning his dispositions of his
property.

On the other point it is not necessary to do more than point
out that this is not the case of a controversy arising for the first
time after a testator's death in propounding a writing as his last
will and testament; the controversy arose in his lifetime, and was
carried on for some time before his death and before hig second
stroke of paralysis, and carried on by him, on the one side, seeking
registration of his change of beneficiaries, and the respondents,
on the other side, opposing it, in the offices of the friendly society
whose certificate of insurance is the subject-matter of this litiga-
tion. If there had been any real doubt of the man’s knowledge
and approval of the change he had made, or of his capacity to
make it, or that he had duly signed the writing, all that could at
once have been set at rest, by asking him; but that was not done,
nor was any attempt, on the part of the respondents, made to in-
vestigate it; they knew that it had been done, and that they
could not undo it.

The learned trial Judge said, among other things in which
I am quite unable to agree with him, that “the law calls upon the
person who so takes to explain the circumstances in such a way as
to remove all shadow of suspicion from the mind of the Judge who
is called to pass upon the case.,”” The rule is simply this: the
onus shifts; presumption of knowledge and approval of the con-
tents of the will, from proof of its due execution by a competent
testator, to whom the will was read over, or who has read it,
is displaced: actual knowledge and approval must be proved by
those who take a benefit under it and who have been instrumental
in making it: the conscience of the Court must be satisfied, that
is all,

Again, I am quite unable to agree with him in these obser-
vations also contained in the reasons for his judgment: “The
situation was one which, more than any other situation one can
think of, called for the exercise of great precaution. I think
it called for Mr. Clark receiving advice from an absolutely dis-
interested and independent solicitor.” It was but a single trans-
action, of a very ordinary and simple character; the man had
become dissatisfied with his home, and desired to change it, to
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go and live with the only child of his first wife. He may, or may
not, have had real cause for that desire; that in itself is not
material; he had, as I have said, a right to be eapricious; he had
a right to do just as he pleased with his own. His conduct was
not unique, it was not even extremely uncommon; as one grows
old, the impressions of earlier days are more vivid and attractive
than those of later days, and one is apt to become exacting and
more readily dissatisfied; and there is at least this to be said in
extenuation of this conduet of the man who is not here to justify
himself, that no great efforts, if indeed any efforts, were made to
dissuade him from going away or to induce him to remain or
return.  He had got to that age and condition of health that he
was, no doubt, more or less a burden to those with whom he lived,
and there can be little, if any, doubt that, rightly or wrongly;
he was impressed with the idea that his wife thought so. I am
quite unable to perceive anything so complicated or extraordinary
in the circumstances as to require the services of any solicitor, or
what there was in the simple and single transaction that any lay-
man could not quite comprehend. The man knew that his wife
and two children were to share equally in the money payable under
the certificate upon his death-—if not changed; he knew that he
wanted to change that so that one daughter should have all;
and that all that was needed to cffect the change, could be readily
accomplished through the officers of his “lodge.” He knew also
that his wife had property of her own, of considerably greater
value than this certificate; and that he had no other property
which could go to the child of his first wife.

The learned Judge was also emphatic in the opinion that
Clark ought to have been advised that he was receding from a
binding bargain, made with his wife, that the beneficiaries of the
certificate should not be changed. In that I am also quite unable
to agree, because: (1) no such agreement is proved; and (2), if
there had been, there would be no object in advising him not to
do a thing he had no power to do. If there were no binding
agreement, it was no part of a solicitor’s duty to advise him on
the moral aspect of his conduct; a solicitor has enough to do in
keeping his client right in law.

That there was no such agreement in fact seems to me to
be plain enough. Notwithstanding the controversy which arose
fully and sharply in the man’s lifetime, there was no assertion
of any such contract. In the first statutory declaration of the
wife, in her opposition to the change being made in the society’s
records, she made no sort of assertion of any such agreement.
In a supplementary declaration, made eight days afterwards, for
the sole purpose of making such a elaim, she put it in these words:

“1. That when I began to pay the assessments on the benefit
certificate on the life of my husband, James Clark, about eight
vears ago, as set forth in my said former declaration, it was at the
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request of the said James Clark that I did so, he intimating to
me that, as my daughter, May Clark, and myself were two of the
beneficiaries named in the said policy, and as he had failed in
business, his membership in the Order and the benefit certificate
would have to lapse, unless I kept the assessments paid, and many
times after that, through the period of about seven years that I
kept the assessments paid out of my own money, he frequently
spoke to me, encouraging me to keep the assessments paid, and 1
did so with his knowledge and on the understanding that myself
and my daughter May were to be beneficiaries for value in the said
benefit certificate.

“2, 1 am sure that my husband did not expect, during that
period, that he would be able to change the beneficiaries in the
said policy from myself and our daughter, May Clark, without
my consent and her consent, and I would not have paid the said
assessments or any of them, but for the fact that she and I were
two of the beneficiaries named in the said benefit certificate.
And I now claim, as the fact is, that she and I are beneficiaries
for value, and I positively object to any change being made in the
beneficiaries as they stand in the said benefit certificate.”

Not only is no such contract proved, but, if the case had been
tried by a jury, there would have been no reasonable evidence to
submit to them in support of any claim that there was,

The man, having been obliged to give up his business, and
his earning powers being greatly impaired, was unable to keep up
the periodical payments necessary to keep the certificate in foree;
there were then, practically, but two things which might be done,
either abandon it, or else make the payments through the family
purse, to which his wife, through the property which she owned,
appears to have been the chief contributor from that time on.  To
abandon would have been foolish; to keep up the payments in
that way was really the only thing to be done; and they all acted
accordingly, until the man left the houschold and went to live
with his oldest child, when payment out of the household purse
ceased, and payment was taken up by that child.

There is really no sort of evidence of any kind of a binding
agreement; if there had been, the wife broke it when she ceased
making payments, and contradicted, if she did not break, it,
when she, long before that, endeavoured to make the oldest child
contribute towards the payments.

There could have been no contract unless the wife was bound
by it; and how was she in any sense bound? How could she have
been compelled by any one to make the payments?  Nor was it
suggested, by any of the witnesses, that the husband was to retain
any separate legal right to an interest in the certificate, or to
any of the moneys which might become payable under it; so that,
if the wife had taken over the insurance, as she now claims, it
would not be for value; all the payments which she made would
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be voluntary and for her own benefit only; but that was not the
character or effect of the dealings between them; it was merely
the case, and the not uncommon case, of keeping up the payments
out of the family purse, as I have said. There is no suggestion
by any one that any kind of provision was made for the possibility
of the benefits of the certificate becoming available in the man’s
lifetime; that was never taken into consideration, as it must
have been if the parties were definitely contracting in regard to
the rights to accrue under the certificate. It was simply the
common case of the family taking up the burden of the payments,
when the head of the house became disabled from fully meeting
them. The man did not cease to pay, he continued to pay all
that he was able to pay; his earnings, though perhaps little, all
went into the family purse. No attempt was made to procure
an assignment of the certificate or of any rights under it, nor was
anything of the sort even suggested, as it doubtless would have
been if the man were to be precluded of all his rights under it. It
was the every day case of trusting to the husband and father not
to alter his will. Tt is out of the question to speak of any one as a
beneficiary for value of this certificate; such a contention is really
like catching at a straw to save oneself from drowning.

But, if any one had been meant to be a “beneficiary for value,”
it would be in the teeth of the plainly and emphatically expressed
intention of the Legislature that no one can be a beneficiary for
value unless expressly so designated in the certificate; and I
decline to attempt to dodge that enactment because 1 am carrying
a hard case which tempts me to do so.  If the man had lived long
enough to become dissatisfied with his new home, and had gone
back to his old one, and had again changed the beneficiaries,
back to his wife and her daughter, a thing which might very well
have happened, 1 can hardly think the other daughter would be
held to be a beneficiary for value, although she took on, even,
a former understanding that if she paid the premiums the benefits
would be altogether hers,

There is no finding of want of mental eapacity, on the part
of the man, to make the change of beneficiaries in question; really
the contrary has hitherto been found, and rightly so. The man
was, no doubt, much impaired in physical, and mental vigour;
it may be that he was not either physically or mentally capable
of carrying on any trade or business, but many an one may be so
incapable, and yet capable of making a will; and in this case there
was unquestionable mental and physical capacity to make, and
thoroughly understand, the change of beneficiaries which he did
make—there can be no doubt he knew the simple fuct that he was
taking from his wife and his daughter, by her, one-third each of
the 83,000 so paid under the certificate, and giving the whole sum
to his only child by a former wife, a thing which, wise or unwise,
Just or unjust, he was determined to do; and there can be no doubt
that when doing it he knew that his wife had property of her own,
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and that her son and daughter were able to earn, and were earning,
their own living; he knew a vast deal more than we can on the
subject of the moral righteousness or justness of his act.

Nor has it been found that there was any undue influence
exercised by any one over the man to bring about the change;
indeed, it seems to be plain that the intention originated in him-
self, arising, in part, at all events, in his dissatisfaction, whether
reasonable or unreasonable, with his own home, and in his desire
to leave it. There was nothing like exclusion from intercourse
with his wife and her children after he left the household; he was
indeed a frequent visitor there, according to the wife’s testimony,
even while the contest over the change of beneficiaries was being
waged in the society:—

“Q. You say he went to Mrs. Loftus in November. 1908;
had he been at your house after that? A. Yes, he came over
next morning, and came over every other day for a week or so,
while he was able to go out.

“Q. Up to what date? A. I don’t know, but I know he came
over the whole time he was there, while he was able to go out;
while he was able to walk from Mrs. Loftus’s, he came over to

see me.
“Q. He was able until after New Year's; was he over after
New Year's to your place? A. Well, I cannot say whether he

was or not; he was over, but he had two strokes in Mrs. Loftus's
house. 1 did not know when he had them. 1 was not notified
of them.

“Q. Was he over after the first stroke? A. Yes, after the
first stroke he had at Mrs. Loftus’s.

“Q. That was about the New Year? A. Then he came over
after that.”

After the inability of the trial Judge—though so strongly
desirous of upsetting the transaction—to find undue influence,
and after the inability of the Divisional Court to do so, it would
be an extraordinary thing for this Court to do so, even if there
had been some substantial evidence of it, and even if the persons
concerned were not the reputable people the evidence shews them
to be. .

If 1 were at liberty to substitute my will for that of the dead
man in the distribution of this money, I would very willingly
cancel the later “designation” and set up the earlier one, in
accordance with my sense of what would be fairer and juster, in
the dim light which the case throw, upon the knowledge which
the man had, and upon his real and full reasons for acting as he
did; but, as I have no manner of doubt that the change was made
by him of his own free will, I have no more power to alter it, accord-
ing to my notions of moral right and wrong, than he, if living,
would have to change my will.
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I would allow the appeal and give effect to the change, which
was made under the statute, and so is not controlled by the rules
of the society. According to the practice of this Court, and, as
I understand, the consent of the appellant, the money paid by
the respondents or any of them in keeping the certificate in foree,
with interest, should be repaid out of the fund in Court

I have not gone into the question, dealt with by Mr. Justice
Clute, whether any such rule as that involved in the case of
Andrew v. Fulton is applicable to such a case as this; that is not
necessary; if the transaction were a contract, it would not apply;
if it were a gift merely, some such rule might very well be applied,
for after all it comes down to this simply: Was the act, mentally
and physically, really that of the donor?

MacrareN and MaGeg, JJ.A,, agreed in allowing the appeal,

Garrow, J.A. (dissenting) :—Appeal by the defendant from
the judgment of a Divisional Court affirming the judgment of
Middleton, J., in favour of the plaintiffs, upon the trial of an issue
between the parties as to the ownership of certain money in Court,
the proceeds of a policy on the life of the late James E. Clark.

James E. Clark was the husband of the plaintifi Jane Clark,
his second wife, and the father of the plaintifi May Clark. He
was also the father of the defendant, by his former wife.

The policy, dated the 6th March, 1893, was in the form of an
endowment certificate issued by the Independent Order of For-
esters, and the beneficiaries therein named were the plaintiffs
and the defendant in equal shares,

In the month of January, 1909, James E. Clark had a severe
stroke of paralysis, from which he never completely recovered.
Up to the month of November, 1909, he resided with his wife
and children, other than the defendant, in a house owned by his
wife, but on the 22nd of that month he left his home and went to
reside with the defendant, where he remained until his death on
the 16th February, 1910. After the stroke, he had been in the
habit of going frequently to the defendant’s house. Two days
before he went finally to reside with her, he informed her of his
intention to leave home.

In her evidence the defendant said: “About the 20th of No-
vember my father came to me, and he was crying; he started
crying and said they had another quarrel over home with Mrs,
Clark, and that he was not going to stand her nonsense any longer;
that, if I could not take and do anything for him, he would go
into some Home, and it was then we first spoke about his coming
to live with me. He came two days after that.”

On the day that the deceased came to live with the defendant,
steps were taken to alter the apportionment of benefit under the
policy by giving it all to the defendant, and a written document
to that effect was prepared and executed by the deceased and sent

ONT.

<Al
1912
CLARK
o

Lorrus

Meredith, J.A,

Maclaren, J.A,
Magee, J.A.

Garrow, 1A,




ONT.
C.A.

1912
CLARK
r

LoFtus

Garrow, J.A.

Domixion Law REports, |4 DLR.

to the insurers, but had not been assented to by them in his life-
time. The defendant soys that the suggestion came first from
the deceased; but, even on her own shewing, she seems to have
had no compunction in accepting the change, and even in assisting
her father to bring it about.

There had, as the plaintiffis contend, been an agreement be-
tween the deceased and the plaintiff Jane Clark, made several
vears before his death, that, if she would keep up the payments
of premium on the policy, the deceased would not change the
apportionment. And, in pursuance of this arrangement, the
plaintiff and her daughter May had made a number of payments
of premiums. At the time of the first paralytie stroke, there
were some arrcars.  These were, at that time, paid by the defend-
ant, who continued to pay the premiums until her father’s death,
the total of such payments amounting to about $82.

There was conflicting evidence as to the mental condition
and capacity of the deceased at the time when the document
changing the apportionment was executed; the witnesses for the
plaintiff stating that he had then become weak in mind, as well as
in body, while those of the defendant considered him to be in his
normal condition, although weak in body,

Middleton, J., was of the opinion that the circumstances
brought the case within the rules as to testamentary dispositions
procured or brought about by a beneficiary, laid down in such
rases as Barry v. Butlin, 2. Moo. P.C. 480, and subsequent cases;
that, from the month of September before his death, ““ the old man’s
mind was in the extremity of weakness, and that he was not fit
to exercise testamentary powers, unless he had very careful
guidance to see that all proper precautions were taken to compel
him to realise the actual situation. . . T am not satisfied
that he had not testamentary capacity; but I think it is incumbent
upon those attempting to set up any testamentary act or any act
in the nature of a testamentary act to see that all extrancous
influence was excluded.” And that he should have received
advice from an absolutely disinterested and independent solicitor.
The learned Judge also expressed dissatisfaction with the explana-
tion of the transaction in its inception given by the defendant,
And he held that the agreement between the deceased and his
wife as to the payment of premiums operated to prevent the de-
ceased from changing the apportionment,

In the Divisional Court, Clute, J., delivered a judgment upon
practically similar lines, agreeing with Middleton, J.; and Mere-
dith, C.J., in a brief judgment, said that he agreed with Clute,
J., that the transaction was one which, under the circumstances,
could not stand, but declined to express an opinion upon the effect
of the agreement as to the payment of premiums made between the
deceased and his wife. Teetzel, J., agreed in the result. 1If the
plaintifis’ case rested solely upon the agreement said to have been
made between the deceased and his wife, 1 would have had some
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difficulty in following the conclusion of Middleton, J. 1 even
doubt whether, upon the whole evidence, an actual binding agree-
ment was ever made.  The impression which 1 gather from the
evidence is, that the deceased, finding himself unable to continue
to pay, simply turned the matter over to his wife, advising her
that it would be to the advantage of the family to keep up the
payments. This, which is, I think, something less than a hinding
agreement, would explain the application subsequently made by
the plaintiff Jane Clark to the defendant, to assist in keeping up
such payments, and possibly also the fact that the plaintiff Jane
Clark latterly did not keep them up.  Nor, with deference, am
I able to agree that the ease can be properly dealt with upon the
footing of a testamentary disposition procured by the defendant,
s0 as to admit of the application of the rule as to evidence in the
case of wills to which Middleton, J., refers,

The substantial issue between the parties, it seems to me,
arises upon the plaintiffs” allegation of fraud and undue influence
on the part of the defendant in obtaining from the deceased the
execution of the document in question. And upon that issue,
which is alone quite sufficient to dispose of the whole case, I would
without hesitation find in favour of the plaintifis,

The learned trial Judge found as a fact, upon conflicting evi-
dence, that at the time of the transaction the deceased was of
weak mind.

No consideration was paid or agreed to be paid by the de-
fendant for the transfer. She knew her father's condition and
circumstances, and also that the policy had been kept alive by the
plaintiffs, and must, therefore, have known that what, as she
alleges, he proposed to do was at least unfair, and even dishonest,
as against them. He came to the defendant, having left his own
home without any sufficient cause; and steps were immediately
taken, not to heal the breach, but to obtain the transfer now under
attack. Under these cireumstances, the defendant was, I think,
bound to shew by satisfactory evidence, that the deceased thor-
oughly understood what he was doing, or at all events that he
had been protected by independent advice: see Phillips v. Mul-
lings, L.R. 7 Ch. 244, at p. 246; McCafirey v. McCaffrey, 18 A.R.
599,

Middleton, J., who saw the witnesses, has expressed his dis-
satisfaction with the explanatory testimony adduced by the
defendant concerning the transaction; and it is not even pre-
tended that there was independent advice.

Under these circumstances, the transaction in question is
one which, in my opinion, cannot be supported; and the appeal
should be dismissed with costs.

Appeal allowed; Garrow, J.A., dissenting,
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REX v, BRITNELL,

Ontarvio Court of Appeal, Moss, C.1.0., Garrow, Maclaren, Meredith, and
Magee, JJ.A. April 4, 1912,

1o Evinesce (8 XTI L9857 ) —CRIMINAL CASES—CHARACTER—REPUTATION
EXTENT OF BUSINESS —REASONABRLE DOURT,

While neither the character, reputation, or extent of one's business,

constitutes a reason why he should not he convieted of a eriminal of-

or punished if ilty, yet they all have weight in considering

the probability of the truth ot the charge, and a bearing upon the

question whether there was reasonable evidence of guilt, as well as upon
the tact whether he was gnilty or innocent,

2, 0BSCENTTY (§1—=3) - SELLING OR EXPOSING FOR SALE OBSCENE BOOKS
KxowrLence oF accrsen—CrimiNan Cove (1906), see. 207,

In order to warrant a convietion under see, 207 of Criminal Code,
RS.C 1006, eh, 146, as amended by 8 and 9 Edw, VIL ch. 9, for
selling or exposing for sale an obscene book, it must be proved that
the acensed was aware of its obscene character and that it was sold or
exposed for sale with his knowledge.

[Rex v. Beaver, 9 OLR, 418, 9 Can, Cr. Cas, 415, referved to.]

INDICTMENT, INFORMATION, AND cOMPLAINT (§ 11 B—10) —SUFFICIENCY
OF ALLEGATION — K NOWLEDGE —SPLLING OR EXPOSING FOR SALE OH-
SCENE BOOKS—RIMINAL Cope (1906), ske, 207,

for sale and selling obscene books
, as amended by 8 and 9 Edw. VII.
, it is necessary to alle it was knowingly done, and an al
ation that it was done “contrary to law™ and “contrary to the form
of the statutes,” is not suflivient

In an information for exposi
unde 207 of Crim. Code (190

~40) —DESCRIPTION
OBSCENE BOOK-—AR

1. INDICTMENT, INFORMATION AND COMPLAINT (S 1T E
OF OFFENCE OF SELLING OR FXPOSING FuR SALK
SENCE OF “KNOWINGLY" FROM INFORMATION.
A person cannot be summarily convieted hy a magistrate under sec.
207 of the Crim. Code, which declares that it is an indietable otfence
to “knowingly . . sell, or expose for "

. 2" any obscene book,
upon an information which did not charge that he “knowingly” ex-
posed for sate or sold such book.

OBSCENITY  (§ 1—3)—SALE OF OBSCENE BOOKS—PURCHASE BY CLERK
WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ACCUSED—STOCK CELLAR,
The owner of a book store containing thousands of books, cannot be
convicted of knowingly exposing for sale an obscene book under see.
207 of the Crim. Code, where a few copies which had been purchased
a clerk without the defendant’s knowledge, were found in a cellar
where stock was kept, and to which the public was not admitted.
OBSCENTTY  (§ 1—3)—SALE OF OBSCENE BOOK—ABSENCE OF KNOWLEDGE
OF CONTENTS OF BOOK.

The proprietor of a book store cannot be convieted, under see. 207 of
the Crim. Code, of knowingly selling an obscene book, where he did
not have knowledge as to the contents of the book, a few copies of
which had been, without his knowledge, purchased by a clerk and
kept among stoek in a cellar to which the public was not admitted,

7. Evioexce (§ 11 E 5—166) —Pre sUunperioN 10 KNOWLEDGE—SALE OF

OBSCENE BOOK—RETURN F COPIES TO PUBLISHER.
lge of a dealer in hooks, who had a stock of 150,000 to 250,
000 volumes, of the obscene character of a book, cannot be inferred
from the ‘t that a elerk had, without his employer’s knowledge,
ordered a few of them and sold one, and that the defendant had, about
a year before, upon receiving a few copies of such book, without reading
one of them, returned them to the publisher because he had heard
that the book was immoral.

Know]

Case stated by one of the Police Magistrates for the City
of Toronto.
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The defendant was convicted upon an information charging
that, in the month of April, 1911, he, the defendant, contrary
to law, exposed for sale and sold certain indecent and obseene
books, tending to corrupt public morals, contrary to the form
of the statute in such case made and provided.

Seetion 207 of the Criminal Code, R.8.C. 1906, ch. 146, as
amended by 8 & 9 Edw. VIL ch. 9, provides:

Every one is guilty of an indictable offence and liable to two years’
imprisonment who knowingly, without lawful justification or excuse
—(a) makes, manufactures, or sells, or exposes for sale or to public
view, or distributes or circulates, or causes to be distributed or eir-
culated, or has in his possession for sale, distribution or cirenlation, or
assists in such making

manufacture, sale, exposure, having in pos
session, distribution or cireulation, any obseene book or other printed,
typewritten or otherwise written matter, or any pieture, photograph,
model or other oh

tending to eorrupt morals, or any plate for

the reproduction of any such picture or photograph

The stated case was as follows:

“Pursuant to the order of the Court of Appeal dated the
15th May, 1911, T submit the following questions for the con-
sideration of the Court:

“1., Was there evidence upon which the defendant might be
convicted of the offence of selling obscene books, within the
intent and meaning of see. 207 of the Criminal Code?

“2. Was there any evidence upon which the defendant might
be convicted of having knowingly sold or exposed for sale obscene
books, within see. 207 of the Criminal Code?”

George Wilkie, for the defendant, argued that it had not
been proved that the books had been exposed for sale or that they
were obseene, or that they were sold or exposed for sale with
the defendant's knowledge, or that the defendant knew of their
obscene character.  These were essentials of the case for the prose-
cution: Rex v. Beaver (1905), 9 O.L.R. 418, 9 Can. Cr. Cas., 415.
On the question of obscenity, he referred to Burbidge's Digest of
the Criminal Law of Canada, pp. 163 and 164, especially the note
at the foot of the latter page.

J. R. Cartwright, K.C., and E. Bayly, K.C., for the Crown,
contended that the defendant had been rightly convieted. There
was sufficient evidence to establish that the defendant had know-
ledge that the books were on sale and were sold and that they
were obscene,  On the question of obseenity they referred to
The Queen v. Hicklin (1868), L.R. 3 Q.B. 360; People v. Doris
(1897), 14 App. Div. N.Y. 117; People v. Muller (1884), 96
N.Y. 408; State v. MeKee (1900), 73 Conn. United
States v. Bennett (1879), 16 Blatehf. (Circuit Court) 338:
Rex v. Key (1908), 1 Cr. App. R. 135,

Wilkie, in reply.

April 4, 1912, Mereopitn, J.A.:—The convicted man is a
reputable book-seller, who carries on business, in an extensive
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way, in one of the business centres of Toronto.  Although neither
his reputation, nor the character and extent of his business, is
a reason why he should not be convieted, and punished, if guilty,
vet they are not things without weight, and very considerable
weight, in considering the probuabilities of the truth of the charge
against him upon the question whether there was any reason-
able evidenee of guilt addueed against him at the trial, as well
as upon the question of fact, with which the Court cannot deal,
whether guilty or not guilty.

The charge against him seems to have been a double one in
two senses, exposing for sale and selling two different obscene
books; but no question is raised in that respeet; the convietion
seems to have been in accordance with the charge, as if of one
offence only.

The offence is one against morality, and one of a despicable
character; the maximum punishment of which is two years’
imprisonment; and it must be “knowingly” committed, *“ with-
out lawful justification or excuse.”

Assuming the books to have been scld, or exposed for sale,
and to have been obseene books, which is assuming a good deal
in favour of the prosecution, two other essential things must have
been proved against the accused before he rightly could have
been convicted: (1) that the books were sold or exposed for
sale with his knowledge; and (2) that he knew of their obscene
character. This is but a reasonable provision of the law; if it
were otherwise, the lot of a book-seller, however honest and
anxious to avoid anything like offending morality, would be a
hard one; and especially hard upon one who carries a stock of
a quarter of a million volumes, as one of the witnesses thought
the accused does.

Neither book was manifestly or notoriously obscene or im-
moral; and it may be that neither is in that respect better or
worse than a great number of books which are freely sold and
read evervwhere; and there is, I should think, nothing in either
of them to make them very attractive to any one; and the small
profit to be derived from their sale is hardly such as would in-
duee a large dealer to coneeal them in his cellar, so that he might
sell them with less chanee of being found out, and to sell them
with the possibility of two vears’ imprisonment in the peni-
tentiary before his eves,

There was no sort of evidence of any exposure of them for
sale; and there, manifestly, should have been a finding of *“not
guilty” to that extent; but there was not; on the contrary, there
seems to have been a conviction in respeet of which the penalty
imposed was to some extent imposed.

Nor can | think that there was any reasonable evidence of
a guilty knowledge on the part of the convieted man of the sale
which was made, and which was of one of the books only, or of
its obscene character, if it really has any.
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1t is quite plain that, in the extensive business of the convieted
man, the books in question might have been bought and sold
without his knowledge; he did not attend to the department in
which such books, that is, “works of fiction,” are sold. He
testified that he did not know that there were any such books
in his establishment; that he had a year or more before found
invoices of them and returned them, because, from what he had
heard, he thought their tendency was suggestive, and so did
not want to sell them. There is not a word of testimony to the
contrary of this; the most that can be said is, that, if dealing
with & man who might be thought untruthful and tricky, there
were some circumstances of suspicion, a book having been sold
and other books having been found in the cellar; things which
are not unsatisfactorily explained by the witnesses for the prose-
cution. But no one, much less a reputable man doing an exten-
sive reputable business, is to be convieted on suspicion merely;
when there is no more than that against him a verdiet of *not
guilty” should be entered. The statement that, from what he
had heard, he thought their tendency suggestive, is a good way
removed from an admission that he knew that they were obscene,

The cases which were referred to on the argument here were
very different from this case; in them the obscene character of
the writings was manifest, and in some of them it was the author
who was prosecuted and who had sold them.

In a case of this character, where there may be different
opinions as to the immorality of a book, which is being generally
sold here and in other countries or another country, it would
seem to me to be the better course for those who object to its
sale on that ground, to give notice of such objection to such a
book-seller as the convieted man is, and to prosecute only if the
objection is not heeded.  No sueh book-seller ean have any
reasonable desire to sell such books as those in question, if they
be obscene, for all there is in it for him, at the risk of being branded
as a eriminal and sent to penitentiary for two years, after first
perjuring himself in the hope of escaping conviction,

I would answer the second question in the negative and direet
that the accused be discharged.

Maceg, J.A.:—The two questions stated by the Police Magis-
trate under the order of the Court for its opinion refer only to
sec. 207 of the Criminal Code, 1906, under which he had professed
to convict. That section, as amended in 1909, declares that
every one is guilty of an indictable offence “who knowingly,
without lawful justification or excuse,—(a) makes, manufactures,
or sells, or exposes for sale or to publie view . . any obscene
boos or other printed, typewritten or otherwise written matter,
or any picture, photograpli, model or other object tending to
corrupt morals.” In the information laid against this defen-
dant it was charged only that in the month of April, 1911, he,
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“contrary to law, exposed for sale and sold certain indecent and
obscene books, tending to corrupt public morals, contrary to the
form of the statute in such case made and provided.” 1t was
not charged that he did it either knowingly or without justifica-
tion or excuse. It was necessary to allege that he did it knowingly
to bring it under that section. The information was not amended.
He, therefore, was not charged with any eriminal offence under
that section. The words “contrary to law” and “contrary to
the form of the statute’” do not make up for the absence of that
allegation of knowledge.

In the formal convietion, however, the words ““ knowingly" and
“without lawful justification or excuse” are inserted in setting out
the offence, which is otherwise described as in the information,
except that the word “morals” is substituted for *“ public morals;"
and the word “obscene” for “indecent and obscene.”

In his statement of the ease for this Court, the learned Police
Magistrate says: “The defendant elected to be tried summarily
and pleaded not guilty. After hearing evidence, 1 was of the
opinion that the charge was proved, and accordingly convicted
the defendant, being satisfied that the books were obscene, and
that the defendant knew that they were on sale in his establish-
ment.” It is not specifically stated whether or not the Police
Magistrate was satisfied that the defendant knew of the books

being obscene, and we are as to that left to the inference to be
drawn from the fact that he made the convietion.  In his reasons

“r

for his decision, given at the time, he said, “The section of the
Code under which this prosecution is brought is 207.”

It would, therefore, appear that the defendant was convieted
of an offence with which he was not charged and for which he
had not consented to be tried summarily.

As the charge was laid *“‘contra formam statuti,” and was
dealt with under see. 207, and the questions propounded refer
only to that section, it is unnecessary to consider how far, at
common law, a book-seller charged with selling and publishing
an obscene libel, sold by his elerk in the course of his business,
could shelter himself by his want of knowledge of the sale, or of
the contents, or how far either must be brought home to him.

Dealing, then, with the case as one under sec. 207, there
must be shewn knowledge of the sale or exposure for sale, and
also knowledge of the character of the book. That the latter
must be shewn was held by this Court in Rex v. Beaver, 9 O.L.R.
418, 9 Can. Crim. Cas,, 415.

The former is also manifestly necessary. An auctioneer selling
a library, or shelf or package of books, might not know what
books it contained. Objectionable articles may be made or
sold in a factory or shop; and, while the statute would be
futile if the proprietor could escape because they were not made
or sold directly by himself, but by his employees, though with
his knowledge, it might also cause injustice if he could be punished
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because the making or selling was done for his benefit by his ONT.
employees, though without his knowledge or consent, or even
against his orders. “; A{;
The only books specifically referred to in the evidence are _’_'_I_"
three recent novels, which, for brevity, I may refer to as X, Y, Rex
and Z.  There were, indeed, other books found along with these v

" ; ; 3 il
three in the cellar of the defendant’s shop, but the Police Magis- e i

trate does not name them, and merely says that some of them — Maeee 1A
were of the same type, and some of them he had looked through

! sufficiently to see that they all were more or less within the scope
of the test of obscenity.

Apart from evidence as to the character of the three books,
X, Y, and Z, the prosecution contented itself with proving that
a copy of Y had been bought on the 6th April at the defendant’s M
shop from a clerk who brought it from the cellar; and that on ;%1}
the 8th April a Police Inspector went to the shop and there saw b
the defendant, who said that he had not a copy of X or Y; but

§
the Inspector says, “On searching, we found,” in a box in the 1\1‘5
cellar, eleven copies of X and thirteen of Y, besides other books, ¥
including one or more copies of Z, and that, in the defendant’s ol
presence, his elerk said that he had been selling the book Y, HN
and he thought that the defendant knew it. It is not stated ik

i whether the defendant made any remark thereupon. Indeed, it it
is not said that he heard it. He was not asked about it when (

g called in his own defence, and he did not refer to it.
3 It is not shewn that any of the public or customers were ever Iy

o admitted to the cellar. There was, therefore, no evidence of ex- W

4 posure of any of the books for sale, and only proof of a sale of one " l':.‘

copy of one book, Y, by the clerk, and no proof of the defendant’s
knowledge of the contents of any of the books. Z and the other
unnamed books are not further spoken of, and may be left out
of consideration.

For the defence, the defendant himself and four of his il

clerks gave evidence. It appears that his stock contains sl
150,000 to 250,000 books, of which 4,000 to 7,000 are kept
in the cellar in stock. A clerk says the whole place is full of
books, and another, that he “put the boxes of books down the ,~

cellar, and especially as at Christmas time there was not room
for as much stock.” The defendant says that in the cellar he
has in stock a theological library and cook-books and other books i
that he has not room for in the shop. One department of the il
business is that of dealing in old or antiquarian books. One of 1
his clerks, Appleton, who states that he looks after the sale of ;
the new books, says that X came out in 1907, “and was sold by !
other dealers here before we had it.” “We sold a great many |
copies till lately, and now we would not sell more than one a

month or s0.”” The defendant, himself, testified that he did sell !
them when they first came out, but “a year or more ago’ he i
found in the invoices a shipment of X and Y, and he returned 1

|
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the books, as from what he heard he thought the tendeney of
the books was suggestive, and so did not want to sell them;
and he did not know, when the Police Inspector asked him about
them, that he had a copy of either, and he had not read X nor Y,
“nor such books.” A clerk also testifies that, “a year ago or so,”
the defendant returned a shipment containing X and Y, *“be-
cause they were not, 1 think, the elass of books he desired to sell.”

Even if we take these statements as going far enough to shew
that the defendant knew that the books were obseene or such as
tended to corrupt morals, it is evident that there is here no proof
of a sale with his concurrence after he had learned of the objee-
tionable character of the books,

Then it appears from the evidence of Appleton, who
has charge of the sale of the new books, that “a year ago
we got some twenty-five copies of each of these two books,”
X and Y, and “those found by the police were the re-
mainder of that order.”  The invoice containing Y seems to
have been produced by the witness before the Police Magis-
trate, but is not among the papers sent to this Court, and
the exact date of it does not further appear. Appleton says:
“The defendant probably did not know that I had ordered these
books, as I am in charge of that branch.” Another clerk says
that the defendant is at the office in rear, and does not know what
new books are in stoek.  Another says: “The whole place is full
of books, 230,000 I would think. Appleton and 1 are in charge
of the front of the shop. The defendant is at the office in rear,
and looks after the old books. .. The defendant does not
know just what books we have bought, nor all we have in stock.”
Another clerk, Congdon, who says he is in charge of the anti-
quarian books, says that the defendant also looks after that de-
partment, and the defendant does not know what new books
are in stock.  The defendant, himself, says: “I am at the back
of the shop, where the branches of the business 1 look after are
situated: 1 do not attend to the new novels at all.” He says
that the clerk who ordered the last copies of these two books was
in his employ when he returned the shipment, but he only remem-
bered telling Congdon of having sent the shipment back, and
he, Congdon, would have nothing to do with ordering these books

“they would likely be ordered by Appleton.”

Bearing in mind the extent of the defendant’s business, and
the fact that the prosecution proved only one sale—and that
by a elerk—of one book, without shewing that the defendant
had any knowledge of its contents, can it be said that this evi-
dence given for the defence affirmatively establishes knowledge
by the defendant that this small order for these books had been
given by his elerk, after he himself had sent back a shipment of
these very books on account of their character? It may be said
that, even taking the evidence for the defence, it is not absolutely
clear that the defendant did not know of his clerk’s order, whether
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at the time or afterwards, or of the receipt of the books there-
under, even though he thought that all had been sold; but it
was for the prosecution to establish knowledge, not for him to
shew want of knowledge; and, if the prosecution had had doubts
upon the subjeet, it could have been cleared up by eross-examina-
tion. That not having been done, there was, in my opinion,
failure of proof of knowledge of the sale, even in the sense of
implied or tacit authority or consent to it; and, therefore, the
second question should be answered in the negative,

It is unnecessary to answer the first question, as it becomes
merely academic when the second is answered in the negative.
No specific parts of any of the books have been referred to in
the information, the convietion, the evidence, or in the argu-
ment. The statement by the Police Inspector as to the contents
of X and Y was conceded to be at best inaceurate.  No particu-
lars seem to have been asked for by the defence, or delivered.
The result would be that it would be necessary for the Court to
peruse the books seized to see if it could discover any ul-jm-linn-
able page, phrase, or sentiment, before it could answer the ques-
tion propounded. In a sense this would be to ask the Court
to be accuser instead of Judge. It is a course which should not
again be adopted.

The defendant, on the evidence, should, in my opinion, have
been acquitted, and the convietion should be declared invalid.

Moss, (1.0, Garrow and Macrares, JIA., concurred.

Conviction quashed

ROBINSON v. REYNOLDS.
Ontarvio High Court, Trial before Britton, J, May 11, 1912

1. Broxees (§11 112 REAL ESTATE  AGES T==UOMMISSION=]" A\ Y MENT
OUT OF PURCHASE MONEY,

Where the plaintifT, a real estate agent, procures written offor
from a person to purchase land owned by the vendor, which the lattes
aceepted, and where the only agreement shewn as to the puyment of
the plainti stipulation in such offer that it was
to be paid out of the purchase money, the agent is not entitled, upon
the refusal of the purchaser to complete the purchase, to recover
v commission from the vendor, unless the latter is at fanlt in not
carrying out the purchase

s commission was

2, VeENpor AND PURCHASER (§ 1 B—3)—DEprcrioN FOR PURCHASE MONEY
OF COMMISSION - WRITTEN CONTRACT

A stipulation in an agreement for the sale of land made by written

offer and acceptance and negotiated through a real estate agent, that

the agent's commission against the vendor be paid “out of and form

part of the purchase money” permits the purchaser to pay suel com

mission on closing the purchase and to deduet the amount so paid
from the purchase money then payable to the vendor
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Acrion by real estate agents for 21 per ¢ent. commission upon
the selling price of the defendant’s property, viz.,, King George
Apartments, in the city of Toronto.

The action was dismissed

G H. Walson, K.C., for the plaintiffs

C'. A, Moss, for the defendant.

Brirron, J.:—The plaintiffs procured an offer in writing
from one John G. Foster, addressed to the defendant, offering
to purchase this property for $60,000, which offer the defend-
ant accepted; but subsequently Foster refused to earry out the
purchase, and he did not in fact purchase, and the defendant
did not receive any purchase-money from Foster,

The plaintiffs’ contention is, that immediately upon a con-
tract of purchase and sale heing made—through the intervention
and ageney of the plaintiffs, acting for the defendant—they, the
plaintiffs, became entitled to their commission, no matter whether
the actual purchase and sale was earried out or not,

There was an employment by the defendant of the plaintiffs
as the defendant’s agents to make a sale of the property men-
tioned. The particulars and real nature of the agreement he-
tween the plaintiffs and defendant are found in the offer drawn
up by the plaintiffs and signed by Foster, which offer the de-
fendant aceepted. In the offer it is stipulated as follows: ‘‘The
agents’ commission to be paid out of and form part of the pur-
chase-money, at 2} per eent.”’ There was nothing in writing
between the plaintiffs and defendant, and the defendant con-
tends that the agreement between him and the plaintiffs is evi-
denced in the offer written out as above-mentioned.

It may he that this special clanse was inserted in the offer
to prevent any possibility of Foster being liable for commission,
and also to permit Foster’s paying it out of the purchase-money,
and so prevent the money, to the extent of the commission, going
into the hands of the defendant. This offer permitted Foster to
pay the commission and keep the amount so paid out of the pur-
chase-money. T find that the agreement between the plaintiffs
and the defendant was that, in the event of a sale—not merely
an agreement for sale—the commission was to he paid out of
the purchase-money.

This is what the plaintiffs said. If the commission was to
form part of the purchase-money—as between Foster and the
defendant—it ean come only out of the purchase-money as be-
tween the plaintiffs and defendant. 1f Foster paid it, he would
be protected. If the defendant got the purchase-money, or if
the sale was carried out so that he would be responsible for not
getting it, the defendant would be liable to the plaintiffs. In the
acceptance of the offer by the defendant, he acknowledges re-
ceipt of $500 as a deposit. This cheque of Foster’s was payable
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to the order of the defendant, but it was not received by him,
nor was it offered to him, nor was he asked to indorse it, Tt
was retained by Mr. Bethune, one of the plaintiffs, for some time,
and when presented payment had heen stopped, as Foster re
pudiated and refused to go on with his proposed purchase. The
holding of the cheque, and all the dealing between the plaintiffs
and Foster, convinee me that the real agreement between the
plaintiffs and the defendant was as the defendant eontends, viz,
that the commission was to be paid out of the purchase-money
The defendant has acted in perfect good faith throughout. He
did his utmost to get Foster to complete the purchase

The fair inference upon all the evidenee is, that the defend
ant never agreed to pay and the plaintiffs did not intend to
charge so large a commission for procuring a person to sign
an agreement to purchase, for an amount which the defendant
would aceept.

No fraud or collusion in this transaction ean be imputed to
the plaintiffs: but to aceept their contention would offer a
temptation to any real estate agent, upon a general retainer or
employment, who would be guilty of collusion to procure an offer
at a priee that the vendor would gladly aecept, and then have
the proposed purchaser rvetreat or simply decline to carry ont
the purchase, allowing the agents to colleet their commission
from the responsible owner. My decision, however, is hased
upon my view of the evidence in this case, and not becanse of
what might happen in some other case

Then T am of opinion that the defendant is entitled to sue
ceed upon the ground taken in the amended statement of de
fence,

The plaintiffs did so draw this agreement as to give to the
purchaser Foster an opportunity to resist the defendant’s elaim
to have Foster's purchase carrvied out, It scems to me that the
Statute of Frands affords a good defence to Foster. [If the
defendant in good faith desired to have the purchase earried
out, and if the plaintiffs are in any way responsible for that
so that no purchase-money was received or ecan he received hy
the defendant out of the alleged sale by the plaintiffs, the de
fendant is not ealled upon to pay.

The action will be dismissed with costs: and the counter
claim also will be dismissed with costs

Action dismissed
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UNDERWOOD v. COX.

Ontario Divisional Court, Boyd, C., Latchford, and Middleton, J.J.
April 18, 1912,

1. Fravp Axp pEcrT (§ IV—16) —CoMPROMISE OF FICTITIOUS CLAIM-—
CAVEAT—OVERREACHING BY BROTHER—LACK OF INDEPENDENT AD-
VICE—THREATS,

Where one who has no boud fide claim against the estate files a
caveat against the grantingz of probate of the will of his deceased
father, and obtains from his sister, the principal beneficiary under
the will, an agreement purporting to be a compromise of his elaim,
whereby she covenants to pay to him more than the amount which she
receives under the will, and it appears that she was overmatehed, over-
borne, and overreached by his superior shrewdness, and that, though
she consulted her husband, he was, to the brother’s knowledge, of
no assistance to her, and that she had no independent or professional
advic ind, further, that the agreement was obtained by misrepre
sentations as to the legal situation, and by threats to give publicity to
a seeret of her past life, the agreement cannot be enfor ed.

[Underwood v. Cox, 3 O.W.N, 765, reversed.]

2. Evipesce (§ 1V K—441) ——ADMISSIBILITY OF LETTERS WITHOUT FPREJU-
MCE—WHEN NOT BONA FIDE—THREATS,

Letters written without prejudice, and bond fide to induce the settle
ment of litigation, are not admissible in evidence against the party
sending them, but this rule does not protect a letter not written for
the purpose of a bond fide offer of compromise, but containing threats.

ie v. Wyld, 11 O.R. 422, follow Kurt: & Co. v. Spence and
L.T.R. 438; Phipson on Evide Sth ed., p. 211, referred to.]

AcmioN to recover $964.70 and interest upon a covenant in
an agreement,

R. U. McPherson and J. W, McCullough, for the plaintiffs,

G. Waldron, for the defendant.

February 28, Keuny, J.:—This action is brought by Wil-
liam J. Underwood and his sister, Catharvine Laurie, against
their sister, Jane Cox, for payment of $964.70 and interest,
elaimed as their two-thirds share of an amount agreed by the
defendant to be paid to the plaintiffs and another sister, Mary
Ann Cox, by an agreement dated the Hth May, 1910,

The defence set up is, that the defendant was induced to
sign the agreement by the misrepresentation, frand, intimida-
tion, duress, and undue influence of the plaintiff Underwood
and Joseph Laurie, hushand of the plaintiff Laurie, and that
she signed it without knowing its contents and without legal
advice as to her rights.

The parties to the agreement are children of Francis Under-
wood, deceased, who by his will, dated the 2nd August, 1902, and
a codicil thereto, dated the 1st March, 1905, gave to Ida Frances
Cox. the minor daughter of the defendant, an organ and a
mortgage which he held for $1,000 on the property of the defen-
dant and her husband, and all the rest of his estate to the
defendant.
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The testator died on the 27th Marceh, 1910; and his executors
applied for probate of the will; the plaintiffs and Mary Ann
Cox filed a caveat against the issne of probate, alleging that
the will was not exeeuted hy the testator, or, if so, that it was
executed under undue influence and duress, and that he was not
of sound mind, memory, and understanding.

The real ground, however, of the plaintiff Underwood’s ob-
jection to the disposition made by the testator of his estate is
found in the elaim which he had, or believed he had, against the
testator and his estate, arising out of an agreement or under-
standing between the father and son. Several years prior to his
death, the father obtained from the son a conveyance of certain
property, at a price much less than its real value, on the promise
that, at his death, the son would he given a substantial part of
his estate. The son honestly helieved that he was entitled to
enforee this elaim against his father's estate, or to share in the
assets of the estate; he also elaimed the organ whieh his father
bequeathed to the defendant’s minor daughter, and which, the
evidence shews, had been at some time looked upon as belonging
to him. The claim of the plaintiff Catharine Laurie was, that
she had been promised hy her father consideration for having
nursed and carved for him for a considerable time prior to his
death, and that the estate was, therefore, indebted to her. Mary
Ann Cox, the other party to the agreement sued on, is not a
party to these proceedings; it was stated hy the defendant’s
counsel, during the progress of the trial, that she was not press-
ing her claim,

O1 the 4th May, 1910, the plaintiff Underwood, who lives in
London, went to the defendant’s residence in the township of
M kham, and, during an interview of considerable length, pro-
posed a settlement. The defendant’s hushand, Walter Cox, was
not present; and Underwood, after stating to the defendant why
he claimed to be entitled to a settlement, named an amount
which would be accepted for the plaintiffs and Mary Ann Cox
in full, the terms proposed heing exactly those which were after-
wards embodied in the agreement sued upon. The defendant, as
was natural, said that she wished to talk it over with her hus-
hand; and Underwood left the honse with the understanding
that he would return next day for her answer.

On the 5th May, Underwood, accompanied by Joseph Laurie,
hushand of the plaintiff Catharine Laurie, returned to the de-
fendant’s house, and had a further interview with the defen-
dant and her husband. The proposal made on the day previous
was fully and freely talked over and considered by those pre-
sent, and the defendant and her husband decided to aceept it;
and it was suggested by the defendant’s hushand that the plain-
tiff Underwood draw the agreement to earry out the settlement.
This Underwood refused to do. It was then suggested, and, so
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far as the evidence shews, by the defendant, that Underwood,
Walter Cox. and Laurie go to one of the executors, who lived
near hy, and have him draw the agreement. They went. The
executor also refused to draw it, and suggested the parties going
to Markham to have it drawn by a solicitor. These same three
persons went together to Markham, a distance of five and a half
miles, and instruetions were given to a solicitor to prepare the
agreement, on the terms which had been agreed on at the de-
fendant'’s house, all three being with the solicitor when the
instruetions were given.

The plaintiff Underwood and the defendant’s husband re-
turned to the defendant’s house with the agreement, which, on
the way from the solicitor’s office, had heen signed hy Mary
Ann Cox.

The defendant did not then read the agreement, but she
admits that she understood the proposal for settlement, made
by her brother on the 4th, and discussed hy the parties as-
sembled at her house on the 5th, There is no doubt, and the
defendant admits it, that the agreement is in the exact terms
then proposed. Under these circumstances, its not having been
read over at the time of its execution is not a ground for re-
pudiating the agreement: North British RW. Co. v. Wood
(1891), 18 Ct. of Sess. Cas. (4th series) 27,

The defendant shewed some hesitation about signing, and the
plaintiff Underwood said to her: ‘*Now, Jane, you do not need
to sign that paper, and don’t sign it unless you feel that you are
giving what you feel that T should have; T consider this is a
just elaim, and if you don’t consider so, don’t sign that paper.”
And, further, ““You don’t have to sign it."”’

The defendant’s hushand then said, ““What will happen if
she don’t sign it?"”" Underwood replied, *“We will let it stand
on its own merits, will let the case stand on its own merits, and
the case will settle itself.””

At the trial it was admitted that there was no duress; and
there was no evidence of it; but it was attempted to be shewn
that there was fraud and misrepresentation on the part of the
plaintiff Underwood, and that he had intimidated the defen-
dant and obtained undue influence over her.

The evidence does not satisfy me that these contentions are
well founded. 1 do not find that the plaintiff Underwood or
Joseph Laurie made any misrepresentations to or perpetrated
any fraud upon the defendant; nor do I think that any fidu-
ciary relationship, or relationship of confidence, existed or was
established between these parties such as wounld justify the as-
sumption of undue influence; nor is there any evidence of in-
timidation.

The defendant alleged that she was in a weak state of health,
that she had no independent advice, and that she was unduly
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pressed by the plaintiff Underwood, and was hastened into the
settlement.

It is true that she was not then in the best of health, but she
was not so unwell as not to he able to attend to her household
duties, which she was doing unaided at that time, ineluding the
preparation of dinner for those who assembled at her house on
the 5th May. She was not unduly pressed or hurried into the
settlement. When, on the 4th May, she expressed her desire to
be given until the following day to consult with her hushand,
her brother readily consented. She had from some time on the
Hh May until the afternoon of the 5th May to confer with her
husband, and obtain other independent adviee, had she desired to
do so; and I do not find that any ecircumstances arose which
threw the burden on the plaintiffs of doing more than they did.
See Wallis v. Andrews (1869), 16 Gr. 624, at p. 640,

In Harrvison v. Guest (1856), 2 Jur. N.S. 911, the Lord
Chancellor held the absence of professional adviee no o tion,
when the party dealt with did not oecupy a fiduciary relation-
ship. It was also there laid down that the burden of proof is
on the party seeking to set aside the transaction to shew that he
has been imposed on, and it is not for him to say, *‘I had no pro-
fessional advice,”’ unless he can shew that there has been con-
trivance or management on the part of the person who was
dealing with him, and whose transaction is sought to be set aside,
to prevent him having that adviee.

Nothing has happened in this case to throw that burden on
the plaintiffs.

The defendant endeavoured to shew that the plaintiff Under-
wood had used an incident in her early life as a threat to compel
her to make the settlement. 1 do not find this to have been the
fact. The defendant’s evidence is, that she did not know if her
brother knew of this incident, that he had never mentioned
it to her, and when she herself mentioned the subject on the 4th
May, she cannot remember his making any reply. Her brother
denies having alluded to it.

It was argued on behalf of the defendant that the filing of
the caveat was not the proper procedure by which Underwood
could establish his claim. e, however, believed that whatever
procedure was adopted by his solicitor in London, who prepared
the caveat, was the necessary procedure by which to establish
his elaim,

The settlement was, to my mind, deliberately made; and the
fact that one party to it afterwards became dissatisfied with it,
is not of itself a sufficient reason for seeking to be relieved from
it. In many instances, compromises or settlements are entered
nto which are at the time not altogether satisfactory to one or
other of the parties, but which they, nevertheless, enter into so
as to avoid the expense and anxiety attendant on litigation, or
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to settle doubtful claims, or for some such consideration, and
the Courts uphold these compromises or settlements,

It is not unusual for a compromise to be effected on the
ground that the party making it has a chance of succeeding in
it; and, if he bond fide believes he has a fair chance of success,
he has a reasonable ground for suing, and his forbearanee to sue
will constitute a good consideration: Callisher v. Bischoffsheim
(1870), L. R. 5 Q.BB. 449; Miles v. New Zealand Alford Estate
Co. (1886), 32 Ch.D. 266.

These plaintiffs not only believed that they had a chance of
success, but there is nothing in the evidence to shew that their
claims were, in their minds, at least, other than honest ones, or
that they were otherwise than honestly made. By the agreement
sued upon, they and Mary Ann Cox, in consideration of the pay-
ment which the defendant agreed to make, released their
father's estate from all elaims which they had against it, and
withdrew, without costs, the caveat.

After a earveful consideration of the evidence, 1 can only
conelude that the plaintiffs are entitled to succeed. There will,
therefore, be judgment in their favour for the amount prayed
for and costs,

The defendant appealed from the judgment of Kerny, J.
The appeal was allowed.

(. Waldron, for the defendant, argued that the learned trial
Judge erred in the following findings: that the plaintiff Under-
wood did not make any misrepresentation to the defendant; that
his real ground of ohjection to the will was in the elaim which
he had against his father’s estate; that there was no evidence
of intimidation; that no fiduciary relationship or relationship of
confidence existed between these parties such as would justify
the assumption of undue influence; that the defendant’s health
was not such as to interfere with her power to contract; that the
absence of professional advice was not objectionable; that the
plaintift Underwood had not used an incident in the early life
of the defendant as a threat to compel her to make a settlement ;
that the agreement was deliberately made; that the plaintiffs
believed they had a fair chanee of success. Counsel contended,
on the contrary, that there was fraud and overreaching on the
part of the plaintiff Underwood; that there was a fiduciary
relationship or relationship of confidence between the plaintiff
U'nderwood and the defendant; that there was evidence of in-
timidation; that the plaintiff Underwood did use an ineident in
the early life of the defendant as a threat to compel her to make

a settlement ; in fine, that the bargain was not a compromise of
a dispute at all, but a surrender by the defendant through fear
of Underwood’s hetrayal of a family seeret, and should not be
enforced,  The learned trial Judge ~hul|l|l have admitted in
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evidence a letter written by the plaintiff Underwood from Lon-
don in November, 1911, Though written *‘without prejudiee,”
it was not a privileged document, hecause it contained threats,
and was not written for the purpose of a bond fide offer of com-
promise: Kurtz and Co. v. Spence and Sons (1888), 58 L.T.R.
438, at p. #441: Phipson on Evidence, p. 211; Pirie v. Wyld
(1886), 11 O.R. 422. In support of his eontentions counsel
also referred to the following authorities: Cadaval v. Collins
(1836), 4 A. & E. 858 : Huguenin v. Bascley (1807), 14 Ves, 273,
at p. 287 Gordon v. Gordon (1816), 3 Swanst. 400; Hoghton v.
Hoghton (1852), 15 Beav. 278; In re Roberts, [1905] 1 Ch. 704;
Tennent v, Tennents (1870), LLR. 2 Se. & D. 6; Hartopp v. Har-
fopp (1856), 21 Beav. 259; Ellis v. Barker (1871), L.R. 7 Ch.
104; Boyse v. Rossborough (1856), 6 HL.L. . 2: Allcord v. Skin-
ner (1887), 36 Ch. D. 145, at p. 171; Stapilton v. Stapilton
(1739), 1 Atk. 2; MeCaffrey v. McCaffrey (1891), 18 A.R. 599;
Trusts and Guarantee Co. v. Hart (1900), 31 O.R. 414, at p.
420; Gissing v. T. Eaton Co. (1911), 25 O.1.R. 50,

R. U. McPherson and J. W, McCullogh, for the plaintiffs,
contended that the learned trial Judge was right in his findings,
and that his judgment should be affirmed. They denied that the
evidence shewed any fraud or overreaching or intimidation, or
that any fidueiary relationship existed between the plaintiff
Underwood and the defendant such as would justify the as-
siumption of undue intluence.  Therefore, the absence of profes-
sional advice was no objection: Harrison v. Gues Jur. N.S.
911, The plaintiff Underwood did not use an ineident in the
early life of the defendant as a threat to compel her to make a
settlement, The settlement was deliberately made, and the faet
that one party afterwards became dissatisfied with it was not
a sufficient reason of itself to be relieved from it. The bargain
was a fair compromise, as the plaintiffs believed that they had
a fair chance of suecess: Callisher v. Bischoffsheim, LR, 5 Q.B.
9 Miles v. New Zealand Alford Estate Co., 32 Ch. D. 266.
The learned trial Judge was right in refusing to admit in evi-
dence the letter of November, 1911, as it was a privileged eom-
munication: Kurtz and Co, v. Spence and Sons, 58 L. T.R. 438,

Waldron, in reply.

April 18, Boyn, C'.:—This appears to be a nefarious trans-
action, though its real import was obscured at the trial by
reason of the rejection of evidence. Tad the letter written by the
plaintiff Underwood to the defendant pendente lite heen admitted
and considered by the learned trial Judge, T do not doubt hut
that he would have arrived at a conelusion diametrically opposite
to that now under appeal. He was impressed favourably with the
appearance of the plaintiff Underwood, but his own letter shews
to what unworthy means he will stoop to serve his own cnds.
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The dispute falls to be decided (as 1 take it) mainly, if not
entirely, on what occurred during the first interview of one
hour between brother and sister (the said parties) on the 4th
May, 1910, when he made the claim which was afterwards
given legal effect to by the writing under seal which is the foun-
dation of this suit. But to understand the situation it is needful
to refer to what is in evidence and to the prior sequence of
events,

The first group relates to the plaintiff Underwood’s claim
of unfair treatment by his father. This claim, vague at best,
looms up more largely at the trial than elsewhere. It was
not known by or disclosed to the defendant; and, even
now, it is diffienlt to find out coherently any elaim from the
evidence. But, so far as it has substanee, the situation is this,
and it rests entively on the recollection and good faith and
credibility of the plaintiff Underwood—with no serap of writing
to assist, but all the writings making against him.

The lot named in the will, N. part of lot 18 (fifty acres) in
the 4th of Scarborough, was, the plaintift Underwood says,
originally owned by his mother. She died in 1885, without a
will, leaving the father, this son, and four sisters, of whom the
youngest, the defendant, Jane, was under age. It is said that
the mother intended that the son should get this lot, and it is
said that the father got the sisters to sign off their claims, with
out consideration, in favour of the plaintiff Underwood. It is
said that the plaintiff mortgaged for $500, with which money he
went into business, without much success apparvently. Then
the father asked the son to sell him the lot, and the son wanted
for his interest therein $3,500, but the father would give no
more than $2,000, and this the son took, on the father saying
that the son wonld get a share with the rest of them when he
divided——this being taken to mean, ‘“when he died.”” The son
contradiets himself as to whether the father paid $2,000 and
assumed the mortgage for $500, or whether the mortgage was
to be paid out of the $2,000. This occurred in 1888, This man-
ner of elaim was not explained to the sister when the alleged
settlement took place in 1910. Ile gives it in his evidence in
chief thus: ‘T said 1 felt 1 had not got from the estate what 1
should have got, that my father had not left me what 1 was
promised, what T felt | should have: she said she had nothing
to do with that part of it as to what I got or should have got.”
“Then I asked her, in view of the cireumstances, her knowing
how the property was made and got together, and how I stayed
at home till T was twenty-three, I felt it was due her to make
good the money, as she was evidently the only heneficiary under
the will, that 1 should have a certain amount and that Mary
Ann and Catharine should have something.”
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To follow the history of this lot after the son conveyed to the
father. In 1902, the father called upon Mr. Holmes to draw
the papers conveying this lot to his daughter Jane and her
husband, Walter Cox, and to draw a mortgage, on the 26th
July, 1902, for $1,000, upon the lot, from the Coxes, payable to
the father at the end of fourteen years, with interest at two and
a half per cent. This was subject to a first mortgage from the
father to George Morgan (probably an exeeutor) for 1,500
Mr, Holmes says that the mortgage was drawn expressly for the
purpose of being left to the child (Ida Frances). According to
the statement of the plaintiff Underwood, this farm was worth
about 5,000, and they were to give $4750 for it: of which
$1,500 was paid by the defendant. There was also the mortgage
for £1,000; and, if it was subjeet to another morteage for $1,500,
that would total $4,000. And the plaintiff omits to tell that his
sister Jane relinquished her shave in the lot originally when it
was conveyed to the plaintiff—worth several hundred dollars
The vest of the sisters got $2.500 each from the father during
his life.

The next group relates to the will of the father

The father died at the home of the plaintiff Catharine
Lanrie, on the 27th March, 1910, Tlis will was made on the 2nd
August, 1902, pursnant to instructions given to the well-known
lawyer Mr. olmes, who drew it and was one of the subseribing
witnesses. He gives to his daughter Mary Ann Cox and her
husband the north half of lot 19 in the 4th of Searborongh, heing
100 aeres. To his daughter Fanny Newell, a small lot eontain-
ing one-eighth of an acre alongside the north fifty acres of lot
18, conveyed to Jane and her husband.  To Frances (ox,
danghter of his daughter Jane, he gives the organ and also the
mortgage for $1,000 made by his daughter Jane to the testator,
and drawn less than a week before the will,

Nothing is given to his son Richard and daughter Catharine,
as he had advanced them a sufficient portion (the plaintiff Un-
derwood’s name is not mentioned), and the residue of the estate
goes to Jane Cox.

There was a codicil to this, drawn after it because of the
death of Fanny Newell on the 1st March, 1905, when the testa-
tor was living with his daughter Catharine, whereby the small
lot of one-eighth of an acre was given to his daughter Jane,
the defendant. This codicil was drawn by Mr. Holmes’s partner,
Mr. Gregory, and by him also witnessed. The defendant was
too ill to attend the funeral, but the plaintiff Underwood was
there, and then found out from the Lauries that a will had been
made. The matter was talked over with the sister Catharine,
and they were disturbed about the way the property was left,
and about Ida the little girl securing the mortgage for $1,000.
The plaintiff hespoke a copy of the will, and returned to his home
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at London. Ile writes a letter on the 24th April, 1910, to the
executor George Morgan urging the forthcoming of a copy of the
will, in which he says: ““All the information I have is from the
Lauries to the effect the youngest girl (i.c., defendant) in the
family and her daughter eomes in for the entire estate. And it
is my opinion (sie) to go thoroughly into the matter before
allowing the matter to be settled.””

The plaintiff repairs to Mr. Beattie, solicitor in London,
and procures the filing of a eaveat on the 26th April, 1910, on
behalf of the plaintiff and the two sisters Mary and Catharine.
It is not elear what he told this "Olil'i'lﬂ as to the grounds of
attack: atp. 122 of the evidence he says: ** One of the grounds was
his own promise before a witness that T was to have a shave in the
estate.””  And there is this further from his examination for
discovery: “‘Q. And your solicitor did not think that wounld be
a ground for setting aside the will? A, T do not think I asked
him that. T thought possibly that would be a ground for setting
aside the will . . . T did not go into the question of my rea-
sons for the eaveat to Jane.”” Tlowever, the caveat does set forth
as grounds that the alleged will was not executed by the testator,
or, if executed, it was so by means of duress and undue influence
exercised over him, and that he was not of sound mind, memory,
and understanding.  The plaintiff says the caveat was filed
hecause ‘“he felt that he had not got what he felt was just out
of the estate.”

A warning was given on hehalf of the executors on the 27th
April that the contestant was to appear within ten days after
service, failing which the Court would proeeed in the pre-
mises: that would allow him till the end of the first week in
May to aet. Accordingly, on the 3rd May he visited Mr, Gre-
gory, solicitor for the executors, and the caveat was diseussed
and the will, and he asked information, speaking something of
the father and saying the will was not fair. Mr. Gregory in-
formed him that there was no doubt about the validity of the
will or codieil or of the capacity of the testator. e and his
partner Mr. Iolmes had known the testator well for years, and
the plaintiff admits that he was told emphatically that there
was no eanse for hreaking the will.

The plaintiff had visited his father in 1909, and found him
robust and strong-minded, and that was his last visit.

These are the faets, which shew a perfeetly hopeless case for
attacking the disposition of property made by the testator, either
on the grounds set forth in the caveat or upon the vague oral
intimation alleged to he given by the testator, a quarter of a
century hefore his death, that he would leave the son something
by will.  How then does it come that the defendant appeared
willing to settle the plaintiffs” ¢laims by paying $1,400?7 It is
to be noted that Mary makes no claim on the estate and takes
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no part in this litigation; and, further, that the alleged claim of
Catharine for nursing was not in any way referred to before
the defendant, it being supposed and helieved that she (Catha-
rine) had been paid by the testator all that he had promised to
pay her—at so much per week. This apparent family compro
mise turns out to be really a surrender by the defendant, at the
bidding of the plaintiff, hecause of his knowledge and use of a
family secret.  That secret may be revealed hy the use of the
plaintiff’s own words in the letter dated **Nov, , 1911,
written to the defendant after he had been examined for dis
covery in this action:

“T am going to use what evidence I ean get to shew that |
had good reasons to enter a eaveat against the will
You know that my father was indueed to make his will in the
way he did just beeause of that ehild that Walter deelared did
not belong to him, and my father told us when he lived with us
in Uxbridge that the child did not belong to Walter, and did
not look like him, and went so far as to hint pretty loudly who
it did belong to, and there are others in Scarborough who will
be brought to tell what they know.

“You will remember that T was in Searborough that day
that Walter laid drunk on the side of the road after being up
at Markham, aoad threatened to leave you, and you know his
reasons, and he told them to some others in Searborough
AllL T want is my rights.”’

This precious epistle was enclosed in an envelope and
addressed to Mrs, Jane Cox, and marked “*personal,”” with a
double injunetion, marked on the envelope and written again on
a strip of paper, to the post master, ** Please see that the enclosed
letter is given to no one else but to Mrs. Cox,”" and the whole
put into an envelope addressed to the post master at Malvern.
This outside envelope is stamped as of the 24th November at
Malvern, and as of the 25th November at London, where it was
posted. This letter begins *‘Dear Sister Jane' and ends
“Your Bro. Will,”" and has at its opening ** Without prejudice.”
The plaintiff has some knowledge of the niceties of law, such as
that he should not draw an instrument of which he gets the
henefit, and he doubtless thought that this would he seeret
missive not to be revealed or used against him in Court, And
he hoped, no doubt, that it wonld work no less effiecaciously in
writing than if given by hint or word of mouth. But the
authorities shew that this kind of letter, containing threats not
written for she purpose of a boni fide offer of compromise, is not
within the eategory of privileged doenments

On grounds of publie poliey, letters written without pre
judice and written bond fide to induce the settlement of litiga
tion, are not to he used against the party sending them. DBuat,
when the letter embodies threats if the offer be not aceepted, it
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is in the interests of justice that such tacties should be exposed,
and no privilege protects: Kurlz and Co. v. Spence and Sons,
58 LLTR. 438, 441 Phipson on Evidenee, p. 211; Pirie v. Wyld,
11 O.R. 422,

A eritical point in the ease was veached at the beginning of
the cross-examination of the plaintiff. I quote: “*You said you
never made any threats to this woman? A, I never made any
threats, Q. You did not -make any threats on the 4th or 5Hth
May? A Oh, no. Q. Or on any other oceasion? A, Threats
no, sir.”" Then counsel ealls for the letter, but further question-
ing is frustrated by the ruling that it was not admissible. Now
this letter, when looked at and vead on this appeal, is fatal 1o the
plaintiffs’ success.  The trial Judge, believing the answers made
by the plaintifft Underwood, gives judgment in the plaintiffs’
favour, DBut this letter is full of threat and menace of the basest
kind; and so his answers must he diseredited, for this letter dis
closes his threats, and therein stamps him as unteathful, and its
contents reveal that he is also unserupulous.

Leaving Mr. Gregory on the 3rd May, the plaintiff paid his
visit to the defendant—and this visiting her was a new thing
that had not happened before-——on Wednesday the 4th May,
1910.  She had heard nothing about the will from the plain-
tiff or her sisters, but it appears that the solicitor of the exeen-
tors, Mr. Gregory, had. with the exeeutor Morgan, ealled on
her in the e part of April to see about the details of the
estate with a view to obtaining probate. The affidavit of the
other exeentor, Wyper, as to value, was made on the 20th
April. Mr. Gregory says that he found her at the time of his
visit in a “‘very frail condition.”” She had been married about
thirteen years, and had children other than the one who takes
under the will the mortgage intended for her by the testator
her grandfather— notwithstanding and perhaps because of his
knowledge of the stigma which attached to her birth. The plain-
tiff, being asked, identified her thus: “Q. And that is the girl
that was born as the result of something heing up with the
mother? A, That is the girl.”" The allusion is to the expression
used by the mother in giving the seraps which she was able
to recollect of this private one hour’s interview with her brother
on the 4th May. T quote: ““He told me he had stopped the busi-
ness. . . . He said that T knew why my little girl got the
money left to her (ie., the $1,000 mortgage). 1 said, *Was it
becanse there was something up with me when I was married t’
At this stage of the examination and often aftérwards she
failed to remember what he said as to that and to other matters
germane to it.  No one can tell the strain put upon her by the
exposure in public Court: she felt tired and faint, and finally
collapsed, and the Court adjourned early. It is to be regretted
that, on the resumption of the case next morning, she had not
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been asked to put in writing in Court what she remembered, but
this was not done, and she was overwhelmed with varied ques
tions, which, far from helping, only hindered and embarrassed
her.  On the other hand, the plaintiff answered evasively and
“hedged' on the different oceasions when his eross-examination
was nearing this evitical point.  As a short sample 1 put in a
page which exemplifies his manner of answering while heing
examined for discovery :

127. Q. You did not tell her the grounds upon which you
were going to hreak the will if she did not give in now? A\, No

128. Q. You told her that you were going to fight it? A, Yes

130, Q. You know the history of the little girl? .\, OF the
granddanghter?

131, Q. Yes, of your niece? A\ 1 know partly the history
of it

132, (
in every

133, Q. Did you make use of that in talking with your poor,

). Say yves orno? AL T could tell how ehildren come
family, T could tell you: T know the ehild was horn
feeble, consumptive sister? A, She is not consumptive

134 Q. Weak lunged; did you make use of that? A, Her
name was mentioned as receiving a thousand dollars, which she
should not have. T made use of it in that way, that she got a
thousand dollars that the rest of the family should have, I did
make use of that

135, Q. Did you talk with poor Jane about what would
happen if you smashed this will which your father had made?
\. What would happen?

136. Q. How the property would go if yon smashed the
will? AT guess 1 did

137. Q. What did you tell her? A If the will was hroken
then we wonld share and share alike—1 think that is what 1
told her

135, Q. Did you tell her that your proposition was a little
better for you and Mary Ann and Catharvine than that? A, |
do not think so, becanse it would not have been

140, Q. Did you say what would happen to the little girl if
the will was broken? A, That that thousand dollars which <he
was to get wonld go to the rest of us, yves

141. Q. Did you play upon the mother’s timid horror of
publicity? A, 1 do not think so.

142, Q. Did you play npon the fear of the woman who has
made a mis-step and who was your own sister? A, Only as |
am mentioning here,

No one ean read the plaintiff's evidence (with the light re-
flected from this letter) and fail to see that the man knew how
to tonch the sore sport in his sister’s past life,

No one who reads the defendant’s evidence (with the light
so refleeted) ean fail to see the canse of her mental disturbance,
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her distress of mind. She could not colleet her senses: she failed
to recolleet, and that at many eritical points, when, if she were
an untruthful witness, it would have been simple and easy for
her to fabricate favourable responses,

Consider the parties pitted against each other, in the absence
of the husband and children and in the seclusion of the farm-
house : he suing as a book-keeper, but giving evidence as an *‘in-
surance-solicitor,”” whose business it was to persuade people, and
who had the adroitness and resourcefulness and assurance pos-
sessed by a shrewd man in that line of business. She, the young-
est of the family, in frail health (as he admits), nervous, with-
out knowledge of affairs, and without advice—burdened, more-
over, with a seeret, condoned after thirteen years of married
life, hut now likely to be revealed in all the publicity of an open
Court. He takes ont a copy of the will and reads it to her: he
says he has authority to come down and break the will, and that
she had to get on her knees because there was going to be a big
storm. Confronted with the last statement, all that the plaintiff
can say is, “‘To the best of my recolleetion and knowledge 1 said
no such thing."’

Again he said (with reference to the farm willed to Mary,
whieh the testator hefore his death sold and conveyed to her),
“The selling of the farm to Mary Ann could break the will.”
This statement is not contradicted by the plaintiff,

Again he said, **If the will was broken, I would lose every-
thing, and my sisters would come in for the money that was
left to me (i.e. the residue), and my little ¢hild would lose hers

He said he had stopped the business. . . . T did not
know what a caveat was.'”” To stay all this turmoil and ex-
posure, she was to give up the money in the bank (which turned
out to bhe about $750) and to pay $700 besides.

This because, as he said in his letter to Morgan, she and the
girl get the entire estate. What was the entire estate given by
the will?  As valued by the affidavit of the executor Wyper, as
follows :

Household goods and furniture % 10.00
Mortgage to child (to be paid by Mrs. Cox).. 1,000.00
Cash in bank (redueed by expenses to $750). 1,000,00
The small lot to Mrs. Cox, value 400,00

$2,410.00

The plaintiff makes grave complaint of the “‘organ’’ being
given 1o the child: an old organ, bought, as is proved, by his
mother, and, like the land (as he says), intended for him. The
mother died in 1885, and the organ of that age was included in
the valnation at $10. The woman appears, therefore, to have
been willing to strip herself of all she gets from her father, i.c.,
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$700 in bank and $400 in lot, and give $300 more, to save the
mortgage for her little girl and save both of them from public
shame.

It is necessary, perhaps, to say a little more of what took
place after the 4th May. The plaintiff permitted her to talk it
over with her husband that night, and he would return in the
morning. 1 suppose the wife communicated the proposition and
her misery in some way to her hushand (what passed was not
and could not be given in evidence) ; but, at all events, the effect
on the man was simply stupefving, He is, T judge, a slow-
witted man: if not exaetly stupid, certainly not one to he looked
to in an emergency. The plaintiff agrees that any conference
between the two would not much help either of them. THe is
asked: ““Of course they did not contribute muech to each other’s
wisdom? A. T eannot help that . . . T done the best T could.”
That is, 1 think, true. He did the best he could for him-
self. Walter Cox, when examined, appeared to be all at sea:
he says: “My wife got worried over it, and it got me
rattled . . . my wife was so mueh worked up about it and
nervous that it got me rattled, and 1 wonld not talk to the plain-
tiff.”” ““My mind was in a queer state that day' (5th May).
““I spoke in the house of getting some advice hefore she signed
and before going to Wyper’s (the exeeutor). . . I did not
think of advice at Wilson’s (who drew the agreement); it was
too far gone: he had ns beat, 1 was beat completely. My idea
was when I spoke about getting advice, T wanted to come to
Toronto, but he said he had not time—to-morrow was the last
day to act. . . . Neither my wife nor I said at our house that
we would give what the plaintiff asked.”” They both contradiet,
in this, the statement of the plaintiff as to their having given
audible assent. “‘T was not thinking of giving the money in
Wilson's office, for I was bothered quite a bit.”” e also affirms
what his wife says, that the plaintiff told them he had authority
to break the will, and, if it was broken, we would lose the money,
and the girl would lose the £1,000,

Walter says when the paper was laid before his wife to sign
he said, “*Hold on, not to sign. 1 wanted him to leave the paper
with me and I would mail it to the lawyers . . . he would
not do that: then I said, ‘Well, go ahead and sign.” "’

1 may note in passing that the plaintiff appears to have had
complete influence over his sister Mary: she was not privy to
this arrangement, and in returning from the draftsman’s office
the instrument was taken to Mary's house, who was to sign first,
and the plaintiff said: ‘I wonder if she will be satisfied with
the agreement : if not she will have to sign.”” She did sign, but
it is said that she has renounced any claim. The other, Cath-
arine, did not appear, nor was she examined as a witness. Of
course, whatever claim she may have for nursing will not be
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affeeted by the dismissal of this action. She may still proceed
against the estate or the recipients of it.

Neither hushand nor wife knew anything about law : the talk
of a caveat would only mystify them, and the plaintiff’s pro-
testations of his authority to break the will, and the effect on
the will of part of the land having been sold, would only tend
further to mislead them. It was eminently a case ealling for
competent advice, but any attempt to seek this was checked by
the peremptory veto of the plaintiff—in effect presenting the
filing of the caveat and the purpose of the warning given him as
to entering an appearance, to hurry matters to a close while yet
the defendant was under the shock of his demand and fear of
the consequences which would follow its refusal.

When the plaintiff was asked if he was not an overmatch
for husband and wife, he replies with his usual indirectness,
““Not necessarily.”

I eannot doubt that the woman was overmatehed, overborne,
and overreached by her shrewd brother. From the moment of
seeing her, he kept her in hand till the paper was signed on the
Sth May. He knew that the husband’s adviee wounld rather con-
fuse than help her, and he resolutely refused any opportunity
for them to get independent assistance.  When they did get such
assistanee, the result was a letter, dated the 14th May, in which
the instrument sued upon is repudiated, and the reasons given
for its repudiation.

There is another aspect of the plaintiff’s evidence that T may
briefly advert to. e is asked : ““Why do you object to the little
girl getting the money? A. She had no elaim to it, she had no
right to it. Q. ow do you mean no elaim to it? A, No right to
it: no moral right whatever . . . the little girl had no legal
right to the money : he left her money that should have been left
to us: I made her understand that.”” We ean read into this
the method by which the brother made her understand that that
little girl had no legal or moral claim on the testator or to the
money. It is worth while, also, to give his answers to the appli-
cation for delay and to get adviee: “*Q. Why did you not let this
woman and her hushand have three or four days to go and con-
sult their solicitor? A, T could not. Q. Why? A. They had
from Wednesday, Wednesday night I went there, and they
had from (to) Thursday morning. Q. Why did you not let
them go? A\, I was not asked.”” The defendant gives the rea-
son which the plaintiff gave for refusing them time to get advice,
It was this, ‘‘that he had just till to-morrow to act.”” And the
hushand says the same thing: ‘‘The plaintiff said he had not
time; to-morrow was his last day to act. 1 did not know what
he meant.”

I have gone over the main turning point and the subsidiary
ones on which the judgment should turn. Everything else in
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the way of detail is of little moment. There was the going to
the executor Wyper to see if he would draw the paper. He
moralised that it was a good thing parties could agree together,
and passed them on to a lawyer. Mr. Wilson simply put the
thing into legal shape according to what Underwood told him,
and all this was in the absence of the wife. She had no one but
her husband, who was baffled in his attempt, and gave it up.
No doubt, she was able to go about the house and attend to
domestie routine, getting dinner ready and the like, but that is
really no more to the point than to suggest that, because the
brother kissed her as he left on the evening of the 4th May, he
had the most fraternal regard for her, and that she recipro-
cated his friendship.

The plaintiff had no belief in his flimsy claims upon his
father or upon his estate or in respect to the validity of the
will: his whole action indieates a scheme to put money in his
pocket (hy hook or by erook) at the expense of his sister,

The judgment should he vaeated and the action dismissed,
with all costs below and in appeal to be paid hy the plaintiffs,

Larenrorn, J.:—1 agree in the result.

MippLeToN, J.:—Upon the facts, there seems to me only one
conclusion possible. The bargain itself and all the surrounding
circumstances shew that there must have been fraud or over-
reaching on the part of the plaintiff. There was mental inequal-
ity between the contracting parties, and the stronger was pos-
sessed of a weapon which he did not scruple to use in his
attack upon the weaker. Therefore, to me at least, it seems plain
that the transaction cannot stand.

When it is made to appear that the bargain was not a fair
compromise of a real dispute, but a complete surrender to a
groundless attack, suspicion is at once aroused; and when the
plaintiff is revealed—not only by his letter, but by his evidence—
as eruel and unserupulous, and as a man ready to use an inei-
dent in his sister’s life for his own finaneial advantage, and
reckless enough to attempt to cause the sister to abandon her
defence to this action by the use of the same threat—and cun-
ning enough, with his superficial smattering of legal knowledge,
to think that he could conceal this last attempt by the use of
the words *‘without prejudiee’—I am compelled to the con-
clusion arrived at by my Lord the Chancellor, that the contract
sued upon is in truth a “nefarious transaction.””

The true function and office of the words **without pre-
Judiee is well defined in Pivie v. Wyld, 11 O.R. 422, where it is
said that **all communieations expressed to be written withont
prejudice, and fairly made for the purpose of expressing the
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writer’s views on the matter of litigation or dispute, as well as
overtures for settlement or compromise, and which are not
made with some other objeet in view and wrong motives, are not
admissible in evidence.””

This rule, founded on publie poliey, cannot he used as a cloak
to cover and protect a communication such as the letter in ques-
tion, which contains no ¢ffer of compromise, but a dishonourable
threat.

Appeal allowed,

NORTHERN SULPHITE MILLS Limited v. CRAIG,

Ontario Court of Appeal, Garrow, Maclaren, Meredith, and Magee, JJ.A.,
and Lennox, J. June 18, 1912,

1. PrINCIPAL AND AGENT (§ 11 A—12) —AGENT'S AUTHORITY—PURCHASE
OF BONDS—UNDISCLOSED PRINCIPAL—TRANSACTION BETWEEN SEV-
ERAL COMPANIES,

Where two companies are represented in financial matters by a
third, all with ecommon directors, and the financial company uses
money which it has in hand to the credit of one company, being the

s of a sale of the bonds thereof, for the purpose of redeeming
n maturing bonds of the other company pending recoupment by

s sale of a further issue of that company’s bonds, and the trans-
action upon the minutes of the financial company bears the ap-
pearance merely of a payment by it on behalf of the company whose
bonds are redeemed, and subsequently, upon the failure of the ex-
pected source of recoupment the minute is changed so as to shew that
the financial company acted only as agent for the company whose money
was used, and entries are made in the books of the respective com-
panies, with the approval of the common directors, shewing that the
bonds had been purchased by and were the property of that company,
the proper cunrlminll is that the intention was to give l'n*rumuence
to the original temporary transaction, and that the bonds became the
property of the company whose money was used in the purchase
thereof, and not of the financial company.

[Northern Sulphite Mills v. Craig, 3 O.W.N, 214, aflirmed on appeal.]

2. Liexs (§ 1—4a)—GENERAL LIEN FOR BALANCE OWING—POSSESSION OF
PROPERTY.

A general lien asserted by one party upon the property of another,
for the balance owing by the latter upon the accounts between them,
;l_t-]»umln upon possession of the property by the party asserting the
ien.

AppEAL by the defendants the Oceidental Syndicate Limited
from the judgment of Meredith, C.J.C.P., Northern Sulphite
Mills v. Craig, 3 0.W.N, 214,

The appeal was dismissed.

C. A, Masten, K.C., and H. W, Mickle, for the defendants.

1. . Hellmuth, K.C., and J. H. Moss, K.C., for the plain-
tiffs.

The judgment of the Court was delivered by

Garrow, J.A,:—The action was brought by the plaintiff E.
R. C. Clarkson, as receiver of the Northern Sulphite Mills of
Canada Limited, to recover from the defendants, John Craig
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and the Oeccidental Syndicate Limited, certain first mortgage
honds of the Tmperial Land Company for $500 each, alleged to
be the property of the plaintiff company.

The questions involved, which are almost entirely questions
of fact, seem to depend less upon contradictory evidence, of
which there is very little, than upon the proper inferences to be
drawn from certain of the facts appearing in evidence, which
are not in themselves decisive or plainly pointing only in one
direction. There were, it appears, several joint stock companies,
some organised in England and some in Canada, all more or less
related, namely, the defendant company, which was in some
respects the parent company, the plaintiff company, the Im-
perial Land Company, and the Imperial Paper Mills Company.
The three latter companies were engaged in certain undertak-
ings at or near Sturgeon Falls, in this Provinee, which included
the manufacture of pulp and paper, and, in the case of the
land company, the sale of lands.

The defendant company acted at London, England, in finan-
cial matters for the other companies. Its board of directors
consisted of Archibald Baird Craig, chairman and managing
director, his brother, the defendant John Craig, and William Rich-
ard Loxley. The same gentlemen were also the directors of the
plaintiff company. Both companies occupied the same offices
in London and employed the same office staff. The defendant
John Craig was also the managing director of the plaintiff com-
pany and of the paper mills company, and was president of
the land company, and resided in Canada. The defendant com-
pany had, as agent for the land company, floated for it certain
bhonds, of a total issue of $50,000, and, among them, those now
in question, which bonds were to mature on the Ist January,
1906. The land eompany was apparently not at that time pre-
pared to take them up. The defendant company had also, as
agent for the plaintiff company, floated certain bonds of that
company, the proceeds of which were still in hand at the eredit
of that company. It was the intention of the land company
to issue additional bonds, with the proceeds of which the bonds
so maturing would be paid; and, pending such issue, the re-
quisite money required to retire them was transferred by the
common directors from the account of the. plaintiff company
to that of the defendant company, and by the latter used to
take up the bonds now in question. Of these there were origin-
ally in all 52, One was subsequently paid by the land com-
pany itself out of its own money, and is now no longer in
question. Forty of them were so taken up and received from
the holders in London; the other 12 were sent by the holders
direct to the office of the land company in Canada for redemp-
tion, and were there taken up out of money which had been re-
mitted for the purpose by the defendant company to the land

83
ONT.

C. A,
1912
Nortneny
SULPHITE
Mivis, Lan
"

CrAx

Garrow, J.A.




ONT.

CA.
1912
NORTHERN
SULPHITE
Mrurs, Lo,

¢
CRALG

Garrow, J.A.

DoamiNioN Law Reports, (4 DLR.

company. The 40 so taken up in London were afterwards
sent to J. II. Payne, secretary-treasurer of the land company,
at Sturgeon Falls, in a letter written by William Tait, the de-
fendant company’s secretary, the date of which does not ap-
pear, but it was evidently written in January, 1906, in which
Mr. Tait said:

I am sending you by this mail the following debentures and coupons

which have been paid by this syndicate on behalf of your company on

the 1st instant, viz, ete,

Mr. Payne afterwards handed these to the defendant John
C'raig, who had, at the time, the other 12 in his possession, and
the whole were placed by him in the safe of the Imperial Paper
Mills Company for safekeeping, where they remained until
brought into Court under the order made in this action be-
fore trial.

The original minute of the transaction, dated the 15th Jan-
uary, 1906, in the defendant company’s books, is set out in full
in the judgment of the learned Chief Justice, from which it
appears that the transaction then bore the appearance merely
of a payment by the defendant on behalf of the land company.
Nothing is said in it about the source of the money with which
the payment was made, or otherwise to indicate that the plain-
tiff company was interested.

The new bond issue of the land company not having for
some reason materialised, the defendant company’s auditor,
Andrew Wilson Tait, who was also auditor for the plaintiff
company, intervened ; and, at his suggestion, the original minute
was so amended as to read as if the defendant company had
acted in the matter only as agent for the plaintiff company;
and a corresponding minute was made in the books of the
plaintiff company to agree with the amended minute in the
defendant company’s books. The necessary entries were also
then made in the books of account of the respeetive companies
8o as to shew that the bonds had been purchased and were the
property of the plaintiff company, and not of the defendant
company. All of which was done under the direction and
with the consent of the same directors who had been the par-
ties to the original minute; and, indeed, could not have heen
done without their consent. And from that time forth until
this litigation beghn, the matter apparently so stood in the
books of both companies,

The defendant company now contends that, notwithstanding
such entries, it was the purchaser and is the owner of the 51
bonds in question, and that the money of the plaintiff company
which was used in the purchase should be regarded either as
a loan to it from the plaintiff company, or as a repayment
by it upon account of its indebtedness to the defendant com-
pany.
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These several contentions were determined by the learned
Chief Justice in favour of the plaintifft company; and with his
conclusions I agree,

I do not, however, regard it as essential to go so far as to
hold that what was done in July was, as he apparently thought,
intended to express and carry out the original intention held
by the parties in the previous month of January. The whole
transaction, including the use made of the money of the plain-
tiff company, was elearly of a temporary character, intended
merely to bridge the gap until the new bond issue of the land
company came forward, which until midsummer, Mr. A. B.
Craig says, was expected “‘any day.”” To speak of it as a
repayment by the plaintiff company of a debt not yet due, and,
even if due, a considerable over-payment, or as a loan of money
in the ordinary sense by the one company to the other, scems
to me, in the light of all the evidenee, to be simply absurd,
No one at the time, I am satisfied, intended either a loan or a
repayment. The money was there under the control of the two
gentlemen who comprised the quorum of the boards of both com-
panies, and it was used for such temporary purpose practically
as a convenience for the land company, with the intention
of a speedy readjustment when the new bonds of that company
were sold. It was never for a moment intended that the bonds
so acquired should be permanently held by either company.
And, when it was afterwards found that the original intention
could not be carried out, through the temporary failure of the
source of expeeted recoupment, it was quite within the power
of the parties to give the temporary transaction of January
the more permanent form given to it in July, by which the bonds
formally became the property of the company which had sup-
plied the chief part of the funds for their acquirement, The
amount actually paid for the bonds apparently somewhat ex-
cceded the amount withdrawn from the account of the plaintiff
company ; and for such excess the learned Chief Justice has,
apparently without objection, given to the defendant com-
pany a lien,

But, in addition, the defendant company claimed before us
a lien of the nature of a general lien upon the bonds for the
balance owing by the plaintiff company upon the accounts be-
tween them, a claim not apparently made before the learned
Clief Justice, or at all events not dealt with in his judgment

Such a lien depends, of course, upon proof that the party
claiming it is in possession of the property in respeet of which
the lien is asserted; and such proof is, in my opinion, wholly
absent in this case. As I have said, the bonds were physically
in the safe of the Imperial Paper Mills Company when the
litigation began. They had been placed there by the defendant
John Craig, who received them from the land company, of
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which he was president; and the only reasonable or proper in-
ference upon the whole evidenee, his own included, is, that, in
so placing them, he acted for and on behalf of the land com-
= pany, and not as a director of the defendant company, as he now
NoRruERN  asserts—another instance, of whieh we see so many, of ‘‘ wisdom
SULPHITE iR} 3 3
\irs. Lo, After the event,”” Ile had, so far as appears, no instruction
r from his co-directors in London to require or to assert a right
Crara. to the possession of the bonds. The 40 redeemed in England
Garrow, 1.4, had been sent without limitation of any kind direet to the
land company, to which company the holders also sent the re-
maining 12; and any possession afterwards acquired by John
Craig from that company was clearly so acquired solely in his
character of an officer of that company. The exact date at
which the bonds were placed in the Imperial Paper Mills Com-
pany’s safe is not stated in the evidence, further than that it
occurred some time in the year 1906, If it was after the date of
the change made in London, on the 30th July of that year, by
which the plaintiff ecompany became the owners, it might even
be said that the possession of the defendant John Craig was

& that of the plaintiff ecompany, of which, in addition to his other
;- numerous and one would think slightly embarrassing offices,
g he was the managing director. But it is not necessary to go so
I

& far; because, in my opinion, the reasonable and proper infer-
ence upon the whole evidence is, as 1 have before stated, that
such possession was and remained that of the land company
only.

For these reasons, I would dismiss the appeal with costs,

4 Appeal dismissed.

; ONT. TRUBEL v. ONTARIO JOCKEY CLUB and FRASER.
« HeT Ontario High Court, Cartwright, M.C. June 20, 1012,

1012 1. Preaping (§ 1 S—149)—STRIKING OUT PART OF STATEMENT OF CLAIM—

+ - MATTERS OF EVIDENCE—CON, RuLe (ONT.) 2068,

Tune 20, In an action for damages for a refusal to license the plaintiff, a

i professional jockey, who had 'n.lill the required fee therefor, in order

gil to enable him to “exercise his profession” us driver of race horses

upon the race track of the defendant, a racing club owning a publie
franchise, that operated for gain a race-course to which the publie
was invited upon the payment of an admission fee, a portion of the
statement of elaim will, on motion, be stricken out, where its allega-
tions in substance were that “so public is the function it [the club]
exercises, that it has a monopoly of race-horse betting on its tracks,
that would be criminal but for the saving grace of legislation, where-
by all members of the publie, at its race meetings, are forced to bet
through the defendant club, which acts a% stake-holder, and exacts
therefor over five per cent, on over a million dollars a year of bettors’
passing through its hands, and from which its chief income is
" sinee such allegations are merely statements of evidence per-
taining to the plaintiffs eclaim, which, under Con, Rule 268, are not
properly a part of a statement of elaim,

[Blake v. Albion, 35 L.T. 269, 45 LJ.C.P. 663, 4 C.P.D. 94, re-
ferred to.)
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2. PLEADING (§ 1 S—140)—STRIKING OUT PARY OF STATEMENT OF CLAIM—
HISTORICAL OR EXPLANATORY ALLEGATIONS,

In an action for damages for the refusal to license the plaintifl, a
professional jockey, after he had paid the necessary fee therefor, so
that he might “exercise his profession™ as a driver of race horses,
noi only upon the race track of the defendant, but as well upon the
tracks of the various members of an unincorporated association of
racing elubs, the chises of which required them to treat all mem-
bers of the public fairly and equally, an allegation of the statement
of claim, alleging in substance, that other members of such associa-
tion owned and controlled other tracks where betting was done by
means of book-makers in the employ of such members, will not be
stricken out, since it is an allegation either historieal and explanatory
of the nature and composition of the association, or referable to the
damages the plaintiff sustained by being prevented from driving upon
the tracks of the association, as well as upon that of the defendant,

Tue plaintiftt was a professional jockey. He asked $10,000
damages for the refusal by the defendants of the necessary
license to enable him ‘*to exercise his profession.’”” This refusal,
he said, was without giving him a hearing and without assigning
any cause for such refusal, after receipt and retention by the
defendants of the usual fee of %25 for such license, duly paid
by the plaintiff,

Before pleading, the defendants moved for an order strik-
ing out parts of paragraphs 2 and 4 and the whole of paragraph
5 of the statement of claim, under Con. Rule 298,

O, F. Ritchie, for the defendants,

J. 1. White, for the plaintiff

Tue Master :—The statement of elaim is in some parts de-
cidedly rhetorical. Language less ornate would have been more
appropriate. This is especially true of the expression objected
to in the 4th paragraph, where it is said that the defendant
Fraser “‘officiously and maliciously volunteered . . . to be

”»

a defendant.”” It was coneeded on the argument that the words
‘‘officiously and maliciously’’ might properly be struck out;
and the order will so direct.

The second paragraph is as follows: ‘‘The defendant club
derives its existence from a public franchise, and owns and
operates, for gain, a race-track in the city of Toronto, where it
carries on race meetings at which the public are invited to
attend and for which they are charged an entrance fee, and it
owes a public obligation in the conduct of its business to treat
all members of the public equally and fairly [and so public is the
function it exercises, that it has a monopoly of race-horse betting
on its track, that would be criminal but for the saving grace
of legislation, whereby all members of the publie, at its race-
meetings, are forced to bet through the defendant club, which
acts as stake-holder, and exacts therefor over five per cent. on
over a million dollars a year of bettors’ money passing through
its hands and from which its chief revenue is derived].”
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The defendants ask to have all that follows the word
“fairly,”” enclosed in brackets as above, struck out as irrelevant
and tending to prejudice them at the trial, which the plaintiff
asks to have before a jury.

In disposing of these motions it is well to refer once more
to Con. Rule 268, which provides that pleadings shall contain
a concise statement of the material facts upon which the party
pleading relies, but not the evidence by which they are to be
proved.

As to this second paragraph, it would seem that the material
fact which the plaintiff must prove is the allegation in the first
part that the Ontario Jockey Club is obliged to treat all members
of the public equally and fairly—and that the part after the
word ‘“fairly’" is probably wholly irrelevant, and not admissible
in evidenee in chief, whatever may be allowable in eross-examin-
ation.

In any case, it is no more than evidence to establish the obli-
gation of which the plaintiff elaims the benefit. It should, there-
fore, be struck out, as was done in Blake v. Albion, 35 L.T. 269,
45 L.J. C.P, 663, even though it was by the same Court allowed
to be used at the trial: see 4 C.P.D. 94, Standing in the state-
ment of claim, it could be read to the jury, and might very pos-
sibly prejudice their minds by suggesting the possibility of the
defendants gaining $50,000 a year without any labour or ex-
pense.

The Hth paragraph is as follows: ““The plaintiff further
says that one of the members of the said Canadian Racing Asso-
ciation is known as the Niagara Racing Association, controlled
by John H. Madigan, of Buffalo, New York, and Louis Cella, of
St. Louis, Missouri, and owning and operating a racing-track at
Fort Erie, Ontario, where betting is done with book-makers in
the employ of and working for the said Madigan and Cella, who
control and operate the race-track, and the same control and
betting conditions prevail on the tracks of the Hamilton Jockey
Club and the Windsor Jockey Club, all of which are members
of the said Canadian Racing Association.”

This is not so easy to deal with as were the other objections.
The Canadian Racing Association is said, in paragraph 3, to
be “‘an unincorporated combine of a body of representatives of
various racing clubs and associations in Canada;’’ and it is
further said that to this association is given, amongst other
things, the ‘‘licensing of jockeys to ride on Canadian race-
tracks."’

This 5th paragraph may be justified either as being merely
historical and explanatory of the nature and composition of the
association, or as being referable to damages, as shewing that the
refusal of a license prevents the plaintiff from ‘‘exercising his
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profession,”” not only on the track of the Ontario Jockey Club,
but also at other important race meetings such as Fort Erie,
Hamilton, and Windsor.

It seems to be implied that, as all these meetings have a pub-
lic franchise similar to that of the Ontario Jockey Club, they are
under the like obligation ‘‘to treat all members of the public
equally and fairly.”” There seems no ground for interfering
with this paragraph at this stage. 1 see nothing in it embarrass-
ing or prejudicial to a fair trial,

The motion succeeds on the two first grounds, but fails as
to the third. The costs will, therefore, be in the cause. The
defendants should plead in four days.

Application granted in part.

Re SMITH AND PATTERSON.

Ontario High Court, Middicton, J, May 25, 1912

LoWines (S 11 G2 -126) — DEVISE TO WIFE “T0 BE DISPOSED OF BY HER AS

SHE MAY DEEM JUST AND PRUDENT IN THE INTEREST OF MY

FAMILY.”

Under a will devising all the testator’s property to his wife “to be

disposed of by her as she may deem just and prodent in the interest

of my family.” the widow takes the property in fee simple unfettered

by n trust, I, therefore, an objection to the title of a vendor to

whose rwessor the widow had sold the property, I upon the

1 that the words quoted above from the will were not sulli

cient to give the widow a fee simple in the lands nor any power to
convey them in fee, is not well taken

| Welsaue v, Beaton, 37 Can. S.C.R. 143: Lambe v, Eames, LR, 6 Ch,

07, followed; Countess of Bridgewater v, Duke of Bolton, 6 Mod. 106,

specially  referred to.]

contenti

AN application by the vendor, under the Vendors and Pur-
chasers Act, to determine the validity of an objection taken by
the purchaser to the vendor’s title.

T. A, Gibson, for Smith, the vendor.

F. W, Carey, for Patterson, the purchaser,

MiobLeToN, J. :—The title of the vendor is derived through a
will.  The testator died on the Sth February, 1892, and devised
all his property to his wife, ‘“to be disposed of by her as she
may deem just and prudent in the interest of my family.”” The
widow, assuming that this gave her a fee simple, purported to
sell the property to the vendor’s predecessor in title, The pur-
chaser objects that the words quoted are not sufficient to give
the widow a fee simple in the lands or any power to convey
them in fee,

Upon the argument the purchaser placed his contention
thus: The gift is a gift to the wife of the property ‘“to be dis-
posed of . . . in the interest of my family,”” and this con-
stitutes an express trust, If the gift had been to the widow in
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fee, and a power to dispose of the same in the interest of the
family had been superadded, this would not reduce the fee.

The case is thus distinguished from most of the authorities
dealing with precatory trusts; as, if the argument is well found-
ed, this is an express trust,

After the most eareful consideration, T do mnot think it
necessary to deal exhaustively with this argument, because T am
convineed that the words ‘“to be disposed of”’ give the widow a
right to sell. It may be that she held the proceeds of the sale
in trust for the family, but this would not prevent the title pass-
ing by the sale.

The nearest approach to the precise words that I have been
able to find is in Countess of Bridgewaler v. Duke of Ballon, 6
Mod. 106, where, at p. 111, it is said: ““A devise to a man ‘to
dispose at will and pleasure’ is a fee, and this is ‘to dispose as
he pleases.” A devise was made of land to his wife ‘to dispose
thereof upon herself and her children,’ and it was held that she
had a fee subject to the particular trust for the children.”’

The power to dispose of property gives the widest possible
right to alienate, and must be taken to ‘‘comprehend and ex-
haust every conceivable mode by which property can pass:"
Lord Maenaghten in Duke of Northumberland v. Afttorney-
General, 119051 AC. 406, 410-11; and enables the party hav-
ing that power ““to sell ont and ont:"" per Farwell. J., in Attor-
wey-General v, Pontypridd Urban Council, [1905] 2 Ch, 441, 450,

This is sufficient to warrant me in holding that the ohjection
to the title is not well founded.

I am inelined to think that, upon the construetion of the will,
there is not a trust, and that the words used cannot be success-
fully distinguished from the words construed in the case Lambe
v. Eames, LR. 6 Ch. 597. The words there used, following the
gift to the widow, were, ‘‘to be at her disposal in any way she
may think best for the benefit of herself and family.”” This
was held insufficient to eut down the absolute gift.

The whole tendeney of the more recent cases is in favour of
restricting the doetrine of precatory trust rather than extend-
ing it. See, for example, In re Williams, [1897] 2 Ch. 12: In re
Oldficld, [1904] 1 Ch. 549,

Sinee writing the above, I have found the ease of Welsaacv.
Beaton, 37 Can. S.C.R. 143, where the words are almost identical
with the words here used. The property was given to the wife
“to bhe by her disposed of among my beloved children as she
may judge most beneficial for herself and them;” and the
Court, affirming the Nova Scotia Courts, held that the widow
took the real estate in fee, with power to dispose of it whenever
she deemed it was for the benefit of herself and her children
so to do.
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An order will, therefore, go deelaring that the objection to
the vendor’s title is not well taken, and that under the will and
the conveyance in question the vendor’s predecessor in title
took the land in fee simple. Costs are not asked,

Judgment for vendor,

TOWNSEND v. NORTHERN CROWN BANK.
Ontario High Court. Trial before Mervedith, CJ.C.P. April 18, 1012,

. BANKS (§ VIII C—189)—LoAN By BANK TO WHOLESALE DE \nn ~MEAN

ING OF “AND THE PRODUCTS THEREOF'—R.S.C, 1006, cn. ¢

The words “and the products ther in sub-section 1 of section

88 of the Bank Act, I:.\I 1006, ch. apply to all the articles pre-

viously mentioned in the sub-section, and not to live stock and dead
stock only.

[Dietum of Hall, J., in Molsons Bank v, Beaudry, Q.R. 11 K.B, 212,
approved.]

of

2, BANkS (§ VI C—180)—Wno 18 A WHOLESALE DEALER IN LUMBER—
R.S.C. 1906, cn. 29, skc. 88, sup-sec, 1

One who carries on business partly as a wholesale dealer in lumber,
and partly as a builder, is a wholesale dealer in lumber within the
meaning of sub-section 1 of section 88 of the Bank Act, R.S.C. ¢h, 20,

3. Baxks (§ VI € 2—203) —Spcurity vsper R.S.C. 1906, cn. 29, sec. 90
~—CONTINUATION OF FORMER SECURITY—ONUS OF SUPPORTING SEC-
URITY,

Sceurity under section 90 of the Bank Aet, R.S.C. ch. 20, which,
though given less than 60 days before an assignment by the giver there
of for the benefit of his creditors, is but a continuation of a former
security of the like character held by the bank for the indebtedness
more than 60 ¢ ofore the assignment, is not given within 60 days
of the assignme as to throw upon the bank the onus of support-
ing it.

4. BANKS (§ VIII C—184) —ARTICLFS FRODUCED FROM PLEDGED GOODS,
Articles manufactured from lumber covered by security under see
tions 88 and 90 of the Bank Act, RS.C. 1006, ch, 20, are likewise
covered by the see 2

5. Baxks (§ VIIIC—I187)—RIGHT OF BANK 10 PROCEEDE FROM SALE-
LUMBER USED IN BUILDING—ASSIGNMENT OF BUILDING CONTRACTS,
Where lumber covered by security given to a bank under sections
88 and 90 of the Bank Act, R.S.C. 1906, ch, 20, is used in the erection
of buildings, and the building contracts are assigned to the bank, the
bank is entitled to such of the money payi able under the contracts as
represents the lumber so used.

Tue plaintiff, the assignee for the benefit of ereditors of
Joseph E. Brethour, a builder, contractor, and dealer in lum-
ber, brought this action to set aside certain securities given by
Brethour to the defendants to secure his indebtedness to them.

W. Laidlaw, K.C., for the plaintiff.

F. Arnoldi, K.C., for the defendants.

April 18, 1912,  Mgreoiry, C.J.:—The securities which
are attacked are seeurities taken by the defendants under see.
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90* of the Bank Aet, R.S.C. 1906, ch. 29, and assignments by
Brethour of moneys payable to him under building contracts
which he had entered into, and bhook-debts, and these securities
were given within sixty days before the making of the assign-
ment; and the plaintiff attacks them on several grounds.

The securities taken under see. 90 of the Bank Act are
attacked on two grounds.

It was contended that Brethour was not a person from
whom  securities upon lumber ecould lawfully be taken,
because, as is said, he was a builder, and not a wholesale
dealer in lumber.  The evidence does not support this eon-
tention, but shews that part of the business which Brethour
carried on was that of a wholesale dealer in lumber.

It also contended that sawn lumber is not a product of the
forest, within the meaning of see. 88.%

In support of this contention Molsons Bank v. Beaudry
(1901), Q.R. 11 K.B. 212, was cited. The opinion of the Chief
Justice (Sir Alexander Lacoste) in that case, no doubt, sup-
ports the contention. Hall, J., however, differed from the Chief
Justice, and the other member of the Court (Wurtele, J.) ex-
pressed no opinion on the point. The question was not neces-
sary for the decision, as the Court was unanimous in affirming
on other grounds the judgment that had been given against the
plaintiffs,

The provision of the Bank Act then under consideration was
sub-see. 2 of see. 74 of 53 Viet. ¢h. 31, which reads as follows:
‘2, The bank may also lend money to any wholesale purchaser or
shipper of products of agriculture, the forest and mine, or the
sea, lakes and rivers, or to any wholesale purchaser or shipper

“00. The bank shall not acquire or hold any warehouse receipt or bill
of lading. or any such security as aforesaid, to secure the payment of any
bill, note, debt, or liability, unless such bill, note, debt or liability is nego-
tiated or contracted,—

(a) at the time of the acquisition thereof by the bank; or,

(b) upon the written promise or agreement that such warehouse receipt
or bill of lading or security would be given to the bank;

Provided that such bill, note, debt, or liability may be renewed, or the
time for the payment thereof extended, without affecting any such security.

2. The bank may,—

(a) On shipment of any goods, wares and merchandise for which it
holds a warehouse receipt, or any such security as aforesaid, surrender
such receipt or security and receive a bill of lading in exchange thereof; or,

(b) on the receipt of any goods, wares and merchandise for which it
holds a bill of lading, or any such security as aforesaid, surrender such bill
of lading or security, store the goods, wares and merchandise, and take a
warehouse receipt therefor, or ship the goods, wares and merchandise, or
part of them, and take another bill of lading therefor.

tSection 88, sub-sec. 1, of the Bank Act, R.S.C. 1906, ch. 20, provides:
The bank may lend money to any wholesale purchaser or shipper of or
dealer in produets of agriculture, the forest, quarry and mine, or the sea,
lakes and rivers, or to any wholesale purchaser or shipper of or dealer in
live stock or dead stock and the products thereof, upon the security of
such produets, or of sueh live or dead stock and the produets thereof.
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of live stock or dead stock, and the produets thereof, upon the
security of such produets, or of such live stock or dead stock,
and the produets thereof.”” That sub-section was repealéd by
see. 17 of 63 & 64 Viet. ch. 26, and re-enacted, with some changes
that are not material to the present inquiry; and the substituted
sub-section appears in R.S.C. 1906, ch. 29, as sub-see, 1 of see, 88,

In my view, the construction placed hy Iall, J., on see, 74,
was the correct one. In my opinion, the words “‘and the pro-
duets thereof,’” in the fourth and fifth lines, apply to all the
articles previonsly mentioned in the sub-seetion, and, there-
fore, to the products of the forest, and the words ‘‘the
produets thereof."” in the last line, apply as well to the produets
mentioned in the earlier part of the sub-section as to the pro-
duets of live stock and dead stock.

Being of this opinion, it is unnecessary to express an opin-
ion as to whether sawn lumber is a produet of the forest, within
the meaning of the sub-seetion; but T am inelined to think that
it is.

It is further contended that, as the security under which the
defendants claim was given less than sixty days before the mak-
ing of the assignment, it cannot prevail against the assignment,
That security was, however, but a continuation of a former
security of the like character held by the defendants for the
indebtedness; and this contention, therefore, fails.

Some of the lumber upon which the defendants held security
was manufactured into doors and window sashes and the like,
and these produets of the lumber are covered by the securities:
R.S.C. 1906, ch. 29, sees. 88, 89,

None of the other articles covered hy the securities are within
sec. 88 of the Revised Aet; and the securities do not, therefore,
extend to them.

Some of the lumber covered by the securities was used by
Brethour in the erection of buildings; and, as far as the money
payable under the building contracts assigned to the defendants
represents the lnmber so used, they are entitled to it.

The claim of the defendants to the book-debts cannot be
supported ; and, indeed, according to my recollection of what
took place at the trial, it was abandoned.

If the parties cannot agree as to it, there will be a reference
to the Master in Ordinary to determine what part of Brethour’s
stock in trade at the time of the assignment, not being lumber,
was the produet of lumber covered by the defendants’ securities,
and what part, if any, of the money payable under the building
contracts assigned represented lumber or the produets of lumber
covered by those securities.

As success is divided, there will be no costs to either party.

Judgment accordin~'y.
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LECKIE v. MARSHALL,

Ontario Court of Appeal, Moss, C.J.0., Garrow, Maclaren, Meredith, and
Magee, JJ.A. June 28, 1912,

1. SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE (§ I1--43)—DECREE OR JUDGMENT—BINDING EF-
FECT ON PARTIES —DEFENDANT COUNTERCLAIMING,

Where the Flnimiﬂ' brought an action upon an agreement entered
into between him and the defendant to have the same cancelled and
to have a cash payment made thereon declared forfeited, and the de-
fendant, by counterclaim resisting the plaintifl’s claim, sets up an
agreement to sell or purchase land and asks the Court to order specifie
performance, he necessarily submits on his part to perform it and
the judgment which he afterwards succeeds in obtaining is as binding
upon him as it is upon his opponent.

[Leckie v. Marshall, 3 ().\K’.N. 86, 20 O.W.R. 117, affirmed with a
variation on appeal.]

2, SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE (§ 11—43) —PARTY CLAIMING BOUND BY JUDG-
MENT—DECREASE IN VALUE OF LAND.

Where the plaintiff brought an action upon an agreement entered
into between him and the defendant to have the same cancelled and
to have a cash payment made thereon declared forfeited, and the de-
fendant, by counterclaim resisting the plaintiil’s elaim, sets up an
agreement to sell or purchase land and asks the Court to order specific
performance and judgment goes for the defendant, he cannot, when the
litigation has finally ceased, complain that owing to the deln‘\]' caused
by the litigation, which was wholly due to his opposition to the plain-
tif’s claim, the property has so much decreased in value that it is
now inequitable to compel him to aceept it.

3. VENDOR AND PURCHASER (§ I C—10)—REFEREE'S FINDING AS TO CON-
VEYANCING MATTERS—EFFECT ON TITLE,

A finding by a master or referee that a good title can be made to
land upon certain things in the nature of mere conveyancing being
done, is not a conditional finding or a finding against the title but a
mere finding as to the conveyancing necessary to perfect the good title
shewn to be in the vendor.

ArpeaL by the defendants William Marshall and Gray’s Sid-
ing Development Limited from the order of a Divisional Court,
Leckie v. Marshall, 3 O.W.N. 86, 20 O.W.R. 117, affirming with
some variations the order of SurHerLAND, J., Leckie v. Marshall,
2 0.W.N. 1441, 19 O.W.R. 803, directing payment into Court;
and from the judgment of Riddell, J., on further directions.
Cross-appeal by the plaintiffs from so much of the judgment of
RippELL, J., as reserved further directions.

The appeal was dismissed with costs and the eross-appeal al-
lowed without costs.

G. Bell, K.C., for the appellants,

J. Bicknell, K.C., for the plaintiffs,

The judgment of the Court was delivered by Garrow, J.A.:
—The case, in one form and another, has been before us more
than once, and with the facts we are very familiar,

Dealing first with the cross-appeal, chiefly a question of
practice, I am unable to see the necessity for the further reser-
vation. The motion was itself a motion on further directions,
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and ought to have, I think, made further provisions for dispos-
ing of the remaining questions. 1 would, therefore, allow the
cross-appeal, and direet such further amendments, if any, to
the order on further directions as,may be necessary, with liberty
to either party to apply in Chambers in case any subsequent
direction becomes necessary; which amendments may, if the
parties desire, be defined on settling the minutes of the judg-
ment in this Court.

I am entirely against the defendants’ appeal, which, it
seems to me, is based upon unsubstantial, I had almost said fanei-
ful, grounds.

Three points were mainly relied on: first, that the specific
performance awarded by the judgment left it optional with the
defendants at whose instance it was ordered, to recede from the
bargain; second, that, owing to the delay caused by the litiga-
tion, the property has so much decreased in value that it is
now inequitable to compel the defendants to accept; and, third,
that, in any event, the Master’s report on the title is condi-
tional, and should not be acted upon.

These, and possibly other objections which T have not noted,
were all presented and elaborated before us with great ability
by the learued counsel for the defendants; but I am quite unable
to see any force in any of them. When a litigant, either as
plaintiff or, as in this case, a defendant, by counterclaim, resist-
ing the plaintiff’s claim, sets up an agreement to sell or to pur-
chase land, and asks the Court to order specific performance, he
necessarily submits, on his part, to perform it, and the judgment
which he afterwards succeeds in obtaining is as binding upon
him as it is upon his opponent.

As to the second point, the delay of which the defendants
complain was wholly caused by their own demand, in opposition
to the plaintiffs’ claim, to have specific performance. That being
80, how could they now be heard to complain? If, after long
delay and changed circumstances, a plaintiff comes into Court
asking the Court to enforee specific performance, the Court
might consider it inequitable so to order, and leave the parties
to their other rights under the contract. But that is not at all
this case.

As to the third point, the report of the Master finds that
a good title can be made, upon certain things in the nature of
mere conveyaneing being done. That is not, in my opinion, a
conditional finding, or a finding against the title, but a mere
finding as to the necessary conveyancing to perfect the good
title shewn to be in the plaintiffs.

The appeal should be dismissed with costs, and the eross-ap-
peal allowed, but without costs.

Appeal dismissed and cross-appeal allowed.
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NIAGARA FALLS CO. v. WILEY,
Vanitoba King's Bench, Trial before Prendergast, J, April 22, 1012,

L EVIDENCE (§ VI—D)—PAROL AGREEMENT—NEW AGREEMENT IN LIES OF
FORMER WRITTEN CONTRACT.

In an action for money received by the defendant for goods sold
by him for the plaintiffs’ as their agent, the dispute was as to the
amount of commission the agent was to rive, the agent claiming
five per cent. commission under a writter reement, and the plain
tiffs claiming vy subsequent oral agreement the defendant was to
receive thereafter one-half such commission, the plaintiffs’ contention
was upheld where the evidence shewed that after the date of the al-
leged oral ment, the defendant received a statement from the
plaintiffs | ing the words “two and a half per cent. commission,
when sold” and never dicputed it, and he sent them his own state-
ment charging only two and a half per cent, and that all the plain-
tiffs" cheques were made out to the defendant on the two and a half
per cent. basis and their correctness was never disputed by him,

Tue defendant is a broker residing in Winnipeg, who, as
plaintiffs’ agent, received from them goods on consignment for
sale, sold them and received payment therefor, and the latter
now sue him for $1,274.62, as balance of moneys so received
by him for their use.

The defendant admits having received $1,342.93. but claims
certain credits, and brings the balance into Court,

There is no dispute as to the amount actually received by the
defendant—the difference between the two amounts hereinabove
set forth resulting merely from a different method of dealing
with the admitted eredits,

Judgment was given for plaintiff.

E. F. Haffner, and K. L. Patton, for the plaintifys,

J. B. Coyne, for the defendants,

PrENDERGAST, J.:—1 will deal with the matter as the par-
ties have done at the trial. upon the lines of the statement of
account set out in the defence, which is more detailed and ex-
plieit,

This statement shews the defendant received $1,342.93. It
sets out three small eredits for disecount, shortage and over-
charge—in all $26.41, which plaintiffs admit. It also sets out a
further credit of $1,061.60, which is really the issue, leaving a
balance of $254.90, which was brought into Court.

The said eredit of $1,061.60 is elaimed for commission at
5 per cent on certain sales to the T. Eaton Co., the Foley Bros.
and Larson Co., and the Jobin-Marrin Co,

On the sale to the Jobin-Marrin Co., as to which $53.72 is
claimed, the plaintiffs admit one half on the basis of a 215 per
cent. commission, thus redueing the disputed amount to
$1,034.74.

The defendant bases his claim on an agreement in writing
with the plaintiffs, dated Oectober 16th, 1908, appointing him




4 DLR.| Niaears Faes Co, v. WiLky.

their sole broker for Winnipeg and Western points, and pro
viding, among other things: that broker of 5 per cent. is to
be allowed on all orders sold: that the defendant assumes stor
age charges and insurance charges: that he shall do his utmost
to make speedy sale of the goods: that he will interest himself
in no other goods which will in any way conflict or retard the
sale of any lines packed by the company, and that the latter
will furnish all neeessary samples, information and assistanee
generally.

The plaintiffs” contention is that although the written agree
ment (Ex. 2) provided for a 5 per cent. commission, there was
on August 25, 1909, at the company’s office at Niagara Falls,
a verbal agreement between the defendant and F. 1. Boulter,
president and manager, and 8. E. Boulter, seeretary-treasurer
of the company, whereby the commission was reduced from 5
per cent, to 21, per cent,, with the understanding that the in-
surance charges and storage charges, which would inelude also
cartage, would no longer he borne by the defendant.

I think that this contention of the plaintifi's is amply estab-
lished. There is the evidence of the two officers of the com-
pany, and also that of Miss Annie Biggar, their book-keeper and
typewriter, who was present at the interview and, morcover,
shews that she thereafter made all cheques to the defendant on
a 21, per cent, basis and the correctness of the same was never
disputed.

Defendant says that at the meeting in question nothing
whatsoever was said about a change in the commission rate
But in November, 190D, he received from the plaintiffs their
statement (Ex. 24), bearing the words ‘214 per cent. commis-
sion when sold’’ and never disputed it. And on May 7Tth, 1910,
and August 24th, 1910, he sent them his own statements (Ex.
27 and 15), charging them in as many words and figures only
with 214 per cent. There is also the plaintifis’ letter of June 21,
1910 (Ex. 26), which supports their contention to some extent
if not conclusively by itself.

I do not think that against such evidence the defendant’s
contention that he had lost the written agreement and so made
mistakes in his statements, ean avail.

This disposes then fully of the Jobin-Marrin sale, on which
the defendant cannot claim more than a 215 per cent commis-
sion, which the plaintiffs allow.

The plaintiffs further contend that at the said interview
of August 25, 1910, at Niagara Falls, it was specially agreed
that the defendant would not eclaim any commission on the
Eaton sale and the Foley Bros. & Larson sales when the same
were consummated.  In my opinion, the evidence on this point,
supported as it is also by that offered on the question of the
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reduction of commission, establishes that before the Foley
Bros. & Larson sales were put through, the defendant was con-
sulted and agreed to these heing completed without his having
any claim for commission. The consideration for this seems
to have been that the order was direetly placed with the Sani-
tary Packing Co. for a full line of their goods and that the plain-
tiffs were only filling a comparatively small part of their order,
and, that the whole order was aceepted at a special cut as an
opening to secure this firm's trade, which would help the de-
fendant in making further sales to them thereafter.

As to the Eaton sale, which was placed directly with the
plaintiffs, the case was different in many respects, and although
it seems to have heen also referred to, 1 cannot come to the
same conclusion that the commission was also abandoned here.
In fact, in their letter of August, 1910 (Ex. 12), while the
plaintiffs say concerning the Foley sales: ““We have made this
clear to you when you were here last year at the factory,” they
do not base their view of the abandonment of commission on the
Eaton sale on the ground of understanding or agreement, but
on certain other considerations therein stated. Although pro-
testing they are not liable, they, however, say they are willing
to pay the commission at the reduced rate, and 1 do not think,
on the evidence, that they can now recede from that position.
That commission on a 214 per cent. basis, following the verbal
agreement of August 25, amounts to $48.75,

The defendant’s account then stands as follows:—

Dr. To admitted amount received for plaintiffs’ use..$1,342.93
C'r. By dise., shortage and overcharge. . $26.41

By Comm. Eaton sale at 214 per cent..... 48.73
By Comm. Jobin-Marrin sale at 214 per
[ O e o O S S S S s 26,86
— 102.00
TIRIDE o2 vsnsssseiarsvrsshes vasks $1,240.93

There will be judgment for the plaintiffs for $1,240.93
with interest since August 31, 1910, and costs, in part satisfac-
tion of which the amount brought into Court will be applied.

Judgment for plaintiffs.

Dt o o
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SMITH v. EXCELSIOR LIFE INSURANCE CO.

Ontario Court of Appeal, Moss. CJ1.0., Garrow, Maclaren, Meredith and
Magee, JJA. June 28, 1912,

L OINSURANCE  (§ 11T E 2—-120) —0CCUPATION A8 RAILWAY  EMPLOYEF
AVOIDANCE OF POLICY
A contract of life insurance is void where the insured has violated
a eondition thereof forbidding him, within two years from date of
contract, to engage in railway employment, withont a permit from the
insurance company

2, INSURANCE (§ 111 E 2--120) —REASONABLENESS OF CONDITION A8 TO OC
CUPATION AN RAILWAY EMPLOYES

1 A condition of a

within two yes

ontract of life insurance that it shall be void if,
n the date of the contract, the insured shall,
ge in the employment of a railway, is reason

able and valid,

3. Evioence (§ 1T K—313)—ACCEPTANCE BY COMPANY OF PAYMENT OF PRE
MIUMS—ONUS—KNOWLEDGE  OF VIOLATION OF CONDITION A8 TO
OCCUPATION,

In order that the ceplioee of pavments of premiums on a
contract of life insura shy onstitute a waiver by the insurer of
a condition of the contract thoi it shall be void if the insured should,
without a permit, within two years from date of contract, enter into
the employment of a railway, the onus rests upon those elaiming under
the policy to shew that the payments were aceepted by the insurance
company with notice or knowledge of the fact that the insured had
violated such condition of the policy,

[Western Assee, Co. v. Doull, 12 Can, S.C.R. 446, and Torrop v. Im
perial Fire, 26 Can. S.C.R. 585, specially referred to.]

4. Estorrer, (§ 111 G 1—87) —INSURANCE  AGENT WITHOUT AUTHORITY—
WAIVER  OF  CONDITION A8 TO  OCCUPATION—ACCEPTANCE  OF
PREMIUMS,

The fact that an agent, who had no authority to waive any of the
ions of a poliey of insurance, after the expiration of the two
rs in which an assured person was, by the terms of the policy,

prohibited from entering the employment of a railway without a
¥ permit from the company, acquired knowledge that the former was
in such employment, which was never communicated to the

cannot amount to a waiver of such condition of the

[Wells v. Independent Order of Foresters, 17 O.R. 317; Wing v.
Harvey, 5 DeG. M. & G. 265; Imperial Bank v. Royal Ins, (Yo, 12
O.LR. 519, specially referred to.]

Areear by the defendants from the judgment of Brirrox, J.,
3 0.W.N. 261.

The appeal was allowed and the action dismissed.

A Judge Britton’s judgment is as follows:

VG Brrrrox, J.:—This action is brought by Jean Smith, the
widow and the administratrix of the late Charles Francis Smith,
and by Zillah Smith, his mother, to recover $1,000, being the
amount, of the poliey issued by the defendants upon the life of
Charles Franeis Smith. The poliey is dated the 16th May, 1898,
and is a contraet that, upon the payment of twenty annual pre-
miums of $23.35 each, annually in advance, at the head office
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of the defendants, the defendants will pay to Zillah Swith,
mother of Charles Francis Smith, $1,000, at the expiration of
twenty years from the date of the poliey.

This policy was subject to the statements in the application
being true; and as to proof of the age of the assured and to
other things not neeessary to mention, as no point is raised in re-
ference to them by the defendants in this action. The following
wits one of the terms of the poliey printed on its face:

Receipts for premiums.  No payment to any person except in
exchange for a premiom

pt. duly signed by the president. vie

president, or manag

1z direetor, shall be binding npon the company,

and all payments made to an agent of the company by t) ured, o

any one representing him, without receiving a preminm ipt signed

as above, shall be deemed to have been received by the said agent as

agent for the assured, and not for the company,

Then, in addition to what is on the face of the poliey, in the
body of it, it is made subjeet to certain conditions and provisions
indorsed thereon. One of these, 5 (1), is, so far as material in
this case, as follows:—

If, within two years from the date of this contract, the assured,

without a permit, engage in employment on a railway, this policy shall

be void, and all payments thereon shall be forfeited to the company.

Mr. Smith was canvassed for this insurance hy one A. B.
Telfer. The application is dated the 6th May, 1895, is upon one
of the blanks of the defendants, and is signed hy Mr, Telfer as
the soliciting agent. Mur. Telfer was in fact then agent of the
defendants, under a contract dated the 25th March, 1898, The
contract as between Telfer and the defendants was terminated
on the 30th June, 1898,

The assured, C. F. Smith, did in fact, on or about the 25th
September, 1899, enter the serviee of the Grand Trunk Railway
Company as fireman. He continued in the employment of that
railway company until his death, which occurred on the 20th
July, 1911, At the time of his death, C. F. Smith was locomotive
engineer, having been promoted to that position some years he
fore. He was killed when upon duty. The defendants plead, in
bar of the plaintiffs’ right to receiver, that the assured, without
a permit from the defendants, did, within two years from the
date of the poliey, engage in employment on a railway, and that,
therefore, the policy hecame void.

The defendants admit that, notwithstanding the alleged for-
feiture of the policy, the premiums were regulavly paid: and,
without admitting any liability, the defendants bring into Court
the amount of the preminms so paid for the years 1900 to 1911,
inclusive, with interest thereon, which amount the defendants
ask the plaintiffs to aceept in full satisfaction of their claim
The plaintiffs, in reply, allege that the defendants had notiee of
the employment of the insured upon a railway; and, after such
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notice, the defendants, without objection, continued fo aceept
from Zillah Smith and retain the premivums paid by her for the
purpose of keeping the poliey alive, and that, by so doing, the
defendants waived any right to elaim a forfeiture of the poliey.

The question is, how far the defendants are affected hy notiee
to Ao B, Telter, their former agent

It is not certain when Telfer first had notice of the assured
aceepting employment on the railway —probahly soon after 1899

but he admits that he knew of it in 1908, and knew that in sub-
sequent vears the insured continued in such employment

Fhe position o A, B, Telfer and his relation to the defend
ants was apparently no different, so far as the insured or the
plaintifts knew, from what it was when the insurance was af
feeted. ALl preminms from fivst to last on this poliey. whether
paid by CO KL Siith or by the plaintiff Zillah Smith, were paid
to Telfer.  Receipts from Telfer for 1898, 1899, 1900, 1901, 1902,
and later years, were produeed.  These reeeipts or many of them
were signed by Telfer as agent for the defendants.  Ta all eases
the money was remitted to the defendants: and official receipts
were proenrved and handed over to the insured or the plaintifi
Zillah Swith,

The defendants treated, dealt with, and recognized Telfer as

to this policy as their agent in eolleeting preminms, and was
paid by the defendants thevefor the usunal commission to agents
The plaintiftt Zillah Smith had no means of knowing and did not
know what other business, if any, Telfer was engaged in. All the
husiness as to this policy and payment of premiums thereon was
transacted by her with Telfer as her agent. It is true that, in
the absenee of Telfer, one or more letters were written hy Tel
fer’s wite, but she acted for her hushand and only for him, to
accommodate the plaintiff Zillah Smith

\s late as the 17th June, 1911, Telfer received that year’s
premimm. remitted to the defendants, and again was paid the
agent’s commission,  1f established that Telfer was the agent ol
the defendants in respect to colleetion of preminms, then the
notice to him must be treated as notice to the defendants, and the
defendants will he preeladed from insisting on the forfeiture
of the poliey.

Wing v. Harvey, 5 DeG. M. & (. 265, seems expressly in
point. In that ease, a life poliey was subject to a condition
making it void if the assured went beyond the limits of Europe
without a license. An assignee of the poliey, on paying the pre-
miums to a local agent of the assurance society, at the place
where the assurance had been effected, informed him that the as
snred was resident in Canada. The agent stated that this would
not avoid the policy, and received the premiums until the as-
sured died ; and it was held that the society were precluded from
insisting on the forfeiture. Here the local agent at the place
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where the assurance was effected, after knowing that the de-
ceased had engaged in employment on a railway, accepted the
premiums.  The defendants aceepted the premiums; and these
were regularly paid down to the time of the death of the as-
sured.  In the ease cited, Lord Justice Knight Bruce said :—
The directors taking the money were and are preeluded from saying
that they reccived it otherwise than for the purpose and in the faith
for which and in which Mr. Wing expressly paid it.

This is not the case of the authority of an agent—collecting
agent—to waive a forfeiture oceasioned by hreach of a condition.
The forfeiture is waived by the defendants themselves, by their
accepting premiums from year to year, after the occurrence of
what they now rely in as permitting them to declare a forfeit-
ure—premiums paid in good faith and received by the defend-
ants without inquiry or objection. In 1900, the defendants in-
creased their rates. Ilad C. F. Smith not been insured with the
defendants until 1900, the annual premium would have been,
as of twenty-one years of age, $27.70. That increase of rate
could not affect this contract, made in 1898. The defendants in
1898 were not issuing policies upon railway employees; but they
were in 1900 and ever sinee, upon the terms of an annual addi-
tion of %5 to the regular premium rate. The local agent did
not, nor did the defendants, in any way notify the plaintiffs or
C. F. Smith, or, so far as appears, any existing poliey-holder, of
any additional amount required for premium.

Upon all the facts, 1 do not think the cases cited by counsel
for the defendants are in confliet with Wing v. Harvey. 1t can-
not be said that the defendants intended to declare a forfeiture
~when the time mentioned in the policy within which the as-
sured could not take railway employment had expirved. The
most they conld attempt to do would be to impose the additional
charge of 5 a year.

Wing v. Harvey, 5 DeG. M. & G. 265, is diseussed in Wells v,
Independent Order of Foresters, 17 O.R. 317, at p. 326,

The claim seems to me a just and equitable one; and T am
glad to find that the defendants—notwithstanding their pleading
—admit by the letter of their actuary, put in upon the trial, that,
upon the basis of a premium of 35 plus $5-- 42835, the
pleintiffs would be entitled to $823.65.

In any event, in my opinion, the plaintiffs are entitled to that
sum.

I would be sorry to find that the law is such as to prevent
recovery of the whole elaim by the claimant who has regularly
paid all preminms, sometimes at personal inconvenience—rely-
ing upon w''mately getting the amount of the poliey, The for-
mal proof of claim was admitted on the 16th August, 1911, The
plaintiffs are entitled to recover $1,000, with interesi at five per
cent. per annum from the 16th August, 1911, with costs.
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H. E. Rose, K., tor the defendants,
John B, Logan, for the plaintiffs,

The judgment of the Court was delivered by Girrow,
J.A.—The action was brought upon an insurance policy issued
by the defendants for $1,000 upon the life of Charles F. Smith,
payable to his mother, the plaintiff Zillah Smith. The policy
is dated the 16th May, 1898, At that time, Charles . Smith
was a farmer. The policy contained a condition that, if, within
two years from the date of the contract, the insured should,
without a permit, engage in employment on a railway, the poliey
should be void and all payments made thereon should be for-
feited to the company. The assured did, within the period of
two years, engage in employment on a railway, by becoming a
fireman upon a locomotive engine, in which employment he con-
tinued, and in which he finally lost his life in an accident on the
20th July, 1911. There was no evidence that a permit had ever
been given, or even asked for, to enable the assured to become a
railway employee. But, the premiums having been paid after
the change until the death, it was contended by the plaintiffs
that, under the eircumstances, the defendants should be held to
have waived the condition, To this contention Britton, .J., ae-
ceded, and gave judgment for the full amount. [ am, with de-
ference, unable to agree with that conclusion.

The terms of the contract are very clear and easily under-
stood. What the defendants stipulated for was, not merely
notice of a change of employment, but that for such change a
permit should be required. The condition is a perfectly rea-
sonable one. The premium for the one risk naturally differed
from that of the other. It is even doubtful, on the evidence, if,
at the time the risk was undertaken or the employment changed,
a locomotive fireman would have been able to obtain from the
defendants a policy on any terms.

The change of employment having admittedly taken place
without a permit, in breach of the condition, the onus was
clearly upon the plaintiff to establish by satisfactory evidence
a case against the company of either waiver or estoppel. And
the very first step towards making out such a case would neces-
sarily be proof of notice to or knowledge by the company; for
without such notice or knowledge there could be neither the one
nor the other.

There was no such proof, nor indeed any serious attempt
made to prove notice to or knowledge by the company as a com-
pany. And the negative of any such notice or knowledge, at
any time prior to the death of the assured, was clearly estab-
lished by the uncontradicted testimony of the general manager,
Mr. Marshall. What was proved and all that was proved by the
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plaintiffs was, that Mr. Telfer, the defendants’ local agent at
Sarnia, who obtained the risk in the first instance, and who con-
tinued to forward the preminms until the death of the assured,
had become aware of the change of employment, Exactly when
he acquired this knowledge is not clear; but it is clear that it
was long after the expiry of the two years within which the
condition was operative,

Mr. Telfer’s appointment as agent was in writing, which
was produced at the trial. e was not a general agent, but
agent only for the town of Sarnia and vicinity and such other
territory as might be from time to time agreed upon. By the
terms of the contract, he had no power to make, alter, or dis-
charge any contraet given on behalf of the company, or to waive
any forfeiture or grant any permit or to colleet any preminms
exeept those for which policies or official receipts had been sent
to him for collection.

In the hody of the poliey it is stated that none of the terms
of the poliey could be modified nor any forfeiture waived except
by agreement in writing signed by the president, a vice-presi-
dent, or the managing director, whose authority for such pur-
pose it was therein declared could not be delegated,

In the month of August, 1899, or before the expiry of the
two-year period, Mr. Telfer retived from the agency, although he
continued to forward premiums upon this and some other poli-
cies which had been received by him while agent, Ie, however,
never notified the defendants of what he had heard concerning
the change of employment, which he apparently did not regard
as a matter of any moment, as of course it would not have heen
if it had ocenrred, as he probably assumed, after the two vears
had expired.

Notice to any agent in the position of Mr. Telfer, even if his
employment had continued, would not be notice to the company.
That seems to be settled by authority binding upon this Court.
See Western Assurance Co. v, Doull, 12 Can, S.C.R, 446; Torrop
v. Imperial Fire Inswrance Co, 26 Can, S.C.R, 585, N
Impervial Bank of Canada v. Royal Insurance Co,, 12 O.1.R. 519,
where many cases, including Wing v. Harvey, 5 DeGi. M, & G
265, upon which the learned trial Judge relied, are eited ; and
Wells v. Supreme Court of the Independent Ovder of Forestors,
17 O.R. 317, The result might be otherwise if there were any eir-
cumstances from which it could be reasonably inferred that the
knowledge acquired by the loeal agent had been in any way
communiecated to the head offiee.  There are, however, here no
such eircumstances, while the uncontradicted evidence of Mr.
Marshall makes it beyond question that in fact the company
never actually had, until the death, any notice or knowledge
whatever of the change.
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The appeal must, therefore, in wy opinion, be allowed, and
the action dismissed.  And, under the circumstances, the usual
consequences as 1o costs must follow. It is a great pity that the
very reasonable offer made by the defendants at the trial, to pay
sueh an amount as the preminms would have paid for in the new
and more hazavdous employment, was not accepted. 1 have, of
course, no power to impose such a term; but I may at least ex
press the hope that, notwithstanding the result of the litigation,
the defendants will again renew the offer, and that the plaintifls
will aceept it.

Appeal allowed and action dismissed

POCOCK v. NOVITZ
Sastatehewan Supreme Court,  Trial before Wetmare, €0, May 20, 1912
L Prenae (§1 A8 Rrcovery oF possession  FALSE REPRESENTATION
OF PLEDGOR
One whe holds personalty as seenrity may retake it from the owner
who had obtained possession from the hailee by falsely representing
that he had paid the debt for which it was held as seeurity
[Wallaee v, Wondgate, 1. C. and . 575, and Babeoek v, Lawson
QOBD, 286, specinlly referred to.)
Tins is a replevin action, for the recovery of chattels detained
by the defendant, who counterelaimed for moneys due in respect
of payments made hy him in connection with a well-boring agree

ment
Judement was given for the defendant

L. D. MacIntosh, for plaintif¥
F. F. Morton and A. L. McLean, for defendant

Wersmore, (WJ.:—The plaintiff entered into an agrecment
with the defendant to bore a well for him. 1 am of opinion that
the weight of evidence establishes, and 1 find, that the terms of
the agreement were that the defendant was to board the plaintiff,
his men and teams during the progress of the work, and furnish
the casing and materials, but if the well was not satisfactory
to the defendant, he was not to pay anything to the plaintiff’ for
doing the work, but the plaintiff was to pay him for the board,
casing and materials furnished. The plaintift proceeded to bore
a well, but before it was completed he got his drill stuck in the
hole and could not get it out, and the earth eaved in and buried
it, so that well was not satisfactory, in fact it was useless. The
plaintiff then proposed to bore another hole for a well on the
same place, an’ ¢ was agreed that the terms for boring this
well would be tiv same as those for boring the first one, and
that the plaintiff should leave his well-boring outfit with the
defendant as security until he made him a satisfactory well and
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satisfied him in every way—by which, I understand, and find,
that the outfit was to held as security for all obligations that
the plaintiff was to be under to the defendant in respect to both
the well-boring agreements if the second horing did not turn out
satisfactory. The plaintiff went on to bore for the second well,
and that proved a failure also. This time the drill got caught
in the easing, and the plaintiff could not get it out. IHe eventu-
ally abandoned the work. This was in the fall of the year. The
boring outfit was left on the defenuant’s premises. The plain-
tiff applied to the defendant the following spring for permission
to take the engine away. The defendant refused. Subsequently
however, the defendant agreed to let him have the engine pro-
vided he would pay the account of Ritz and Yoerger for casing
supplied for the wells; he was to retain the rest of the outfit
for the board furnished and other supplies and material. The
plaintiff and defendant went to Ritz and Yoerger to have this
agreement carried out by Ritz and Yoerger accepting the plain-
tifft for the price of the casing. Those gentlemen agreed to
accept him, provided satisfactory security was given by the
plaintiff, who went away stating that he would give security.
About a day or two after this, the plaintiff came to the defend-
ant’s place in the evening and asked for the engine, stat-
ing that he settled the aceount with Ritz and Yoerger.
The defendant declined to let him have the engine then,
stating that he wanted to know if he had settled, and he
wonld go to town the next day and find out. The plaintiff
went away. The defendant did not go to town the next day—
some other matter claimed his attention—but he sent one (‘rook
to ascertain whether the aceount had been settled. The plain-
tiff turned up that day, and again asked for the engine, and
pleaded very carnestly for it, and assured the defendant that
he had paid the account, so the defendant, yielding to his solici-
tations, and depending upon such assurances, let him have it.
The plaintiff hitehed his horses on to the engine, and took it
away. Very shortly after that Crook returned from town and
informed the defendant that the account had not been paid or
settled. I may say that the plaintiff had not been near Ritz or
Yoerger since the time he was there with the defendant, and
the account had not been paid or arranged for in any way. The
defendant, upon receiving the information from Crook, immedi-
ately drove after the plaintiff, taking Crook with him, and over-
took him on the road with the engine about a mile and a half
from the defendant’s place from which he had taken the engine,
and took it away from him and ecarried it back to his place.
This, and a demand and refusal to deliver up the whole of the
well-boring outfit, including the engine, constitute the wrong-
ful acts of the defendant complained of in this action. The
plaintiff replevined the whole of the property in question.
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The defendant was justified in retaking the engine, as he
had been induced to give it up to the plaintiff by his fraudulent
representation. See Wallace v. Woodgate, 1 C. & P.575. R. & M.
193, and Babeock v. Lawson, 5 Q.13.1D. 284, at p. 286,

There will be judgment for the defendant on the elaim, with
a return of the property replevined, with costs of defence. 1
allow the defendant on the counterclaim.

Amount paid Ritz and Yoerger for casing & 70,00
Amount paid Albert Smith for casing % 25.70

Amount paid W. A, Westwood for pipe, rod, pump
head and eylinder, with interest 54.55
Board of plaintif®s men G000
Board of horses . 3000
Paid for lumber 25.00
In all : R ...8 265.25

for which the defendant will have judgment, with costs of
counterclaim.

Declare that the defendant has a lien on the well-boring out
fit, including the engine, for the amount of the said
together with the costs awarded the defendant both on the elaim
and counterelaim.

And that the plaintiff pay into Court to the credit of this
cause the said sum of $265.25 and costs within three months from
the date of the taxation of such costs, and on default, that the
well-boring outfit and engine be sold by the sheriff of the
judicial distriet of Saskatoon at such time and place as he may
appoint, first giving the same notice of sale as is usually given
for the sale of personal property under exeeution. The pro
ceeds of such sale to be applied:

(1) In payment to the sheriff of the costs and expenses of the sale,
including an allowance to him,

(2) In satisfaction of the defendant’s judgments above awarded,
with interest thereon at the rate of five per cent. per annum; if not
sufficient to satisfy such judgments and interest, then as far as it
will exten !, and the defendant to have execution for the balance.

(3) If more than sufficient to pay the defendant’s judgments, the
balance to be paid into Court to be paid out to the defendant on his
application therefor.

It occurred to me at first that the agreement which T have
found was made hetween these parties was a very harsh one.
On further consideration I am of opinion that it was not as harsh
as it first appeared to be. In the first place, it is quite a com-
mon agreement to make in well-boring transactions. The
chances of striking water seemed to be pretty sure in that part
of the country. The plaintiff had bored for two or three other
wells before he engaged with the defendant, and there was no
complaint of his not getting water. In both the borings for the
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defendant water was struck.  So the inability to get water was
not the trouble.  The defendant got no benefit whatever from
the work, and 1 strongly suspeet from the tenor of the plain-
tiff’s letter to the defendant of the 28th March, 1911, that the
trouble was largely due to the carelessness of the plaintiff and
his want of knowledge of how to do the work,

Judgment for defendant.

COLTART v. WINNIPEG INDUSTRIAL EXHIBITION.

Vanitoba Court of Appeal, Howell, Cd M., Richards, Perdue, Cameron,
and Hogoort, JdoL June 10, 1912,

LooBaresest  (§ 117 ) —Liapieiry  oF  EXUiBirioNn  ASSOCIATION—
DEATIE OF DOGS EXHIBITED, FROM INFECTIOUS DISEASE-—ABSENCY
OF NEGLIGENC)

An exhibition association that solicited the exhibition of the plain
tifl's dogs, is not lable for their subsequent death from distemper,
which loped upon their heing returned to him, where it did not
appear that other dogs there exhibited had sach disease, and that there
wis ample opportunity for the plaintifi’s dogs to have contracted it
elsewhere, and no negligence was shewn on the part of the defendant,
either in inspecting de wdmitted to the exposition, or in earing for
the plaintifi’s dogs while there,

[Coltart v, Winnipeg Industrial Exhibition, 17 W.L.R, 372, alirmed;
Connacher v, City of Toronto, 21 C.LT, 172, di*linguidml\l‘]

Areean by plaintiff from the decision of Prendergast, ).,
at the trial dismissing the action, Coltart v. Winnipeg Industrial
Exhibition, 17 W.L.R. 372,

The appeal was dismissed.

Messrs, J. H. Munson, K.C'., and H. A. Bergman, for plaintiff,

A B, Hudson, for defendants,

Ricuagns, J.A, —The plaintiff, who lived near Beulah, in
Manitoba, and owned a number of valuable Japanese spaniels
sent 12 of them in 1909 to the annual exhibition of the Winni-
peg Industrial Exhibition Association, where they were exhib-
ited in the building used for shewing dogs.  Shortly after their
return home they began to sicken with distemper, which spread
to others, A large number of valuable dogs died, and several
others were permanently injured and rendered of no commer-
cial value,

The plaintiff claims that the Association were guilty of neg-
ligence in their sanitary arrangements at the exhibition, and
that, as a result of that negligence, the distemper infected her
dogs.  The learned trial Judge thought there was ground for
holding that the dogs had contracted the disease at the Dog
Show, but he held that the Association had not been guilty of
negligence, and so dismissed the action,

Two things have to be established to make the Association
linble: First, that they were guilty of negligence, and second,
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that, as a result of that negligenee, these dogs contracted the dis
temper. It the plaintiff® fails to prove either of these grounds
her aetion fails,

I have gone eavefully over the evidence and am unable to
find in it any proof that germs of distemper were actually pres
ent at the Dog Show. The only evidence on the point refers to
one Airvedale terrvier, the property of My, Lord. This dog was
brought in without being inspested at the gate, or door, of the
building. There is no evidenee that he was sick when brought
in, but he was found, later on, to have symptoms which might
be those of distemper or merely those of a bad cold.  On that
being discovered he was almost immediately taken away.  His
beneh was then disinfeeted, and was not ocenpied by any other
dog during the show, e is referred to in the evidence by wit
nesses, two or three times, as “*with the disterper™; but the only
skilled evidence called with regard to him is that of the veter-
inary surgeon who attended him after he was removed, who says
that he was merely suffering from a severe cold.

It was argued that the evidence shews that there was another
Airedale terrvier at the show which had distemper, but 1 think
all the evidence on that point refers only to Mr, Lord’s dog.

Now, while it is quite possible ‘that the dogs eaught the dis
temper at the Dog Show, they may have eanght it in the train
coming to, or returning from, Winnipeg, or they may have got
the germs into their hair during a previous visit to Winnipeg.
or on the way to or from that visit, and the germs may have
been there for some time before being taken into the system of
any dog. There seems to be some doubt as to how long before
the exhibition week that visit was had, but it was within from
one to four weeks,

The nearest ease in point that T can find is Connacher v, City
of Toronto, reported in 21 C.LT. at p, 172, In that case the
plaintiff and his family lived in a house about 142 feet from
the mouth of a sewer of the city of Toronto. Owing to low
water in the Toronto Bay, into which the sewer discharged, parts
of the sewage were exposed above the water line to the sun
Apparently they were very filthy,  The plaintift’s family con
tracted diphtheria. A number of them died, and he was put to
considerable expense. He sued the eity for damages, elaiming
that diphtheria germs had got from this sewage to his house
and infected his family., The evidence shewed that the sewage
was likely to contain diphtheria germs, and that, if it did, and
if the exposed sewage became dry, the germs were likely to be
carried, in the atmosphere, to the plaintiff’s house.  But it was
not shewn that such germs were actually present in the sewage

The plaintiff recovered a verdict. A motion to set it aside
was heard before a Divisional Court, composed of Armour, C.J.,
Falsonbridge, J., and Street, J. The Court held that there was
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no evidence from which a jury might fairly or reasonably infer
that the germs which infected the plaintiff's family came from

1912 this sewage, and dismissed the action.
Coxtase Armour, C.J., who gave the judgment of the Conrt, says at
f v, p. 179, after stating the plaintiff’s elaim as to the facts:
!“ i WiNNIPEG

INDUSTRIAL The difficulty in supporting this theory is that there was no evidence
EXHIRITION, that there were any germs of diphtheria in this sewage; that if (here
were any portion of this sewage hecame sufficiently dry to be taken
up into the air, and that, if it were, any of such germs were so tuken
up, and that, if taken up, they were wafted by the air into proximity
to the plaintiff's family, and that they were inhaled by them.

Richards, J.A,

With every respect it seems to me that, if it had been shewn
that there were germs of diphtheria in the sewage, and that the
sewage had become dry enough for those germs to be taken up
by the air, the other conditions, which the Conrt thought essen-
tial to maintain the action, might, from the circumstances, have
heen taken as proved, after a verdiet by a jury. But the absence
of evidence of the existence in that sewage of diphtheria germs,
which were sufficiently dry to be taken up by the air, was, in
itself, T think, a proper ground for holding as the Court did.

In the present case there is no greater ground for holding
that there were distemper germs at the dog show than in the
case just mentioned there was for finding that there were diph-
theria germs in the sewage.

In view of the above, there is no need to consider whether
there was or was not negligence on the defendants’ part in the
management of the dog show.

I would dismiss the appeal.

Perdue, 7.4, PerouE, J.A.:—The plaintiff was, no doubt, importuned and
finally induced to send her dogs to the show, on the representa-
tion made by officers of the Association that great eare would be
taken to protect them from harm. But the legal position of the
plaintiff’ and the defendants remained that of bailor and bailee,
It was a bailment without reward, and in order to charge the
bailees with damages for loss or injury to the animals bailed
it was necessary to prove, at the very least, that the bailees did
not exercise reasonable care. I think the plaintiff failed to
establish negligence on the part of the defendants, Even if she
were taken to have established a primd facie case of negligence
in the inspection and supervision of the dogs admitted as exhib-
its, the facts would not warrant the Court in making a positive
finding that the plaintiff’s dogs contracted distemper by being
exposed to that disease while at the show,

The dogs sent to Winnipeg became in some way infected with
distemper, and after their return they transmitted it to the
plaintifi’’s other dogs, so that all became diseased and either died
or were permanently injured. I have much sympathy for the
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plaintiff in her loss, but T cannot see any way in which the
defendants ean be held liable for the damage she sustained.

CamMERON, J.A :—This action is bronght in respeet of 29
Japanese spaniels and two Fox terviers owned hy the plaintiff,
22 of which spaniels and the two terriers, it is alleged, died, and

three others of the spaniels were disabled by reason of the wilful
and negligent acts and omissions of the defendants, It is alleged
that the plaintiff, at the solicitation of the defendant corpora-
tion, sent 12 of the spaniels to be exhibited at the annual exhi
hition of the defendants in Winnipeg in July, 1909, the defend
ants charging a fee to the publie for admission. It is further
alleged that the defendants represented that the arrangements
for the safety, comfort and well-being of the dogs would be ade
quate and that all proper steps would be taken to prevent the
dogs being exposed to infection, and the plaintiff relied on such
representations, It is then charged that the defendants did not
provide proper arrangements or supplies or take proper pre
cautions for the care, safety, comfort and well-heing of the dogs
and wilfully and negligently omitted to provide proper
ments and take proper precautions for the care, ete., and wilfully
and negligently omitted to take proper preeautions to prevent
the dogs being exposed to infeetion, and by reason of such wilful
and negligent acts and omissions the dogs were exposed to infee
tion, and contracted distemper, which was communicsated to all
the other dogs, with the result that 22 of the spaniels and the

"range-

two Fox terriers died
In the statement of defence the defendants deny the plain
tiff 's allegations and set up further that the plaintiff signed a
form of entry and an agreement to abide by the rules and regu
lations under which the dog show and exhibition were held, and
that under said rule and regulations, which are set out, they are
not liable for any damage sustained by the plaintiff,  Alterna-
tively, it is alleged, amongst other defences, that the defendants,
although not bound, did take proper precautions for the care
of the dogs and to prevent their exposure to infeetion
Particulars of the alleged negligent acts and omissions were
demanded and furnished as follows:
(1) That the defendants did not cause the dogs sent to the Exhi
bition to be inspected, or if they did, the inspection was insuflicient,
(2) Dogs on exhibition were suffering from infectious disenses and

were removed only or delay,

(3) The attendance was insufficient and ineflicient.
e

(1) The sanitary arrangements were inndeq
(5) Defendants failed to supply proper pens or henches and to pre
vent the plaintiff's dogs coming into contact with other dogs and

infected matter,

Later these particulars were elaborated and made more spe-
cific as follows :—
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(1) That no medical examination or inspeetion of the dogs exhib-
itedd at the defendants’ exhibition in the year 1909 was made at any
time prior to or during such exhibition

(2) No proper disinfectants were used Ly the defendants, or if
used, were not properly or sufficiently used for the purpose of pre
venting disease.

(3) The building in which the dogs were exhibited was unsanitary
and improper and inadequate.

(4) The exercise yard provided was of insuflicient size and otherwise

improper for the purpose.

(3) No proper foold or water was supplied to the dogs exhibited.

() The dogs exhibited were allowed to mix with one another, both
in the building in which the said dogs were exhibited and also in the
exercise yard and in the judging ring.

(7) The premises were not kept in u clean or samitary condition.

All these gronnds were disenssed at length on the argument
hefore us, but [ propose to deal with two of them only.

The main contention on the argnment was that the germs
giving rise to the distemper which caused the death and disabling
of the dogs in question are communicable by contact and without
contact, that these germs were communicated to at least one of
the plaintiff’s dogs during the exhibition, and that this was due
to negligence on the part of the defendants in allowing dogs to
be exhibited suffering from distemper. Special stress was placed
on the argument, upon the alleged fact that a dog on exhibition.
an Airedale terrier, belonging to a Mr, Lord, was, at the time,
suffering from distemper. Mr. Lord says he found this Aire-
dale terrier “‘sick’’ on the second day of the exhibition. He
appealed to the Judge in attendance at the exhibition, who looked
at the dog and said, *‘He had got the distemper.”” But Dr.
Smith, a duly qualified veterinary surgeon, to whom the dog was
brought for treatment, diagnosed and treated the ecase *
simply a cold.”” T think this evidence must he accepted as con-
clusive. Brush's evidence (178, 179) is not that of a profes-
sional man.

as

Now Shepard, who strikes me as a keen and competent wit-
ness, who was in attendance all the time, says this was the only
case of illness amongst the dogs that came to his notice (p, 321)
Dr. Rombough says (p. 341) :

We found one of them present with slight symptoms, had a eatarrhal
discharge from the nose and eyes.

Q. What kind of a dog was that?

A. Airedale terrier,

That was the only dog, he said, that shewed signs of distemper.
On the evidence, T think it clear that the references of the wit-
nesses are to one Airedale terrier only, and on this T am forced
to differ from the finding of the trial Judge. It is to be observed
that Dr. Rombough says that the Airedale terrier shewed **slight
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symptoms,”’ not that it was actually affected by the disease. The
diagnosis of Dr. Smith is, in my judgment, conclusive on that
point.

Elmes, the superintendent, says he knew of only one case of
illness, that of the Airedale terrier.

A reference by the witness O'Brien to a dog that looked
unwell, ean, I think, be passed by as unimportant.

In the result we have it established that there were no dogs
at the exhibition suffering from distemper. Or, to put it an
other way, it is not established that there were any dogs, or that
there was any dog, at the exhibition affected with distemper.
That being the case, it seems difficult to deduee grounds on which
we can base the liability of the defendants in th s case. It is
only too plain that from the time the dogs in (estion were
shipped from the kennels at Beunlah until they were returned
to them, apart altogether from the time they were in the exhi-
bition building, there were many opportunities for one or more
of them to become infected.  In the absence of positive evidence
shewing the existence of distemper in the building at the time of
the dog show, it would seem to me impossible to fasten liability
upon these defendants without resting that liability upon mere
conjecture,

Apart from this consideration, which seems to me decisive,
it does not appear to me to have been established that the de
fendants were guilty of negligence in the examination and in-
spection of the dogs admitted to the exhibition. I think the
method of inspeetion adopted by the defendants was reasonable
and adequate, and that the defendants did all they could be
called upon to do in the civcumstances. I have gone through the
whole evidence with this point in view, and have come to the
conelusion that Dr. Rombough’s evidence on this subject is sat-
isfactory. His view is confirmed by the experienced veterinarian
Shepard, who stood at the door and saw that there was nothing
wrong with the dogs as they were bronght in.  Exhibitors with
experience of other exhibitions gave evidenee that the method of
inspection in this ease was satisfactory

I have read the judgment of Mr. Justice Rizhards and concur
therewith. T think the appeal must be dismissed

Howerr, C.JJ M., eoncurred with Richards, J.A.

HaGGart, J.A., concurred
Appeal dismissed.
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RE SNETSINGER.
Ontario High Court, Britton, J. July 2, 1912,

- Wites (§ 111 E—106)—SALE OF LAND IN LIFETIME OF TEST ATOR—WHAT
PASSES ON DEVISE OF “REAL ESTATE.

Land that a person had, in his lifetime, contracted to sell to one
who, without paying all of tae purchase money or receiving a con-
veyance, had entered into possession, does not pass under a devise of
“real estate,” while the agr ned in foree, since the only
interest the testator had, after the execution of such agreement, was
to receive the unpaid portion of the purchase money.

Moriox by Allan M. Snetsinger, upon an originating notiee
under Con, Rule 938, for an order determining a question aris-
ing in the administration of the estate of John Goodall Snet-
singer, deceased, as to the construction of a clanse in his will
dealing with real estate in the township of Cornwall which be-
longed to the testator.

The motion was heard at Cornwall.

@G. A. Stiles, for the applicant.

. H. Cline, for the exeeutors.

Brirrow, J.:—The testator made his will on the 19th Nov-
ember, 1906, On that day he owned several farms in the town-
ship of Cornwall. On the 15th March, 1899, the testator
entered into an agreement with one W, . Conliff for the sale
to Conliff of part of the east half of lot 22 in the 4th conces-
sion, Hth range, of the township of Cornwall, for the price or
sum of $2,500, payable in yearly payments—the first of $50
and the second to the fourteenth inclusive of $100 each, and the
balance at the expiration of the fifteentl year. The time for
payment in full will not expire until the i5th March, 1914. The
purchaser went into possession, was at the time of making the will,
at the time of the death of the testator, and is now, in possession.
The executors recognise the agreement with Conlifl' as in foree;
and, although there has been default in paying as much on
account of principal as the agreement ealls for, and although the
agreement permits the vendor (in case of default) to resell, there
has been no re-entry or attempt to sell by either the testator
or the executors. The prineipal money of the purchase-price
has been reduced. The vendee could, during the testator’s life,
according to the terms of the agreement, have made his payments
on principal up to $1,000, and could have demanded and got a
conveyance to him—giving to the testator a mortgage for the
balance. The testator died on the 9th December, 1909. The
vendee has his right to retain the land, and get a conveyance
from the executors.

The clauses of the will requiring consideration are:—

(1) ““I give devise and bequeath to my son Allan M. Snet-
singer my entire stock of goods in my store at Moulinette afore-
said, my carriages, harness, farm implements of all kinds,
horses, and all kinds of live stock, and generally the contents of
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the stables, earriage houses, and outbuildings at my residence
and upon my farms in the township of Cornwall, and one half
of my household furniture and houschold effects and furnish-
ings of all kinds, including plate, glass ware, pictures, books, and
the entire contents of my dwelling, and all my real estate in the
township of Cornwall . . . .”

The testator had farms--real estate—in the township of
Cornwall not in any way connected with the farm under agree-
ment with Conliff.  No part of the chattel property bequeathed
to Allan was upon the Conliff farm. Nothing in the will refers
direetly to the Conliff farm

The devise of all the rest and residue of the testator's prop-
erty is upon trust ** (1) forthwith to convey, assure, assien, and
sct over to my son Allan M. Snetsinger the real and personal
estate hereinbefore  devised and  bequeathed to him.”” This
clause does not in any way enlarge the devise or assist Allan in
his elaim to the Conliff farm,

The sole question is, do the words, ‘““my real estate in the
township of Cornwall,”” include the real estate sold to Conliff?

I am of opinion that they do not. This farm was not, at the
time of making the will, or at the time of the testator’s death, his
real estate, within the meaning of these words. The words **real
estate’” do not, as a general thing, include leasehold—nor do
they include the benefieial interest which a mortgagee has. In
this case the testator had his interest limited to the unpaid pur-
chase-money—what the testator intended to indicate as the real
estate he devised to his son is shewn by mentioning the chattels
upon the farms, and mentioning by description one pareel, The
distinetion between purchase-money for land and the land
itsel” it elearly maintained in all eases of ademption.  See Tn re
Cloaves, [1893] 1 Ch. 214; Re Dods, 1 OLLR. T; Ross v. Ross
20 Gr. 203,

It was held in Leach v. Jay, 6 Ch. D. 496, that the words “‘ real
estate of which T may die seized’ did not pass lands which, at
the time of the testator’s death, were in the wrongful possession
of a stranger. The fair inference from the reasoning in that
case is, that the words *“real est " would not pass lands which,
at the time of the testator’s death, were in the rightful possession
of a purchaser, even if all the purchase-money was not paid

The order will go construing the will of the said John Good-
all Snetsinger in this way, that the elause devising all the real
estate of the deceased in the township of Cornwall did not pass
that portion of the east half of lot number 22 in the 4th con-
cession, Hth range, of the township of Cornwall, in the county
of Stormont, lying north of the Ottawa and New York Rail-
way, erossing said east half of said lot.

Costs of all parties out of the estate—costs of executors be-
tween solicitor and client.

Order accordingly.
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IMP, WINNIPEG ELECTRIC RAILWAY CO. (defendants, appellants) v. CITY
OF WINNIPEG (plaintiffs, respondents).

P.C.
1912 Judicial Committee of the Pricy Council. Present: Earl Lorcburn, L.Cy

Py Lords  Macnaghten, Atkinson, Shaw of Dunfermline, and Robson,
Feh, 21. February 21, 1912,

1. STATUTES (§ 1 G 286 ) —SPECIAL LEGISLATION AS TO USER BY CORPORA-
TION OF HIGHWAYS— ECTION OF POLES—43 Vier, (Man.) cu. 36,
Power granted under 43 Viet. (Man.) ch. 36 to a company to
“break up, dig, and trench so much and so many of the public streets,
roads, squares, highways, and other public places in any municipality
. . . as may at any time be necessary or required for laying down
or erecting [or repairing] the mains, pipes or wires to conduct” gas
or electricity, will permit the erection of poles therein to earry wires
necessary for the conveyance of electricity.
[Winnipey v. Winnipeg Electrie R. Co., 20 Man. L.R. 337, 16 W.L.R.
G2, reversed, |

. Hicuways (§ 11 B—47) —ELECTRIC LIGHT POLES—MUNICIPALITY GRANT-
ING CONDITIONAL PERMITS TO KRECT.

All doubt as to the power of a company to erect poles to carry
electric wires through the streets and public places of a city is
concluded by the fact that the city agreed to grant the company per-
mits, under certain conditions, to erect poles therein, and requiring
that it should permit the use thereof by other companies, and also
by the city for wires of its fire alarm system, or for heat and light.

Taxes (§ 1 E—70)—CONSTRUCTION OF BY-LAW FIXING TAXATION OF
STREET RAILWAY COMPANY-—IMPORTATION OF ELECTRICITY,

A city by-Jaw relating to the taxation of an electric street railway
company, which provided that the company should keep and maintain
within the city limits all of its engines, machinery, power houses and
shops, will not prevent the company importing, for the operation of
its plant, electricity generated at a point beyond the city limits.

. Erecrricrry  (§ 1—2) —RESTRICTION AS TO IMPORTATION—AMALGAMA-
TION,

A restriction in the charter of a street railway company that pre-
vented it from importing electricity from without the city limits, is
not binding upon a comnany formed by the amalgamation of such
street railway company + '\ other companies, none of which were go
restricted.

. STREET RALLWAYS (§1-5) GULATION BY MUNICIPAL CORPORATION—
MAINTENANCE OF PLANT—SUR-STATION TRANSFORMER,

A requirement of a eity by-law that a street railway company should
keep and maintain its engines, machinery and power houses within
the city limits, is complied with by the maintenance therein of a sub-
station containing apparatus for the reduction of the voltage of elee-
tricity generated beyond the city limits, and also for transforming
it into a direct current,

L Hcnways (811 B—47)—MUNICIPALITY GRANTING PERMIT T0 ERECT
POLES—PERMITS NOT AUTHORIZED BY BY-LAW.

A city that has, under a general by-law, granted permits to a com-
pany to erect poles in its streets and public places cannot, after such
permits have been acted upon, require the removal of such poles on the
ground that the permits were void because issued without the adoption
of a by-law in each mstance.

[ Winnipea v. Winnipeg Electrie R. Co., 20 Man. L.R. 337, 16 W.L.R.
62, reversed,)
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7. ELectricity (§ 1- RiGne 10 IMPORT ELECTRICITY GENERATED OUT-
SIDE  CITY—CHARTER OF COMPANY—ACQUIESCENCE OF MUNICI-
PALITY,

After an electric street railway has, to the knowledge of a city and
its officers, and with their active co-operation, erected beyond The city
limits, at a cost of millions of dollars, a plant for the generation of
electricity, located its sub- power houses and erected |mh- and wires
in the cit, , and after the city has reccived about 100,000 in taxes
from the company, and has adopted by-laws and resolutions requiring
a company that the street railway had absorbed by amalgamation, to
lay double tracks on certain streets, and to establish a schedule for
operating its ecars, the city cannot deprive the street railway com-
pany of the right to introduce into the city, electricity generated be-
yond the city limits, on the ground that its charter forbade such im
lmrlnlmn of electricity, or that permits were void which the city had
granted for the erection of poles.

| Winnipeg v. Winnipeg Eleetrie R, Co., 20 Man, L.R, 337, 16 W.L.R.
62, reversed.)

8. ErectrICITY (§ 1—2) —BRINGING IN OF FLECTRICITY FROM OUTSIDE—
TRANSMISSION ON WIRE ERECTED—CONSENT OF MUNICIPALITY,

A company empowered to operate a street railway and to supply

electricity for light, heat and power, over poles and wires erected

in the streets and public places of a city, may, without first obtain

ing the consent of the city. transmit thereon electricity generated

and developed beyond the city limits

ArPEAL and eross-appeal from a judgment of the Court of
Appeal for Manitoba, City of Winnipeg v. Winnipeg Electric R.
Co., 20 Man, L.R. 337, 16 W.L.R. 62 (December 23, 1910),
varying an order of the Court of King's Beneh (January 27,
1010).

The appeal was allowed and the eross-appeal dismissed.®

The ¢ity of Winnipeg sued on November 12, 1906, for a
declaration that the defendants, a municipal corporation whose
powers and obligations are defined in 1 and 2 Edw. VI, (Man.)
ch. 77, and amending statutes, and the history of whose forma-
tion is narrated in their Lordships’ judgment, have no right to
erect poles or wires in the city in order to transmit elestrical
power developed outside the eity limits, with consequent relief,
This first portion of the snit was the subject of the defendants’
appeal. while the cross-appeal of the city related to the further
prayer of the plaint, which was for a declaration that the
defendants have no right to make use of any eleetriec power for
the operation of their street railway system except such as is
developed within the limits of the city: and a further declaration
that the defendants had failed to fulfil the terms and eonditions
of a eity by-law, No. 543, the material paragraph of which is
set out in their Lordships’ judgment, and that the enjoyment
of any privileges conferred thereby should sease vl sueh fulfil
ment,

Mathers, J., deerced as prayed in the first portion of the suit
As regards the second portion, he held that the defendants’
works and machinery at Lae du Bonnet, a place sixty-four miles
from the eity, wer power house, engines, and machinery

*Also reported, [1912) A.C. 355,
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within the meaning of the by-Jaw, and that their use might eon-
stitute a hreach of contract for which the eity might recover
damages.  But he held that any right of the eity to prevent the
continued operation of the street railway by their means had
been lost by waiver.

The Court of Appeal for Manitoba held in effeet that the
defendants had no right to use the streets, without the assent
of the city, for transmission of electrical energy wherever pro
duced, except for the one purpose of operating their strect
railway.  Upon the second portion of the suit a majority
(Howell, C.1., and Perdue, J.A.) decided that the works and
machinery at Lae du Bonnet were not a power house within the
meaning of the by-law. Richard, J.A., on the other hand. held
that it was, and that its use constituted a breach of the hy-law,
and that the right of the defendants to the enjoyment of their
privileges had eeased and would eontinne suspended until they
fulfilled the conditions laid down therein

The appeal was argued on December 14, 15, 18 and 20, 1911

Danclwerts, K.C., Wallace Neshitt, K.C..J. H. Munson, K.C",
D. H. Laird, and G. Lawrence, for the appellants, the Winnipeg
Electrie Railway Company, contended that there was nothing in
any statute or contract under which they derive their powers to
prevent them bringing into the city of Winnipeg eleetrie power
which is produced outside the eity limits.  Their doing so had
been pequies

ed in by the eity, and no prohibition or restriction
could be raised by implication.  Their pole and wire system had
covered almost the entirve eity, involving large expenditure and
supplyving electrie light to thousands of eustomers as well as
power to a less number.  The evidence shewed that the poles
had been erected to the knowledge of the city and after written
permits by its officers had been issued, and that the respondents
had nsed them for their own purposes by agreements with the
appellants, It was contended that the eity was bound by
acquiescence and could not now set up that it was not authorized
by their by-law. The appellants had vested in them all the
powers which had been obtained by their predecessors the Mani
toba Company. the North-West Company, the Street Railway
Company, and the Power Company. "They relied on Manitoha
Act 43 Viet, sh. 36, sees. 23 and 29, and on agreements made
between the Manitoba Company and the respondents on July
15 and November 6, 1889, and upon numerons  permits  durly
issued thereunder by the eity engineer: and on an agreement
made August 23, 1889, hetween the North-West Eleetric Com-
pany and the respondents.  In all eases where the poles were
lawfully erected hy statutory or contractual authority they could
be used for all lawful purposes in the absence of express restrie-
tion and having ird to long acquiescence,  They also relied
on the Provineial Aet 55 Viet, eh, 56, sees. 10 and 12, the ineor
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porating Act of the Street Railway Company, and the respond
ents” consent by by-law obtained thereunder.  They were also
entitled without obtaining any consent under 3 and 4 Edw
VIL eh. 87, see. 4, wlich also related to the street railway : and
also under 1 oand 2 Edw, VIL ¢h., 75, sees, 7, 9, 18, the incor
porating Aet of the Power Company, and the respondents’ con
sent obtained thereunder.  The appellants had incurred heavy
expenditure and made large outlays of capital on the faith o
these Aets, contracts, consents, and permits, and it was contended
that the provision contained in the Winnipeg Charter, 1 and 2
Fdw. VIL ch. 77, see. 472, and in the general Municipal Aet
of the Provinee of Manitoba of 1890, that ““the powers of the
council shall be exercised by by-law when not otherwise auth
arized or provided for,”” was not applicable and did not have
the effect of rendering the permits and other consents given
revocable at pleasure by the eity.  Those Acts were later in date
than the Aet which incorporated the Manitoba Company.  The
respondents by their conduet and the Manitoba Legislature by
varions Aets from 1899 onwards had recognized the existence of
the clectrie lighting works of the Street Railway Company, thus
including, it was submitted, the pole and wire system of the
appellants and its use and operation in the manner impugned
for the first time by this suit

With regard to the erossappeal the broad question there
raised was whether the Winnipeg Eleetrie Railway Company in

respeet of its water power plant outside the limits of the eity
had been guilty of a breach of by-law No. 583, which obliged
them to keep all their power houses within the city, and therehy
forfeited their privileges under that by-law until the hreach is
vemedied.  That elanse, it was contended, did not bar the re
spondents’ use of power not developed within the city. Tt only
barred them from placing their own power houses outside the
limits, not from purchasing and importing power from another
coneern operating outside those limits, It impliedly recognized
their right to purchase and import in the manner complained
of. The Street Railway Company were not affected by the by-
law, and the appellants as their suceessors are not affected by it
Further, the expression **power houses' in the hy-law did not
include a plant for the development of water power, which must

pecessarily be placed where the water is. The remedy of the
city if they established the appellants’ default was in damages
and not as elaimed.  Reference was made to Hull Electric (o
v, Oltawa Electric Co., [1902] A.C. 237: Goldsmid v. Great
Eastern Ry, Co. (1883), 25 Ch.D. 511; Plimmer v. Mayor, ¢lc.,
of Wellington (1884), 9 A.C, 699; Toronto Corporation v. Bell
Telephone Co, of Canada, [1905] A.C. 52; Perth Gas Co. v. Cily
of Perth Corporation, [1911] A.C. 506, 519; Montreal v, Stand
ard Light and Power Co., [1897] A.C,
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Sir R. Finlay, K.C., Ewart, K.C., Rowlatt, and Theo. A.
Hunt, for the eity of Winnipeg in both appeals, contended that
the appellants had no authority to sell and distribute electricity
for lighting and power purposes within the ecity; while the re-
spondents by sec. 719 of their city charter were vested with the
jossession of all the highways in the city and were made liable
for the repair thereof. It was contended in the first appeal that
the Court of Appeal was right in holding that the appellants had
not acquired a right (o erect their pole and wire system within
the city for the transmission of clectric energy other than for
their street railway. Act 43 Viet. eh. 36 did not empower them
to do so. Under the three agreements relied upon, dated July
15, August 23, and November 6, 1880, whatever permission was
given to them to do so was subject to the supervision of the
city engineer, The incorporating Act of the Street Railway
Company (55 Viet. ch. 56) sanctioned the operation of their
railway in the city streets by such motive power as might be
authorized by the city and the exercise of all powers set forth
in a eity by-law No, 543 scheduled to and validated by their
Aet. That by-law dealt only with the construstion and working
of an electrie street railway and had no reference to light, heat
or power. It contained a restriction as to the limits of the appel-
lants” operations which must be held applicable to all their
powers. No by-law was passed authorizing the pole and wire
system of the appellants. It was contended that the appellants
never received under any of the Acts or agreements referred to
authority to use the city streets according to their own pleasure.
Sec. 29 of 43 Viet. ch. 36 did not authorize the erection of
poles, and by the agreement of July 15, 1889, they were not to
creet them without the consent of the city. Their rights, except
so far as their street railway purposes were concerned, were
always subject to the consent of the city previously had and
obtained, to be given either by by-law under the Street Railway
Company’s Act or by agreement or Order in Couneil under the
Power Company s Aet. The evidence shewed that no by-law or
other formal consent of any kind was ever given by the eity to
the use of the streets for the purposes now in question. No
request for such consent was ever made. and there has been no
appeal as provided in one of the Acts to the Lientenant-Governor
in Couneil.  Nor has the city waived its right to object becanse
of the permits from time to time given. No permission of any
kind was ever given to the appellants to erect poles. Even if
the permission given to the Elestric and Gas Light Company is
taken to be given to the appellants, it was ineffective because not
siven by by-law.  As to the respondents not objecting to the
importation by the appellants of electric energy into the city
which had been produced outside, there was evidence that they
were warned in good time hoth orally and by letter that the
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permission of the city was necessary before they could legally
do so. It was contended that no waiver was proved in faet, and
the city being a public corporation, could not waive a protection
given to its citizens by statute and could not be estopped from
objecting to operations to which it had not validly assented.

In the cross-appeal it was contended that the appellants were
bound by the terms of the by-law No. 543 to keep all their power
houses within the city limits. But the power house at Lae du
Bonnet and the machinery there are a power house and machinery
within the meaning of paragraph 11 of that by-law. Its con-
struetion was begun by the General Power Company and com-
pleted by the appellants, who erected a transmission line there-
from across the intervening municipalities and across the Red
River, which forms the eastern houndary of the city, to a sub-
station within the city. The respondents never consented to the
wires erossing the river, but the appellants continued to transmit
energy from Lac du Bonnet power hoase to their sub-station
and thence generated the direet current with which they oper-
ated their street railway system in the eity.  Thus the power
house at the lake was where the clectrical energy was generated
and the only office performed by the machinery within the city
was to transmit energy generated elsewhere into a new form.
It was contended that the appellants’ continued right to use the
streets is by the by-law stipulated to depend upon the appellants’
continued observance of its terms.  There was no power to waive
the non-observance, for to do so vould be to dispense with a
provision of a by-law which had been declared to have the same
cffect as if enacted by the Legislature ; and there was no evidenee
of such waiver having been made

Danckwerts, K.C., in reply

Febroary 21, 1912, The judgment of their Lordships was
delivered hy

Lorp SHAW oF DUNPERMLINE :—The appellants are the sue
cossors, by amalgamation, purchase, or agreement, of ecertain
companies hereinafter referred to, the general objeet of whose
constitution was for the supply of light, heat and power in and
about the city of Winnipeg by gas or hy electricity. This is
stating the position of the appellants in the most general terms
It was not denied by the counsel for the respondents that the
powers, rights, privileges, and franchises belonging to the respec
tive companies who were predecessors of the appellants have been
taken up and earried forward by reason of the various transac
tions of amalgamation and otherwise, and are now vested in the
appellants.  As, however, a most minute eriticism has been made
of the powers which are now sought to be exercised by the appel
lants, it is necessary to state in detail what these were, and what
were the various steps by which the present situation has been
reached.
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In the year 1880 the Manitoba Eleetrie and Gas Light Com-
pany was incorporated by an Act of the Legislature of Manitoba
(43 Viet. ch, 36), and by sec. 23 of the statute the company
was empowered to supply light and heat in Manitoba by gas,
eleetricity or other means. While the area of the operations of
the company was not limited to the city of Winnipeg. the anth-
ority, as is seen, did not extend to the supply of power. By
varions seetions of the statute the company was given large
powers for the acquisition of property for their purposes, and
for the construetion, erection and use of their works, and also
“to alienate any of their personal property, lands, tenements,
rights, and franchises, or any interest therein, as they should see
fit.”"  Authority was given to “break up, dig, and trench so
mueh and so many of the publie streets, roads, sonares, highways
and other publie places in any municipality or other portion of
the Provinee as may at any time be necessary or required for
laying down or ereeting the mains, pipes, or wires to conduet
the gas or eleetrieity from the works of the said company to the
customers thereof,”” or for taking up, altering, or repairing the
same,

To save coming back upon it, there are two observations
which may be made upon this, which is the first of these incor-
porating statutes.  In the first place, their Lordships do not
feel disposed 1o assent to the proposition that power to do cer-
tain things **for laying down or erecting the mains, pipes, or
wires'" is to be read as a power which did not extend to the
putting up of poles upon whih the wires could hang, and they
are not surprised to jearn that during the thirty years which
have elapsed sinee the passing of the Aet such a point was never
taken.  Language of this kind must be reasonably construed
and a perusal of other seetions of the statute, and of other expres-
sions oceurring in the course of the Aet, shews quite elearly
that the accompaniment of poles for the wiring is simply what
is implied in any reasonable reading of the powers {0 be exer-
cised by the company.

In the second place, the 23rd, 25th and 29th sections of this
Act of 1880 appear by their provisions to present a most reason-
able view of the natural relations which exist on the one hand
between a municipality whose streets are used in the course of
the operations for the supply of gas and eleetrieal power and,
on the other, of the company furnishing the supply. Under the
25th seetion it is provided that the company shall so constroet
and loeate their works and all apparatus connected therewith
as not to endanger the publie health, convenience or safety, the
whole works, ete., to be open to visit and inspection by the muni-
cipality at all reasonable times, and the company being bound to
obey “‘all just and reasonable orders and directions they shall
receive.””  See. 29 also makes fairly clear what 2re the richts
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and duties of company and municipality respectively, by provid-
ing that, when streets are broken up, wires erected, and so forth,
the company is to do no unnecessary damage, and take care, as
far as may be, to preserve free passage through the said streets,
and make such openings as the municipality or the Governor in
Couneil, as the case may be, shall permit and point out, and
place such guards, lamps, ete,, and taking such precautions as
may be nesessary for the prevention of aceidents, There follow
provisions for the finishing and replacing the work and restora-
tion of the streets, 1t is provided further that, for the purpose
of laying mains, it shall not be lawful for the company, except
with the written consent of the engineer of the municipality, to
break up or interfere with the streets until after thirty days’
notice in writing, but for the purpose of laying or erecting ser-
vice pipes or wires, or for repairing such, this may be done
without any notice,

These provisions have been referred to heeause, as already
indicated, they point to sueh a regulation and accommodation
of the private interests of the company with the publie intere
of the inhabitants as scems, if reasonably acted upon, adequate
to proteet hoth, and to prevent frictions or collisom. The lan-
guage of these provisions not unnaturally reappears in the agree-
ments between the city and the companies after referred to.

In this year 1889, if there ever could have been any question
as to whether the right to put up poles was ineluded in the Mani-
toba Electric and Gas Company’s power, that question was set
at rest.  Reference was frequently made to an agreement of date
July 15, 1889, between the eity of Winnipeg and the Manitoba
Electrie and Gas Light Company. It was thereby agreed that
the city should grant its permits for poles under certain con-
ditions.  One of these was that the company should give to the
city the right to use free of charge such poles as the Council
might require for light and power, and for the stringing of wires
for the fire alarm system, ete. Notice is taken by this time of
the Electrie Light and Power Company of Winnipeg, of which
nothing further is heard, and of the North-West Eleetrie Com-
pany, incorporated a month before, and to be hereinafter re-
ferred to, and it is provided that the Manitoba Electrie and Gas
Company shall give to these other companies **the right to string
wires upon their poles for the purpose of light (are, incandeseent,
or otherwise) and power distribution, upon payment by them of
a fair annnal rental.”  So far as the eity is concerned it thus
appears to be elear, (1) that the limitation of the Manitoba
Company to light and heat was not acted upon, but on the con-
trary, (2) provision was made for communization of power to
the eity over the company’s poles, and (3) the use of these for
power distribution by the newly-formed company was specially
provided for.
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Provisions are made for the issue of permits and for forfei-
ture in the ease of the violation of any of the conditions. No
suggestion of forfeiture in consequence of any such violation
was made in this Thousands of permits have been issued.
the whole of which, the Board was informed, were, with the
exception of one, in the name of the Manitoba Gas Company.
It shonld be further explained that it was provided by the agree-
ment that **wherever in this agreement the company is named or
referred to it should be taken to mean and inelude, as well as the
said company, its successors and assigns, as fully and to all
intents and purposes as if its suecessors and assigns were in

each case specially mentioned. ™

In November of the same year, 1880, another agreement was
entered into between the city and the Manitoba Eleetrie and
Gas Light Company. under which arrangements were made, in
consideration of the issue of permits to erect poles, for the fur-
nishing of maps, and for other practical directions and require-
ments being made, and in particular for the company leaving
space for and providing ““a top arm on each of their poles for
the line of wires for eivie purposes.” It is thus quite elear that
by this time the system of the electrie supply, in its widest sense,
under which the requirements and conveniences of the eity, as
well as of the eustomers of the company, were all provided for,
was in full operation.

In June of this year, 1889, the North-West Eleetriec Company,
Limited, was incorporated hy letters patent under the Manitoba
Joint Stock Companies Aet, **for the purpose and with the object
of aecquiring, building, eonstructing, erecting, operating and
maintaining an elestrie lighting system or systems, electrie street
railways, eleetric motors, or other eleetrieal power . . . . in the
various cities, towns and villages in the Provinee of Manitoba.”’
The objects of the new company were not limited to light and
heat, but they inelude, in short, vthing within the widest
range of an electrie company’s business.  An amalgamation of
this coneern with the Manitoba Eleetrie and Gas Light Company
was possibly, and, it may be, manifestly, in contemplation. On
August 23 the city agreed with the North-West Electric Com-
pany (then two months old) to give permits for the tion of
poles on similar conditions to those granted to the Manitoba
Electric and Gas Light Company in the previons month, namely,
on July 150 It was provided that the new company should give
to the old, just as a month hefore it had been provided that
the old company should give to the new, the right to string wires
upon their poles upon payment of a fair annual rental, In all
this the city actively co-operated.

In 1892 a third company, called the Winnipeg Electrie Street
Railway Company, was incorporated. This was done by an Act
of the Legislature of Manitoba, 55 Viet. ¢h. 56, Authority was

e




4 DLR.|

Winnieea R, Co. v, Crey or WINNIPEG,

given to construct and operate a railway on the streets of the
city and adjacent municipalities and to exereise all powers set
forth in a by-law scheduled to the Aet. The company was also
authorized to carry on the business of selling, licensing and dis
posing of electrie light, heat, or power, and was to have the right
to erect all necessary **poles, wires, conduits and appliances.”
. The provisions of the by-law, which contains a reference to the
J keeping of machinery and power houses within the eity, will b

p
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afterwards referred to. This company came into operation and o

Lord Shaw,

| ereeted and used poles for wires placed in the streets

On January 4, 1895, this Street Railway Company acquired
1 by conveyanee from the Manitoba Company all the assets of the
latter, including *“all franchises, rights, powers, ete.”” On June
| 9, 1900, the Street Railway Company absorbed the second com-
| pany, namely, the North-West Company, taking over by pur
chase all its assets, ineluding ““all franchises, rights, powers,
- ete.”” One of these consolidations took place without the know-
ledge of the municipality of the c¢ity of Winnipeg. On the con
trary the city continued its co-operation, participating in the
use of the plant and receiving supplies just as hefore,

Ty S T———

In 1902 a fourth company, called the Winnipeg General
Power Company, was incorporated by Aet of the Legislature of
Manitoba, 1 and 2 Edw. VII, ¢h, 75. It was given the fullest
powers of earrying on the business of electricity *“for the pur
pose of light, heat, or motive power, and any other purpose for
which the same may be used,”” and to acquire, make, or operate
“all necessary works in Manitoba for the purpose aforesaid and

—

]
l
! for the utilization, transmission and supply of eleetricity, or
I water power, including poles, wires, pipes, conduits, and appli
ances of every kind necessary or advisable therefor, and which
! may, with the consent of the council of any municipality
l affected, be erected in or along any streets or highways in the
: Provinee of Manitoba, subject to the provisions hereinafter con-
‘ tained.”” By see. 9 it was provided that, in the event of the
company and any municipality failing to agree as to the terms
| of the exercise of the franchise or rights, there should he an

: appeal to the Lientenant-Governor of Manitoba, and by see. 18
P it was provided that the company might enter into an agree
| ment with any other company for amalgamation, and the amal
: gamated company should have “‘all the rights of exercising the
powers, privileges and franchises of the companics entering into
sueh agreement or a party to such sale or purchase.”
; The position of the General Power Company, accordingly.

was this. It had unlimited powers with regard to the electrical
business. In the event of a municipality failing to agree to sneh
stion of poles for wires, there was an appeal to

details as the er
the Lieutenant-Governor, and it was specially provided that any
; amalgamation of the company with existing companies should
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give the amalgamation the powers of the companies absorbed.
This must, of course, be read as in addition to, and not in dero-
zation of, the powers conferred upon itself,

The Street Railway Company had not yet joined the com-
bination. But in the year 1904 the Street Railway Company
and the Power Company amalgamated by agreement, and the
amalgamation was ratified by the Legislature in 4 and 5 Edw,
VII ¢h. 72, and 9 Edw. VIL c¢h. 108, of the statutes of Mani-
toba,  The validity of any of the amalgamations referred to has
in no further partieular heen questioned in the present case.

The amalgamated company was named the Winnipeg Elec-
tric Railway Company. and they are the appellants herein, They,
in point of fact, are accordingly the successors by amalgama-
tion of the Electrie Street Railway Company and the Winnipeg
General Power Company, and the successors by purchase of the
Manitoba Electrie and Gas Light Company and the North-West
Electric Company. The details of all these transactions need not
be further entered upon, but the result is as stated.

It may now he mentioned that the Power Company (incor-
porated in 1902) had, prior to the agreement of amalgamation,
commenced the erection of large and important works at Lae du
Bonnet, some sixty or seventy miles from the city of Winnipeg,
for the purpose of generating eleetricity by water power. These
operations were important and involved large expenditure, and
it is manifest that the transmission of power to communities like
the city of Winnipeg,—power supplied by nature and converted
and conveyed by suitable apparatus —was not unlikely to be put
to the best use of, and at the least cost to, the consumer, if it
could be linked up with the system or systems in operation within
the municipality so as to reduce to a minimum all interference
with the streets or highways, and to take advantage of existing
and available plant.

After an analysis of the statutes, agreements, ete, under
which the companies ultimately amalgamating were constituted,
their Lordships are unable to discover anything forbidding or
restricting the importation into the city of Winnipeg of power
from outside its bounds,  Such a restriction, which might seri-
ously hamper the operations of the company in conveying, for
the use of consumers within the eity, power which eould be ob-
tained from ontside on easier terms than by manufacture inside,
might be to the disadvantage of all parties —producers and eon-
sumers—and such a prohibition or limitation accordingly would
not be readily implied.  In their Lordships’ opinion, neither by
implication nor expression is there a prohibition or limitation of
such a kind in this ecase.  In the arguments presented for the
city of Winnipeg the argument upon this head was confined to
the point of a restriction as to the construction, ete., of *‘power
houses™" within the eity, the restriction being applicable to the
case of the Street Railway Company as now to be mentioned,
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The argument is that, although this restriction occurs in the
case of the Street Railway Company alone, it must be read into
a restriction of all the powers of all the other companies of which
the amalgamation was composed, and that the wider and unlim-
ited powers of the other companies amalgamated arve restricted
by the clanse as to the street railway, This contention is some-
what singular, and does not appear to their Lordships to be
justified by the language of the statutes, agreements. or other
documents founded on. This might be sufficient for determina-
tion of the point.  But in view of the arguments submitted it
may be right to guote the exact terms of the restriction itself
in the case of the Street Railway Company, It ocenrs in the
by-law of the city of Winnipeg, which is confirmed by the Aet
to incorporate the Winnipeg Electric Street Railway Company
(55 Viet. eh. 56), assented to on April 20, 1802 See, 11 of the
by-law is as follows:

The railway property of all kinds, including ears, equipment, power
house, engines, dynamos, and applisnees of all Kinds relating to the
railway . . .. shall be liable to taxation. . . . The eompany shall place
und keep within the city limits all their engines, machinery, power

houses, repair shops, and construction shops (if uny).

It may be observed that this sestion is primarily a section
dealing with taxation,  Neither it nor any part of the hy-law or
the Aet of the Legislature prohibits the company from pur-
chasing power or entering into a transaction of that kind which
might prove highly advantageous and economical.  Nor, in the
second place, with regard to **power houses,” upon which the
argument has dwelt, does it oblige the company to ereet such
power houses, but what the clause does do is to say that, it these
are required, they shall be kept within the eity limits and be
lable to the eity taxation. ln the opinion of their Lordships it
v not legitimate to convert a section of this character into a
restriction upon the Winnipeg Eleetrie Street Railway Com-
pany of the importation of power, or a compulsitor upon that
company to be its own manufacturer of power within the city
bounds,  Such a restriction might prove, and the fignres laid
before the Board and admitted by both sides seem to shew that
that was the case here, highly detrimental to the interests hoth of
the company and the community

On this part of the ease. however, there remains a further
point with which, in view of the arguments so anxionsly sub-
mitted to the Board, it is. in the opinion of their Lordships,
expedient to deal. The point is this: apart altogether from the
general argument against prohibition which has been tabled, how

do the faets stand as to the ““houses,”” apparatus, ete, for the
conversion of power imported into the eity; and do not these
reasonably and adequately satisfy the provision as to *power
houses™ under the Aet?  Their Lordships venture to refer to
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the lucid narrative in the judgment of Mathers, J., upon this
subject :—

Prior to amalgamation the Power Company had commenced the
construction of a hydro-electric power plant at Lac du Bonnet on the
Winnipeg River, about sixty-four miles from Winnipeg, and had ex
pended a large sum of money upon the same. After amalgamation
the amalgamated company completed, at an additional expense of
several millions of dollars, this work, including the erection of =
transmission line, which erossed the Red River into the city of Win
nipeg to u power house or sub-station (hercinafter referred to as the
Mill street subestation) ereeted by the defendant company on property
it then owned abutting on the Red River,

In this subistation there is transforming apparatus for the purpose
of reducing the voltage of the current brought over the transmission
line, and also a generating plant for the purpose of generating direct
current,  The direct current generators are operated by a motor driven
by the alternating current hrought over the transmission line, and the
direct eurrent so generated is sent out of the Mill street sub-stution
and is used for the purpose of propelling the street cars through the
city of Winnipeg.

In June, 1906, the defendants’ hydro-electriec plant at Lae du Bon
net was completed, and on the 13th June the defendants began to
send current over the transmission wires to their Mill street sub
stution. It comes over the transmission wires at a voltage of ahout
55,000 volts, and so enters the substation, It then passes through u
transformer, which steps it down to about 2,200 volts. Part of this
redueed current is used to drive direet eurrent generators which supply
the eurrent for the defendants’ street railway system, and part of it
is used for the purpose of their electric lighting system throughout
the city, and for commercial power. It leaves the sub-station at 2,200
volts, but at different points through the eity it passes through further
transformers which reduee it to 110 to 120 volts, which reduced current
pusses over secondary wires into the various bhuildings where light is
used,

In these cirenmstances their Lordships are disposed to think
that the language of the by-law as to the company keeping with-
in the eity limits their engines, machinery, power houses. ete,
is amply satistfed by what has actually been done by the appel
lant company. Unless, in short, the language of this by-law

xcludes the importation of power, it appears to be the case in
fact that its language, as well as its spirit, have been complied
with within the eity limits.

Failing the case upon the power house, the city of Winnipey,
however, has presented another point, which is this: Assuming
that there is no restriction upon the importation of power from
outside, still that power has to be linked up with the machinery
for conversion, reduction of voltage, and transmission within
the city, and for this purpose of connection six poles were re-
quired, and for the ercetion of these poles no authority was
given. Whatever view may he entertained as to the taking of
such a point, it turns out not to be in accord with the facts. The
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letters have heen produced in the case, and the narrative given
by Mathers, J., on the subject has not been controverted :—

In order that the eurrent brought from Lac du Bonnet might be
utilized for the purpose of operating the defendants’ street car lines
and their electrie lighting and power systems, it was necessary to erect
six additional poles, three along the Thistle street lane from Vietoria
street eastward, and three along Mill street from Thistle street lane
to the then existing line of the defendants,

On 17th August, 19 Mr. Phillips, the defendants’ manager, wrotoe
to H. N. Ruttan, the city engineer, the following letter: ‘‘Dear Sir,—
Kindly grant permit to extend pole line on south side of Thistle street
lane from end of present line east on Vietoria street, three poles east,
and also on Mill street, east side, from end of present line south to
Thistle lane, three poles.’’

That letter, as well as the other letters in which applieation for
permits were made, was headed, ‘‘Winnipeg Electric Railway Com-
pany,”’ and underneath, ‘‘operating Winnipeg Street Railway; Mani-
toba Electric and Gas Light Company; North-West Electric Company;
and Winnipeg General Power Company.”’ 1In the ordinary way this
request for permit was referred to the city electrician, His duty was
to ascertain whether or not the portion of the street intended to be
occupied by the proposed poles was required for any city poles, and
on the electrician replying that the erection of these poles would not
interfere with the ecity, a permit, No. 3545, was issued by S. H.
Reynolds, the assistant city engineer, pursuant to a general practice
that had prevailed in the office, in the following terms: ‘‘Manitoba
Electric and Gas Light Company is hereby permitted to erect poles.
(Here follows a deseription of several locations where poles may be
erected, having no reference to this action, and continues)—Also to
extend poles line on south side of Thistle street lane from end of
present line east of Victoria street three poles east; also on Mill
street, east side, from end of present line south to Thistle lane, three
poles, under the requirements of the city by-laws and the regulations of
the Committee on Works and any special agreements relating to this
matter.”’

It thus appears to be undoubted that, so far as permits were
concerned, these were obtained from the ecity authorities. In
this situation, what is the attitude which the respondents have
assumed ! They have challenged their own permits —not only
these six permits, but the thousands of others—as having been
granted without a by-law. Their Lordships do not enter upon
the topic at length because, in their opinion, the granting of
permits did not require a by-law in each case, but was an executive
act to earry out a general by-law such as is admitted to have
been quite properly passed.  Otherwise business could not be
carried on, and at any moment the authorities or an official of
the city could bring the entire operations, which have involved
great capital expenditure, to a deadloek, bringing upon all par-
ties sudden and great inconvenience and loss.
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Furthermore, their Lordships do not leave out of view the
fact that, after the amalgamation of the appellant company was
completed, and after the large expenditure for the transmis-
ston of power to the Red River and the bridging of that river
to the eity had been inenrred, and with full knowledge on the
part of everybody of the meaning and effect of these great opera-
tions

The city recognized the continued existence of its contract with
them by passing by-laws on the 11th February, 1907, and on the 4th

Mareh, 1907, fixing a schedule pursuant to which the defendants must

operate their ears. . . . It also, on 24th June, 1907, under the powers

contained in hyJdaw 543, passed a resolution requiring notice to the
railway company to proceed at once with the construetion and opera-
tion of double street railway lines on ten different streets or parts of
streets in the city, and directed the work to commence on these lines

not later than the 1st of July, 1907,

This is the language of Mathers, J., and the accuraey of his
rarrative was not denied, nor of what suceeeds: “* The defendant
company proceeded as required with the construction of these
lines, and have expended a large sum of money in doing so,
and in subsequently operating them. It is true that the resolu-
tion is directed to the Winnipeg Electric Street Railway Com-
pany, and not to the defendant company. It does not seem to me
that that makes any difference, beeause the plaintift knew of the
amalgamation of that company with the Power Company, and
that at that time the power by which the street railway was
being operated was that derived from Lac du Bonnet. By-law
543 provides that-five per cent. of the gross earnings of the
street railway shall be paid annually to the plaintiff. These
sums, aggregating about $100,000, have been paid by the defend-
ant company to the plaintiff since it has begun to use the Lae
du Bonnet power, and this money has been aceepted by the
plaintiff.”’

In their Lordships’ opinion the facts of this case give ample
warrant for the conclusion which Mathers, J., reaches, in which
conclusion their Lordships coneur, that ‘“‘after these unequivocal
acts recognizing the continued existence of the contract, entail-
ing a large expenditure by the defendants, the city is too late
now to have it declared that the defendants have forfeited their
privileges in the streets.”’

Were it open to the city authorities to go back upon the
permits issued by themselves and their predecessors, and to
obtain a declaration that these have all along been invalid,
serious and far-reaching consequences might ensue—the traffic of
the city might be dislocated or stopped and the municipal ser-
vices provided from the supply would cease and the eity itself
plunged in darkness. Their Lordships think it right to add their
opinion, however, that, important as the questions of the history
and acting of parties are, the rights and interests both of the
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vity and the appellants are, upon the statutes and documents
themselves, not on a basis so precarions and insecure,

The question that arises after the facts are thus reviewed is:
What was it that the eity of Winnipeg in those circumstanees
really desired? The case, notwithstanding all its length and
complexity, has never gone beyond the initial demand suddenly
made by the city solicitor of Winnipeg in his letter of May 3,
1906: “*I beg to notify you that, unless you are prepared to
treat with the city as to the terms upou which power shall be
brought in, an application will be made restraining you from
exercising such privilege within the ity limits until such time
as you have made application to the city, and an agreement is
reached.””

Throughout all the length of the case the same objection,
for apparently the same reason, is made—the objection that the
appeliants have no right to import power into the eity, that the
city can forbid this, and that its consent must be obtained at a
price. In their Lordships’ opinion, for the reasons already stated
that contention is not well founded in law.

It is here proper to state that, as the result of the argument
before their Lordships’ Board, the demands of the respondents
were conveniently placed before their Lordships by their learned
counsel, and an order or decree is now asked under the following
four heads:—

1. That it may be declared that the defendants have not the right
to use the three poles on the south side of Thistle street lane and the
three poles on the east side of Mill street mentioned in the permit
No. 3545, dated Sth September, 1905, for the transmission of electrie
energy for the purpose of working the street railway which has been
produced outside the city limits, or has been produced by means of
electrie energy or other power produced outside the city limits.

2, That it may be declared that the works of the defendants situate
at Lac du Bonnet and the machinery there installed constitute a power
house, engines and machinery within the meaning of clause 11 of
by-law No. 543 of the city of Winnipeg referred to in the pleadings
herein, and that the defendants have fuiled in this respeet to fulfil
the conditions mentioned in the said by-law, and that their enjoyment
of the privileges conferred by the said by-law should cease until the
defendants comply with the said conditions as contained in the said
clause 11 of the by-law,

3. That it may be declared that the defendants have no right
without the consent of the City Council to ereet poles or wires in the
streets, lanes or highways of the city of Winnipeg, for the purpose
of transmitting electrie power developed outside the city limits,

4. That the defendants may be restrained from using without the
consent of the city any poles and wires erected by them, for the pur-
pose of transmitting electric power developed outside the city limits,
and from erecting any poles or wires to be used for such purpose
without the like consent.
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It is not necessary to enter upon the question of whether the
language of these orders squares with that employed in the suit
—probably at least it is not inconsistent with if. Their Lord-
ships are of opinion that the orders thus sought are beyond the
rights of the respondents.

With regard to the first conelusion, in their Lordships’ opin-
jon, the defendants have the right to use the poles mentioned for
the transmission of energy for the purpose of working the street
railway.

As to the second conclusion, that it may be declared that the
Lae du Bonnet works and machinery constitute a power house,
ete., within the meaning of clause 11 of the by-law, and that the
defendants have failed to fulfil the eonditions in the by-law, and
that their privileges should cease until they so do, their Lord-
ships are of opinion that this proceeds entirely upon the error
already referred to. The power houses for conversion, reduction
and distribution already within the city amply satisfy the pro-
visions of the by-law, and there is no occasion for attempting
to extend those provisions to power houses, ete., sixty or seventy
miles away, or to import into any arrangements between the
city and the appellants a prohibition which nowhere expressly
appears against importation of power.

As to the third conclusion, that it may be declared that the
defendants have no right, without the city's consent, to erect
poles or wires for transmitting power developed outside the city
limits, their Lordships cannot agree to such a declaration, which
is inconsistent with the view already expressed, adverse to the
restriction of the importation of power.

As to the fourth conclusion, that the defendants may be re-
strained from using, without the city’s consent, poles or wires
for transmitting power developed outside the city limits, that
conclusion is elearly negatived for the reasons already given,

It is unnecessary, in the view of their Lordships, to enter
upon the question which bulked somewhat largely in the argu-
ments, namely, the position of the city as having itself been a
participant in the benefits to be derived from the introduction of
power from outside. It appears to be clear that, not only sub-
sequent to the formation of the appellant company, but prior
thereto, and during the regime of their predecessors, the city
and all the companies concerned co-operated, permits were
granted for the erection of poles, orders were issued by the city
in regard to location and otherwise, and provision was made for
the service of the ecity as a consumer on specially arranged
terms.  After the amalgamation elaborate arrangements were
made for the erection of a sub-station and for carrying out all
arrangements consequent upon the introduction of power from
outside, such introduction being mentioned in letters proceeding

from the city officials. Tt is also apparently matter of common
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knowledge that, while the city was thus impliedly assenting, and
indeed actually co-operating, in regard to the scheme, the appel-
lants were, on the other hand, in the course of expending millions
of dollars on the completion of the scheme. Whether such action
on the part of the city, carried on during a long term and with
the knowledge of expenditure as referred to, would bar the rights
of the city to such an objection against the introduction of power
which is at the bottom of all these protracted legal proceedings,
need not of course be separately determined, the view of their
Lordships on the fundamental rights of parties being as above
stated.

Their Lordships are of opinion that both of the judgments
of the Court below were erroneous. The learned trial Judge,
Mathers, J., decided substantially in the terms of the orders
formulated at the Bar of the Board by the respondents’ counsel,
that the appellants were not entitled to erect or maintain poles
or wires in the streets of the city for the purpose of transmitting
electrical energy developed outside. Upon that their Lordships’
opinion has been already expressed. On appeal, however, it was
held that the appellants had no right to erect or maintain such
poles for the transmission of electric evergy for any purpose
other than their street railway. In other words, as the respond-
ents’ case puts it, the Court held that the rights of the company
to use the strects without the assent of the city for the trans-
mission of electrical energy, wherever produced, are confined to
one purpose, namely, the purpose of operating its street railway.
This decision, their Lordships think, goes far beyond the real
point which was at issue between the parties, and the respondents
not unnaturally expressed themselves willing to accept the view
of Mathers, J. But in both cases, for the reasons given, their
Lordships think that the suit under all its heads falls to be dis-
missed, and they will humbly advise His Majesty accordingly
that the appeal of the Winnipeg Electric Railway Company
should be allowed and the cross-appeal by the city of Winnipeg
be refused. The ecity will bear the costs of the proceedings at
this Board and full costs in the Courts below.

Appeal allowed and cross-appeal dismissed.
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SCOTNEY v. SMITH BROS. & WILSON.
Saskatehewan Supreme Court.  Trial before Brown, J. May 13, 1012,

1, MASTER AND SERVANT (§ 11 B 4—162) —LIABILITY OF MASTER—ASSUMP-
TION OF RISK BY SERVANT—FAILURE TO COMPLAIN,

Where the mode of laying brick in a cornice at the top of a brick
wall 30 feet in height, which was in itself architecturally sound, was un-
safe as a resalt of the system or method of laying it adopted by ser-
vants of the defendant other tuan the plaintiff, the master will be
liable for injuries sustained, through the falling of the wall, by a ser-
vant, an experienced bricklayer, who, without complaint as to the man-
ner in which the work was boin? done, continued to work thereon,
where, notwithstanding he knew that the manner of laying brick was
unsafe, he did not fully appreciate the real danger he was incurring.

[Ainslic Mining and R.W. Co. v. McDougall, 42 Can. S.C.R. 420;
Lindsay v, Davidson, 19 W.L.R. 433, and Smith v. Baker, 11301] AC,
325, specially referred to.]

2, MASTER AND SERVANT (§ I1 A 4—66a)—MASTER'S DUTY AS 10 WALLS—
WHAT RISKS ASSUMED—VOLENTI NON FIT INJURIA,

Notwithstanding a servant knew that the method adopted by other
servants of the defendant in laying brick in a cornice at the top of
a wall 50 feet in height, was unsafe, and was also aware of the risk
of injury therefrom, where he did not appreciate the real danger, and
had reason to assume that those responsible for building the wall in
such manner were exercising due care that it did not proceed to the
danger point, the maxim volenti non fit injuria is inapplicable, as the
only risk of injury the plaintiff voluntarily agreed to assume as
part of his employment was such as he would have incurred had the
work been carried on according to safe methods.

[Nmith v. Baker, [1801] A.C. 325, applied.]

3. Damaces (§ 110 4—102)— CoMPENSATION—DPERMANENT INJURIES,

$5,500, as general and special dumages, is fair and reasonable for
injuries sustained through a master’s negligence by a bricklayer 27
years of age, cnvnble of earning $1,200 to $1.500 per annum, where
his injuries would undoubtedly prevent him ever again following his
trade, as one foot was injured, his head cut, nose broken, two teeth
knocked out, and his back hurt so as to prevent his doing any work
involving stooping or lifting.

TriaL of an action against employers for damages for per-
sonal injuries to a workman through negligence,

Judgment was given for the plaintift for $5,500 and costs.

F. W, G. Haultain, K.C., for plaintiff.

A. Casey, for defendant

BrowN, J.:—The defendants are building contractors, and as
such were, on August 25th, 1910, erecting a large brick build-
ing for Campbell Bros. & Wilson of the city of Regina. The
plaintiff is a bricklayer by trade, and was on that date in the
employ of the defendants and engaged with others in the con-
struction of this building. The walls of the building were solid
brick nine inches in width, and the east side wall, being the one
on which the plaintiff was working on the day in question,
was some 107 feet in length, having a pilaster at each end in
width some 17 feet and having five other pilasters, each about
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six feet wide, alternating with the windows. The wall was
slightly over 50 feet in height, and the pilasters extended the
full height of the wall. The plans called for the erowning of
this wall with a cornice having a projection of nine inches be-
yond the wall itself and five inches beyond the pilasters, the
pilasters projecting four inches beyond the wall. The con-
struction of the cornice over the windows, or on the
wall between the pilasters, was accomplished by five projeeting
courses of brick, the first two courses projecting two and three-
eighths inches each, the third course one and three-quarter
inches, and the other two courses one and a quarter inches each,
so that the wall at the top of the fifth projecting course of
bricks was practically eighteen inches in width. The plans also
called for threc more courses of brick on the top of the last pro-
jecting course. There were ten bricklayers engaged in the work
of building this wall, located at various points along its full
length. One of them, called Lloyd, was working over the most
northerly window, and the plaintiff was working over the win-
dow next to Lloyd. While just completing the laying of the
row of stretchers of the second coumse of bricks above the last
projecting course, all the portion of the wall above the window
where the plaintiff was working down to the base of the cornice
and between the pilasters slid out, the plaintiff going with it
and falling some fifty feet to the ground. A similar portion of
the wall over the most northerly window, on which Lloyd was
working, fell at practically the same time, It fell probably a
moment before, because the plaintiff says he noticed Lloyd
ahead of him as the two of them were falling to the ground
below. The other portions of the wall remained in act, except
that each of the three pilasters adjacent to the falling portions
were torn away somewhat at the sides, There is some confliet
of testimony as to how much of the wall had been completed at
the time of the accident. This conflict is evidently simply the
result of mistaken impression or defective memory, and is not
material, for in either view the result is practically the same.
I accept, however, the defendants’ version, and find under the
evidence that the fourth projecting course of bricks over the
windows Lad been fully completed. The fifth or last projecting
course had a streteher laid backed up with a header and leaving
a space of some four or five inches on the inner side of the
wall not filled in. The sixth eourse had a stretcher laid backed
up by a elip-bonding row and leaving eight or nine inches from
the inner side of the wall not filled in; and the row of stretchers
was just being completed on the seventh eourse, when the wall
gave way, precipitating the plaintiff and Lloyd to the ground,
and resulting in serious injury to both of them. The plaintiff
by this action sceks damages against the defendants, alleging
negligence against them, and setting up that the wall was con-
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structed unsafely and in a defective and improper manner, in
that the cornice was too heavy to be constructed without tie-
irons and the use of props, and further, that it was not properly
backed up during its construction, and that in consequence the
wall fell, with the resulting injuries to the plaintiff. 1 am satis-
fied from the evidence that the cornice-work was not of an un-
usual or difficult character to build, that the whole structure
was architecturally sound, and that there was no necessity for
using either tie-irons or props in the construction of the wall or
any portion of it. It could and should have been built safely,
without the use of either. It is not customary to use either in
the construction of such cornices, and the defendants eannot
be said to be negligent in not using the same. It is, however, the
custom of the trade in building a cornice to back up completely
each course of bricks as it is laid before proceeding with another
course. Charles Willoughby, one of the witnesses for the de-
fence, who has had much experience in this elass of work, states
that he never saw a cornice built that was not backed up solid,
and the evidence of all the witnesses is to the effect that such is
customary. It is regarded-as the sane and safe method, for in
that way the projecting bricks are so bonded that they eannot
fall, unless, of course, the walls are architecturally at fault. In
this case the wall was architecturally sound, and in the ordinary
course of events should not have fallen if properly backed up
during its construction. Any departure from the custom of
backing up each course in building a cornice is fraught with
more or less danger, because it is difficult for an operative to
know at what time the equilibrium has been so shifted that the
projecting portion has lost its support. The material used,
hoth as to mortar and brick, was of good quality, and the wall
did not fall because of defective material. 1 am convinced,
however, notwithstanding the opinion of some witnesses to the
contrary, that the wall at the time it fell had reached the danger
point. The evidence of Butler, for the plaintiff, and of Puntin
and Chambers, for the defence, together with the actual results,
satisfies me as to that. Chambers was the foreman on this part
of the work, and stated that he happened to go up on the works
and noticed that the men were not backing up the wall solid,
that before giving any instructions on the matter he was sud-
denly called down, and when below, saw the corner man raise
the line for another course: he called to him to back up and
take no chances, and was on the point of going up to see that
his orders were enforeced when the wall fell. Puntin’s evidence
under cross-examination (and he was agent of the architect in
charge) is that it would not be safe to leave two courses of
brick not backed up, that it should be backed up completely to
the course before the one being laid. The wall had reached
that position where there was great danger of it falling, and
great danger to the men working on it. Both the plaintiff and
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Lloyd were standing on the back of the wall at the time it gave
way, for although there was a platform four inches back from
the inside of the wall, yet at this point the wall was eighteen
inches wide, and it was necessary to stand on the wall itself in
order to do their work effectively. They both state that they
were in the act of laying a stretcher brick when the wall gave
way from under their feet. In so laying their bricks they were
doing only what it was natural for them to do; and although it
was suggested that they must unnecessarily and carelessly have
applied some force to the outside of the wall, I do not so find. It
gave way so rapidly that they had no time to get on the plat-
form or save themselves. 1 am of opinion, and find, that the
wall fell while the plaintiff was working on it in the natural
course of his employment, and that it fell because of the neglect
to fully back up each course of bricks laid. 1t is pointed out
on behalf of the defendants and emphasized that the wall over
the three south windows did not fall, although built in precise-
ly the same manner and to the same point in construetion, and
this is a matter to which I have naturally given serious con-
sideration. On the other hand, there is the fact that the wall
over two windows gave way at practically the same time, and
the undisputed evidence is that the falling of the one could not
have been caused by the falling of the other, because of the
intervening and saving pilaster. As I have already stated,
the whole wall had, I believe, reached the danger point, and a
very slight difference in projection of the cornice (and the
evidence shewed there were slight variations in projection even
over the same window) or in manner of construction may, in
my judgment, be the explanation of why the wall should go
at one point and not at the other.

I am not much impressed with the idea that a man working
on the wall would help to support it. That would undoubtedly
be true if the workman did nothing but stand still and hold
the wall down, but a man who was doing his work would con-
tinually be altering his position. He would be moving along
the wall as the bricks were laid; he would be reaching for
bricks and mortar, and in doing so would constantly be turn-
ing towards the platform: he would oeccasionally have one foot
on the platform and one on the wall; in laying his brick and
cutting off the mortar he would have to lean well forward and
as it were look over the brick being laid to see that it was well
and truly laid, and in doing this on a wall as wide as this one
was at this point, the operative might very naturally rest one
hand, supporting the body, at varying points forward on the
wall. In thus doing his work each man might very naturally
vary in some degree from his fellow-workmen, and this is what
1 refer to by slight variations in manner of constrnetion as be-
ing an explanation of the wall falling at one point and not
another,
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There is no evidence of any personal negligence on the part
of the defendants. The building, as already stated, was arehi-
tecturally sound; they had supplied good material with which
to construet it; Chambers, their foreman, was a competent man,
and had been in their service for six years; the men working on
the wall were apparently all competent men; and the defen-
dants had no reason to anticipate that the wall would be built
otherwise than in a proper and customary way. If they are
liable at all, it must be by reason of the negligence of their
servants. The method of construetion adopted in this case, and
which in this respect was the customary method, was to stretch
a line the full length of the building. The corner-men, called
also the line-men, had control of this line. They raised and
placed it, and the intervening men were supposed to work to the
line. This was done to ensure uniformity in procedure and
aceuracy in work, In this case the corner-men raised the line
before the backing-up was completed, and the intervening men,
in accordance with the custom, worked to it. The plaintiff and
Lloyd were two of the intervening men, and this is the reason
given by them for not backing up, and building the wall as thcy
did. That such is the practice is confirmed by the fact that in
this case all’ the intervening men so acted, and by the further
fact that Chambers, when giving instructions to back up just
before the wall fell, gave same to the corner-man. I do not
find that Chambers, the foreman, gave instructions to build
the wall or any part of it without backing up, but on the other
hand, if he at any time gave instructions to back up, as he says
he did, I find that neither the plaintiff nor Lloyd heard or re-
ceived such instructions. They having been stationed on the
wall by the foreman, proceeded to work without receiving any
special instructions, and they did not back up simply because
they followed the line set for them by the corner of line men.
It was no advantage to the defendants that the waill should be
built otherwise than in the usual way, the only apparent object
being to make it easier for the operative, as he thus would not
have to stoop so far, and the strain on his back wonld in conse-
quence be lessened. Moreover, the evidence of the plaintiff and
Lloyd shews clearly that they knew the method adopted here
of building the cornice was not the eustomary method or a safe
one, that the proper and safe way was to back up completely
each course of bricks as laid. The plaintiff in his examination
for discovery deposes as follows:—

54. Q. And it is the ordinary practice to earry the wall up with
the cornice as you build it?
A. Yes.

55, Q. And that is the way you would consider that a cornice
should be built, that is, the wall to be carried up with the cornice? +
A, Yes,
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56. Q. Now as a practieal bricklayer you know that the wall
should be carried up along with the cornice?

A, Well, that is the way it i mostly done

57. Q. Yes, that is the way yon would do it, if you were left to
yourself to do it

A, Yes

58. Q. Why would you do it that way !

A, 1 would consider it safer

Lloyd also in his examination for discovery deposes as
follows :—
0%,

T

Mr. Scotney, in answer to this question, replied “Yes"; “And
it is the ordinary practice to carry the wall up with the cornice as

you build it?” Do you give the same answer?
A, Yes
09. Q. You give the same answer?
A, Yes

100. Q. And the safe way to do it?

A. It is the safe way to do it,
Again, Albert Sharley, who was ealled in rebuttal on behalf of
the plaintiff, says a bricklayer is supposed to know how to
build a cornice and that it should be backed up. From this and
the evidence generally T am satisfied that the men on the wall,
including the line men, had similar knowledge in this respect to
the plaintiff.

Notwithstanding this knowledge, neither the plaintiff nor
Lloyd at any time made any ohjection or complaint to the fore-
man or anyone else about building the wall in the manner pur-
sued by them. In faet, all the men apparently continued to
work in this way, without ohjection or complaint, and without a
full appreciation of the real danger they were incurring. It is
quite apparent that neither the plaintiff nor Lloyd nor any
other of the ten operatives knew that the wall had reached so
dangerous a point in its construction, otherwise they would have
backed the wall up or left the works.

On this state of facts, are, firstly, the defendants, apart from
the question of contributory negligence, liable? And, secondly,
if they are, are they relieved of that liability by contributory
' negligence on the part of the plaintiff? And, thirdly, if the

above questions must be answered favourably to the plaintiff,
. what damages is he entitled to?

Dealing with the first question; it is the duty of the master
to provide fit and proper places for the workman to work in
and a fit and proper system and suitable materials with
which to work: Ainslie Mining and Railway Company v. Me-
Dougall, 42 Can. S.C.R. 420 Lindsay v. Davidson, 19 W.L.R.
433.

In Smith v. Baker, [1891] ACC, 3
bury is reported as saying:—

I think the cases cited at your Lordship's Bar of Sword v. Cameron

1 Se. Sess, Cas, 2nd series, 403, and the Battonshill Coal Company

v. MeGuire, 3 Macq. 300, established conclusively the point for which

at p. 339, Lord Hals-
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they were cited, that a negligent system or a negligent mode of using
perfectly sound machinery may make the employer liable quite apart
from any of the provisions of the Employers’ Liability Act.

And Lord Watson, at p. 353, says:—

It does not appear to me to admit of dispute that, at common law,
a master who employs a servant in work of a dangerous character is
bound to take all reasomable precautions for the workman’s safety.
The rule has been so often laid down in this House by Lord Cran.
worth, and other noble and learned lords, that it is needless to quote
authorities in support of it. But, as I understand the law, it was
also held by this House, long before the passing of the Employers'
Liability Act, 43 and 44 Viet, ch. 42, that a master is no less
responsible to his workman for personal injuries occasioned by a
defective system of using machinery than for injuries caused by a
defect in the machinery itself.

And in Dawbarn on Employers’ Liability, 4th ed., at
p. 156:—

A further duty of a master is to conduct his business on a proper
system, and with due and reasonable care for the safety of his ser-
vants, and judging from the remarks of Lord Cranworth in the case
of Sword v. Cameron (1839), 1 D. 439, it would appear this is a duty
cast upon him whether he personally attend to his business or other-
wise,

1 have no hesitation in holding that the system or mode or
method of construeting this wall was of a negligent character.
The men who were responsible for the system or method of
construction adopted were the servants of the defendants, other
than the plaintiffs or Lloyd, and because of this negligence on
the part of their servants, the defendants, under the above
authority, would in my opinion be liable.

The second question must in my judgment, under the
authority of Smith v. Baker, [1891] A.C. 325, be answered in
the plaintiff’s favour. In that case, Lord Halsbury, at p. 336,
SAYS i—

o appears to me that the proposition upon which the defendants
must rely must be a far wider one than is involved in the maxim
volenti non fit injuria. 1 think they must go to the extent of saying
ing that wherever a person knows there is a risk of injury to him.
self, he debars himself from any right of complaint if an injury
should happen to him in doing anything which involves that risk

In both Thomas v. Quartermaine, 18 Q.B.D. 685, and in

}armoulh v. France, 19 Q.B.D. 647, it has been taken for granted

that mere knowledge of the risk does not necessarily involve consent

to the risk. Bowen, L.J., carefully points out in the earlier case

(Thomas v. Quartermaine) that the maxim is not “scientia non fit in-

juria”" but “volenti non fit injuria.” And Lindley, L.J., in quoting

Bowen, L.J.'s, distinction with approval, adds (19 Q.B.D. 660): “The

question in each case must be, not simply whether the plaintiff knew of

the risk, but whether the circumstances are such as necessarily to lead
to the conclusion that the whole risk was voluntarily incurred by the
plaintiff.”
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And again at page 338:— SASK.
I am of opinion myself that in order to defeat a plaintiff’s right by S.C.
the application of the maxim relied on, who would otherwise be en- 1912
titled to recover. the jury ought to be able to affirm that he consented —_
to the particular thing being done which would involve the risk, and  SCOTNEY
L consented to take the risk upon himself, SuiTi Beos.
And Lord Watson, at p. 355:— & Witsox.
In its application to questions between the employer and the em- Brown, J.

ployed, the maxim volenti non fit injuria as now used generally

imports that the workman had either expressly or hy implication

agreed to take upon himself the risks attendant upon the partieular

work which he was engaged to perform, and from which he has suf-

fered injury. The question which has most frequently to be con.

sidered is not whether he voluntarily and rashly exposed himself to

injury, but whether he agreed that, if injury should befall him, the

risk was to be his and not his master’s. When, as is commonly the i
case, his acceptance or non-acceptance of the risk is left to implica- il
tion, the workman ecannot reasonably be held to have undertaken it )
unless he knew of its existence, and appreciated or had the means of

appreciating its danger. But assuming that he did so, I am unable

to accede to the suggestion that the mere fact of his continwing at

his work, with such knowledge and appreciation, will in every case

necessarily imply his acceptance. Whether it will have that effect or

not depends, in my opinion, to a considerable extent upon the nature

of the risk, and the workman's connection with it, as well as upon

other considerations which must vary aceording to the circumstances

of each case.

Lord Herschell at p. 360 says:—

Where a person undertales to do work which is intrinsically dan }
gerous, notwithstanding that reasonable care has been taken to render
it as litile dangerous as possible, he no doubt voluntarily subjects him
self to the risks inevitably accompanying it, and cannot, if he suffers
be pe tted to complain that a wrong has been done him, even thongh i
t ise from which he suffers might give to others a right of action
And again, at p. 362:—

It is quite clear that the contract between employer and employ
ed involves on the part of the former the duty of taking reasonable
. care to provide proper appliances, and to maintain them in a proper
condition, and so to carry on his operations as not to subject those
. employed by him to wunncoessary risk. Whatever the dangers of the
employment which the employed undertakes, amongst them is certain
Iy not to be numbered the risk of the employer’s negligence, and the
ereation or enhancement of danger thereby engendered.

3 And at p. 365:— |
T think that the judgment in Yarmouth v. France, 19 Q.B.D, 647,

was perfectly right; but I should not lay the same stress as Lindley,

L.J., did upon the fact that the workman had remonstrated against

the risk to which he was exposed, and on being told to continue his

work did so to avoid dismissal. For the reasons which T have given i
T think that where a servant has been subjected to risk owing to a
breach of duty on the part of his employer, the mere fact that he N
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continues his work, even though he knows of the visk and does not
remonstrate, does not preclude his recovering in respect of the breach
of duty, by reason of the doctrine, volenti non fit injuria, which in
my opinion has no application to such a case,

In this case, did the plaintiff know the risk and consent to
incur it? 1 am of opinion that he did not. Tle knew that it
was an unsafe procedure to build the wall in this way, he was
as much aware of the danger as anyone else, but he did not ap-
preciate and could not be expeeted to have appreciated the veal
danger to which the failure to back up several courses had led,
He was too busy about his work to make any such fine calenla-
tions.  Again: he eannot be said to have consented to incur any
such risk. He had reason to assume that those who were
responsible for building the wall in this way were exercising
due ecare that they did not proceed to the danger point. e in
entering upon his work had reason to assume that the wall
would be constructed along safe methods, ITe voluntarily
agreed to ineur all risks incidental to the wall being built by
safe methods.  But it cannot he said, to use the words of Lord
Halsbury, “that he consented to the particular thing being
done ““which involved the risk, and consented to take the risk
upon “himself.””  The corner or line-men, were at fault. They
were negligence in constructing the wali in this way. The plain-
tiff simply followed the procedure which they mapped out, and
it was part of their husiness to map out the procedure. To
apply the language of Lord Herschell on p. 362, of Smith v.
Baker, [1891]  AC. 325, whatever the dangers of the
employment  whieh the plaintiff undertook, amongst them
ainly not to be numbered the risk of the em-
ployer’s  negligence  (or the risk of negligence on  the
part of fellow-employees). And again, his language at
p. 365, when the plaintift was subjected to this risk
brought about by the negligence of his fellow-employces, and
which T have held amounted to a breach of duty on the part of
the defendants, the mere fact that he continued his work, even
though he knew there was danger, and did not remonstrate,
does not preclude his recovering hy reason of the doetrine,
“volenti non fit injuria.”’

Having thus found the defendants liable, the plaintiff is
unquestionably under the evidence entitled to substantial dam-
ages. His injuries as a result of the fall were severe. The
marvel is that they were not more so, as he fell a distance of
over fifty feet. THis right foot was injured, head eut, nose
broken, two teeth knocked out, and what was more serious, his
back was hurt. He was confined to the hospital for some eight
days and in bed at his home for two weeks, and after getting
out of bed he was obliged to use crutehes for some six weeks.
He has ever since had a weak back, accompanied hy more or

L
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less pain which has prevented him from doing any kind of
labour that involves stooping or lifting. He also suffers from
neurasthenia. e has been praetically unable to do any kind
of work since the accident, and the evidence indicates that he
will not likely ever again be the man he was, Ile may in time
be able to go back to his work as bricklayer, but the c¢hances
are against it. He is, however, by no means in a helpless con-
dition, and I would judge that with eare he will be able to earn
a fair competence at some oceupation. e is 27 yvears of age,
and was earning 65 cents an hour and eapable of earning at
his trade from $1,200 to $1,500 per annum. It is difficult
under such circumstances to fix with any degree of certainty
the damages which the plaintiff has suffered. 1 can only use
my best judgment in the matter, which is that $5,500 would be
reasonable and fair, this amount to ecover both special and
general damages.

There will, therefore, be judgment for the plaintiff for
#5500 and costs

Judgment for plaintift.

LLOYD v. SMITH BROS. & WILSON,
Saskatehewan Supreme Couwrt. Trial before Brown, J. May 13, 1912

Lo Davaces (§ HTJ 4—102) —CoMpENSATION—PERMANENT INJURIES—IN
STANCE OF AMOUNT
A verdiet for $4.000 damages 8 not  excessive for  injuries
received by a bricklayer 25 years of age. who was eapable of
earning $1.200 to 1500 per vear, where his injuries resulted in
a weak back and neurasthenia, and he had been unable to do much
work since receiving such injuries, except some at his trade, which
he did with gre Mienlty and limitations, and, while the chances
for complete r ry were not very hopeful, vet it seemed probable
that in a reasonable time he would be able to resume work at his
trade and to earn a fair livelihood.
[Seotney v. Smith Bros. and Wilson, 4 D.LR. 134, followed and
applied.]

Trian of an action against employers for damages for per-
sonal injuries to a workman, through negligence,

F. W, G. Haultain, K.C., for plaintiff.

A. Casey, for defendants.

BrowN, J.:—For the reasons given in the case of Scolney
v. Smith Bros. & Wilson [ante 4 D.LR. 134], 1 find that the
plaintiff is entitled to recover. The only question is the amount
of damages that ought to be allowed. This plaintiff’ was also se-
verely injured, though not so severely as the plaintiff in the
other case. As a result of his injuries he has been suffering
from a weak back and nenrasthenia, and has been unable to do
much work sinece the time of the aceident. Ie has, however,
done some work at his trade, but with diffienlty and great
limitations. His chances for complete recovery are not very
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SASK.  hopeful, but in a reasonable time it seems probable that he

s.C. will be able to go back to his trade. In any event I feel confi-

1912 dent, under the evidence, that he will be able to earn a good
— livelihood. He is twenty-five years of age, and was capable of

Loy aarning at his trade an amount similar to that of the plaintiff

SHITI‘I.BBOB. in the other case. 1 fix the damages in this case at $4,000,
& WiLsox.  this amount to cover both special and general damages.

o 2 There will therefore be judgment for the plaintiff for $4,000
and costs.

Judgment for plaintiff.

QUE. TURGEON v. BOURGEOIS.

R Quebec Court of Review, Tellier, DeLorimicr and Dunlop, JJ.
1913. May 23, 1912,

s 1. PAYMENT (§ IV—30)—APPLICATION—INDICATION IN DEED—THIRD PARTY
May 23, ~REVOCATION BEFORE ACCEPTANCE.

An indication of payment in favour of a third party who does not
intervene or appear in the deed of sale containing the indieation of
payment does not constitute a delegation of payment until it has been
formally accepted by the ereditor in whose favour it is made, and may
be revoked by the parties to the deed at any time before such aceept- L
ance,

2, PAYMENT  (§ IV—30)—INSOLVENT DENTOR DIRECTING PAYMENT TO
CREDITOR—NON-ACCEPTANCE BY HIM—LIABILITY AS FOR A PRE-
FERENCE,

Where an indication of payment is made in a deed of sale to
which the ereditor is not a party by an insolvent trader who sells part
of his assets a few days prior to his formal abandonment and the third
party has not aeceepted the indieation so as to transform it into a
delegation of payment, such indication does not constitute a preferen-
tial payment to the detriment of the other creditors, and no action will
lie against the third party who has not accepted the same.

Statement Tiis was an appeal by one of the mis en cause, Dame E. St. \
Denis, from the judgment of the Superior Court, Demers, J.,
rendered on December 27th, 1910, whereby the action of the ¢
curator, respondent, to obtain the cancellation of a clause in a
deed of sale passed by an insolvent, was maintained both as 4
regards the defendant and all the mis en cause. |
The appeal was allowed. s

Argument J. P. Whelan, for the appellant, argued that the mere uni- i
lateral expression of the will or intention of the insolvent, even 4
if fraudulent, did not constitute any delegation of payment and
no contract ever took place between the insolvent and the appel-
lant as she was not a party to the contract. Reference was made
to Duggan v. Trenholme, 17 R.ILN.S. 403; 5 Mignault, p. 608
et seq.: Dubue v. Charon, 9 L.CJ. 79; Reeves v. Darling,
M.ILR. 4 Q.B. 357; Mallette et al. v. Hudon, 22 1.C.J. 101;
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Lajoie v. Désaulwicrs, 2 D.C.A. (Dovion ) 2415 Ethicr v, Paquelte, QUE.

12 R.L. 184; Sociétd Permanente de Construction Jacques Car- R
tier v. Robinson, 1 D.C.A, 32; 870, 877 C.P, 1912

T. Rinfret, for vespondent,
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May 23, 1912, The unanimous judgment of the Court of
Review was delivered by

TELLIER, o, :—This is an inseription in review on the part of
¢ the mis en canse, Dame E. St. Denis, to obtain the revision of

the judgment vendered by the Superior Court, on December
27th, 1910,

The mis ¢n cause, Campean and St, Denis, have
abandonment of their property for the henefit of their «
and the plaintifi has been duly appointed as enrator to this
III\HI\'I'HI'_\.

By deed of sale before Perrault, N.P., on April 24th, 1909,
these two, Campean and St. Denis, sold to Bourgeois, the defend-
ant, their hotel or restanrant, at No, 561 Demontigny Street East,
in Montreal, with all its contents and also ceded to him all their
rights to their lease of the building and all their rights in the
license for the sale of spiritnous liquors then held by the said

Campean and St. Denis. This sale was made for the price of
b $10,000, of which $600 to be paid cash and the balance of %9.400
was to be paid to divers parties and amongst others %1500 1o
Dame St. Denis, another of the mis en cause.

wle an

wditors

On June 17th, 1909, the plaintiff s qual. instituted the pres-
ent action against the defendant and the mis en cause.  The
plaintiff alleged, amongst other things, that when the said Cam-
pean and St. Denis agreed to this sale with the defendant they
vere notoriously insolvent and this to the knowledge of the
defendant and of all the mis en cause; that this sale was agreed
upon a few days prior to the abandonment made by the said
Campean and St. Denis ; that this sale was the result of a frandu-
lent understanding between the defendant and all the mis en
cause and was made for the purpose of allowing the defendant
? to obtain the restaurant therein mentioned d vil prir and for the
purpose of allowing the other mis ¢n cause to obtain in the said

' deed delegations of payment in their favour so as to seeure
preferential payment of their claims over the other ereditors of
the said insolvents: that the defendant never paid to the said
Campean and St. Denis the sum of $600 cash, as falsely stated
in this deed: that the purchase price therein mentioned is
ridiculous and does not represent the value of the said hotel or
restaurant, and that the payments to bhe made thereafter
spaced so far apart that it is impossible for the ereditors to
realize effectively on the assets of these insolvents,
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The plaintift es qual. therefore coneludes that this deed of sale
be declared false and frandulent and be set aside, and sub-
sidiarily that that portion of the said deed wherein it is stipu-
lated that the defendant shall pay the following amounts: $2,000
to (!, Gagnon, $1,500 to Dawes & Co., Ltd., $2.208 to M. Lang-
lois, $1.600 to E. St, Denis, and $1.500 to Dame E. St Denis,
wife of Hervé Campean, be declared frandulent, as constituting
preferential payments in favour of the above-named persons, and
be therefore declared void, null and of no effeet: and that the
defendant be ordered to pay the afore-mentioned amounts to the
plaintiff’ es qual. to be by him ratably distributed between all
the ereditors of the said Campean and St. Denis, according to
their rights and privileges,

At the trial the plaintift desisted from the main conelusions
of his action and proceeded only on the subsidiary conclusions
T have just enumerated.

The mis en cause appellant, Dame St. Denis, met this action
by a demurrer, which was dismissed with costs, and by a defence
to the merits wherein she pleaded ignorance of all the allegations
of the plaintiff’s declaration with the exeeption only of the
allegation that the deed of sale in question was the result of a
frandulent understanding in which she had participated; this
she denied.  She asked the dismissal of the action as far as she
wias concerned,

The plaintiff has not established the allegations of his declara-
tion in so far as the appellant is concerned.  She was not a party
to the deed attacked herein: she had nothing to do with it in any
shape or form: she never aceepted nor repudiated the so-called
delegation of payment made in her favour: she was never even
called upon to aceept it or to refuse it

This indication of payment was an indication pure and
simple: it did not constitute a perfeet delegation of payment in
the proper meaning of the term: it could not constitute a pre-
ferential payment to the detriment of the other ereditors until
it was aceepted, and she never aceepted it.  Until aceeptation
there conld be no “lien de droit.””  And until such indication
was accepted it could always be revoked by Campean and St
Denis before their abandonment, and after the abandonment by
the plaintiff himself. Indeed, after the abandonment, it became
null: it lapsed and ~ould no longer be aceepted.

By the allegations and eonclusions of his action in nullity
the plaintiff has compelled the appellant to defend herself: he
has not substantiated the charges of frand he brought against
her: he has failed to justify his prayer that she should be con-
demned to pay ecosts and he must in consequence pay the costs
of her defence, and his own in so far as the action directed
against her is coneerned,
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We therefore reverse that part of the judement which con-
demned the appellant to pay the costs of her contestation and
confirm the said judgment in so far as it has annulled the indica-
tion of payment made in her favour; and the plaintitt ¢x qual.

will pay the costs of the appellant s contestation and all the costs
in review,

Appeal allowed.

EVERETT v. SCHAAKE.
British Columbia Court of Appeal, Macdonald, €.J.1.
Galliher, JJ.A, June 4, 1912,

I MASTER  AND SERVANT  (§ 11 B 3—144) —LiAminaty oF  MASTER—UN-
GUARDED MACHINE PRODUCT OF WORKS—TESTING AND [NSPECTING—
B.C Factortes Acr (1911) on. 8, see,

o Arving and

A machine which was no part of a factory or plant, but a product

of manufact I for a customer, is not within the words or
intention of s ch. 8 of the BC. Factories Act of 1911, which re
quires the secure guarding. so far as practi . of all dangerous
parts of mill-gearing, v inery, shafts, ete. so as to render a
able whe A servant sustained injuries while testing
such newly constructed machine, by coming into contact with a por
tion thereof which was not guarded as such section required, since it
was necessary that such portion should be exposed to view in order
that all parts of the machine might be properly inspected,

20 MASTER AND SERVANT (§ 11 E 6—275) —TESTING NEW  MACHINE—L N~
GUARDED SAWS—KNOWLEDGE OF SERVANT—BRINGING TO ATTENTION
OF FOREMAN—R, C. EMprovers’ Liaginiry Act,

Where a servant, who was directed to test a machine manufactured
by the de ant, ealled the attention of the de nt's foreman to
the danger of doing so withont the guarding of rapidly moving saws,
and was thereby injured while making sueh test, the jury may find a
verdiet against the master under B, C. Employers’ I,mlnlu\ Act,

3. NEw TRIAL (§ 11 B=19) —ERRONEOUS  VERDICT—FAILURE OF JURY TO
FOLLOW INSTRUCTIONS,

Wi an action for

B. C. Employers” Lialul

the jury on the theor

lleged breach of the Factories Act and the

Act as well, was improperly submitted to
of a common law linbility arising from an
alleged breach of the former Act, upon the jury returning a verdict
of 80 for the plaintiff, and being asked what damages they would
award if they were to decide the case under the Employers’ Liability
Act, they answered 0, a new trial will be granted if the jury have
failed to answer questions submitted to them on the question of volun
tary assumption of risk which would be material to the question of lia-
bility under the latter Act.

4. NEGLIGENCE (§ 1 B2—13) — LIABILITY OF MANUFACTURER — SERVANT'S
ASSL TON OF RISK—NTAT RY DUTY,
The defence of volenti non fit injuria is not available in an action
for injuries sustained through a breach of a statutory duty imposed
by the Factories Act,

[Baddeley v, Earl Granville (1887), 19 Q.B.D. 423, and Rodgers v,
Hamilton Cotton Co,, 23 Ont, R, 425, and Love v, Fairvicw, 10 BCR.

330, specially referred to.]

AN appeal by the defendant from the judgment at trial in
favour of the plaintift in an action for damages for personal
mjuries, the jury having fixed the damages at $2

The appeal was allowed and a new trial ordered.
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The plaintitt was injured while testing a morticing machine
manufactured for a eustomer by the defendants in their factory.
The plaintiff, an experienced journeyman machinist, had been
employed for three weeks prior thereto in building and finishing
the machine: in fact, he was the machinist in charge of the eon-
struction of the machine. On completion he made two tests to
see that it ran properly.  After these tests the foreman divected
the plaintiff to make a third test, and it was while making this
third test, and while oiling the machine while running, that the
plaintifft met with the accident complained of.  The plaintiff
complains of the absence of a guard over the rapidly revolving
saws. It appears that when the machine was installed in the
place where it was to be operated, a guard consisting of a hood
was to be suspended over these saws with suetion tubes to take
away the sawdunst and shavings, but it was no part of the
machine itself. The plaintiff says that he protested to the fore-
man against making the third test, because of the want of a
guard over the saws, These tests, it will be understood, were
made in the factory where the machine was constructed, not in
the factory where it was intended finally to be used.

C. W. Craig, for appellants.

Messrs. . E. McCrossan and A. M. Harper, for respondent.

Macponarn, CLJ A :—The plaintift' elaims, first, that the de-
fendants were guilty of a breach of the Factories Aet, RS.B.C,
1911, ch. 81, see, 32, which provides that :—

In every factory all dangerous parts of mill-gearing, machinery,
shafting, vats, pans, cauldrons, reservoirs, wheel-races, flumes, water
channels, doors, openings in the floors or walls, bridges, and all other
dangerous structures or places, shall be, as far as practicnble, securely
guarded.

The only authority to which we were referred on the scope of
this section is Redgrave v. Lloyd, [1895] 1 Q.1B. 876, but in my
view of the case we get practically no assistance from that deei-
sion. In the ease at bar, the point is, does the machine, which is
no part of the factory plant or machinery, but is the produet of
the factory, fall within the above quoted section? Whereas
in Redgrave v. Lloyd, [1895] 1 Q.B. 876, the point was, did a
machine which was not part of the machinery which supplied
the motive power, but was a machine operated as part of the
plant by machinery which formed part of the motive power,
fall within the English Aet, which is practically identical with
ours?  Had this morticing machine been one used in the manu-
facture of the produet of the factory, the cases would be identical,
and there would, in my opinion, be no diffienlty in holding that
it fell within the Factories Aet.  But not being part of the mill
gearing machinery or shafting of this factory in any true sense
of the word, T do not think the Factories Aet is applicable, Tt
seems to me neither to fall within the words nor the intention
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of the Aet. The object of guarding machinery which is being
used constantly is at least to a large extent to provide familiarity
with and constant use of' the machine, Where a machine is being
tested not only is it important, as pointed out in the evidence,
that the different parts should be exposed in order to observe
whether it be working properly or not, but those making the test
are in a position to guard themselves and others against inadver-
tent or thoughtless acts

The ease went to the jury on two points, first, as to the com-
mon law liability arising by the alleged breach of the Faetories
Act, and secondly, under the Employers’ Liability Aet, The
Jury, having returned a common law verdiet, which in my opin-
ion is wrong, we have then to consider whether the plaintiff was
entitled to succeeed on the other branch of the case. That branch
turns on the direction given by the foreman to the plaintiff' to
test this machine, and the fact that the plaintiff’ called the fore-
man’s attention to the danger of doing so, but his, nevertheless,
carrying out the order which resulted in his injury, 1 am not
prepaved to say that the jury could not properly find a verdict
on this branch.  After returning their verdiet they were asked by
the learned Judge what damages they would give if they were
to decide it under the Employers’ Liability Aet. They answered
$2,850, and if it were not for the difficulty which T shall presently
mention, I should hold that the plaintiff is entitled to that sum.
The diffieulty arises in this way : the jury were directed that as
a matter of law the Factories Aet is applicable to this case, and
that if they found that it was practicable to guard the machine
then there was a breach of the Aet, and they were told that the
voluntary assumption of the risk by the plaintiff is no defence
ngainst a breach of statutory obligation, so that if they came to
the conelusion that the plaintiff was entitled to recover at common
law, they need not consider the question of volens. They were
told, however, that if they came to the conclusion that he was
entitled under the Employers' Liability Aet, then they should
consider the question of velens. Having bronght in a common
law verdiet, and not having answered the questions submitted to
them, there is nothing to shew that they have considered the
yuestion of velens at all. Hence that element in the case has not
been passed upon by the jury.

I think, therefore, that there should be a new trial.

IrviNG, J.A.:—It seems to be conceded by the writers of all
the leading text books that the defence volenti won fit injuria
is not available to the employer in an action founded on the
violation by him of a statutory duty. This has been decided by
the Divisional Court in England: Baddeley v. Earl Granville
(1887),19 Q.B.D. 423, followed in Ontario by the Common Pleas
Division in Rodgers v. Hamilton Cotton Co., 23 Ont, R, 425. In
Love v. Fairview, 10 B.C.R. 330, where it was argued that assum-
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ing the plaintift had suffered injuries from the non-fulfilment of
statutory duties, no right of action was given him, the full Court
held that there was, and Martin, J., at p. 346, held that the
right to statutory protection could not be lost by waiver,

I think the judgment must be set aside on the ground that
the provisions of the Factories Act, 1911, ¢h. 81, see, 32, are inap-
plicable to this machine. It was a product of the mill and not
part of the plant of the factory.

I am of opinion that the order for a new trial should go.

)

Gavvinger, J.AL, concurrved in the result,

Appeal allowed and wew trial ordered.

BINKLEY v. STEWART CO.
Ontario High Court. Trial before Teetzel, J. June 14, 1912,

1. PRINCIPAL AND AGENT (§ TTT—33) —LIABILITY OF AGENT—ABSENCE OF
NEGLIGENCE — FAILURE  TO PLACE INSURANCE — SUBMISSION OF
APPLICATION,

An agent who had no authority to hind an insurance company until it
had approved an application for insurance, is not liable for failure to
effect insurance upon property before it was destroyed by fire, where
he agreed with the applicant only to submit his application to the
company for approval, which he did without negligence, and it did not
appear that he unconditionally agreed to place and effect such
insurance,

[Bawxter v, Jones (1903), 6 O.L.R
Rice (1911), 2 OW.N, 1417, affirn Rudd Paper Boxr Co, v, Rice,
D.LR. 253, 3 OW.N. 534, 20 OW.R. 070 (C.A.), and by the Supreme
Court of Canada, 4 June, 1912, sub nwom, Riee v. Rudd Paper Bor Co.,
distingunished. ]

360, and Rudd Paper Box Co, v.

Action for damages for the defendant’s negligence in not
effecting an insurance on the plaintifi’’s stock, in violation of an
alleged undertaking or agreement by the defendamt, to effect
such insurance,

The action was dismissed.

H. D. Gamble, K.C., and F. L. Smiley, for the plaintiff,
R. McKay, K.C., and D. T. K. McEwen, for the defendants.

Teerzer, J.:—On the 10th July, 1911, the plaintiff ap-
plied to the defendants, an incorporated company carrying on
business as insurance agents at New Liskeard, for $1,000 in-
surance on his stock of goods in his store at Cochrane. The
insurance was not effected, and the stock was destroyed on the
11th July.

Upon the ¢vidence, I find the following additional faets:
(1) that the defendants did not unconditionally agree to place
or effect the insurance; (2) that the defendants agreed only to
submit an application for such insurance; (3) that the de-
fendants did submit such application, and in connection there-
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with were not guilty of any negligence:; and (4) that it does not
appear that the defendants had any authority from any in-
surance company to bind it by an interim receipt or otherwise
in respect of property in Cochrane, unuless approved by the
company.

Upon these facts, the case is excluded from the application
of such authorities as Baxter v. Jones (1903), 6 O.L.R. 360, and
Rudd Paper Bor Co. w. Rice (1911), 2 O.W.N. 1417.* cited by
Mr. Gamble.

The action must be dismissed with costs,

Action dismissed.,

*Affirmed, Rudd Paper Bor Co. v, Rice, 3 DLR. 253, 3 OA.N, 534, 20
O.W.R. 979 (C.A), and by the Supreme Court of Canada, 4 June, 1912,
Rice v. Rudd Paper Box Co.

HOLDEN v. RYAN.
Ontario High Court. Trial before Tectzel, J. July 8, 1012

1. Buinmixegs (§ 1 A—0a ) —SEMEDETACHED HOUSE-—=SIZE OF LoT-—MUNICI
PAL REGULATION
A building strueturally divided into two equal divisions by a wall
extending its whole height with no internal communication. common
stairease, or common front door, constitutes a pair of semi-detached
buildings, and to evect such a building upon a lot which has a frontage
of only forty feet on a specified street would be a violation of a
building restriction that every pair of semi-detached buildings <hall
be upon land having a frontage on such street of at Jeast fifty feet,
[Hford Park Estates v. Jacobs, [1903] 2 Ch, followed. |

2, Buimses (§ T A—92) —ERECTION OF APARTMENT HOUSE—CORNER 10T
—MUNICIPAL BUILDING RESTRICTIONS,

It is a violation of a building restriction that buildings erecte
upon certain lots having a fron » upon some other street
upon a specified street shall have its front upon such spe
to ervect an apartment building on the corner of such street and
another street with an entrance to only one of the apartments on the

ed street and the main entrance for all the other appartments
on the other street, there being no connection between them and the
one apartment entered from the specified street,
3 Bummxes (§ 1 A—=5)—MUNICIPAL RESTRICTIONS —|ISTANCE FROM CEN
TRE OF STREET.

If the wall of a building which supports the super-structure and its
roof, is nos nearver than fifty-five feet to the eentre line of a certain
specified street there is no violation of a building restriction reguiring
the main wall of buildings on such street to be no nearer than such
distance to its centre, though the wall of the bay-windows of the
building is nearer to the centre of the street than fifty-five feet,

MUNICIPAL BUILDING RESTRICTIONS—MEANING OF

. Buipings (§ A—a)
“APPURTENANT

g restriction requiring that every building on certain
appurtenant to it land having a frontage on™ a certain
street of at Je ified number of feet, the word “appurtenant”
is not to be given a strict il meaning but its ordinary popular
meaning that the buildings in question must be erected upon lots hay
ing the required frontage on such street,

In a buildi
lots “shall have

stoa spee
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Acron for an injunetion to restrain the defendant from
erecting upon his land a building alleged by the plaintiff to be
in violation of a certain building scheme, in accordance with
which the lands were laid out by the original owner, and made
subject to certain building restrietions running with the land.

Judgment was given in favour of the plaintiff,

W. . MeMaster, for the plaintiff.

W. G Thurston, K.C'., for the defendant,

Terrzey, J.:—The restrictions in question, with violation of
which the defendant is charged, are numbers 3 and 5 of the
scheme, covered by the covenants in the conveyances and en-
dorsed thereon :—

“3. Every building ereeted upon any such lot shall be either
detached or semi-detached. Every such detached building (ex-
cept stables and outbuildings) shall have appurtenant to it
land having a frontage on Palmerston avenue of at least thirty-
three feet: and every such pair of semi-detached buildings shall
have appurtenant thereto lands having a frontage on Palmerston
avenue of at least fifty feet.”

‘5. Any building (except stable and outbuildings) erected
upon any such lot, which has a frontage upon some other street
as well as upon Palmerston avenue, shall have its front on
Palmerston avenue,’’

The defendant’s lot has a frontage of only forty feet on
Palmerston avenue, and Harbord street adjoins to the south.
The defendant’s plans are for the erection of a building to be
used as an apartment house or houses; and, having obtained
a permit from the city architect, he was proceeding, at the com-
mencement of this action, with the erection thereof,

As to the first alleged violation, the plaintiff charges that t'
proposed building is in fact a pair of semi-detached buildings,
and not a detached building; and that, the total width of land
appurtenant thereto being only forty feet, restriction number
3 is thereby violated.

In the proposed building there is a vertical division wall,
running north and south, extending the whole height of the
building, dividing it into two equal divisions, and in each divi-
sion there are some seven or eight separate apartments. There
is no door or othef opening in this division wall, so that there is
no means of access to and from the easterly and westerly halves
of the building; each half has its independent entrance facing
upon Harbord street.

I think, upon this question, the case is governed by Hford
Park Estates Limited v, Jacobs, [1903] 2 Ch. 522, in which it
was held that a building structurally divided into two tene-
ments on different floors, with no internal communication, com-

(4 DLR.
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mon stairease, or common front door, constituted two houses,
within the meaning’ of a covenant not to erect more than one
house on the site. I, therefore, hold that the proposed
building is in fact a pair of semi-detached buildings, and to
permit the same to be erected would be in violation of the restrie-
tion which provides that every **pair of semi-detached buildings
shall have appurtenant thereto lands having
Palmerston avenue of at least fifty feet,”
Although the word “*appurtenant,”” if strietly construed, as
urged by Mr. Thurston, would not be the striet legal expression
to use, I think that what the parties meant is plain, and that,
instead of giving the word *‘appurtenant’” as used a striet legal
meaning, its ordinary popular meaning must be

a frontage on

iven to it; and,
so doing. | find that the defendant. if permitted to ereet the
building in question, would be violating restriction number 3

Then as to the other condition, I have no hesitation in find
ing, upon a consideration of the plan and the weight of evidenee
at the trial, that the proposed building will not have its front on
Palmerston avenue, as required by restriction number 5, bhut
will have its front upon Harbord strect

While it is true that there is an entrance to one of the apart
ments from Palmerston avenue, there is no connection hetween
that apartment and any of the others in the building. The
main entrance for all the other apartments in the casterly half
of the building is on Harbord street, as is also the main entrance
for all the apartments in the westerly half of the building

While it is true that the portion of the building facing
Palmerston avenue may be deseribed as the front end. it is not
the substantial or predominating front of the building, whieh,
as alveady stated, having regard to the plan and to the weight of
evidence at the trial, is on Harbord street, and is, therefore, in
violation of building restriction number 5

Among other ingenious and ably maintained defences urged
by Mr, Thurston, much attention was paid to a defence alleging
that the plaintiff himself had violated one of the restrietions of
the scheme, and, therefore, cannot be heard to complain of
violations by the defendant. 1 do not stop to discuss the law
which would be applicable if there had heen a violation by the
plaintiff; but find as a faet that the violation charged by the
defendant against the plaintiff was not established.

The elaim is, that the main wall of the plaintiff's building
has been ereeted nearver than fifty-five feet to the centre line of
Palmerston avenue, in violation of restriction number 1

In my opinion, it was well established by the plaintiff that
the main wall of his building is not built in violation of that
condition. I think the main wall of the plaintiff’s building is
the wall which supports the superstructure and roof of his house,
and not the wall in front of the bay-windows
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ONT. Judgment, therefore, will be, declaring that a building as

i (.g.  broposed by the defendant would be in vidlation of conditions

1912 3 and 5 of the building restrictions in question, and that the
— defendant must be restrained from proceeding with the eree-
""',,"' Y tion of the building unless and until he alters his plan and com-
RYAN plies with those restrictions.

The defendant must pay the plaintiff'’s costs of the action.

Judgment for plaintiff.

PEARLMAN v. GREAT WEST LIFE ASSURANCE CO0.

British Columbia Court of Appeal, Macdonald, C.J.A.
Galliher, JJ. A, June 4, 1912,

(“—;. . Irving, Martin and
1012
— L CONSTITUTIONAL 1AW (§ 11 B 7308 ) —RIGHT OF ACTION AGAINST IN-

June 4. SURANCE COMPANY IN PROVINCE OTHER THAN WHERE HEAD OFFICE

18 = WHERE CAUSE OF ACTION AROSE — RSB, 1911, on. 53,
SEC. G7.

Where the cause of action arose in the province in which an insur
an company was organized and has its head office and principal
lace of husiness, suit is not authorized in a different province by the
fact that the company has been re I and has a registered office
therein, under RS.B.C. 1011, ch. . which permits a defendant
to be sued at the place where he 'nl\wll- or earries on business,”

. COURTS (81 B4—43) —ACTION  AGAINST INSURANCE  coMPANY—HEAD
OFFICE IN DIFFERENT PROVINCE—R, . Compaxies Acr, RS.B.C,
1011, en. 53, sec. 67,

An insurance company that was registered in British Columbia
cannot be sued therein on a cause of action which arose in the provinee
of its organization, where it had its head office and principal place uf
business, notwithstanding the British Columbia Companie
vides that for the purpose of sec. 67 of ch. 53 of RS.B.C. 1011, a
company registered therein shall be considered as earrying on busi-
ness in such provinee.

. INSURANCE (§ 1 B—11a ) —FoRFIGN CORPORATION—RIGHT TO SUE OR ¥
SUED,

The provisions of eh. 7, of the BC, Companies Act of 1010, will
not permit an insurance company organized and having its head office
and prineipal place of business in another province. although registered
and having a registered oflice in British Columbia, to sue or be sued
in the Courts thereof, except in respect to business transacted therein,

Statement Tuis is an appeal from the judgment of Melnnes, Co. J., on
a stated case.

The appeal was allowed.

The defendant is a life insurance company incorporated by
Dominion charter, and having its head office and principal place
of business in the eity of Winnipeg, where its directors and
officers reside, and where its general business is earvied on, It is
registered in this Province under the Companies Act, and has
its registered office for this Provinee and a loeal office where
insnrance husiness is solicited at Vancouver. The plaintiff now
resides at Vancouver, but it does not appear whether or not he
resided in this Provinee when the cause of action arose or con-
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tract sued on was made: it is merely stated that the cause of
action arose wholly in the eity of Winnipeg.  The plaintiff
brought action in the County Court of Vancouver, elaiming to
do so by virtue of RNB.C. 1911, ¢h. 53, see. 67, which provides
that a defendant may be sued at the place where he **dwells or
carries on his business.”  The learned Judge held that beeause
of registration in this Provinee with a registered office and place
of business at Vaneouver, the defendant falls within the words
quoted.

Messes, W, B, A, Ritchie, K.C., and €. M. Woodworth, for
appellant,

J. A, Clark, for respondent.

MacooNawp, C.J AL :—1 am unable to agree with that view of
the law. There are a number of authorities bearing upon the
subject, but I shall content myself with referring to the follow-
ing: Corbett v. General Steam Navigation Co., 4 H, & N, 482
Brown v. London & NW.E. Co, 4 B. & S. 326; Adams v.
Great Western R, Co,, 6 H, & N. 404; Shicls v. Great Northern
E. Co., 30 LJ.QB. 331; Le Tailleur v, South Eastern R, Co., 3
C.P.D. 18; Jones v. Ncottish Accident Inswrvance Co,, 17 Q.13.D.
421.

There are other more recent eases which turn on the construe
tion of the Income Tax Aets in England, such as De Beor's Con
Mines Ld. & Howe, [1906] A.C. . which in my opinion sup
port the appellant’s contention.  The only ease the other way,
to which we have been referred, is Weatherley v, Calder (1899,
61 L.T.N.S. 508, which seems to me to be at varianee with the
decisions both before and sinee that date,

It was contended by the respondent’s counsel that his case is
strengthened by virtue of the B, €. Companies Aet, under which
this company was registered. T am unable to acceede to that view
for this reason: While it might be contended that a company
registered under the Aet should for all business done in this
Provinee be considered for the purpose of see. 67 of the County
Courts Aet to be earrying on business here, yet such an argn-
ment is not applicable to the case like the present one, where the
canse of action arose in another Provinee,

I think the appeal should be allowed,

IrvING, J.A.:—When in 1885 the Provincial Parliament re
duced into one statute (the County Court Jurisdietion Aet, 1885
the many provisions—English and colonial—governing County
Court practice, it was provided that—

1. The plaint might be entered in the County Court within the ter
ritorial limits of which the defendant dwelt or carried on his husiness
(a) At the time of bringing the action, or
(b) By leave within six months next before the time of action or
suit hrought, or
2, Tn the County Court within the territorial limits in which the
cause of action wholly or in part arose,
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The action having arisen wholly in Manitoba, we need not
trouble ourselves with the last limb of the section.

As to the first, the expression **dwell or carry on business™
has been considered many times by English Courts. It has been
held that a railway company dwells at the principal office, and
not at every station on the line, So too a quasi corporation under
7 and 8 Viet. ch. 110, was deemed to carry on its business where
its prineipal office was situate: Addams v. G. W. R, 30 L.J. Ex.
124, 6 H. & N. 404; Taylor v. Crowland Gas Co., 24 L.J. Ex.
233, 11 Ex. 1.

Again, it was held in Corbett v. General Steam Navigation,
411 & N 482, 28 L. Ex. 214, that a publie company carrying
on business in London, which employed in a country town a
general commission agent who transacted the company's business
in such town, in an office for which the company paid him rent,
did not “*earry on business'” in that town within the meaning of
the County Court Aet.

The defendants rely on these cases as shewing that the County
Conrt at Vancouver has not jurisdiction to deal with this case.
The plaintiff points to the general words of the Companies Act,
and elaims that as the attorney is to aceept process, the Van-
couver County Court has jurisdiction.

The general rule which lies at the root of all international and
most domestie jurisprudence on this matter is that the plaintitf
must sue in the Court to which the defendant is subject at the
time of the suit, All jurisdiction is territorial. Territorial jur-
isdiction attaches with special exceptions upon all persons either
permanently or temporarily resident within the territory while
they are in it.

It exists always as to land within the territory, and may be
exercised over moveables within the territory. And in question
of status or suecession governed by domicile, it may exist as to
persons domiciled, or who when living were domiciled within the
territory.

In a personal action, to which none of these causes of juris-
dietion apply, a judgment is not recognized by international law
(unless, of course, the defendant has submitted himself to the
Jurisdiction of the Court making such judgment,)

In those cases in which the Courts of one country recognise
the judgments of another country, the principle proceeded on is
this: That as the judgment of a (foreign) Court of competent
Jurisdietion imposes a duty or obligation on the defendant to pay
the sum for which judgment is given, the (home) Court will
enforee it

The question we have to determine is whether the compliance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1910, c¢h. 7, so as to
enable the defendants—a Dominion incorporated company, hav-
ing its head office in Manitoba—to carry on business in this Prov.
inee, makes the company a resident of this Provinee, so as to
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vive the Courts of this Province jurisdietion over the company
in respeet of a eause of action not relating to land or moveables
within the Provinee, nor conneeted with domieil,

Having regard to the aunthorities as to the meaning of the
words ““dwells or carries on business™ in the County Court Aet,
1905, this answer must depend on the provisions of the Com
panies Aet, 1910

I can find nothing in that Aet shewing it was the intention
to confer any extraordinary jurisdietion on the Courts, or to

make the company liable to process exeept in respeet of their
British Colnmbia business.  The aim and objeet of the statute
of 1910 was to provide by a system of licensing for the protee

tion of ereditors of the company in this Provinee, and to enable
the company to sue and be sued in respeet of husiness transacted
in this Province

If it were the intention to give the company power to he sued
in respect of any matters wholly unconnected with their British
Columbia business, say a mortgage held by the company on land
in Manitoba by a resident of Manitoba, one would expeet having
regard to the rales velatin
which 1 have already re
effect

o enforcement of foreign judements,
rred to, a very elear deelaration to that

I wonld allow the appeal.

MarmiN, J.A.:—T1 concur in the judgment of Macdonald
C.J.A.
GALLIHER, J AL 1T agree

Lppeal dismissed

LETSON v. “THE TULADL’

Exchequer Conrt of Canada, Rritish Columbia Admirvaliy District
Wartin, L. June 19, 1012

1. Apmigarry (§11—8 WARBANT FOR ARREST—AFFIDAVIT LEADING TO
ISSUING SAME—ADMIEALTY Rupe 490

A warrant for the arrest of a ship for

ssiedd by the deputy reg notwithstanding the affidavit there

for omitted the material allegations of the national character of the
ship and that the aid of t
(Admiralty Rules, Canada
pense with some of the
warrant, without disclosing his reason for so doing, and without lay

supplies furnished, may

» Court was pecessary, as, under Rule 29
1802), the registrar has wer fo dis
partienlars for the jssnanee of a

preseribe
ing his diseretion open to review

AN applieation by the owners of the defendant ship to dis
charge the warrant for its arrest

The motion was dismissed

W. J. Taylor, for the

A. D. Macfarlane, for plaintiff,

lefendant ship.

1012
PeEArimax
'
GREAT
West Livy
\SSURANCE

Irving, LA,

CAN.
Ex.t
1912

Tune 19

Statement




158

CAN.
Ex. (.
1912

LEtsoN
.

Torane”

Martin, LJ.

DoyiNion Law Reports, |4 D.LR.

MarTIN, Lo, :This is a motion, in an action in rem, for neces-
saries, to discharge the warrant for the arrest of the defendant
ship on the ground that the affidavit to lead to warrant does not
contain all the particulars required by Rules 35, 36, and 37, and
therefore, it is contended, the deputy distriet registrar at Van-
couver had no jurisdiction to issue the warrant. These rules
bear a close similarity to the corresponding English Rules, Ord.
v, rr. 16 and 17, but there is this important distinetion, viz. :
that while in England the power to dispense with ““all the re-
quired particulars’ is reserved for ““the Court or a Judge' in
this Court the registrar has the like power, Rule 39 ( Admiralty
Rules, Canada, 1892), providing that ;-

30, The rvegistrar, if he thinks fit, may issue a warrant, although
the affidavit does not contain all the preseribed particulars, and in
an action for bottomry, although the bond has not been produced, or
he may refuse to issue a warrant without the order of the Judge.
The affidavit here does not state the national character of
the ship, or that the aid of the Court is required ; the first omis-
sion is of importance, the latter is almost a matter of inference :
in other respeets | think it is sufficient. Were it not for Rule 39
I should have thought that as a whole there had not been a sub-
stantial compliance with the Rules, but I see no escape from the
fact that the registrar has for reasons which must be assumed
to be valid and which are not required to he diselosed on the
record, “‘thought fit”" to dispense with some of the preseribed
particulars and in such cireumstances I eannot pereeive in what
respect 1 am entitled to review the exercise of that diseretion
any more than I should be under the English Rule, 1 may say
that I have searched carefully for any decision which would
throw light on the subjeet, as it is of mueh practical import-
ance, but have been unable to find one,

The motion must be dismissed with costs payable to the plain-
tifl' in any event,
Motion dismissed.
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GOODCHILD v. SANDWICH WINDSOR AND AMHERSTBURG R. CO.

Ontario Court of Appeal, Moss, CJ1.0., Garvaw, Maclaren, Meredith, and
Magee, JJA. May 15, 1912,

1o AreEAL (§ VITL 2—476) —VERDICT OF JURY—DPERSONAL INJURIES SUS
TAINED BY BEING STRUCK BY STREET CAR.

A verdiet against a street railway company in favour of the plain
tiff for injuries sustained by being struck by a street ear will not he
disturbed where, from the evidence, the jury was justi in finding
that the car was negligently operated at excessive speed in erossing a
publie street at a dangerous point where the view was obstrueted
that the ntitl, who was driving a long waggon, exercised reasonable
care in approaching and endeavouring to eross the track, and took
reasonable eare to save himself from injury, and that the motorman
in charge of the car had time to avoid the accident after he beeame
aware that the plaintiff intended to eross the track,

Arpeal. by the defendants from an order of a Divisional
Court affirming a judgment entered at the trial by Bovyp, (., in
favour of the plaintiff, upon the answers of a jury to the ques-
tions submitted to them, in an action to recover damages for
personal injuries to the plaintiftt and the death of one horse and
injuries to another and to the plaintiff’'s waggon, oceasioned hy
the negligence of the defendants’ servants in the operation u'l'
one of their street-cars.

The appeal was dismissed.

D. L. McCarthy, K.C., and W. G, Bartletf, for the defendants,

J. H. Rodd, for the plaintift,

Moss, (1.0, :—The plaintiff, while driving south on Me-
Dougall street, in the eity of Windsor, and erossing the track of
the defendants’ railway upon Wyandotte street, at the intersec-
tion of the two streets, was struck by a ear proceeding east, with
the result above stated.

The jury found that the injuries were caused hy the de-
fendants’ negligenee; that the negligence was in the motorman
not having his ear under control; that the plaintiff took reason-
able care in approaching and endeavouring to cross the track;
that the plaintiff took reasonable eare to save himself from in-
jury: that the motorman had time to avoid the collision after
he became aware that the plaintiff intended to cross the track:
that the plaintiff had not time to turn away from the track or to
stop the team after he had an opportunity of seeing the coming
car: and that the defendants were to blame for the aceident; and
they assessed the damages at $1,910. No complaint is made as
to the amount of damages.

If the evidence warrants these findings, the judgment should
stand, beyond question.

The case was submitted to the jury in a charge to which
no exception was taken, directing the jury 's attention specially,
in a manner quite favourable to the defendants, to the plain-
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tiff's conduet, as detailed in the testimony, in approaching the
crossing and in Jooking out for ears coming either way upon the
track and as to the duties and responsibility of the motorman in
nearing a crossing,

There was a conflict of evidence as to whether the gong was
sounded, but the jury have not found against the defendants in
that respect,

There was also a conflict of testimony as to the speed at
which the car was going when nearing the crossing. The motor-
man and conduetor swore that it did not exceed 7 or 8 miles
an hour, while others placed the speed at a much higher rate;
one witness, Sloake, who said he had been a street-car man at
one time, placing it as high as 20 miles an hour. The jury’s
finding that the motorman had not his car under control implies
that they were of the opinion that the speed was greater than
was proper when approaching a crossing.

The motorman admitted that the crossing is a dangerous
one, *‘one of the worst™ on the whole ronte. His answers on this
point are as follows :—

Q. This is a.dangerous erossing? A. Yes.

Q. And you know that yon have to take extra precaution at
this point? A, Yes.

Q. Perhaps the most dangerous crossing on your whole
route, is it not? A, It is one of the worst,

“Q. One of the most dangerous? A. Yes, that is, on that
side—when you are going east.

Q. And it is pretty dangerous when you are coming west?
A. Yes—it is worst when you are going east.

““Q. Because the other building is a little further back? A.
Yes.”

The building referred to is a barber’s shop on the north-west
corner of MeDoungall and Wyandotte streets, which obseures the
view of any one going south on MeDougall street, and prevents
him seeing a car approaching from the west on Wyandotte street.
In this instance the car was coming from the west, going east,
The motorman, therefore, should have recognised what he well
understood—the necessity of proceeding with great cantion.

The plaintiff was seated in a waggon, with a long reach, and
wonld not be able to get a clear view along Wyandotte street to
the west until his body had cleared the harber’s shop. There
are obstructions to the vision in the shape of a telephone pole
and some trees,

He said he looked to the west just as he was coming to the
front of the barber’s shop, but could not see very far, and he
neither saw a ear nor heard a gong. He then looked to the east,
where he had a elear view, and, seeing nothing, drove on. When
the horses were on the north rail of the track, he saw the ecar,
and, before he could do anything, they were struck,

- o

P )
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The motorman said that he saw the plaintiff when the car
was about 70 or 80 feet from the centre of the erossing, and he
thought that the plaintiff did not realise what was going on.

| The motorman did not then prepare to stop the car, but con-
tented himself with taking up some of the slack of the brake,
and it was not until he was within 10 feet of the horses that he
reversed, too late to avert the eollision.
v There was a conflict as to the distance the plaintiff and his
i waggon were carried after the collision. The jury evidently
credited the witnesses who swore that the car went across Me-
Dougall street and some distance beyond hefore it came to a
stop, thus shewing that the speed must have heen mueh greater
than the motorman and the eonductor put it at.

If the motorman had had the ear under control, there is very
little reason to doubt that, when he saw the plaintiff and became
aware that he did not realise the situation, he conld have stopped
in time to avert the collision.

The jury might well have thought that the plaintiff should
have exercised more eaution when approaching this dangerous
- crossing; but there is evidence upon which they could reason-

ably find as they did, and it was for them to say. Bat, even if
they had taken an adverse view to the plaintiff upon that ques-
tion, they could well find as they did that the motorman had

. sufficient time to avoid the collision after he became aware of
the plaintiff’s intention to eross, and that he did not appear to
realise the situation,

The appeal must be dismissed with costs.

Garrow, J.A., concurred.

MacragreN, J.A., concurred,

Megeprrir, J.A.:—No reasonable man could find that the
plaintift was not guilty of negligence; he looked when looking
was useless; but he failed entirely to take any such precaution
when, if taken, it should have saved altogether this lamentable
accident.

$ But the jury have found that, notwithstanding such negli-
genee the defendants might, exercising ordinary ecare, have

’ saved the situation; and, therefore, if there be any reasonable

evidence to support that finding, the verdiet must stand.
There was evidence that the motorman took no effective
means to stop the ear, although it was said to be going at an
. excessive rate of speed, until the ear was only a little more than
five feet from the horses: if that, or anything like it, be true,

the finding eannot reasonably be found fault with,

The car was going much faster than the horses, if some of
the testimony be true, five times faster, so that, at a distance

) 11—4 nLn.
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much greater than anything like five feet the imminent danger
of the plaintiff must have been very apparent, and the motor-
man testified that he saw the horses and waggon from the first,
and that he realized the danger when 70 or 80 feet away; in
the presence of such imminent danger—when it became evident
~—the failure to take ‘‘emergency’’ steps to stop the car was
negligent, very negligent ; it may very well be that if such steps
had been taken the accident would have been avoided; or even
if collision were wholly unavoidable it might have been harw-
less, or almost so.  1f wrong is done, the doing of it rests upon
the jury, who are the sole judges of the faets regarding which
the testimony is such that reasonable men might find as they
have found. The appeal must be dismissed.

Mageg, J.A., concurred with the Chief Justice.

Appeal dismissed.

RIOUX v. PROULX et al.

Quebee Court of Review, Tellier, Delorimier, and Dunlop, JJ.
February 9, 1012,

1. Costs (§ 1T—30)—RIGHT OF ADVOCATE TO SUE ON BOND GIVEN AS SECUR-
1TY FOR COSTS—(UEBEC PRACTICE.

A judgment dismissing an action with costs grants an advocate dis-
traction of his costs for defending the suit, and vests him with owner-
ship of his bill of costs so as to permit him to maintain an action in
his own name on a security bond given by the plaintiff in the former
action notwithstanding it ran in favour of the defendant therein,
under the laws of Quebec provinee,

[Millette v. Gibson, 17 R.L. 600, specially referred to.)

ArpeaL from the decision of the Superior Court dismissing
the action brought by an advoeate in his own name upon a secur-
ity bond given for his client’s costs,

Ewile Rioux, for appellant; E. F. Surveyer, K.C., counsel.

Campbell & Gendron, for respondents.

Duxvor, J.:—The plaintiff appeals from the decision of the
Superior Court at Sherbrooke, Globensky, J., rendered on June
30, 1911, dismissing plaintifi’s action with costs. The facts are
very simple and there is only a question of law in issuc.

Plaintiff is an advocate practicing in the district of St.
Francis. He acted for a man named Antonio Tanguay, in a
case brought against the said Tanguay by one Charles Proul,
domiciled in the United States. Security for costs was demanded
and respondents became security for the said Charles Proulx
under a security bond. The action of Proulx was dismissed and
the condemnation not having been paid, the present plaintiff
sued the securities for the amount of his bill of costs. To this
action the respondents pleaded that they are not indebted to the
present plaintiff.

v
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The judgment in the Court helow dismissed the action of the
plaintiff herein on the ground that the bond had not been given
in favour of plaintiff, but in favour of a man named Antonio
Tanguay ; that distraction of costs does not operate as a subroga-
tion and transfer in favour of the advoeate; that the defendants
have not been paid in the case where the security has been given;
and that there does not exist any lien de droit between them and
appellant,

The plaintiff submits that this judgment is unfounded in
law and should be set aside, The question at issue is: What is
the extent of the distraction of costs granted to the advoeate?

The security given by respondents reads as follows: “*They
acknowledge themeselves jointly and severally to owe and to be
indebted to the defendant in the sum of $200 to be levied of their
and each of their goods, chattels, lands, and tenements, to the
use of the defendant, his heirs and assigns,

This undertaking . . . is made under the following reso-
lIutory condition :

“The condition of the above written recognizance is such,
that if the plaintiff shall not fail . . . in this action, or if
the plaintiff do pay to the defendant all costs that may be
awarded to the defendant, then the above recognizance shall be
null and void; but if otherwise to be and remain in full foree
and virtue.”

The pretension of the respondents is that Antonio Tanguay is
the only person who has the right to sue them in virtue of the
bond.

This appears to me to reverse all the well-known doctrines in
matters of distraction of costs. The distraction of costs has been
established to give to the advoeate a plain right, a debt, a eréance
for the amount of his taxed costs. Article 553 of the Code of
Procedure reads: ‘“‘Every econdemnation to costs involves, by
the operation of law, distraction in favour of the attorney of
the party to whom they are awarded.”

The attorney is the owner of his costs and the party to the
suit cannot execute for them in his own name without the con-
sent of the attorney (C.P. 5533).

The pretension of the respondents is manifestly contrary to
equity and equally contrary to the jurisprudence. Reference
might be made to different authorities in plaintift’s factum, all
of which establish that the attorney to whom distraction of costs
is granted has the right to sue for his bill of costs.

It is not correct to say that the plaintiff was not a party to
the case of Proulz v. Tanguay.

In the case of Millette v. Gibson, 17 R.L. 600, the Court of
Appeal refused to a party the right to execute a judgment for
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QUE. costs in his own name for which the advoeate had obtained dis-
R traction of costs, 1 would refer to the authorities eited in the
1912 note.  See also Pothier (Budnet edition) vol. 5, Mandat, No.
— 135.

torx

i I am of the opinion that the effect of the judgment dismissing
Protrs,  the action with costs in which the present defendants were seeur-
ity for costs, was to grant the present plaintiff distraction of his
costs of defending the said action and vested and seized with
the ownership of his bill of costs, giving him the right to issue
execution for said bill of costs in his own name, and also, if
necessary to sue the present defendants on their security bond
as he has done,

I am of the opinion that there is error in the judgment of the
Superior Court and that the aetion was properly brought in
the name of plaintiff; and that the judgment of the Superior
Court should be reversed, and the defendants’ plea rejected,
and the plaintifi's action maintained; and that defendants be
Jjointly and severally adjndged and condemned to pay plaintiff
the sum sued for, to wit, $155.98 with interest and costs in
hoth Courts.

Dunlop, J.

Appeal allowed.

ONT. DUBE v. MANN,

H.C.J. Ontario High Court.  Trial before Suthevland, J.  July 4, 1912,
1912

July 4.

1. CoxtTRACT (§1D3—35)—SALE OF MINING CLAIMS—DEFINITENESS—
PAYMENT OF PURCHASE PRICE—DPOSSESSION,

An agreement concerning mining ¢laims i< a contract of sale and
purchase and not a mere option to purchase, which provided not for a
=small down payment, but for a eash payment of £20,000 and the pay-
ment of the balance of the purchase price, 215,000, in two cash instal-
ments within one year and that the vendors were to sell and the
purchaser was to purchase all the right, title and interest of the ven-
dors the mining elaims, it also appearing that the purchaser went
into iom and continued therein until after all the pure

wid, when he received from the vendors written documents
transferring to him all their right, title and interest in the claim.

2, CONTRACTS (§ 11 A—127)—CONSTRUCTION OF ABSOLUTE COVENANT—ToO
TAKE OUT SPECIFIED AMOUNT OF ORE—DPAYMENT OF ROYALTY,

Under an absolute covenant in a contract for the sale of mining

claims that the purchaser should pay a royalty at a specified rate for

each long ton of ore removed from the elaims, the amount to he re-

moved from the elaims in each year to e not less than a specitied amount

of long tons and that the said royalty at snch rate should be paid on

such number of tons annnally at least, whether that amount should be

tually removed or not, the fact that no merchantable ore was found
in the ¢laims will not relieve the purchaser from the royalty

[Palmer v, Wallbridge (1888), 15 Can. S.C.R. 650, applied; Leake

on Contracts, Gth ed,, 490, specially referred to.]

Statement Acriox for the first instalment of a royalty, $9,750, under an
agreement in writing dated the 8th April, 1908,

By the agreement, the plaintiffs agreed to sell to the defend-
ant, and the defendant to purchase from the plaintifis, all their
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right, title, and interest in certain mining claims, in consider-
ation of the payment of a royalty and $35,000 in cash.

The provision as to the royalty was in part as follows: ** The
rovalty . . . shall commence immediately upon the expir-
ation of two years from the day of the date hereof, and shall be
at the rate of 15 cents for each long ton (2,240 Ibs.) of ore re-
moved from the said locations, the amount to be removed from
the locations in each year to be not less than 65,000 of such long
tons, and the said royalty of 15 eents per long ton shall be paid
on 65,000 lons tons per annum at least, whether that amount
shall be actually removed or not, and such royalty shall be pay-
able annually on the 8th day of April, in each year.

The %£35,000 was paid by the defendant, and the elaims were
transferred to him

The first instalment of royalty, $9,750, being 15 cents per
ton on 65,000 tons, came due, as the plaintift alleged, on the Sth
April, 1911, and was not paid by the defendants

This action was begun on the 29th May, 1911, Under an
order made by Crure, J., in the course of the action, upon con-
sent, the sum of #34,750 was paid into Court by the defendant
The order provided that this sum should, upon the termination
of the litigation, be paid out, with acerued interest thereon, to
the successful party or parties, and thereupon all parties should

be discharged and released from all the terms and conditions of
the agreement of the 8th April, 1908,

k. McKay, K.C., for the plaintifis,
Leighton McCarthy, K.C., for the defendant

SuTHERLAND, J. (after setting out the agreement and stating
the facts at length and quoting portions of the evidenee) :—In his
statement of defence, the defendant avers that he was indueed to
exeeute the contract in question by the fraud and misrepre-
sentation of the plaintifi's, and that the plaintifi's, or one of them,
fraudulently represented to him, knowing the same to be un-
true, that there were upon the mining claims in question large

quantities of merchantable iron ore, and that the said claims
were capable of producing at least 65,000 tons, long tons, of such
merchantable iron ore per annum, whereas the claims had not
thereon nor were eapable of producing iron ore in any merchant-
able quantities whatever.

No evidence was addueed at the trial from which T could
find that any fraudulent representations were made to the de-
fendant by the plaintiffs. The fact of the matter was, that the
defendant was in just as good a position, through his agent,
Harris, and the knowledge he had obtained from him, as the
plaintiffs, about the character of the properties in question and
their possibilities.
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The defendant also alleges ‘‘that the basis of the agreement,
and particularly paragraph 3 thereof, was, that it was possible
to work, raise, and remove from the mining claims in question
not less than 65,000 long tons of merchantable iron ore per
annum, and that the true intent and meaning of the parties,
which was set up or intended to be set up in the agreement, was,
that a royalty of 15 cents should be paid on every long ton
worked, raised, and removed’’ from the mining claims, ‘‘provid-
ing that an average quantity of not less than 65,000 of such
long tons should be removed from the said mining claims or
locations every year, or the said royalty should be payable on
that quantity, when weighed at the mine’s mouth, whether that
quantity should be actually removed from the said claims or
loeations or not.”’

He also further says ‘‘that, notwithstanding the expenditure
of upwards of $75,000, the employment of competent mining ex-
perts, and the use of the most improved methods of mining and
the best machinery, no merchantable iron ore whatever can be
diseovered upon the said mining elaims, and that it is impossible
to remove 65,000 long tons, or any commercial quantity what-
ever, of merchantable ore,”

He further alleges that the ‘‘plaintiffs are not entitled to
recover a royalty upon ore that does not and never did exist, and
which, therefore, cannot be removed.”’

He further ‘‘submits that there has been entire failure of
consideration for the alleged agreement, and the payments made
by him to the plaintiffs in connection therewith.””

By way of counterclaim, he asks that the agreement shall
be deelared null and void and of no force or effect, and for ree
payment of the sum of $35,000 paid by him to the plaintiffs,
and an order declaring that the true intent and meaning of the
parties to the agreement was as set out in paragraph 4 of the
statement of defence, and that, if the Court should deem neces-
sary, it should order the agreement to be rectified so as to make
it embody the real intention of the parties.

In view of the faet that, in place of providing for a small
down-payment, as is usual in the case of an option, and as had
been the ease in the agreements in the form of options which had
previously been entered into between the parties, the contract
in question provided fora cash payment of $20,000 and the pay-
ment of the two remaining cash instalments within one year,
and that the purchaser assumed to go into possession and con-
tinued in possession until after all the purchase-money was paid,
and thereupon received from the vendors written documents
transferring all their right, title, and interest in the respective
unpatented mining claims in question, and in view of the form
of the agreement itself, which provided that the vendors were to
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sell and the purchaser to purchase all the right, title, and inter-
est of the vendors in each of the mining elaims, I have come to
the eonclusion that the document must be considered and treat-
ed as a sale and purchase, and not as a mere option,

On the purchaser obtaining the documents transferring the
title of the vendors to him, he became and was the owner of the

claims, subject to the payment of the royalty as mentioned in
the agreement in question, and which was also referred to in the
documents of transfer as follows: *“The royalty hereinbefore
referred to as being hereby expressly reserved and excepted
from this transfer is the royalty agreed upon in the agrecment
dated the sth day of April, A.D. 1908 . which royalty

is to be paid on 65,000 such tons per annum at least from the
said group and on more if more be removed, but the royalty is
subject to be purehased by the owners of the properties at any
time as to payments not overdue at the time of such purchase,
for the sum of $25,000 cash.’™

[

The covenant on the part of the defendant is a definite and
eertain one, viz,, that **the amount to be removed from the loea-
tions i cach vear'™ is “*to be not less than 65,000 of such long
1l he
paid on 65,000 long tons per annum  at least, whether that
amount shall be actually removed or not, and sueh royalty
shall be paid annually on the Sth day of April in each year.”

tons, and the said royalty of 15 cents per long ton s!

The purchaser also provided for his own protection, by the
alteration made by his own solicitor in the contract as originally
drafted, that “‘shipments in excess of 65,000 tons in any year
shall, to the extent of such exeess, be eredited in reduetion of
shortages in any subsequent year or years.”

There is another term of the contract, also, which was for
his speeial protection and advantage, which is as follows: *‘ Pro-
vided, also, that the purchaser shall have the right, at any time,
to purchase such royalty from the vendors for the sum of
$25,000 eash.”” He took upon himself, under the terms of the
contract, ‘‘the burden of quantity and failure.”’

I think the case of Palmer v. Wallbridge (1888), 15 Can.
S.C.R. 650, has much application. It was there held ‘“that the
lease contained an absolute covenant by the lessee to pay the rent
in any event; and, not having terminated the lease under the
above proviso, he was not relieved from such payment in conse-
quence of ore not being found in paying quantities.”” Iere, too,
there is an absolute covenant to take out a named quantity of ore
and pay a definite amount of royalty thereon. IHere, too, there
is a clause permitting the purchaser to put an end to the royalty
by payment of a lump sum in lien thereof: Phillips v. Jones
(1839), 9 Sim. 519; Marquis of Bute v. Thompson (1844), 14
M. & W. 487; Mellers v. Duke of Devonshire (1 , 16 Beav.
252; Lord Clifford v. Watts (1870), L.R. 5 C.P. 577; Gowan v.
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Christie (1873), L.R. s App. 2735 Battle v. Willox (1908),
10 Can. S.C.R. lélﬁ‘ ulul ].vnke on Contraets, 6th (Can.) ed.
(1912), p. 490,

The plaintiff's will, therefore, have judgment for the sum of
$34,750, with interest, paid into Court under the order of Clute,
J., as aforesaid, together with subsequent interest, and all parties
to be otherwise discharged and released from the terms and con-
ditions of the agreement in question, The plaintiffs will also
have their costs of suit.

Judgment for plaintifis,

HASTINGS v. DUNBAR.
DAVIES v. DUNBAR.

Naskatchewan Supreme Court, Newlands, J. February 9, 1912,

1. Costs (§11—28) —SCALE 0F COSTS—VERDICT FOR NOMINAL SUM—RULES
oF CoURT.

Where the jury has given a verdict for a nominal sum only, the
Court will not, under ordinary circumstances, interfere by npo.cnll
order to raise the seale of cosis ulmh would be applicable to such
verdiet under general rules of Court.

Morions by hoth parties to dispose of the question of costs
after the trial of the actions before Newlands, J., with a jury,
and verdiets for nominal amounts,

J. A, Allan and N. J. Lockhart, for the plaintiffs,
C. E. D. Wood and W. J. Perkins, for the defendant.

NEWLANDS, J.:—In these cases I make no order as to costs,
and the costs will therefore follow the event and be taxed under
rule 95 of the consolidated rules of the Supreme Court, now
rule 721* of the rules of Court. Rule 95 applied to all cases in
the Supreme Court, and provided that, unless the plaintiff re-
covered more than 200, his costs should be taxed on the lower
scale of the Supreme Court tariff, unless the Judge otherwise
ordered,

“Rule 721 of the Saskatchewan Rules of Court, 1911, is as follows:—

In actions in which the plaintiff recovers, by judgment or otherwise, a
sum. (exclusive of costs) not exceeding $500, he shall be entitled to no
more eosts than he would have been entitled to had he brought his action
in a District Court, unless the Court or a Judge otherwise orders, and
unless the Court or Judge shall otherwise order, the defendant. shall be
entitled to tax his costs of defence, and so much thereof as exceed the tax-
able costs of defence, which would have been incurred had the proceedings
been had in the District Court shall, on entering judgment, be set off and
allowed by the loeal registrar against the plaintifl’s costs to be taxed, or
against such costs and the amount of the judgment, if it be necessary; and,
if the amount of the costs to be set off exceeds the amount of the plum(nﬂ"a
judgment and taxed costs, the defendant shall be entitled to judgment for
the excess against the intiff; but, where a defendant in any such action
becomes entitled to tax costs against the plaintiff, such defendant shall
e entitled to costs on the Supreme Court scale. (C.R. 95.)
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The jury having given a nominal amount in each of these
cases, 1 see no reason why 1 should make an order in the plain-
tiffs” favour as to costs; on the other hand, I see no reason why
the defendants should have a set-off of costs, there being no
merits on their side. There will, therefore, be no set-off, the
plaintiffs” costs being taxed on the lower scale.

I am deciding this question under this rule as it was before
the 1st January, its application being changed since that date.

Ovrder accordingly.

GREER v. GREER.
Outario High Court, Middleton, J.  Janwary 23, 1912

Lo S1ay oF PROCEEDINGS (§T1--21) - PENDING LITIGATION IN A FOREIGN
COUNTRY,

An action in Ontario by the personal representative of a deceased

person for an aceounting against a person alleged to be indebted to

t of foreign lands held in trust, will not necessarily

he stayved beeau action pending in the foreign jurisdietion

brought by the veneficiaries against the same defendant to declare the

the estate in res

trusts
2, PLEApING (§ 1 S—140) —STRIKING OUT—ABSENCE OF QUALIFICATION TO
MAINTAIN—CON, RULe (Ox1,) 261,
A statement of elaim will not be struck out under Con. Rule 261
(C.R. (Ont.) 1807), on the ground that the plaintiff was not quali
fied to maintain the action unless the lack of qualification appears
from the pleading itself.

A yortiox by the defendant A, B. Greer to stay this action
pending the trial of an action in Arkansas; and, in the alter-
native, for an order striking out paragraphs 9¢ and 9d of the
statement of claim, on the ground that, acecording to the law of
Arkansas, the plaintiff had no right to maintain this action.

The application was dismissed.

I. Bayly, K.C.,, for the applicant.

G. N. Weekes, for the plaintiff.

T. G. Meredith, K.C., for the B. W. Greer estate

J. B, MeKillop, for W. I, Wigmore,

MippLeToN, J.:—The allegations in the statement of elaim,
so far as now material, are that certain lands in Arkansas were
held by the late B. W. Greer in trust for the late J. . Greer
and A. B. Greer. Some of these lands were sold, and the pro-
ceeds were received by B. W. Greer and deposited in the bank
account of the firm of which he and Wigmore were partners.
The unsold lands were conveyed to A. B. Wigmore in trust.

The executor of J. H. Greer now seeks an account and pay-
ment,

The action in the Arkansas Court is not by the same plain-
tiff—the beneficiaries under the will of J. H. Greer, claiming as
his heirs, allege the trust and ask that it may be deelared.
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The question of law suggested is this. J. H. Greer, domiciled
in Ontario, by his will appointed M. A, Greer and M. IL. Greer
his executors, and devised his property, real and personal, to
them in trast. M. I Greer renounced, and probate issued to
M. A, Greer alone.  This probate has been recognised by the
Arkansas Courts. M. H. Greer disclaimed as trustee, and re-
fused to act. It is said that, according to the law of Arkansas,
where the land is, when one of two trustees disclaims, the land
does not vest in the other. The affidavit is not candid, because
it does not go on to explain what should be done. I would in-
fer that a new trustee to take the place of the disclaiming trustee
should be appointed.

I cannot sce what this has to do with either action. The
land is vested in A. B. Greer, and it is asked that he be declared
a trustee.

So far as accounting is concerned, the Court here is by no
means impotent; and, il necessary, a new trustee can be ap-
pointed, so that the defendants ean he adequately protected.

So far from being any reason for the staying of the action,
the ground suggested is so flimsy and dilatory merely, that it
affords the strongest reason for allowing the action to proceed.

The motion against the statement of claim, as pointed out
on the argument, is misconceived, because the Rules® only con-
template a motion based on the pleading itself; but, quite apart
from that, what has been said indicates that this may be found
to be no defenee at all. 1 do not determine this, as much clearer
evidence as to the law of Arkansas must be given.

Motion dismissed. Costs to the plaintiff in any event,

Motion dismissed.

*Ontario Rule (C.R. 1007), is as follows:—

261. A Judge of the High Court may order any pleading to be struck
out on the ground that it discloses no reasonable cause of action or answer,
and in any such case, or in case of the action or defence being shewn by
the pleadings to be frivolous or vexatious, may order the action to be
stayed or dismissed, or judgment to be entered accordingly, as may be
just,

Re WATSON and ORDER OF CANADIAN HOME CIRCLES.

Ontario High Court, Kelly, J., in Chambers. July 16, 1012,

1 Instrasce (§1V B—170) —CHANGE OF BENEFICIARY—MUTUAL INSUR-
ANCE ASSOCIATION—2 Gro, V. cu, 33, sec, 170,

Under section 160, of chapter 203, of Insurance Aect, R.S.0. 1807

(now 2 Geo, V. ch. 33, see. 179), the beneficiaries named in a certifi-

cate of insurance issued by a mutual insurance association may be

changed by a provision of a will which describes the certificate only

by stating the amount thereof, and giving the name of the association
that issued it.

IRPE. 4
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ApPLICATION by the exeeutor of the will of Catharine . M.
Watson for an order determining the disposition to be made of

certain insurance moneys,
James Fraser, for the executor,
J. E. Jones, for the Order of Canadian Home Cirveles.
F. W, Harcourt, K.C., for the infants.

Kerry, J.:—On the 13th February, 1893, the Order of Can
adian Home Cireles issued a beneficiary certificate to Catharine
Ann Minerva Watson for 1,000, made payable on her death
as follows: $500 to her hushand Daniel Webster Watson; and
$500 to her son Richard J. T. Watson.

On the 30th December, 1911, Catharine A. M. Watson made
her will, and she died on the Hth January, 1912, The will con-
tains this provision: **My Home Cirele policy for £1,000 to be
divided as follows: to my daughter Margaret Minerva Watson,
#500; the balanee of $500, in equal shares to my husband, Daniel
Webster Watson, my son James Richard Watson and my son
Daniel Ross Watson,”’

The question to be decided is: does the will alter the appor

tionment of the moneys represented by the certificate, or alter

or vary the certificate as to beneficiaries?

Seetion 160 of the Insurance Act, R.S.0. 1897 ch, 203.* pro
vides that ‘“the assured may, by an instrument in writing
attached to or endorsed on or identifying the policy
by its number or otherwise, vary a policy previously
made, so as to restrict or extend, transfer or limit, the benefits
A and may, from time to time, by instrument in writing
attached to or endorsed on the poliey, or referring to the same,
alter the apportionment as he deems proper; he may also, by
his will, make or alter the apportionment of the insurance
money . . . and whatever the assured may, under this see-
tion, do by an instrument in writing attached to or endorsed on
or identifying the policy, or a particular policy or policies, by
number or otherwise, he may also do by a will identifying the
policy or a particular policy or policies by number or other-

T
wise.

Does, then, the will in this case identify the policy (or
certificate) in such a manner as to satisfy the requirements of
sec, 1607

The question of identification was considered in Ke Coch-
rane, 16 O.L.R. 328, a judgment of a Divisional Court ; at p. 332,
the Chancellor said that identification of a policy by its num-

*The Insurance Aet has been consolidated and amended by 2 Geo, V., ch,
33; section 160 referred to, as amended, is now section 179 in the new Act,
and by 2 Geo. V. ch. 33, sec. 247, it was enacted that this new section
was to come into foree on August 1, 1912,
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ber “‘or otherwise’ would include reference by date and
amount and other means of incorporating one document with
another,

Here we have identification by the name of the Order or
body which issued the certificate and the amount of the certi-
ficate, and 1 know of no better means of identification by an
instrument not attached to or endorsed upon a policy, unless
it be in cases where the identification is by the date of the certi-
ficate as well. .

My view is, that a change as to the beneficiaries and an alter-
ing of the apportionment of the moneys has been effected, and
that the moneys represented by this certificate are to be divided
as directed by the will.

The shares of these moneys to which the infants are entitled
will be paid into Court, to be paid out to them as they respect-
ively come of age. Costs of all parties to be paid out of the

fund.

Ovrder for payment into Court.

GOLDSTEIN AND CREEHAN v. VANCOUVER TIMBER AND
TRADING CO.

British Columbia Court of Appeal, Maecdonald, C.J.A., Irving and
Martin, JJ. A, June 4, 1912,

1. CORPORATIONS AND COMPANIES (§ VI D—339) —PROCEEDING BEGUN PRIOR
T0 LIQUIDATION—EX PARTE APPLICATION—B.C, RuLe 971
Permission to carry on a proceeding begun hy a company, may be
granted the liquidator thereof under Order XVII. on an ex parte appli-
cation, without the month’s notice required by Rule 973 of the B.C.
Court Rules, 1900,

AN appeal by defendants from order of Murphy, J., granting
the application cr parte for the earrying on of the proceedings
by the plaintift Crechan.

The appeal was dismissed.

W. 0. Macdonald, K.C., for appellants,

C. W. Craig and W. €. Brown, for respondent.

Macpoxarp, C.J.A.:—1 think the appeal shonld be dismissed.

IrvING, J.A. :—In a note to Ovder LIV, p. 771, Y.P. 1912, it
is said that an application under Order XVIL may be made
cx parte in the King’s Beneh division. Under a note in Order
XVIL, p. 206, the same thing is said, and a reference is given
to Chitty's Forms, No. 515, where a form of affidavit is given.
In the Chancery division the order is usually obtained on a
petition of course—an ex parte proceeding,

Seton on Decrees (1801), vol. 1, p. 101, gives the form of
the order. This states the last material proceeding in the action,

-
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and the subsequent events causing the abatement and consequent
devolution of interest,

I am of opinion that Murphy, J., had jurisdiction to make
exr parte the order for the carrying on of the proceedings by
Creehan, and withont the month’s notice preseribed by Rule 973.°

The amendment made to the style of canse could not he made
cx parte. That was a proceeding within the Rule 973 and required
notice, hut as Murphy, J., corrected that mistake on the 4th
December, with costs to the suecessful party, 1 think the appel
lant has nothing to complain of,

I would dismiss the appeal.

The material before us does not shew whether the proper
way to proceed is by nse of the liguidator’s name or the eom
pany’s name: Kent v, La Communanti des Sawurs de Charite de
la Providence, [1903] AC. 221, 225

MarriN, J.A.:—At the conclusion of the argnment T was of
the opinion that the appeal should be dismissed, and, as T under
stand it, the rest of the Court shared that view, the only ques
tion reserved heing the application to have some sort of special
clanse put in the order in favour of the unsuceessful appellant,
having regard to future proceedings. This was strongly objected
to by the respondents’ counsel, and T do not think that it is
necessary or desirable to make any other order than to dismiss
the appeal with costs

Appeal dismissed

Rule 973, B.C. Supreme Court Rulk s as follows:

“In any cause or matter in wl there has been no proceeding for
one vear from the last procceding had. the party who desires to proeceed
shall give a month's notice to the other party of his intention to proceed
A summons on which no order has been made shall not, but notice of trial
lthough countermanded, shall be deemed a proceeding within this rule.”

PRINGLE v, STRATFORD.
Ontario High Court, Riddell, J., in Chambers Way 20, 1012

1. Costs (8§14 INJUNCTION=—ARANDONMENT OF ACT PROPOSED TO RF
RESTRAINED,

Where the plaintiff, a ratepayer, upon being informed by an alder

man that a city council intended to ear

out an illegal agreement for

the exchange of land without submitting the agreement to the people

or passing a by-law in relation there
venting the carrving out snel ecement, the subsequent abandon
ment of the plan will not deprive the plaintiff of

», obtained an injunction pre

\is costs,

Arpear by the plaintiff from an order of the Loeal Master
at Stratford refusing to order the defendants to pay the plain-
tiff's costs of the action, upon a summary application by the
plaintiff,

The appeal was allowed,

Gorpsteiy &
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W. . Gregory, for the plaintiff,
(', A, Moss, for the defendants,

RippeLL, J.:—On the 20th March, 1912, a proposition was
made to the eity conneil of Stratford that the city corporation
should buy the property, land, buildings, and machinery of the
MeD. Thresher Company, for $2,000, and convey to that com-
pany a pareel of land in the eity. The proposition was referred
to a special committee, and the council met on the 25th March to
consider the report of the committee. The committee submitted
an agreement that the city corporation should convey to the
company the said land, in payment for which the company would
convey to the eity corporation the equity of redemption (sub-
jeet to a mortgage for $20,000) of the lands of the company,
and also the factory premises and plant. The council passed a
resolution at the meeting adopting the agreement.

An alderman of the eity informed the plaintiff, a ratepayer
of Stratford, that it was not the intention of the council to sub-
mit the agreement to the people or to pass any hy-law, but that
it was the intention to buy the land for transfer to the company
at once and carry ont the agreement forthwith, Thereupon the
plaintiff applied to the Local Judge at Stratford and obtained
an injunction, served notice of motion to continue the injune-
tion, took out an appointment to examine, ete.

Pending the motion, the city solicitor wrote the plaintiff’s
solicitor that the MeD, company had declined further to proceed
with the matter of the agreement—that the agreement had not
been executed and would not he executed. ““We assume, there-
fore, that you will not find it necessary to proceed further with
your injunction proceedings.””  The plaintiff’s solicitor then
replied, saying, amongst other things, “‘Our client must be
assured of his costs if you wish him to drop this at the present
juneture”'—whereupon the city solicitor said: ‘“When there is
nothing left to litigate about except costs, it is improper to pro-
ceed with the action. The question of costs can be determined.
if not agreed upon, in Chambers,”

The plaintiff moved for his costs before the Local Master
at Stratford, who did not allow costs to either party. Ie gave
leave to appeal; and the plaintiff now appeals.

The defendants file an affidavit upon the motion setting out
that no action was taken by the couneil except the passing of a
resolution adopting the agreement—but there is no denial of the
intention to proeeed forthwith with the illegal arrangement,
although it must have been the allegation of sueh intention
which influenced the Local Judge in granting the injunction
order, and although the plaintiff’s affidavit sets this up as the
reason for moving. It must be taken, then, that such was the
intention.
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It was argued that the plaintiff eried ont before he was hurt
—but where a council contemplates an illegal act, a motion for
an injunetion should be made at the carliest possible moment.
Had the plaintift delayed after receiving the information of the
council’s act and intention, he might well be found fault with if
he eame for relief after the council had expended money and
labour upon the scheme. Vigilantibus non dormientibus, et

The appeal will be allowed and the defendants directed to
pay the plaintiff’s costs of action, application to il
Master, and this appeal

Appeal al /
CRANE v. LAVOIE.
Manitoba Court of Appeal, Howell, CJM., Richards, Pe Cameron,
and Haggart, JJ.A. May 20, 1912
L. Bras axp xores (§VIC—160 DEFENCES—SIGNING NAME 0}
EXISTING  COMPANY—DESCRIPTIVE  Worps—DBints  or  Excuaxe
SEC
et that the defendants, who execu wte in t
non-existing con v, added esident and

I
ective personal
mpany is not suflicient

n under :
which relieves

» their re

the

from

m liability one

1 v manner indicating t
rin a repres
to the

he did so on
ntative capacity, the mere addition «

signer's name not being sufficient for that pur
Crane v. Lavoie, 19 W.LR. 580, aflirmed on appeal

]

2, Bruis axo Noves (§1B—5 VALIDITY-—SIGNATURE OF NON-EXISTING
COMPANY LIABILITY OF PARTIES SIGNING AS PRESIDENT OR MAN
AGER

Where a promissory note that was void
i tw

y added the words “pres
ective signatures thereto, such d
and the signers held individus » thereon under
~ of the 1s of Exchs Act, R.S.C. 1906, ch. 119, whic

quires that the “construction most favourable to the validity of
instrument shall be adopted.”

s 1o its purported make
and was si t

and “manag
rnations  will e

non-existent company, be
rsons

[ Fairehild v. Ferguson, 21 Can. S.C.R. 484, Watling v. Lewis, [1911]

1 Ch. 414, and Chapman v. Smethurst, [1900] 1 K.B. 027, specially
referred to.]

3. Evipexce (§ VI F—344a)—PAroL EVIDENCE

AS TO NEGOTIABLE INSTRU
MENTS,

may be shewn by parol ev
instrument ostensibly agents were in fact not acting for
any principal but for themselves, (Per Howell, C.JM.)

e that the persons who signed

4. Broes AxD NoTeS (§ 1 D—32)—PARTIES SIGNING AS PRESIDENT AND MAN-
AGER—WARRANTY OF EXISTENCE OF COMPANY,

Persons who sign a promissory note made ostensibly by a company,
as president and manager thereof, warrant that such company actually
exists. (Per Richards, and Perdue, JJ.A.)

STRATFORD
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3. CORPORATIONS AND COMPANIES (§ IV G 5—130)—PROMISSORY NOTE GIVEN
IN CORPORATE NAME PRIOR TO INCORPORATION—LIABILITY OF IN-
DIVIDUAL SIGNERS—IMPLIED WARRANTY.

Persons who sign a promissory note as president and manager of
a non-existing company are liable upon their implied warrant of its
actual existence for the full face value of such note. (Per Richards
and Perdue, JJ.A.)

[Thomson v, Feeley, 41 U.C. Q.B. 229 and Kelner v. Barter, LR,
2 0P 174, applied.]

6. Brees axp xores (§1 D 2—42) —CERTAINTY AS TO AMOUNT—LIABILITY
OF PARTIES TO NOTE,

The liability of persons who sign a promissory note as president
and manager of a non-existing company, thereby warranting the ex
istence of such compa s not to be asured by what the holder of
the note could have obtained after the subsequent incorporation of
the company upon the settlement of its afliairs in bankruptey. (Per
Richards, J.A.)

7. CORPORATION AND COMPANIES (§ IV D 4—00) —RATIFICATION BY COM-
raxy—Norr NED BY PRESIDENT AND MANAGER,

After the incorporation of a eompany the personal liability of the
signatories to n promissory note executed in the company’s name by
persons purporting to be the president and manager the reof and signed

v to the incorporation remains unaffected h\ the incorporation of
the company. (Per Richards, Perdue, and Cameron, JJ.A.)

8. Bris Axn Notes (§ 1 C—27)—CoNSIDERATION —FORBEARANCE To SUE,
Delay in enforcing a claim against co-partners and permitting them
to transfer the assets of the firm to a company formed. by them to
take over their business, is a sufficient consideration for a promis-
sory note to hold the makers liable, where the note was void as to the
company purporting to be its maker, which was executed by the co-
partners as president and manager thereof. (Per Perdue and Cam-
eron, JJA.)

ArpeaL from deeision of Robson, J., Crane v, Lavoir, 19 WL,
80, in favour of plaintiff,
The appeal was dismissed.

The judgment of Robson, J., appealed from was as follows :—

Ronsox, J.:—The plaintiffs set up that on or about the 10th
May, 1910, the defendants ¥. X. Lavoie and D. Fournier, pur-
porting to act as president and manager respectively of the
Fournier Company Limited, signed six promissory notes for
#200 each, payable to the plaintiffs dated the 10th May, 1910,
payable 4, 5, 6, and 7 months, respectively, after date, and
se similar note for £115.79, the notes being signed as

follows :—
Tue Fourxten Co. Lin,
F. X. Lavotx, President.
D. Fourxier, Manager.

The plaintifis also alleged that, at the time of the making
of the said notes, there was no such company; that the notes
were not paid at maturity, and still remain unpaid.

The defendants appeared separately, and delivered defences,
in which they denied the plaintiffs’ allegations and pleaded the
special matter now to be dealt with,

e
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A company named **The Fournier Company Limited” was
incorporated by letters patent of incorporation (Manitoba),
on the 2nd June, 1910, It was that company which the defen-
dants had in contemplation when they signed the notes sued
on. It is unnecessary to remark that that company could not
ratify these contracts or become liable for the indebtedness in
any way short of a new eontraet entered into by it: Natal Land
and Colonization Co. v. Pauline, cte., Syndicate, Limiled,
[1904] A.C. 120, So that, unless the defendants are in some way
liable, the making of the notes meant nothing, Whether, under
the eireumstances, the defendants are to be treated as makers of
the notes, or as having warranted the existence and capacity of
the company, makes, to my mind, little difference, on the sub-
stantial question of liability.

There is a class of eases where it was contended that per-
sonal liability was excluded by words indieating that the maker
was merely signing in the capacity of executor or administrator
or the like. In Story on Agency, 9th ed., this elass is referred
to as follows (paragraph 280) . —

Persons contracting as agents are, nevertheless, ordinarily, although,
as we shall presently see, not universally, held personally responsible,

where there is no other responsible principal to whom resort can be

had. Thus, for example, where a person s
of A, B.” he was held to be personally liable on the note, for he

ned a note “as guardian

could not make his ward personally liable therefor, nor his ward's
of A B,” he was
held personally liable on the note, for it was not primarily binding

assets,  So, where a person signed a note “as trustee

ned a note “as exeentor

on his cestui gue trust. So, where a person
of A. B,” or as “administrator of A. B.” it was held that he was
personally liable on the note, for such a note would not bind the
estate of the deceased, and to give it any validity it must be con-
strued to be a personal obligation of the maker. So, a bill of ex-
change accepted by A, “as administrator of B.” will bind B. per
sonally.
Paragraph 2
This whole docts
is capable of contracting and does contract in his own name, although

e proceeds upon the plain principle that he who

lie is the agent of another who is incapable of contracting, intends to
bind himself, since Jn no other way ecan the contract possess any

validity, but it would perish from its intrinsic

nfirmity.
Section 52 of the Bills of Exchange Act reads thus:.—

Where a person signs a bill as drawer, indorser or acceptor, and

adds words to his signature indicating that he signs for or on behalf
of a principal, or in a representative character, he is not personally
liable thereon; but the mere addition to his signature of words de-
scribing him as an agent, or as filling a representativ
not exempt him from personal liability,

(2) In determining whether a signature on a bill is that of the
principal or that of the agent by whose hand it is written, the con-
struction most favourable to the validity of the instrument shall be
adopted. '

character, does
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Mr. Justice Russcll, in Vis Commentary on the Aet, p. 176,

C A refers to a note of Mr. Justice Maclaren in his work, | Maclaren
1912 on Bills and Notes, 4th ed.|, **to the effect that it is in accord-
ance with the maxim ‘ut res magis valeal quam pereat,’ saying

CEANE that in many cases where an agent or officer has been held per-

Lavore,  sonally liable, it is quite evident that he did not intend to bind
wom= . himselt’ personally, and there has been a great deal to be said
in favour of his not being liable; but, inasmuch as he did not H
legally bind his prineipal or the company, as the case may be,
he has been eonsidered personally responsible, on the principle
laid down in the sub-section. )
These authorities seem to treat the person who assumes to o‘
qualify the obligation as in fact the maker. But in a case re-
ferred to in Russell | Russel!l’s Commentary on the Bills of Ex-
change Aet|, p. 173, and more like this, viz, West London Com-
mercial Bank v. Kitson, 13 Q.1B.D. 360, the liability is put on
the ground of warranty. Brett, M.R., said:—
The acceptance was in this form: “Accepted for and on behalf of
the B, and I Company, G. K., F. S. P, directors; B. W., secretary.”
The meaning of that is plain. It is that we accept as directors for
and on behalf of the company, so that any one who shall take the bill ‘

would assume that the company had power to accept it, and that

the defendants. as directors, were authorized hy the company to ac- '
cept it. That is what this acceptance meant, and it was so given -8
in order that the bill might be discounted. By whom was the hill
to be discounted? Surely not by the person who knew that the com
pany had no power to accept, and that the defendans had no auth
ority to do so for the company. The acceptance was meant to re-
present that the company had such power, and that the defendants
had such anthority, .

Bowen, L., at p. 362, said :—
What is the effect of their signatures as acceptors of this hill?
It is a representation that they had authority to sign as directors
on hehalf of the company: and, as they intended that the bill should
pass to third persons, they are bound to make it good.
It seems to me that this is the proper view from which to "
approach the present case. There is recent anthority for say-
ing that there may be an implied warranty of the existence of s
the prineipal, The action is not confined to cases of warranty
of authority from an existing prineipal. ¢
In Simmons v, “Liberal Opinion®’ Limited, In re Dunn,
[1911] 1 K.B. 966, a solicitor appeared and defended in an
action against a supposed incorporated company, whereas in \
fact there was no such corporation. The solicitor was held Y
liable to the plaintiffs for the costs of the abortive proceedings. !
This was on the ground of warranty of the existence of the
elient. No distinetion was made between the case where there
is a prineipal, but an absence of authority, and that where there
is in fact no principal,
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The statement of claim in the present case is so drawn that
the action may be treated from either of the two standpoints
mentioned.

Having got thus far, it is neeessary to consider the facts
more closely,  The defendant Fournier and one Laplante had
been doing business as plumbers.  They became indebted to the
plaintiffs in about $1.500.  Shortly before the notes in question
were given, Fournier and one Coté approached Thompson, the
countant of the plaintifts, and intimated, as the fact was,
that Coté, Lavoie, Fournier, and others, were about to form
the Fournier Company, and desired that the plaintifi's should
cept the obligations of that company to meet the account
against Laplante and Fournier. The plaintiffs agreed to that
course; and, shortly afterwurds and hefore the incorporation,
the plaintiffs received the notes.  The notes were signed by the
defendants and sent to the plaintiffs pursuant to the arrange-
ment mentioned,

It was contended by the defendants that the plaintiffs re-
served their rights against Laplante and Fournier, and that
the transaction did not amount to a novation; and, therefore,
there was no consideration for the notes. Even assuming
that there was no release of the plaintiffs’ rights against La-
plante and Fournier, there was. as appears from the evidence
of Coté and Fournier, a request for forbearance, in considera-
tion of the new obligations, and the forbearance in faet was
granted. It is my view that this was sufficient consideration.
There is high authority for this in the case of Crears v. Hunter,
19 Q.B.D. 341, The head-note suceinetly sets forth the facts and
the decision as follows: **For the purpose of induecing the plain-
tiff to give time to the defendant’s father for payment of a
debt, the defendant signed a promissory note whereby the de-
fendant’s father and the defendant jointly and severally pro-
mised to pay to the plaintiff the amount of the debt with in-
terest half-yearly at the rate of 5 per cent. per annum until the
amount was paid. The plaintiff having forborne to sue for
several yvears:—Held, that, the plaintifft having forborne from
suing the defendant’s father at the defendant’s request, there
was a good consideration fer the defendant’s liability on the
note, although there was no contract by the plaintiff to forbear
from suing.”

The defendants endeavour to meet the case of warranty hy
shewing that the plaintiffs knew, when they took the notes,
that the Fournier Company Limited had not heen incorporated ;
and Halbot v, Lens, [1901] 1 K.B. 344, was cited. 1 was asked
to infer this knowledge from certain facts. The meeting of
Coté, Fournier, and Thompson, the plaintiffs’ accountant, took
place apparently about the fith May. Coté told Thompson that
the company was not yet formed, but would be in a short time;
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that they would have a meeting as soon as possible, form the
company, and apply for a charter: that Thompson said that
would be all right: that Thompson expressed the wish to get
the notes promptly, in which Coté agreed, as he expected that
the company would be formed in a couple of days.

Any one would know that the ecompany’s notes could not he
got till it was formed. Thompson was told that it would be
but a couple of days till the company would be formed. Thomp-
son was not allowing the matter of the notes to drift, but asked
for them once or twice, perhaps several times. It may actually
have been because of his persistence, for which a business man
cannot be blamed, that notes dated the 10th were placed in his
hands on the 12th May.

As stated, the company was not formed till the 2nd June.
I cannot impute to Thompson a knowledge of the length of
time it takes to procure letters patent of incorporation. Not
only that, but, as far as I am aware, it would be no impossibility
for sueh incorporation to have taken place between the 6th and
the 10th May. The matter was more in the knowledge of the
defendants and their associates than in that of Thompson; and
he, representing the plaintiffs, would have the right to assume,
when he got the notes, that the incorporation had taken place.
I think there is no basis for inference that Thompson had know-
ledge that the company had not been incorporated when the
notes were sent to the plaintifl’s,

As a matter of fact, the plaintiffs, who, it was intended,
should rely on the notes, did rely on them. See West Lon-
don Commercial Bank v, Kitson, 13 Q.B.D. 360. They, as re-
quested, forbore their remedy against the firm of Laplante and
Fournier, whose assets meanwhile went into the company. The
plaintiffs never had a remedy against the company ; and, from
all appearances, unless the defendants are liable, the plaintiffs’
debt is virtually gone. To hold the defendant Lavoie person-
ally liable will, doubtless, b hard on him, but it cannot he said
that that is the plaintifi's’ fault.

The objection was taken at the trial that the notes were
not presented for payment according to their tenor. The de-
fence on the pleadings differs from that. The defendant Four-
nier pleads that the notes were not presented to him. The de-
fendant Lavoie pleads that payment has not been demanded
of him. The notes, in fact, purport to be payable at the North-
ern Crown Bank, St. Boniface.

The notes were not made by the Fournier Company. If
that company had been sued on them, it might possibly have
raised the objection for what it was worth. T fail to see any
obligation on the plaintiffs to present the notes in order to
recover against the defendants on a breach of warranty of
the existence of their pretended prineipal. If the defendants
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were being sued as indorsers or guarantors of the liability of
an existing debtor, the case might be different. But here the
supposed maker did not exist, and presentment would be futile,

If the defendants were to be treated as makers, as in
the instanees cited by Story [Story on Ageney, 9th ed.],
the objection might be open to them, if properly raised; but,
as already stated, it seems to me that tife proper basis on which
to consider the action is that of warranty of the existence of
the prineipal.

As against a maker it is not necessary, according to the
form of statement of claim authorized by the Rules in the
King’s Bench Aet, to allege presentment, It is left to the de-
fendant to raise the defence if he so desires. Here there is no
allegation by either defendant that the notes were not pre-
sented for payment at the place named therein,

On the whole, I think the defendants are liable to the plain-
tiff's.

The measure of damages was not diseussed, but T think
it must be taken to be the amount of the notes and interest.
I do not think any possible liability over of Laplante and Four-
nier to the plaintiffs can be taken into account. Their liability
was, according to the arrangement, to be suspended till the
notes should be eollected. The plaintiffs had a right to exhaust
their remedies in respeet of the notes. The faet that the Four
nier Company subsequently went into liquidation, apparently
on insolveney, does not affect the matter

There will be judgment for the plaintiffs for the amount
rulnrvs“llll‘ll h}' the seven notes mentioned in the statement of
elaim, with interest at 5 per eent. per annum from the maturity
thereof respectively. The plaintiffs to have their costs, includ-
ing examination for discovery.

The defendant appealed to the Court of Appeal.

Messrs, €. P, Wilson, K.C., and A. Dubue, for defendants,

G. H. Ross, for plaintiffs,

Howern, C.J L —Seetion 52 of the Code [The Bills of Ex-
change Aet, Canada] declares that where a person signs in such
a manner as to indicate that he was signing for or on behalf of
a principal, or in a representative capacity, he is not personally
liable, but the mere addition of words to his name alone does
not exempt him from liability. The notes in question begin
with **We promise,’”’ and are signed :—

The Fournier Co. Ltd,
T. A. Lawvoie, President,

D. Fournier, Manager.
It seems to me no one would ordinarily be deceived as to
what was apparently intended by this signature. It commences
with the name of a joint stock company, and this is verified by
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the signatures of the president and manager, just as is com
monly done in this country when a joint stock company makes
a note, and it would follow that the defendants are not liable
However, on proving the signatures it is shewn that when the
note was made, no such company existed and so, of course, there
was no president or manager of such company. 1If the defend
ants were president and manager respectively it was not of this
company at all cvents,

Sub-section 2 of the above mentioned section declares that in
determining whether the signature was that of the principal or
the agent ‘‘the construction most favourable to the validity of
the instrument shall be adopted.” Now, if we strike out the
first line of the signatures, which then was a myth, we have left
the individual names of the defendants, each with a mere addi
Esquire”” and if the defend
ants are held liable as makers of the note, the construction de

tion as meaningless in this case as '

manded by the sub-section is complied with.

No doubt the rule as to admitting parol evidence to vary the
liability of parties upon negotiable instruments is very striet
Parol evidenee, however, can undoubtedly be given to shew that
an agent acting for a then existing prineipal had no authority
to act, and then the agent is liable, not as a party to the note,
but for breach of warranty of authority, as in West London v.
Kitson, 13 Q.B.D. 360, and I can see no reason why parol evi-
lence should not be given to prove that the parties actually
signing the paper were not acting for any prineipal, and were

not acting as agents, and as they did aet they acted for them

selves and are liable as principals. This proof really in both
mstanees arises in proving the making of the note.

It does secem to me that untrammelled by authority, the
proper conclusion to come to under the Code is to hold the
individual defendants liable as makers of the note.

Prior to the Code the eases on this subjeet are numerous and
conflicting. The *“‘anarchy’ of the decisions is well illustrated
by the United States Supreme Court in Falk v. Mocbs, 127 US
097. Suppose in that case the company was in fact at the time
of the making of the note non-existent, ean it be doubted that the
defendants would have been held personally liable?

In Thomson v. Feeley, 41 U.C.Q.IB. 229, at 234, Mr. Justics
Adam Wilson held, following Kelner v. Baxter, LR. 2 C.P. 174,
that if the agent aeted for an existing prineipal and signed as
siuch without authority he was not liable on the note, but was
liable on breach of warranty ; but where there was no prineipal
he was liable on the note,

The case of Dutton v. Marsh, L.R. 6 Q.B. 361, was cited as
an authority that the defendants were liable even if the com-
pany had been in existence, but that case was deeided before the
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Code, and it seems to me not in harmony with section 52, How
ever, that ease was explained away pretty well in the case ol
Chapman v, Smethurst, [1909] 1 KB, 73 and 927 \ perusal

of the judgments in the last mentioned ease, convinees wme that
if in that case there was no company in existenee, when the note
was made, the defendant would have undoubtedly been held
liable

I have not overlooked the partnership case of Fairchild v
Ferguson, 21 Can. S.C.R. 484, but, in that case the partnership
was in existence, and the Court held that the defendant’s sig
nature as manager was the signature of the existing partuership

In signing their names to hind a company that did not exist
they really endeavoured to keep themselves from liability as in
Watling v. Lewis, [1911] 1 Ch. 414, where the subseribing parties
had it stated in the docwment that they were not to be personally
liable, yet they were held liable

The appeal must be dismissed with costs

Ricnagrps, J.A The facts are stated in the judgment of the

learned trial Judg

and my brother Judges

It seems to me that there are three positions argued with
respect to the instruments in question, which | shall, for con

venience, call notes

First, that, when made, they were the promissory notes of
the defendants, Lavoie and Fournier

Second, that, if they were not their promissory notes, they
(Lavoie and Fournier) by signing them for and on behalf of
the alleged company, warranted to the plaintiffs that sueh a com
pany existed and that they had power on its behall and in its
name to make them the company’s promissory notes

Third, that the notes were nullities

I cannot accept the idea that the notes were nullities, It
might be possible that, if the plaintiffs were shewn by the evi
dence to have known, when they took the notes, that the com
pany was not in existence, and to have agreed that they would
not look to the defendants, but would only look to the company
for payment, if brought into existence in the future, taking the
risk of the company being ereated and making the payment,
there might be something in this point, beeause they would then
know what they were taking were instruments that had no valid
ity; and it would be so intended between the parties, The evi
dence, however, does not seem to me sufficient to shew that the
plaintiff’s knew, when taking the notes, that the company had
not yet been incorporated, and the onus of proving this know-
ledge on their part lies, I think, on the defendants.
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In Thomson v. Feeley, 41 U.C.Q.B, 229, the late Sir Adam
Wilson, in giving the judgment of the Court of Queen’s Bench
for Ontario in Term, said, at page 234:

It is established that, althongh a person signs an agreement on
behalf of a company, and the company has no existence at the time,
but is only projected or in prospect, he is personally liable, because
there is no such principal whom he does or can represent, and the
agreement would be wholly inoperative if it were not to be binding
on the person who has signed it: Kelner v. Baxter, LR. 2 C.P. 174.
But, if there be a principal, and the principal never gave authority
to one who professes to act as agent, or if the principal had no
power to do the act which the agent has done, the agent is not liable
upon any agreement he may have entered into, professing to be such
agent, as the principal in the transaction, but he is liable to an action
for damages for a breach of warranty of authority to act as the
agent of the principal he assumed to represent: Collen v. Wright,
T E. & B 301; Richardson v. Williamson, LR, 6 Q.B,
In Thomson v. Feeley, 41 U.C.Q.B. 221, the defendant, sign-

ing his name with the word “‘secretary’” after it, purported to
enter into an undertaking on behalf of an as yet not incorpor-
ated company which he named in the instrument, and it was
held that the defendant was primd facie liable, because at the
time he signed the receipt there was no company, and therefore
no principal whom he could bind, and that it must therefore, be
presumed, to give the instrument validity, that he executed it
on his own behalf,

If the above quotation from Mr. Justice Wilson's judgment
correctly states the law, then the notes now in question became,
under the eircumstances of this case, the promissory notes of the
defendants Fournier and Lavoie, 1 find myself unable to decide
how far Kelner v. Barter, LLR. 2 C.P. 174, bears out the learned
Judge in the above.  In some subsequent cases Kelner v. Baxter
is said to turn rather upon the faet that the form of the body
of the instrument there shewed an intention on behalf of the de-
fendant to make himself liable.  Now, there was, 1 think, in tha
present ease, no such intention on the part of the defendants and
nothing in the body of the instrument shews it. But I do not
think that, for the purpose of this action, it is necessary to
decide whether the notes in question are the defendants’ per-
sonal promissory notes or not.  For, if they were not such, they
were at least warranties by the defendants that the alleged com-
pany on whose hehalf they purported to give the notes, was an
actually existent company and that they had power to sign on
its behalf; and it seems to me that, in cither alternative, they
are bound to make the notes good, though the action in one case
would be upon the notes and in the other upon the misrepre-
sentation,

But it is said that if these doeuments are but a warranty of
the existence of the company, and of the defendants’ right to
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make the notes on its behalf, then the damages would not be the
full amount of the notes, but rather the amount which the plain-
tiffs would have suececded in colleeting upon these notes it they
had in fact been the notes of the company of the same name,
whieh was afterwards formed ; and it is pointed out that, owing
to that company having become insolvent, the plaintifis, if they
had had that company’s notes, would not have been able in faet
to recover their face value, but merely sueh dividend as could
be recovered by ranking on the company’'s estate

This last argument is one which, iff we could hold it valid,
would in fact meet the ends of justice: but 1 cannot see that
it is good in law. We must treat the instruments as what they
were at the time when they were excented.  Now, when they
were executed, the company did not exist, and it might never
have come into existence. If it had not come into existence,
then, I think no question could be raised that the defendants
would, on their above-named warranty, be liable for the full
face amount of these promises to pay. That is the position |
think the matter stood in when the notes were taken.  Can the
fact that there was subsequently incorporated a company, bear
ing the same name as that which the notes purported to be
executed in, make any difference?

The argument that the company, after its hirth, ratified the
notes as its own promises to pay must fail. A corporation has
no power to ratify contracts made on its behalf before its incor
poration, It can only do so in effect by making a new similar
contract of its own. Even if it had power to ratify, that, in
itself, would not ehange the effeet the notes had when they were
made,

It seems to me that, whether we hold that the defendants
made the notes, or hold that they entered into the warranty, as
above mentioned, in either case they have to make good their
face value

I would dismiss the appeal with costs.

Perove, J A, :—I agree with the finding of the learned trial
Judge that there was sufficient consideration for the making of
the notes in question. The plaintifis delayed their remedies
against Fournier & Laplante, the original debtors, and per
mitted the assets of that firm to be handed over to the Fournier
(‘o., Limited, which was to assume the liabilities of Fournier &
Laplante, The plaintiffs not only granted the request for for
bearance as against the original debtors, but also changed their
position by permitting the transfer of assets.

I also agree in the finding that the evidence does not estab
lish that Thompson, the plaintiffs’ accountant, had knowledge
that the company had not been incorporated when the notes were
delivered to the plaintiffs.  On the other hand, information as to
the condition of the incorporation proceedings was within the

Lavoie
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knowledge of the defendants and the other incorporators, and
the plaintiffs had a right to assume that the officers of the com-
pany would not make and issue notes of the company hefore it
was incorporated,

It is claimed that defendants are liable either as makers of
the notes or for breach of warranty as to the existence of the
company and the defendants’ authority to sign the notes on its
behalf.

In considering the first of these two questions, it is essential
that the form of the notes and the manner in which they are
signed should be carefully serutinized. Whether the defendants
have sufficiently exeluded their personal liability and shewn
that they signed on behalf of another party, must be gathered
from what appears on the face of the notes: Leadbitter v, Far-
row, 5 M, & N. 345, 349.  Extrinsic evidence cannot be given to
shew in what capacity the maker intended to sign: Thomas v,
Bishop, 2 Stra. 9 Rewv. Pettet,1 A. & E.196; Kelner v, Bax-
ter, LR, 2 C.P. 174: Brown v. Howland, 9 O.R. 48; Hagarty v.
Squier, 42 U.C.R. 165, All the notes sued upon in this action are
in similar form, the only difference being in the time of their
maturity. The following is a eopy of one, which will serve for
all :---

$200, St. Boniface, May 10th, 1010,
Two months after date, we promise to pay to the order of Crane

& Ordway Co. at the Northern Crown Bank here, the sum of two

hundred dollars. Value received.

Tue Foursier Co., Lro,
F. X. Lavore, Pres
D. FourNier, Manager.

At the time the notes were signed the Fournier Co., Limited,
had not been incorporated. The letters patent incorporating
that company bear date 2nd June, 1910, Section 52 of the Bills
of Exchange Aet, as made applicable to promissory notes by see-
tion 186, deelares that where a person signs a promissory no
maker **and adds words to his signature, indicating that he signs
for or on behalf of a principal, or in a representative character
he is not personally liable thereon; but the mere addition to his
signature of words deseribing him as an agent, or as filling a
representative character, does not exempt him from personal
liability.”” Sub-section 2 provides the rule that is to be followed
in determining the capacity in which the signer of the note has
placed his signature upon it. That sub-section enacts that in
determining whether a signature on a bill or note is that of the
prineipal or that of the agent by whose hand it is written, the
construction most favourable to the validity of the instrument
shall be adopted.

The notes in question were signed by the defendants, The
addition of the word *‘president’” or of the word *‘manager’’
after one of the signatures is not in itself sufficient to exclude

-
i g




0§

e

4 DLR.| CraANE v. Lavore,

the personal liability of the party signing. The note commences
with the words ““we promise’” which would be quite appropriate
in the case of a note intended to be the note of two or more
parties. As has already been pointed out, no explanation, out-
side what appears on the note, is permissible to shew in what
character the parties signed. But it urged the name of the
Fournier Co., Ltd., appears above the individual signatures and
it is argued the natural inference is that the defendants were
signing as president and manager of that company, and not as
actual makers. It appears to me that one fact which confronts
the defendants at the very threshold of the case is al to the
above contention. There was no such company or any such
entity as the Fournier Co., Limited, when the notes were signed.
Where there was no prineipal there could be no agent.  Where
there was no company there was no president or manager. Then,
in order to give any validity to the document, ut res magis valeat
quam pe